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LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL

HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES,
COMMITTEE ON ETHICS,
Washington, DC, November 16, 2018.

Hon. KAREN L. Haas,
Clerk, House of Representatives,
Washington, DC.

DEAR Ms. HaAs: Pursuant to clauses 3(a)(2) and 3(b) of Rule XI
of the Rules of the House of Representatives, we herewith transmit
the attached report, “In the Matter of Allegations Relating to Rep-
resentative Mark Meadows.”

Sincerely,
SusaN W. BROOKS,
Chairwoman.
THEODORE E. DEUTCH,
Ranking Member.
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115TH CONGRESS REPORT
2d Session HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES 115-1042

IN THE MATTER OF ALLEGATIONS RELATING TO
REPRESENTATIVE MARK MEADOWS

NOVEMBER 20, 2018.—Referred to the House Calendar and ordered to be printed

Ms. BROOKS, from the Committee on Ethics,
submitted the following

REPORT

In accordance with House Rule XI, clauses 3(a)(2) and 3(b), the
Committee on Ethics (Committee) hereby submits the following Re-
port to the House of Representatives:

I. INTRODUCTION

In the 114th Congress, the Committee began an investigation of
allegations regarding Representative Mark Meadows. The Com-
mittee conducted a thorough review of these allegations. This Re-
port explains the Committee’s investigation and its conclusions.

News reports in the fall of 2015 alleged that multiple female
staffers in Representative Meadows’ office had complained to him
that they were sexually harassed by his then-Chief of Staff, Kenny
West. It was alleged that in response Representative Meadows
changed Mr. West’s title to Senior Advisor, but kept him on his of-
ficial staff for months after learning of the allegations, when he
may not have performed work commensurate with his rate of pay.
Mr. West then resigned, but Representative Meadows continued to
pay him at his full salary for another two months, and Mr. West
als((i received official mileage reimbursement during that time pe-
riod.

On October 23, 2015, the Office of Congressional Ethics (OCE)
began a preliminary review of allegations that Representative
Meadows paid Mr. West when he did not perform duties commen-
surate with his official duties. On November 17, 2015, Representa-
tive Meadows wrote to OCE and stated he intended to report the
allegation to the Committee, and would decline to cooperate with
OCFE'’s review. The next day, Representative Meadows sent a letter
to the then-Chairman and Ranking Member of the Committee re-
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questing the Committee review his decision to continue paying his
former Chief of Staff, Kenny West, from May 21, 2015, when Mr.
West resigned from Representative Meadows’ office, through Au-
gust 15, 2015. Representative Meadows explained that he contin-
ued paying Mr. West for purposes of a smooth transition and as
“severance.” He also stated that Mr. West engaged in “legitimate
official activity” during that time period, including traveling to
“constituent meetings on my behalf.” Representative Meadows also
said he declined to cooperate with a concurrent review of the sever-
ance payments by OCE, but would fully cooperate with the re-
quested Committee review.

On March 18, 2016, OCE transmitted a Report and Findings
(OCE’s Referral) regarding Representative Meadows to the Com-
mittee.! OCE’s Referral stated that, in October 2014, several fe-
male employees in Representative Meadows’ congressional office
made complaints to him of inappropriate behavior by Mr. West, in-
cluding unwanted touching, inappropriate staring and unpro-
fessional comments.2 Following those reports, Representative
Meadows restricted Mr. West from his congressional offices and
from contacting female employees. However, Mr. West remained in
his position until April 2015 when his title was changed to Senior
Advisor. Despite the change in his title and loss of responsibilities
to supervise Representative Meadows’ congressional staff, the then-
Senior Advisor continued to receive the same salary from the
House of Representatives until August 15, 2015.

OCE examined what official congressional work Mr. West per-
formed after his title changed to Senior Advisor and, based on that
review, found substantial reason to believe Representative Mead-
ows retained an employee who did not perform duties commensu-
rate with the compensation the employee received, and certified the
compensation met applicable House standards, in violation of
House rules and standards of conduct.? OCE recommended the
Committee conduct a further review of the allegations.

The Committee did conduct a further review of the allegations in
OCE’s Referral. On August 17, 2016, the Committee published
OCE’s Referral and a response from Representative Meadows, and
publicly announced the Committee would investigate the matter
under Committee Rule 18(a). The Committee considered whether
Representative Meadows violated any House rule or other standard
of conduct when he paid Mr. West his full salary when Mr. West
(1) was restricted from the congressional offices and from con-
tacting female employees; (2) lost his supervisory responsibilities
and became Senior Advisor; and (3) was paid his full salary for two
months as “severance.” The Committee also considered whether
Representative Meadows violated any House rule or other standard
of conduct in connection with the allegations that Mr. West en-
gfgfged in inappropriate behavior and/or sexual harassment in his
office.

As discussed more fully below, it was generally within Represent-
ative Meadows’ discretion as the employing Member to change the

1See Report and Findings of the Office of Congressional Ethics (Review No. 15-1671) (Appen-
dix A) (hereinafter OCE’s Referral).

2]d. at 6, OCE Interview of Witness B (OCE’s Referral, Exhibit 3) at 9, OCE Interview of
Witness C (OCE’s Referral, Exhibit 4) at 5-6.

30CE’s Referral at 6.
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terms and conditions of Mr. West’s employment. However, clause
8 of the Code of Official Conduct provides that Members may not
retain an employee who does not perform duties for the employing
office commensurate with the compensation the employee receives.
When Mr. West was demoted to Senior Advisor, his pay remained
the same but the Committee found little evidence of official work
that he completed during that time. Thus, the Committee found
that his duties as Senior Advisor were not commensurate with his
pay.

With respect to the payment of severance, the Committee ac-
knowledges that there was little and inconsistent guidance on sev-
erance payments available to the House community at the time
Representative Meadows paid severance to Mr. West. That said,
after Mr. West ended his duties for the congressional office, Rep-
resentative Meadows continued to pay his salary for two months.
Representative Meadows sought no guidance on whether such pay-
ments were permissible and did not obtain anything of discernible
value in exchange for those official funds, such as a release of legal
claims. Accordingly, the Committee found that Representative
Meadows’ payment of severance to Mr. West ran afoul of clause 8.

In addition to further reviewing the compensation-related issues
in OCE’s Referral, the Committee considered (1) when Representa-
tive Meadows learned about Mr. West’s inappropriate behavior;
and (2) whether Representative Meadows exercised reasonable care
to prevent and promptly correct Mr. West’s inappropriate behavior
after he learned about it. Based on the evidentiary record, the
Committee found that Representative Meadows did not know about
Mr. West’s inappropriate conduct until October 2014, when several
of his female staff made complaints about Mr. West’s behavior to
him. The Committee also found that, once Representative Meadows
became aware of Mr. West’s behavior, he should have done more
to address that behavior and prevent it from occurring again in the
future. While Representative Meadows took some important imme-
diate steps—restricting Mr. West from the congressional offices and
prohibiting him from contacting most of the female employees—
those steps were essentially all he did to prevent and correct the
alleged sexual harassment for nearly six months.

Soon after he received the complaints, Representative Meadows
arranged for an independent investigation into the allegations in-
stead of contacting the Committee, the Office of House Employ-
ment Counsel (OHEC), or the Office of Compliance (OOC). After
that independent review was complete, he ignored its findings and
the recommendation by the independent investigator to terminate
Mr. West’s employment. In the months that followed, Mr. West re-
tained his title, full salary and supervisory responsibilities over all
of the congressional staff. Representative Meadows kept Mr. West
in his position even after Mr. West failed to abide by the restric-
tions Representative Meadows put in place to separate him from
the female staff. In fact, another Member approached Representa-
tive Meadows on the House Floor to inform him that his remedial
measures had not worked, and yet, Representative Meadows kept
Mr. West as Chief of Staff. It was not until the Speaker’s office be-
came involved that Representative Meadows removed Mr. West
from his supervisory role in April 2015. Mr. West, however, was
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merely demoted to Senior Advisor, and continued to draw the same
salary until August 15, 2015.

As discussed further in this Report, the Committee’s review
found that Mr. West’s behavior toward the female staff was inap-
propriate in every sense of the word. The Committee found the wit-
nesses who described Mr. West’s conduct to be credible and their
testimony was consistent. There is no place in any congressional of-
fice for looking up skirts, or down shirts; staring at a woman’s
chest; unwanted touching; or making sexual comments, even if sub-
tle or in jest. The fact that Mr. West supervised the women he did
these things to makes his behavior even more unacceptable. Just
as between Members and their staff, a power imbalance exists be-
tween senior staff and junior staff in congressional offices. Those
entrusted with supervisory responsibilities in the workplace must
be sensitive to the potential for discrimination and for creating un-
comfortable working conditions for staff.

Mr. West is no longer a House employee and thus, is no longer
subject to the House Rules that prohibit sexual harassment, nor to
this Committee’s jurisdiction. However, the Committee does not
want to leave the impression that his behavior was appropriate in
any way.

The Committee found that at a minimum, Mr. West’s actions vio-
lated the spirit of clause 9, because his actions were inappropriate
and discriminatory, and would thus violate clause 2 of the Code.
The Committee also found that Mr. West’s actions while employed
by the House did not reflect creditably on Representative Meadows’
office or the House as a whole, in violation of clause 1 of the Code.
Such behavior has no place in the House of Representatives. The
women that worked in Representative Meadows’ office deserved
much better. However, because Mr. West is no longer a House em-
ployee, the Committee does not have jurisdiction over him.

Representative Meadows’ failure to take prompt and decisive ac-
tion to deal with the alleged sexual harassment in his congres-
sional office was troubling to the Committee. The Committee found
Representative Meadows violated House rules by failing to take ap-
propriate steps to ensure that his House office was free from dis-
crimination and any perception of discrimination.

In addition, the Committee is concerned that Representative
Meadows’ “solution” to the sexual harassment allegations, to cut off
all contact between Mr. West and most of his female employees,
caused another potential problem. An environment where only
male staff have access to the Chief of Staff risks unequal treatment
of employees based solely on sex.

Accordingly, the Committee unanimously voted to issue this Re-
port, which will serve as a reproval of Representative Meadows’
conduct, and to require Representative Meadows to reimburse the
U.S. Treasury for the overpayment of Mr. West, in the amount of
$40,625.02. Upon issuance of this Report and Representative Mead-
ows’ reimbursement to the Treasury, the Committee will consider
this matter closed.

II. PROCEDURAL HISTORY

OCE began a preliminary review on October 24, 2015. On No-
vember 17, 2015, Representative Meadows wrote to OCE and stat-
ed, “I am choosing to forego the costly and burdensome process of
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participating in duplicate investigations, and instead will self-re-
port to the Committee on Ethics and follow their instructions to re-
solve this matter.”4 On November 18, 2015, Representative Mead-
ows wrote to the Committee regarding “an allegation made against
me for the manner in which I paid a member of my staff upon his
termination.” > Representative Meadows stated that the matter was
currently the subject of a preliminary review by OCE, but that “be-
cause I would like to save the cost and burden of duplicate inquir-
ies, I have informed the OCE that I will not participate in their re-
view, but will cooperate fully with your Committee in order to
reach a resolution of these allegations.” 6

On November 23, 2015, OCE began a second phase review. OCE
extended its review an additional 14 days, until January 20, 2016.
OCE’s Board voted to adopt findings in the matter on February 26,
2016. OCE transmitted its Referral in this matter to the Com-
mittee on March 18, 2016.

Committee staff reviewed OCE’s Referral, along with other docu-
mentary and testimonial evidence obtained by OCE. In addition,
the Committee issued voluntary requests for information to Rep-
resentative Meadows and 21 other individuals, including current
and former members of Representative Meadows’ official and cam-
paign staff and others familiar with the allegations. The Committee
also issued a subpoena for documents to a former member of Rep-
resentative Meadows’ campaign staff, and received and reviewed
additional documents from that individual. In total, the Committee
reviewed over 3,700 pages of materials. The Committee also inter-
viewed 22 witnesses, including current and former members of
Representative Meadows’ official and campaign staff, others famil-
iar with the allegations, another Member who was familiar with
the allegations, and Representative Meadows. Representative
Meadows fully cooperated with the Committee’s investigation.

Before its final vote on this matter, the Committee provided Rep-
resentative Meadows with a copy of this Report on October 26,
2018, and an opportunity to address the full Committee in person
or in writing. Representative Meadows declined the Committee’s
invitation to do so.

III. HOUSE RULES, LAWS, REGULATIONS, AND OTHER
STANDARDS OF CONDUCT

A. SEX DISCRIMINATION AND SEXUAL HARASSMENT

Sexual harassment and other forms of employment discrimina-
tion are prohibited in the House by both federal statute and House
Rule. The Congressional Accountability Act (CAA),” prohibits dis-
crimination based on sex, including sexual harassment, and also
prohibits intimidation, reprisal or other discrimination against a
person for opposing sex discrimination. During the period under re-
view, House Rule XXIII, clause 9, stated that “[a] Member . . .
may not discharge and may not refuse to hire an individual, or oth-
erwise discriminate against an individual with respect to com-

4Letter from Representative Meadows to Omar Ashmawy, Staff Director & Chief Counsel,
OCE (Nov. 17, 2015) (Appendix B).

5Letter from Representative Meadows to Chairman Charles W. Dent and Ranking Member
Lig}i{; T. Sanchez, Committee on Ethics (Nov. 18, 2015) (Appendix B).

72 U.S.C. §§ 1311 et seq.
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pensation, terms, conditions, or privileges of employment, because
of the race, color, religion, sex (including marital or parental sta-
tus), disability, age, or national origin of such individual.” The
Committee has long held that a Member who violates applicable
sex discrimination and sexual harassment laws also violates House
Rule XXIII, clause 9.8 On February 6, 2018, the House formally
amended clause 9 to confirm that the prohibition includes “commit-
ting an act of sexual harassment against such an individual.”®

The CAA created the OOC as a forum to administer disputes
that arise under the CAA, including claims of gender discrimina-
tion and sexual harassment. The OOC’s guidance defines sexual
harassment as “[ulnwelcome sexual advances, requests for sexual
favors, or other verbal or physical conduct of a sexual nature if the
implication is that submission to such conduct is expected as part
of the job.” 10 Consistent with judicial interpretations of Title VII
of the Civil Rights Act of 1964,11 the OOC has also recognized that
harassment, including sexual harassment, can occur “when there is
unwelcome conduct, such as insults, slurs, or other verbal or phys-
ical conduct or activity regarding a protected trait,” which “creates
an intimidating, hostile, or offensive work environment, that un-
reasonably interferes with an individual’s work performance.” 12

Sexual harassment and other forms of sex discrimination also
implicate House Rule XXIII, clauses 1 and 2, which state that “[a]
Member . . . of the House shall behave at all times in a manner
that shall reflect creditably on the House,” and “shall adhere to the
spirit and the letter of the Rules of the House.”

B. PAYMENT OF COMPENSATION AND SEVERANCE TO HOUSE
EMPLOYEES

House Rule XXIII, clause 8, states that “[a] Member . . . of the
House may not retain an employee who does not perform duties for
the offices of the employing authority commensurate with the com-
pensation such employee receives.” Thus, a Member is responsible
for ensuring that each employee the Member retains performs offi-
cial work commensurate with that employee’s pay. As the Ethics
Manual states:

The underlying standard for the receipt of compensation
by an employee of the House is that the employee has reg-
ularly performed official duties commensurate with the
compensation received. The Code of Ethics for Government
Service instructs every employee to ‘[glive a full day’s labor

8 House Ethics Manual (2008) at 268—69 (hereinafter Ethics Manual) (citing House Comm. on
Standards of Official Conduct, In the Matter of Representative Jim Bates, H. Rep. 101-293, 101st
Cong., 1st Sess. 8-10 (1989) (hereinafter Bates)).

9H.R. Res. 724, 115th Cong. (2018). On February 6, 2018, the House passed H.R. 4924, the
Congressional Accountability Act of 1994 Reform Act. That legislation would make certain
changes to the CAA. See, e.g., Statement of the Chairwoman and Ranking Member of the Com-
mittee on Ethics, (Feb. 6, 2018), https:/ethics.house.gov/press-release/statement-chairwoman-
and-ranking-member-committee-ethics-0. On May 24, 2018, the Senate passed S. 2952, its
version of legislation to reform the Congressional Accountability Act of 1994 Reform Act. The
Senate’s version was transmitted to the House on May 29, 2018. As of this time, no further ac-
tion has been taken on either version of the Congressional Accountability Act of 1994 Reform

Act.

10 Office of Compliance, CAA Handbook (2010) at 44, available at https:/compliance.gov/sites/
default/files/wp-content/uploads/2010/01/CAA-Handbook.pdf.

1142 U.S.C. §2000e et seq.

12Office of Compliance, Compliance@Work at 2 (2012), https://www.compliance.gov/sites/de-
fault/files/wp-content/uploads/2012/09/Newsletter-for-Staff.pdf.



7

for a full day’s pay; giving to the performance of his duties
his best effort and best thought. Employees are paid
United States Treasury funds to perform public duties. Ap-
propriated funds are to be used solely for purposes for
which appropriated. Funds appropriated for congressional
staff to perform official duties should be used only for as-
sisting a Member in his or her legislative and congres-
sional functions.13

Notwithstanding these restrictions, the “general terms, condi-
tions, and specific duties of House employees traditionally have
been within the discretion of the employing Member.” 14

IV. BACKGROUND
A. REPRESENTATIVE MEADOWS’ RELATIONSHIP WITH MR. WEST

Representative Mark Meadows represents the Eleventh District
of North Carolina. He has been a Member of the House of Rep-
resentatives since 2013. Representative Meadows first became ac-
quainted with Mr. West before he was elected to Congress, when
Mr. West was one of his opponents in the 2012 Republican primary
election.'> Representative Meadows hired Mr. West after he was
elected to the House, and Mr. West became Chief of Staff when
Representative Meadows was sworn into office on January 3,
2013.16 Before he joined Representative Meadows’ congressional of-
fice, Mr. West sold insurance in North Carolina.l?

Representative Meadows told the Committee he hired Mr. West
because he had good connections in rural areas of the District
where Representative Meadows was less well known, and also be-
cause he wanted, “someone who could do outreach in the district
as a chief of staff.”18 After Representative Meadows hired Mr.
West but before he was sworn into office, a campaign supporter
and local business owner (hereinafter Campaign Supporter) told
Representative Meadows that Mr. West had previously exhibited
behavior in a professional setting that made females uncomfort-
able.1® That information was conveyed as a part of a larger con-
versation about the Campaign Supporter’s displeasure with Rep-
resentative Meadows’ decision to hire Mr. West.20

After Representative Meadows was sworn in, Mr. West began
managing the congressional office from the district, but spent some
of his time in Representative Meadows’ Washington, D.C., office.21
He was responsible for supervising all of Representative Meadows’
congressional employees and evaluating their performance.22 He
also made recommendations to Representative Meadows related to

13 Ethics Manual at 279.

14]d. at 267; see also Members’ Congressional Handbook, July 25, 2018 at 4 (hereinafter Mem-
bers’ Handbook (2018)) (“the Member determines the terms and conditions of employment and
service for their staff”); Exhibit 1 (Members’ Handbook (2011)) at 3 (the Members’ Handbook in
effect at the time Mr. West was employed in Representative Meadows’ office).

12[13(3) Interview of Representative Meadows.

1

1718(a) Interview of Kenny West.

18 18(a) Interview of Representative Meadows.

1918(a) Interview of Witness P; 18(a) Interview of Representative Meadows. See also infra
Section V.B.

2(1)113(3) Interview of Representative Meadows.

22]d.
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hiring, firing, salaries and bonuses for all of the congressional em-
ployees.23

B. ALLEGATIONS THAT MR. WEST ACTED INAPPROPRIATELY TOWARD
FEMALE EMPLOYEES IN REPRESENTATIVE MEADOWS’ OFFICES

According to multiple witnesses, female employees in the Wash-
ington, D.C. and district offices began to feel uncomfortable with
Mr. West’s behavior toward them shortly after he became Chief of
Staff in January 2013, and this discomfort persisted through Octo-
ber 2014.2¢4 The individual who served as the Legislative Director
and Deputy Chief of Staff (hereinafter D.C. Deputy Chief), a male
employee who started in Representative Meadows’ Washington,
D.C., office in January 2013, said he heard as early as January or
February 2013 that Mr. West made female employees feel uncom-
fortable.25

Mr. West’s alleged inappropriate behavior fell into three main
categories: (1) unwanted touching, (2) inappropriate staring, and
(3) unprofessional comments related to female employees’ appear-
ances.

1. Unwanted touching

Six female employees told the Committee that they experienced
unwanted touching by Mr. West on multiple occasions in the con-
gressional office, and other employees, male and female alike, ob-
served this behavior.26 One female employee described Mr. West as
being very “handsy.”27 Indeed, testimony shows Mr. West touched
multiple female staff in ways that were not overtly sexual, but
were nonetheless inappropriate. Mr. West placed his hands on the
backs or shoulders of multiple female staff dozens of times,28 poked
a female employee in the side at least a dozen times,2? grabbed a
female employee’s hand to look at her nail polish,39 and repeatedly
touched the heads or hair of female staff, including scratching their
heads and pulling on ponytails.3! One female employee said that
Mr. West pulled her ponytail when he would walk by her desk, es-
timating that it occurred less than a dozen times, beginning in Oc-
tober 2013 shortly after she started in the congressional office.32
Another female staffer told OCE that she was warned when she
started in the congressional office not to wear her hair in a pony-
tail because Mr. West liked to play with it.33 Mr. West’s unwanted
touching was also directed towards interns in the office. One fe-
male employee recounted a conversation that a female intern had

23]d.

24 See, e.g., 18(a) Interview of Employee A; 18(a) Interview of Employee G; 18(a) Interview of
Employee B; 18(a) Interview of Employee D.

2518(a) Interview of Employee dJ.

26 18(a) Interview of Employee A; 18(a) Interview of Employee B; 18(a) Interview of Employee
C; 18(a) Interview of Employee E; 18(a) Interview of Employee F; 18(a) Interview of Employee
G; see also 18(a) Interview of Employee J; 18(a) Interview of Employee K.

2718(a) Interview of Employee E.

KZS 18(a) Interview of Employee C; 18(a) Interview of Employee B; 18(a) Interview of Employee

2918(a) Interview of Employee B.

30 Exhibit 2.

3118(a) Interview of Employee F; 18(a) Interview of Employee G. In an email produced to the
Committee, dated November 12, 2013, two female employees who worked in the Washington,
D.C. office discussed Mr. West touching their hair. One said Mr. West had an “affinity for touch-
ing [her] hair.” Exhibit 3.

3218(a) Interview of Employee G.

33 OCE Interview of Witness B (OCE’s Referral, Exhibit 3) at 6.
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with the entire Washington, D.C., staff at the end of her intern-
ship. She said, “the typical question we would ask our interns is,
what [were] your highs and lows? Her low was how uncomfortable
Kenny made her feel and how he would always touch her hair.” 34

2. Inappropriate staring

Many of Representative Meadows’ congressional staff told the
Committee that Mr. West stared at female employees inappropri-
ately on a regular basis.35 Several female employees reported that
Mr. West looked at their chests, down their blouses, or up their
skirts. One female employee told the Committee, “[m]ost people you
talk to have eye contact. Kenny’s eyes, if you're a woman, they're
on your breast.” 36 Multiple female employees expressed discomfort
with Mr. West “hovering” closely to them, invading their personal
space.3” One female employee told the Committee that she moved
to a standing desk to avoid Mr. West’s “hovering.” 38 Another, who
also worked at a standing desk, said Mr. West would stand next
to her while she worked, “shoulder to shoulder” so he could look
down her shirt.3° Two female employees described sitting in awk-
ward positions in staff meetings or at their desks to prevent Mr.
West from looking up their skirts.40

3. Unprofessional comments about female employees’ appearances

Numerous witnesses testified that Mr. West commented fre-
quently about female employees’ appearances, including their looks
and clothing. Mr. West would often describe female staff as attrac-
tive or beautiful,#! and would make comments to female staff like,
“you should wear heels more often,”42 “[w]ow, I can’t believe your
husband lets you out that way,”43 and “ooh, that red dress.”4¢ Mr.
West also commented on female employees’ weight, including ask-
ing one how much she weighed.4> Two female employees recounted
a story to the Committee that was relayed to them by Mr. West’s
wife: in New York City, Mr. West encountered a topless performer
in Central Park and told his wife the performer looked like Em-
ployee B.4¢ Employee B, who heard Mr. West’s wife tell the story,
said she felt “really uncomfortable.” 47

3418(a) Interview of Employee D.

35See e.g., 18(a) Interview of Employee J (describing instances of hovering closely to two
former female employees); 18(a) Interview of Employee K (describing instances of looking down
a female’s shirt); 18(a) Interview of Employee B (describing a female “contort[ing] into weird
positions” to avoid Mr. West staring at her); 18(a) Interview of Employee F (describing instances
of Mr. West “creepily watching” females during meetings).

36 18(a) Interview of Employee E.

3718(a) Interview of Employee D; 18(a) Interview of Employee A; 18(a) Interview of Employee
F; see also 18(a) Interview of Employee J.

38 18(a) Interview of Employee B.

3918(a) Interview of Employee D; see also 18(a) Interview of Employee K (observed Mr. West
standing shoulder to shoulder with a female employee and looking down her shirt); 18(a) Inter-
view of Employee B (“I kind of recall him [standing shoulder to shoulder] with all the girls in
the office.”).

4018(a) Interview of Employee D; 18(a) Interview of Employee B; see also 18(a) Interview of
Employee J.

4118(a) Interview of Employee D; 18(a) Interview of Employee B; 18(a) Interview of Employee

4218(a) Interview of Employee F; 18(a) Interview of Employee B.
4318(a) Interview of Employee J.

4418(a) Interview of Employee B.

451d.; 18(a) Interview of Employee J.

46 18(a) Interview of Employee G; 18(a) Interview of Employee B.
4718(a) Interview of Employee B.
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C. REPRESENTATIVE MEADOWS BECOMES AWARE OF THE ALLEGED
INAPPROPRIATE BEHAVIOR

1. Representative Meadows’ awareness before October 2014

Although it was widely known among Representative Meadows’
staff that Mr. West made female employees uncomfortable, there is
some question about when Representative Meadows first learned of
the problem. During the course of the Committee’s investigation,
the Committee reviewed allegations that Representative Meadows
may have known, prior to October 2014, that Mr. West made his
female employees feel uncomfortable. The investigation did not,
however, substantiate any of those allegations.

Employee D told both OCE and the Committee she heard from
the D.C. Deputy Chief that a district office staffer sent an email
to Representative Meadows, prior to February 2014, complaining
that Mr. West “would always try to hug her too closely. She felt
like it was always him trying to feel her chest, and look down her
shirt, and she didn’t like that.” 48 Employee D stated that she had
learned Representative Meadows “just forwarded [the district staff-
er's email] to Kenny.”4° However, Employee D never saw the
email, and the events she described took place before she joined
Representative Meadows’ office.50 Further, neither Representative
Meadows nor any other member of his staff corroborated this ac-
count.51

Second, a former campaign staffer, Witness @, independently
contacted the Committee after learning about the Committee’s in-
vestigation and alleged that Representative Meadows and his sen-
ior staff knew as early as April 2014 that Mr. West acted inappro-
priately toward female staff. More specifically, Witness Q alleged
that complaints about Mr. West’s behavior toward women were
lodged in April 2014 and that Mr. West was prohibited from enter-
ing the congressional offices at that time, rather than in October
2014 as the OCE Referral stated.52 Witness Q had no firsthand
knowledge of his allegations, but based them on conversations he
had with two of Representative Meadows’ congressional staff in
April 2014.53 The Committee, however, was unable to confirm that
the alleged conversations with the two staffers occurred. One of the
staffers that was supposedly a part of those conversations told the
Committee that he had no recollection of them, and the other staff-
er could not be reached by the Committee.54

Thus, the Committee was unable to substantiate allegations that
Representative Meadows knew prior to October 2014 that Mr. West
acted inappropriately toward female staff.

48 OCE Interview of Witness B (OCE’s Referral, Exhibit 3) at 24; 18(a) Interview of Employee
D

49 OCE Interview of Witness B (OCE’s Referral, Exhibit 3) at 24.

5018(a) Interview of Employee D.

5118(a) Interview of Employee J. The Committee did learn about one instance where Rep-
resentative Meadows received a written complaint about Mr. West from a female district staff
employee in 2013, but that complaint discussed only Mr. West’s alleged dishonesty in salary ne-
gotiations, and did not mention any inappropriate behavior towards women. 18(a) Interview of
Employee E.

5218(a) Interview of Witness Q.

53]1d.

5418(a) Interview of Employee R.
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2. October 2014 allegations of inappropriate behavior

Within the span of a few days in October 2014, employees in
Representative Meadows’ Washington, D.C. and Hendersonville,
North Carolina, offices complained to Representative Meadows
about Mr. West’s inappropriate behavior toward female employees.

The first complaints were made by the five female staff in the
Washington, D.C., office and relayed to Representative Meadows by
the D.C. Deputy Chief. The complaints were prompted by Mr.
West’s insistence in August and September 2014 that one of the fe-
males in that office, Employee B, make a trip to the district that
would have required her to spend substantial time alone with Mr.
West.55 Employee B initially avoided the trip but eventually felt
her job was at risk if she continued to do s0.5¢ She discussed her
concerns with the D.C. Deputy Chief, who told the Committee
“[t]he only recourse that [he] saw as deputy chief at this time was
to go talk to Congressman Meadows.” 57

In early October 2014, before he talked to Representative Mead-
ows, the D.C. Deputy Chief told all female employees in the Wash-
ington, D.C., office that he would be speaking to the Congressman
regarding Mr. West’s inappropriate behavior toward women.58 All
five female employees in the Washington, D.C., office emailed in-
stances of inappropriate behavior they had experienced with Mr.
West to the D.C. Deputy Chief.5° He created a document that listed
the complaints from each female employee, without identifying
them by name, for his discussion with Representative Meadows.60
The list described instances of unwanted touching, inappropriate
staring, and comments by Mr. West, of the kind described pre-
viously.61

On or around Friday, October 17, 2014, the D.C. Deputy Chief
told Representative Meadows that female employees in the Wash-
ington, D.C., office were uncomfortable around Mr. West.62 He also
gave Representative Meadows the list of complaints he had com-
piled.63 The D.C. Deputy Chief also relayed to Representative
Meadows that Employee B did not feel comfortable traveling to the
district due to Mr. West’s behavior toward her.64 Representative
Meadows immediately met with his Washington, D.C., congres-
sional staff and told them he had zero tolerance for the inappro-

5518(a) Interview of Employee B.
56 Il

5718(a) Interview of Employee dJ.

58]d. ; see also, e.g., 18(a) Interview of Employee D; 18(a) Interview of Employee A. Mr. West
suggested to the Committee that the D.C. Deputy Chief shared the complaints he had compiled
with all of the female employees, causing them to unfairly “pile on” additional complaints. 18(a)
Interview of Kenny West. However, the D.C. Deputy Chief explained he was aware that other
female employees had expressed concerns and wanted to give them the opportunity, if they
chose, to raise any issues with Representative Meadows. 18(a) Interview of Employee J; see also
18(a) Interview of Employee A. He further explained he did not want it to be a “she said/he
said” situation, and thought Representative Meadows should hear from more than one female
employee. 18(a) Interview of Employee J.

5918(a) Interview of Employee J.

60 ]d.; Exhibit 4.

61 Exhibit 4; see also 18(a) Interview of Employee J.

6218(a) Interview of Employee J; 18(a) Interview of Representative Meadows.

631d.; see also Exhibit 4.

6418(a) Interview of Representative Meadows.
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priate behavior and would address it.6> He did not, however, tell
them how he would address it.66

After learning about the allegations, Representative Meadows
called Mr. West, who was in the district at the time, to inform him
of the claims against him.67 After the call, he provided Mr. West
the document that listed the allegations.6® At that time, Represent-
ative Meadows also instructed Mr. West not to have contact with
any female employees in the Washington, D.C. office, other than
the scheduler, and told Mr. West that there would be an investiga-
tion.%9

On the evening of Tuesday, October 21, 2014, just four days after
learning about the allegations from the Washington, D.C., office,
Representative Meadows received another complaint, this time
from a female employee in his Hendersonville district office. The
individual serving as District Director and Deputy Chief of Staff
(hereinafter District Deputy Chief) forwarded to Representative
Meadows an email from Employee C.70 In her email, Employee C
said that Mr. West made her feel uncomfortable in a meeting that
day.”t She wrote that Mr. West made her feel “extremely ill at
ease,” that he “stare[d] inappropriately,” and was “overly
touchy.” 72 She also requested in the email that Mr. West “main-
tain his distance” from her.”> Employee C told the Committee that
she complained after Mr. West stared at her “like he was trying to
look down my shirt” during her performance evaluation that day.7+
The District Deputy Chief also attended the performance evalua-
tion meeting. When asked by the Committee what he observed, he
said, “I was in there the entire time during this discussion, and I
never saw anything inappropriate.” 7> However, he also said that
Mr. West had a tendency to be long-winded and he did not remem-
ber whether he was paying attention during the entire meeting.?6

The following morning, on Wednesday, October 22, 2014, Mr.
West attempted to return to the Hendersonville district office but
another district office employee, Employee E, barred him from en-
tering. She told Mr. West he made both she and Employee C feel
uncomfortable and therefore he could not come into the office.””
After arguing with Employee E, Mr. West eventually left.78 Mr.
West immediately called Representative Meadows and reported
that he was blocked from entering the Hendersonville office.”®

65]d.; see also 18(a) Interview of Employee J. Mr. West was not in Washington, D.C. at the
time and was not in this meeting.

66 18(a) Interview of Representative Meadows; see also 18(a) Interview of Employee J.

6718(a) Interview of Representative Meadows; see also 18(a) Interview of Kenny West.

68 ]d.

69]d.

70 Exhibit 5.

1]d.

2]d.

31d.

7418(a) Interview of Employee C.

7518(a) Interview of Employee M.

76 ]d.

7718(a) Interview of Employee C; 18(a) Interview of Employee E; see also 18(a) Interview of
Kenny West. Mr. West said Employee E told him he could not enter the district office because
he “looked at [her] boobs.”

78 18(a) Interview of Employee E.

7918(a) Interview of Representative Meadows; see also 18(a) Interview of Kenny West.
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D. REACTIONS TO ALLEGATIONS OF INAPPROPRIATE BEHAVIOR

Representative Meadows told the Committee he was “shocked,
upset [and] surprised” when he received the allegations from his
Washington, D.C. staff in mid-October 2014.80© When he learned
about Employee C’s allegations and the subsequent confrontation
at the Hendersonville office, he said he knew he had “a pervasive
problem.” 81 He explained, “probably the biggest thing that was dif-
ficult for me is that some of these things, one, I missed, but the
other was . . . why didn’t I hear about them?”82 Representative
Meadows said he did not recall ever being told or hearing that Mr.
West acted inappropriately toward his female staff before they
brought complaints to him in October 2014.83

According to Representative Meadows, Mr. West “vigorously” de-
nied the allegations against him.84 Representative Meadows told
the Committee that Mr. West thought the congressional staff, par-
ticularly the D.C. Deputy Chief and the District Deputy Chief were
just trying to get Mr. West fired.8> Mr. West also told Representa-
tive Meadows that the staff did not like having an “older guy”
around.86

In his testimony to the Committee, Mr. West denied all but one
of the allegations about his behavior: he admitted that he touched
Employee A’s hair when she wore it in a bun.87 Mr. West explained
that Employee A told him she did not like to be touched, and so
he never touched her again.88

Mr. West suggested alternative explanations for the allegations.
To illustrate, he suggested that the allegations related to his com-
ments about female employee’s clothing may have been a response
to him telling female employees that they dressed inappropri-
ately.89 He also said that he told female and male employees alike
that they “[1Jooked nice today.” 90 Further, Mr. West said that while
he never touched a female employee’s back or shoulders, he may
have “brushed against them in the office trying to get by.” 91

Mr. West also claimed the allegations were “coordinated,” specu-
lating, “I think some of them wanted me out of the way so some-
body else could be the chief.”92 He thought that Representative
Meadows’ staff were unhappy that he supported Representative
Meadows’ decision not to vote with House leadership in a few in-

8018(a) Interview of Representative Meadows; see also 18(a) Interview of Employee J.
8118(a) Interview of Representative Meadows.
82]d.

83]d.

84]d.

85]1d.

86 Id.

8718(a) Interview of Kenny West.

88 Id. Employee A recalled one instance in which she said something to Mr. West about his
behavior, but believed it related to him hovering close to her. 18(a) Interview of Employee A.
She also told the Committee that she observed Mr. West engaging in the behavior alleged, such
as standing close and touching hair, with other women in the office. Id.

8918(a) Interview of Kenny West (“Q. Did you ever look down a female staffer’s blouse? . . .
A. [TThe answer to that is no, but I will tell you some of our female staff . . . they dressed inap-
propriately. . . . I said: You cannot dress like that and be meeting with the Ambassador of
[IIsrael. You can’t do that. And some of them took offense I imagine. Okay? But the answer
to 9tglat is no.”).

917d. Mr. West also said that one female employee, who he declined to identify, straightened
his tie and rubbed his head when he had a headache.
92]d.
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stances.?3 Although Representative Meadows told the Committee
that Mr. West, who was fifty-six years old at the time, alluded to
age discrimination when Representative Meadows confronted him
about g}ile allegations, Mr. West denied doing so to the Com-
mittee.

E. CORRECTIVE MEASURES REPRESENTATIVE MEADOWS TOOK
REGARDING THE ALLEGATIONS OF INAPPROPRIATE BEHAVIOR

Almost immediately after learning about the allegations, Rep-
resentative Meadows made two changes. First, he attempted to
separate Mr. West from the female employees in his offices. He di-
rected Mr. West to (1) have no contact with female employees other
than the scheduler;95 (2) not return to the Washington, D.C., or
district congressional offices when female employees were present;
and (3) use the D.C. Deputy Chief and District Deputy Chief, both
male employees, as a conduit for any supervisory interactions with
female employees.?¢ Representative Meadows told the Committee
Mr. West was upset about the restrictions and told him, “I can’t
even do my job.”97 Despite the restrictions that even Mr. West
identified as an impediment to doing his job, Mr. West’s title did
not change and his compensation was not reduced.?8

Second, Representative Meadows gave Mr. West access to the
email accounts of the D.C. and District Deputy Chiefs.?9 Mr. West
received access on October 22, 2014, five days after Representative
Meadows learned about the Washington, D.C., allegations and the
same day that Employee E barred Mr. West from entering the
Hendersonville office.190 This access allowed Mr. West to see all of
the emails the Deputies sent and received on their official congres-
sional email accounts, without them knowing.101 On the same day,
Representative Meadows received access to every member of his
staff's emails.192 However, Representative Meadows never utilized
that access himself.103

Representative Meadows told the Committee he gave Mr. West
access to the Deputies’ emails so Mr. West could “properly monitor
things” because “he’s not going to have as much direct contact with
the office.” 104 Representative Meadows said he did not instruct Mr.
West to look for anything in particular in the emails, nor did he
provide Mr. West with the email access in response to, or connec-
tion with, the allegations against Mr. West.105 Mr. West gave the
Committee a very different explanation: he said Representative
Meadows “wanted me to see what was transpiring between [the
Deputies],” because “[i]t’s my opinion that them [sic] two were a

931

94]d. (“Q. Did you ever tell Representative Meadows that you thought that staff were discrimi-
nating against you in some way? A. Never discriminating.”)

9518(a) Interview of Representative Meadows. Representative Meadows told Mr. West that the
only female employee he could have direct contact with was his scheduler because it was nec-
essary for scheduling purposes.

9% ]d.

97]d.

98]d. As discussed more fully in section V.C.2., infra, Mr. West actually received an increase
in compensation around the same time, apparently as part of a year-end bonus.

9918(a) Interview of Representative Meadows.

100 See Exhibit 6.

101 18(a) Interview of Representative Meadows.

102 Id

10374

10474

105 Id
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main cause of what happened.” 196 Mr. West told the Committee
that when he accessed the Deputies’ emails, he was looking for in-
formation about the allegations because he believed the allegations
were a result of the Deputies’ scheme to get him fired.107

The investigative record shows that on at least five occasions,
Mr. West shared information he found in either or both the D.C.
and District Deputy Chief’s emails with Representative Meadows.
Only one of the five emails appears to be related to Mr. West or
the allegations: a March 2015 email exchange between the D.C.
Deputy Chief and a staffer that worked for a Member in House
leadership. In that email, the leadership staffer asked the D.C.
Deputy Chief whether a rumor that Mr. West was leaving was
true, and the D.C. Deputy Chief responded that he could not con-
firm the rumor. The other emails Mr. West shared with Represent-
ative Meadows generally concerned conversations between the Dep-
uties and other Member offices, or speculation about personnel
moves not involving Mr. West.

F. REPRESENTATIVE MEADOWS REQUESTS AN INDEPENDENT
INVESTIGATION

In addition to the steps he took within his congressional office,
Representative Meadows sought Representative Trey Gowdy’s ad-
vice in early November 2014.198 Representative Meadows said he
consulted Representative Gowdy because he wanted a prosecutor’s
advice on the best way to investigate the allegations.199 As a result
of this conversation, Representative Gowdy recommended his sen-
ior female staffer (hereinafter Gowdy Staffer), a former Violence
Against Women prosecutor who could talk to Representative Mead-
ows’ female employees in a comfortable, non-threatening way, as-
sess the situation in Representative Meadows’ Washington, D.C.,
office.110 Representative Meadows told the Committee he wanted
“laln independent third-party evaluator who could evaluate the
merits of [the allegations] without being obligatory to [him] or any-
body else . . . and make a recommendation.” 111 Gowdy Staffer was
trained and had extensive experience in conducting independent in-
vestigations and interviewing sensitive witnesses.

On November 18, 2014, Gowdy Staffer met with the female em-
ployees that worked in Representative Meadows’ Washington, D.C.,
congressional office.112 Representative Gowdy was not involved in
the investigation. Shortly after the meetings, Gowdy Staffer talked
to Representative Meadows about what she learned in those meet-
ings, and made a recommendation to terminate Mr. West. She de-
scribed her conversation with Representative Meadows to the Com-
mittee:

We met and I relayed to him my honest opinion and
feeling, I guess recommendation. The question was: What
would you do if you were the chief of staff? That was the
question to me. I said: I would let him go, for a couple of

106 18(a) Interview of Kenny West.
107 14

108 18(a) Interview of Representative Meadows.
IOQId

110]d.; 18(a) Interview of Representative Gowdy.

11118 (a) Interview of Representative Meadows; see also 18(a) Interview of Gowdy Staffer.

11218(a) Interview of Representative Meadows; 18(a) Interview of Gowdy Staffer. Gowdy Staff-
er was not asked to meet with the female employees in the district offices.
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reasons. One is, you know, he—Mr. Meadows relayed to
me that he had a great staff, that they all had done a fan-
tastic job, and there was a mutual respect there. And if he
truly valued the staff, my feeling was, if it didn’t get re-
solved, they were going to eventually move on. I mean,
they were—they did not feel like they could stay in that
office and work in that office with Kenny West. But the
first and foremost is if you value your staff, you—and this
continues, you may not keep your staff. So that was num-
ber one.

Number two was they had some serious claims. And
from my perspective and sort of from having my legal per-
spective, that this could be a real problem for Mr. Mead-
ows. Because you have someone working in your office,
and these claims are very much, for me, sexual harass-
ment potentially. Hostility in the workplace potentially.
And that’s not something I as a chief of staff would even
entertain, tolerate, even if there was a suggestion. So that
was my personal feeling based on what they had all said
to me. That the stories were consistent, that there didn’t
seem, to me, to be some sort of ulterior motive or just ani-
mosity where they were just trying to get rid of Kenny. It
was truly a sense of: We're not comfortable. We don’t feel
comfortable working here. I don’t want to leave, but here
we are. So that’s what I relayed to him.113

Representative Meadows told the Committee he did not recall
Gowdy Staffer telling him anything about sexual harassment or a
hostile work environment, but he did remember she told him the
allegations against Mr. West were serious and he “needed to take
action to terminate the employment.” 114 After Gowdy Staffer made
her recommendation, both Representative Gowdy and Gowdy Staff-
er believed Mr. West was terminated.115

Representative Meadows did not, however, fire Mr. West. He told
the Committee he thought the allegations were credible but he still
had reservations.116 In particular, he said he was debating whether
to give Mr. West the opportunity to tell his side of the story.117 He
explained to the Committee, that from mid-November 2014 when
Gowdy Staffer completed her investigation until April 1, 2015,
when he demoted Mr. West, he went “back and forth, maybe longer
than I should have, wrestling with what was fair and what was
not.” 118

Representative Meadows did not do anything further to address
his reservations about whether it would be “fair” to terminate Mr.
West. The Committee notes that Representative Meadows did not
seek assistance from any of the resources available to the House
community, such as the Committee, OOC, or OHEC.11° Represent-

113 18(a) Interview of Gowdy Staffer.

11478(a) Interview of Representative Meadows.
11518(a) Interview of Representative Gowdy.
116 18(a) Interview of Representative Meadows.
117Id

1874

1191d. At the time, Representative Gowdy served on the Committee. However, in his interview
with the Committee, Representative Gowdy said that he viewed the issues with Mr. West as
an employment matter, which he assumed was resolved because he believed Mr. West had been
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ative Meadows told the Committee that, at the time, he did not
know what congressional resources were available.120 However,
there is no indication he made any effort to find that out. Rep-
referzltative Meadows also did not consult any private legal coun-
sel.121

G. MR. WEST’S WORK AND RESPONSIBILITIES FOLLOWING THE INDE-
PENDENT INVESTIGATION AND RECOMMENDATION TO TERMINATE
HIM

After the independent investigation, Representative Meadows did
not make any immediate changes to Mr. West’s responsibilities.122
Mr. West continued to make recommendations to Representative
Meadows regarding employees’ salaries and positions and the office
budget.123 In fact, the investigative record shows that Mr. West
provided Representative Meadows with written evaluations of all
congressional staff on two occasions: in November 2014 and Feb-
ruary 2015.12¢ In those evaluations, Mr. West was critical of the
D.C. and District Deputy Chiefs—who he believed had devised the
allegations as a way to get him fired 125—and several of the female
employees that made allegations against him.126

Because Mr. West continued to be barred from entering the con-
gressional offices and from contacting most of the female employ-
ees, Mr. West worked from his home in the district. 127 Representa-
tive Meadows told the Committee he asked Mr. West to perform
additional outreach throughout the district because he would not
be coming back to Washington, D.C.128 This included attending
events with Representative Meadows, outreach to county managers
and more casework related to governmental officials.129 Represent-
ative Meadows testified that he did not view the restrictions on Mr.
West as a change or reduction in his responsibilities.130

H. STAFF’S UNDERSTANDING OF MR. WEST’S WORK AND
RESPONSIBILITIES FOLLOWING THE INDEPENDENT INVESTIGATION

In late November 2014, after the independent investigation was
complete, Representative Meadows asked his D.C. Deputy Chief to
announce to the female employees in the Washington, D.C. office
that: (1) Mr. West would no longer have a role in the Washington,
D.C. office; (2) he would have limited contact with the female em-
ployees; and (3) he would no longer have office space in Wash-
ington, D.C., after Representative Meadows moved to a new office

fired after Gowdy Staffer’s investigation. Representative Gowdy did not engage in Committee
decisions or discussions regarding this matter. 18(a) Interview of Representative Gowdy.

120 18(a) Interview of Representative Meadows.

121]d‘

122 4.

123]1d. Representative Meadows told the Committee he did not hire any employees nor were
there any formal performance evaluations from October 17, 2014, when he became aware of the
allegations against Mr. West, through April 1, 2015, when he changed Mr. West’s title to Senior
Advisor.

124 Exhibits 7 and 8.

125 18(a) Interview of Kenny West.

126 See Exhibits 7 and 8.

12718(a) Interview of Representative Meadows.

IZSId.

129]d. Representative Meadows told the Committee that at the time he received positive re-
sponses about Mr. West’s work in the district, but he said that since then, he learned that Mr.
West had not been doing the additional outreach in the district as he had asked. He said that
othgg Zmployees have told him that Mr. West could have done things better.

130]d.
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in the Longworth House Office Building in January 2015.131 The
D.C. Deputy Chief made the announcement at a staff meeting with
the female employees.132

It is unclear whether a similar announcement was made to Rep-
resentative Meadows’ district staff. The District Deputy Chief testi-
fied he was not aware Representative Meadows had restricted Mr.
West from the district offices or directly communicating with fe-
male employees, and thus, did not make any announcements.133
Likewise, female staff in the Hendersonville office told the Com-
mittee they were never told Mr. West was not allowed in the office,
or was not allowed to contact them.134¢ Employee E, a district office
staffer, said, “I didn’t know if Kenny would be in the office the next
day . . . it was just not discussed.” 135 However, one male employee
that worked in the Lenoir district office testified that the District
Deputy Chief told him that Mr. West would no longer be coming
to the Hendersonville congressional office because a complaint had
been filed about Mr. West’s behavior.136

Regardless of what they were told about Mr. West, the record
shows that the congressional staff were confused about Mr. West’s
role in the fall of 2014. Several D.C.-based staff said they did not
know what Mr. West was doing after he was no longer coming to
the office.137 Employee B told the Committee, “I don’t think we
were sure if he was working for [Representative Meadows] or
not.” 138 Employee D told the Committee the only indication Mr.
West was still working for Representative Meadows were a few
emails that he sent.139 Employee D also told the Committee that
she knew that Mr. West remained involved in staff salary decisions
because Representative Meadows had mentioned to her in an email
on March 11, 2015, that he talked to Mr. West about her salary.140
Similarly, district office employees were uncertain about what Mr.
West was doing.141 One told the Committee that he thought Mr.
West was still Chief of Staff, but said, “his status in the office at
that time, I wasn’t really sure about.” 142 Another said, “Kenny was
not discussed, didn’t know where he was working, what he was
doing. He just wasn’t discussed.” 143

I. MR. WEST’S FAILURE TO COMPLY WITH RESTRICTIONS TO PROTECT
FEMALE STAFF

Despite the assurances Representative Meadows had given to fe-
male staff in the Washington, D.C., office, Mr. West did contact
some of them in early January 2015, and even suggested that he

131 Exhibit 9; 18(a) Interview of Employee J; see also 18(a) Interview of Employee B.

13218(a) Interview of Employee J; 18(a) Interview of Employee B; 18(a) Interview of Employee
A; 18(a) Interview of Employee G.

133 18(a) Interview of Employee M.

13418(a) Interview of Employee E; 18(a) Interview of Employee C.

13518(a) Interview of Employee E.

136 18(a) Interview of Employee R.

137 18(a) Interview of Employee F; 18(a) Interview of Employee D; 18(a) Interview of Employee
A; 18(a) Interview of Employee G.

13818(a) Interview of Employee B.

139 18(a) Interview of Employee D.

14DId.

14118(a) Interview of Employee C; 18(a) Interview of Employee E. Employee E told the Com-
mittee Mr. West never appeared to be doing any work before the allegations were raised to Rep-
resentative Meadows, so she did not see a change after.

14278(a) Interview of Employee R.

14318(a) Interview of Employee E.
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would return to the Washington, D.C., office.144 In March 2015,
Mr. West again contacted two female congressional employees, one
multiple times over the weekend and one at the office.145 Rep-
resentative Meadows learned of these contacts soon after they oc-
curred.146 Despite Mr. West’s failure to follow his instructions, Rep-
resentative Meadows did not terminate his employment. When
asked why he did not fire Mr. West on either of these occasions,
Representative Meadows explained: “The justification that he gave,
I mean, was that he was contacting the particular individual based
on a case that he was working. I mean, he gave a business reason
for the contact.” 147 Representative Meadows merely told Mr. West
again not to contact the female employees and to work through the
Deputies.148

J. REPRESENTATIVE GOWDY AND THE SPEAKER’S OFFICE ADVISE
REPRESENTATIVE MEADOWS TO TERMINATE MR. WEST

On January 7, 2015, nearly two months after Gowdy Staffer com-
pleted her investigation and recommended Representative Mead-
ows terminate Mr. West, a female employee in Representative
Meadows’ Washington, D.C., office emailed Gowdy Staffer saying
that Mr. West “is still on staff,” was “temporarily out of the pic-
ture” but he “will be back up in DC, despite previous assurances
to the contrary.” 149 She also said that the women in the office were
not comfortable with Mr. West returning and they did not know
how to properly address it.150

Gowdy Staffer told Representative Gowdy this information. Rep-
resentative Gowdy and Gowdy Staffer both told the Committee
they were surprised to learn Representative Meadows had not yet
fired Mr. West.151 As a result, Representative Gowdy approached
Representative Meadows on the House Floor. 152 Representative
Gowdy told him the steps he had taken to resolve the allegations
about Mr. West had not worked.153 Representative Gowdy advised
Representative Meadows against keeping Mr. West on staff.154
Representative Gowdy explained that he gave Representative
Meadows “some pretty firm impolite counsel, which would have
been along the lines of: He has already hurt you, and it is going
to continue.” Representative Gowdy explained to the Committee he
knew Representative Meadows was concerned for and valued his
female staff and wanted the environment in his office to change.155

Despite this counsel from Representative Gowdy, Representative
Meadows continued to retain Mr. West without making any
changes to his role. In late March 2015, the Speaker’s office became
involved. Representative Meadows told the Committee that rumors
were circulating about Mr. West’s behavior toward female staff,

14418(a) Interview of Employee J; 18(a) Interview of Employee B; 18(a) Interview of Employee
D.

145 18(a) Interview of Representative Meadows.

146 1.

147 [

148 .

149 Exhibit 10.

ISDId.

15118(a) Interview of Representative Gowdy; 18(a) Interview of Gowdy Staffer.
152 18(a) Interview of Representative Meadows; 18(a) Interview of Representative Gowdy.
153 18(a) Interview of Representative Gowdy.

154 [

155 Id
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which prompted the Speaker’s office to contact him.156 According to
Representative Meadows, the General Counsel for the Speaker told
Representative Meadows that even though Mr. West was physically
separated from the female employees, because he had hiring, firing,
and financial responsibilities, the female employees could make
claims that they were not properly compensated or that there was
a hostile work environment.157 Representative Meadows told the
Committee this was when he finally realized Mr. West could no
longer serve as Chief of Staff.158

K. MR. WEST BECOMES SENIOR ADVISOR

On March 25, 2015, Representative Meadows sent an email to
his D.C. Deputy Chief and District Deputy Chief instructing them
that, effective immediately, they would report directly to him and
would be responsible for supervising their respective employees in
Washington, D.C., and the district.159 A week later, on April 1,
2015, Representative Meadows announced to his entire congres-
sional staff that he had decided to have a full time chief of staff
in Washington, D.C., and he would be replacing Mr. West.160 The
same day, Representative Meadows officially changed Mr. West’s
title to Senior Advisor but kept his salary the same.161 Representa-
tive Meadows did not inform his staff that Mr. West would be Sen-
ior Advisor. As a result, most of Representative Meadows’ staff did
not know Mr. West was still on staff; they thought he had left the
congressional office.162

According to Representative Meadows, as Senior Advisor, Mr.
West had the same responsibilities that he previously had, includ-
ing working on the budget and outreach in the district, except that
he no longer supervised any employees.163 Mr. West, however, told
the Committee that as Senior Advisor, he provided Representative
Meadows with advice on legislation and continued to meet with
constituents.164¢ He said he did not work on the office budget, but
instead had turned those responsibilities over to Representative
Meadows.165

Representative Meadows said he tried to encourage Mr. West to
do work in the district during this time period, but admitted he did
not do much follow up with Mr. West to ensure he was working.166
Mr. West, however, told the Committee that he called Representa-
tive Meadows every day and that Representative Meadows was
aware of Mr. West’s meetings with constituents because his travel
for those meetings was recorded on his mileage expense reports.167
The Committee reviewed the mileage reimbursements that Mr.
West received for travel in his privately owned vehicle during the

156 18(a) Interview of Representative Meadows.
157 Id

ISSId.

159 Exhibit 11.

160 Exhibit 12.

16118(a) Interview of Representative Meadows.

162 See e.g., 18(a) Interview of Employee C; 18(a) Interview of Employee D; 18(a) Interview
of Employee G.

163 18(a) Interview of Representative Meadows.

164 18(a) Interview of Kenny West.

165 4.

166 18(a) Interview of Representative Meadows.

16718(a) Interview of Kenny West.
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time he was Senior Advisor. Those reimbursements show that Mr.
West traveled on 14 days out of a total of 48 working days.168

Representative Meadows said he did not change Mr. West’s pay,
despite his decreased responsibilities, because he viewed this as a
“transition period.” 169 Representative Meadows explained, “[I]f I
was in the private sector, I would have left his pay the same and
figured out a way to get him gone.” 170 Representative Meadows
also said he hoped that changing Mr. West’s title would encourage
him to quit.17?

L. MR. WEST RESIGNS AND IS PAID SEVERANCE

On May 21, 2015, Mr. West resigned.1”2 While Representative
Meadows did not ask for his resignation that day, he said he had
previously talked with Mr. West about his potential resignation or
termination, and had encouraged him to seek other employment.173
In his resignation letter, Mr. West asked Representative Meadows
to pay him through August or July at a minimum.174 According to
Representative Meadows and Mr. West, Mr. West continued to do
some official work until mid-June 2015.175 Mr. West’s mileage re-
imbursements show he traveled on three occasions for official pur-
poses after his resignation.176

From mid-June until August 15, 2015, Mr. West was kept on
Representative Meadows’ House payroll, as “severance,” at the
same rate of pay that he had received as Chief of Staff and Senior
Advisor.177Representative Meadows said he paid the severance be-
cause he wanted a smooth transition, but also because he thought
it would encourage Mr. West not to file an age discrimination law-
suit against his congressional office.l”® Representative Meadows
told the Committee he was not sure if Mr. West had actually ob-
tained legal representation, but said that Mr. West had told him
that he had talked to an attorney at some point.17® However, Rep-
resentative Meadows did not make, or attempt to make, any legal
agreement with Mr. West that he would waive any legal claims.180
When asked why he did not take any measures to protect himself
or his office from a possible lawsuit, Representative Meadows said,

168 Exhibit 13. Documents reviewed by the Committee show that Mr. West was on leave for
five days in April 2015. Mr. West did not receive reimbursements for travel on those days and
they are not included in the 48 total working days as Senior Advisor.

169 18(a) Interview of Representative Meadows.

170 I,

171]d‘

172 Exhibit 14.

173 18(a) Interview of Representative Meadows.

174 Exhibit 14.

17518(a) Interview of Representative Meadows; 18(a) Interview of Kenny West.

176 Representative Meadows later reimbursed the U.S. Treasury $400.96 for the three mileage
reimbursements that Mr. West received from Representative Meadows’ Members Representation
Allowance (MRA). The reimbursements were for travel on May 27, 2015, June 2, 2015 and June
9, 2015. When asked about these trips, Mr. West claimed they were for official purposes. He
also said Representative Meadows was aware of the trips, “because I told him I had other
events.” 18(a) Interview of Kenny West. Representative Meadows told the Committee in a No-
vember 18, 2015, letter that the reimbursements were for legitimate official activity, but that
he reimbursed the U.S. Treasury to address any concerns his constituents may have had. Letter
from Representative Meadows to Chairman Charles W. Dent and Ranking Member Linda T.
Sanchez, Committee on Ethics (Nov. 18, 2015) (Appendix B).

17718(a) Interview of Representative Meadows.

178 4.

179 I,
18074
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“I felt like [Mr. West’s resignation] was his admission that he was
going to go on, you know, and do other things. . . .”181

M. SPECULATION ABOUT THE HIRING AND DELAYED TERMINATION OF
MR. WEST

Multiple witnesses told the Committee they had speculated, or
heard speculation, that Mr. West possessed negative information
about Representative Meadows’ personal affairs. Several witnesses
thought that the negative information may have spurred Rep-
resentative Meadows to hire Mr. West, or to keep him on staff even
after the allegations about his inappropriate behavior surfaced.
Both Representative Meadows and Mr. West flatly denied this, and
the Committee found no credible evidence to support it.

V. FINDINGS

Discrimination against a House employee on the basis of sex or
gender is strictly prohibited by the Code of Official Conduct as well
as the CAA, which subjected Congress to a number of federal em-
ployment laws, including Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964.
During the period under review, House Rule XXIII, clause 9, stated
that “[a] Member . . . may not discharge and may not refuse to
hire an individual, or otherwise discriminate against an individual
with respect to compensation, terms, conditions, or privileges of
employment, because of the race, color, religion, sex (including
marital or parental status), disability, age, or national origin of
such individual.” Indeed, the Committee has long held “that sexual
harassment is a form of sex discrimination,” and that such behav-
ior violates the House Code of Official Conduct.182 In the Matter of
Representative Jim Bates, the Committee expressly held that a
Member who violates applicable sex discrimination and sexual har-
assment laws also violates House Rule XXIII, clause 9.183

Under Title VII jurisprudence, sexual harassment may be action-
able “in either of two circumstances: the grant or denial of an eco-
nomic quid pro quo in exchange for sexual favors, or discrimination
that has created a hostile or abusive work environment.” 184 A hos-
tile work environment is one where the “workplace is permeated
with discriminatory intimidation, ridicule, and insult” and these
behaviors are “sufficiently severe or pervasive to alter the condi-
tions of the victim’s employment and create an abusive working en-
vironment.” 185

Even if discriminatory conduct does not meet the elements of
sexual harassment under Title VII, it may nonetheless run afoul of
clauses 1 and 2 of the Code of Conduct, which is also found in
House Rule XXIII. Clause 1 provides that Members and employees
of the House “shall behave at all times in a manner that shall re-
flect creditably on the House.” It is a “purposefully . . . . subjec-

ISIId‘

182 Fthics Manual at 268—69 (citing Bates at 8-10); see also Meritor Sav. Bank v. Vinson, 477
U.S. 57, 67 (1986) (quoting Henson v. Dundee, 682 F.2d 897, 902 (11th Cir. 1982)) (“Sexual har-
assment which creates a hostile or offensive environment for members of one sex is every bit
the arbitrary barrier to sexual equality at the workplace that racial harassment is to racial
equality. Surely, a requirement that a man or woman run a gauntlet of sexual abuse in return
for the privilege of being allowed to work and make a living can be as demeaning and dis-
corllgzg}ﬂ(tling as the harshest of racial epithets.”)

184 Gary v. Long, 59 F.3d 1391, 1395 (D.C. Cir. 1995) (citations omitted).
185 Harris v. Forklift Sys., Inc., 510 U.S. 17, 21 (1993).
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tive” standard.186 Clause 2 requires adherence to “the spirit and
the letter” of House Rules. While conduct may not violate the “let-
ter” of federal sexual harassment law (and thus, clause 9, which in-
corporates that law), it may still be contrary to the spirit of the
prohibition on discriminatory conduct in the form of sexual harass-
ment.187 Clause 2 is a “genteel rule” 188 meant to emphasize “the
importance of the precedents of decorum and consideration that
have evolved in the House over the years.” 189

A. MR. WEST’S BEHAVIOR

Mr. West is no longer a House employee and thus, is no longer
subject to the House Rules that prohibit sexual harassment, nor to
this Committee’s jurisdiction.190 However, the Committee does not
want to leave the impression that his behavior was appropriate in
any way. In fact, his behavior toward the female staff was inappro-
priate in every sense of the word. The Committee found the wit-
nesses who described Mr. West’s conduct to be credible and their
testimony was consistent.191 There is no place in any congressional
office for looking up skirts, or down shirts; staring at a woman’s
chest; unwanted touching; or making sexual comments, even if sub-
tle or in jest. The fact that Mr. West supervised the women he did
these things to makes his behavior even more unacceptable. Just
as between Members and their staff, a power imbalance exists be-
tween senior staff and junior staff in congressional offices. Those
entrusted with supervisory responsibilities in the workplace must
be sensitive to the potential for discrimination and for creating un-
comfortable working conditions for staff.

Mr. West’s behavior raises serious questions as to whether it con-
stituted sexual harassment under the demanding legal standards
in Title VII jurisprudence.192 Clause 9 of the Code of Official Con-
duct, House Rule XXIII, mirrors the language of Title VII, and con-
duct that constitutes a violation of Title VII and the CAA is thus
also a violation of the House Rules. At a minimum, Mr. West’s ac-
tions violated the spirit of clause 9, because his actions were inap-
propriate and discriminatory, and would thus violate clause 2 of
the Code. The Committee also found that Mr. West’s actions while
employed by the House did not reflect creditably on Representative
Meadows’ office or the House as a whole, in violation of clause 1
of the Code. Such behavior has no place in the House of Represent-
atives. The women that worked in Representative Meadows’ office
deserved much better. However, because Mr. West is no longer a

186 See Ethics Manual at 13 (citing 114 Cong. Rec. 8778 (1968)).

187 Fthics Manual at 17 (“a narrow technical reading of a House Rule should not overcome
its ‘spirit’ and the intent of the House in adopting that and other rules of conduct.”).

188 Fthics Manual at 17.

189 House Comm. on Standards of Official Conduct, Report under the Authority of H. Res. 418,
H. Rep. 1176, 90th Cong., 2d Sess. 17 (1968).

190 House Rule XI, clause 3(a)(2) (“The Committee may investigate . . .an alleged VlOlathIl by
a Member, Delegate Resident Commissioner, officer, or employee of the House . . . .”).

191 Contrary to Mr. West’s assertions, the Committee found no indication that the allegations
about Mr. West’s behavior were rooted in a desire to get Mr. West fired, a dislike of Mr. West,
or anything related to his age. The Committee’s credibility determination is the same as the
credibility determination Gowdy Staffer made after her independent investigation in November
2014, which she relayed to Representative Meadows at that time. 18(a) Interview of Gowdy
Staffer; 18(a) Interview of Representative Meadows.

192 See Tucker v. Johnson, 211 F. Supp. 3d 95, 101 (D.D.C. 2016) (citation omitted) (describing
the legal standard for Title VII claims in the D.C. circuit as “demanding”).
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House employee, the Committee does not have jurisdiction over
him.

B. REPRESENTATIVE MEADOWS’ RESPONSE TO MR. WEST’S BEHAVIOR

Under Title VII jurisprudence, employers may be held vicariously
liable for sexual harassment by a supervisory employee.'93 The
Committee has also long held, in other contexts, that a Member is
generally responsible for violations of the Code of Conduct that
occur in their offices.194

For example, in The Matter of Representative E.G. “Bud” Shuster,
the Committee issued a letter of reproval to Representative Shu-
ster for a pattern of conduct that did not reflect creditably on the
House, in violation of then-House Rule XLIII, clause 1 (the prede-
cessor to House Rule XXIII, clause 1). Among other things, the
Committee found that Representative Shuster was responsible for
his staff’s performance of campaign work in his congressional office,
despite not finding evidence that Representative Shuster himself
was aware the activity was taking place.l9> The Committee ex-
plained, “Members of the House are ultimately responsible for en-
suring their offices function in accordance with applicable stand-
ards. In this regard, Members must not only ensure that their of-
fices comply with appropriate standards but also take account of
the manner in which their actions may be perceived.” 196 The Com-
mittee sees no reason the result should be different in this context.
In fact, the Committee previously advised Members “to scru-
pulously avoid even the impression of a workplace tainted by
sexism.” 197

The Committee’s investigation explored (1) when Representative
Meadows knew about Mr. West’s inappropriate behavior toward
women and (2) whether Representative Meadows exercised reason-
able care to prevent and promptly correct Mr. West’s behavior once
he learned of it. As to the first issue, the Committee reviewed alle-
gations that Representative Meadows may have known prior to Oc-

193 Faragher v. City of Boca Raton, 524 U.S. 775 (1998); Burlington Industries, Inc. v. Ellerth,
524 U.S. 747 (1998). The Faragher and Ellerth decisions held that an employer is vicariously
liable for actionable harassment by a supervisor but the employer may assert an affirmative de-
fense to liability when no tangible employment action was taken. Faragher, 524 U.S. at 807,
Ellerth 524 U.S. at 765. The affirmative defense requires the employer to show 1) “the employer
exercised reasonable care to prevent and promptly correct any sexually harassing behavior,” and
2) “that the plaintiff employee unreasonably failed to take advantage of any preventative or cor-
rective opportunities provided by the employer or to avoid harm otherwise.” Faragher, 542 U.S.
at 807.

194 See Comm. on Ethics, In the Matter of Allegations Relating to Representative Laura Rich-
ardson, H. Rept. 112-642, 112th Cong. 2d Sess. 97 (hereinafter Richardson) (“Members are re-
sponsible for violations that occur in their office, and cannot shield themselves from liability by
using staff as a proxy for wrongdoing”); Comm. on Ethics, In the Matter of Allegations Related
to Representative Ed Whitfield, H. Rept 114-687, 114th Cong 2d Sess. 44 (hereinafter Whit-
field) (The Committee found that Representative "Whitfield violated House rules “by failling] to
establish clear guidelines and limits for his staff, which resulted in numerous lobbying contacts
between his staff and [his wife]”); Comm. on Standards of Official Conduct, In the Matter of the
Investigation Into Officially Connected Travel of House Members to Attend the Carib News Foun-
dation Multi-National Business Conferences in 2007 and 2008, H. Rept. 111-142, 111th Cong.
2d Sess. 192 (2010)(“[Blased on the Standards Committee’s longstandmg precedent the
Subcommittee finds that it would not well serve the House as an institution to allow its Mem.-
bers to escape responsibility by delegating authority to their staff to take actions and hide be-
hind their lack of knowledge of the facts surrounding those actions . . .”).

195 Comm. on Standards of Official Conduct, In the Matter of Representative E.G. “Bud” Shu-
ster, H. Rept. 106-979, 106th Cong. 2d Sess. 64 (2000) (hereinafter Shuster).

196 1. at 49.

197House Comm. on Ethics, In the Matter of Allegations Relating to Representative Alcee L.
Hastings, H. Rept. 113-663, 113th Cong. 2d Sess. 16 (2014) (hereinafter Hastings).
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tober 2014 that Mr. West made women feel uncomfortable. A report
published in the Huffington Post on October 5, 2015, stated:

A person close to Meadows said he personally observed
West’s behavior around women before he was offered the
job, and warned Meadows about West. “There were a num-
ber of us who talked to him and basically said, ‘You have
a p&“(il;ilgem here,” before he ever got sworn into office,” he
said.

Representative Meadows has denied this account,19° and the
Committee’s investigation did not substantiate this claim.200 As
discussed previously, however, Campaign Supporter and Rep-
resentative Meadows did have a conversation about Mr. West prior
to Representative Meadows being sworn into office. Campaign Sup-
porter described the conversation as follows:

I did tell [Representative Meadows] that Kenny had—
when he was in my business interviewing my employees,
that after he left, I had two female employees come up and
tell me that they didn’t ever want to be interviewed by
him again, that he made them feel very uncomfortable.
Now, Kenny is what I call a space invader. He’s very
touchy. He likes to get really close to you when he talks.
He likes to have his arm on you, I mean, if it’s a man or
a woman. And I told Mark, I said, this guy, you know, he
needs to understand space respect [sic]. And I told him
about that. I felt like I had to.201

When asked about this conversation, Representative Meadows said
he recalled having conversations with Campaign Supporter about
Mr. West, but did not specifically remember Campaign Supporter
saying Mr. West made females feel uncomfortable or that that he
was a “space invader.” 202

The Committee found Representative Meadows’ testimony on
this point to be credible. Representative Meadows explained that
he had allowed his daughter to intern in his House office, which
he would have never done if he believed Mr. West was a threat to
the female staff.203 Even assuming that Campaign Supporter did
tell Representative Meadows that Mr. West had made some women
feel uncomfortable and was a “space invader,” the Committee does
not believe that would have placed Representative Meadows “on
notice” that Mr. West would behave inappropriately toward his fe-
male congressional staff. The Committee found no credible evidence

198 Ryan Grimm and Paul Blumenthal, Congressman Behind Planned Parenthood Assault
Kept Paying Aide After Sexual Harassment Complaints, HUFFINGTON PosT, (Oct. 5, 2015),
https:/www.huffingtonpost.com/entry/mark-meadows-sexual-harassment-kenny-west _us_
560f06eae4b0af3706e0falb.

199 Email from Elliot S. Berke to Kathryn Lefeber Donahue (May 13, 2016).

200 The Committee believes the source for this article was the person this Report refers to as
Campaign Supporter, who spoke to the Huffington Post reporter about this same subject. See
18(a) Interview of Witness P. But Campaign Supporter has denied making the statement, in-
cluding the claim that “[t]lthere were a number of us who talked to him.” See 18(a) Interview
of Witness P. Id.

20118(a) Interview of Witness P.

20218(a) Interview of Representative Meadows. Representative Meadows said that after the
allegations about Mr. West were made public, Campaign Supporter reminded Representative
Meadows that he had previously told him that Mr. West was someone who invaded people’s
space.

203 Representative Meadows also told the Committee that he asked his daughter whether she
had ever experienced or observed any inappropriate behavior by Mr. West. She told him she
had not. 18(a) Interview of Representative Meadows.
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that Representative Meadows knew about Mr. West’s inappropriate
behavior prior to receiving the complaints from female staff in his
Washington, D.C., and district offices in October 2014.

Turning to the second issue, whether Representative Meadows
exercised reasonable care to prevent and promptly correct Mr.
West’s behavior when he learned of it in October 2014, the record
shows that Representative Meadows took some immediate steps to
address the allegations, but ultimately did not do enough. The
Committee did not find that Representative Meadows intentionally
placed his staff at risk, but his failure to take appropriate and
swift action did exactly that.

One of Representative Meadow’s first measures was to prohibit
Mr. West from the congressional offices and from directly con-
tacting most of his female employees. Removing an alleged har-
asser from the workplace is an appropriate first step in response
to allegations of inappropriate behavior or sexual harassment. Rep-
resentative Meadows also sought guidance from Representative
Gowdy, and asked Gowdy Staffer to conduct an investigation. Rep-
resentative Meadows had the right idea to ask a neutral, third
party to investigate the allegations. However, while Gowdy Staffer
had substantial experience with investigations, as she was a former
prosecutor, at the end of the day she was another Member’s em-
ployee. A Member should not ask another Member’s staff to inves-
tigate allegations of inappropriate behavior. It would have been
more appropriate for Representative Meadows to have sought the
assistance of an independent investigator specifically trained in
workplace investigations. He could have done so through the House
resources available, such as the Committee, OOC or OHEC.

Regardless, Gowdy Staffer did conduct an independent investiga-
tion, as requested, which involved informal interviews of female
staff in Representative Meadows’ Washington, D.C., office, but not
of any district staff, male staff, or Mr. West. The result was un-
equivocal: she told him Mr. West “had to be let go.”20¢ As dis-
cussed in Section IV.F., Gowdy Staffer explained to Representative
Meadows that his staff was “not comfortable,” could not work for
Mr. West, and that the female employees had “consistent” and “se-
rious claims.” Gowdy Staffer also emphasized these claims could
create “real problem[s]” for Representative Meadows, including pos-
sible claims of sexual harassment and a hostile work environment.

Yet when Representative Meadows received the recommendation,
in November 2014, he did not follow it. Instead, Representative
Meadows merely formalized the measures he had previously taken:
Mr. West (1) could have no contact with female employees other
than the scheduler205; (2) could not return to the Washington,
D.C., or district congressional offices where female employees were
present; and (3) should use the D.C. Deputy Chief and District
Deputy Chief, both male employees, as a conduit for any super-
visory interactions with female employees.206

This created several problems. First, it did not send a message
to his staff that he took their claims seriously or that sexual har-

20418(a) Interview of Gowdy Staffer; 18(a) Interview of Representative Meadows.

20518(a) Interview of Representative Meadows. Representative Meadows told Mr. West that
the only female employee he could have direct contact with was his scheduler because it was
neggsssry for scheduling purposes.

61d.
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assment is not tolerated in the House. Certainly, Representative
Meadows’ decision to initiate an independent investigation and
then to leave the alleged harasser in a position of authority over
the staff could be seen to communicate the opposite message, that
Representative Meadows either did not believe the female staff or
was not concerned enough to terminate Mr. West.

The Committee asked Representative Meadows if he had any
concern that his female staff would experience anxiety due to the
uncertainty about Mr. West’s role and authority from October 2014
until Representative Meadows announced he would replace Mr.
West on April 1, 2015. He explained his view:

I tried to assure them in any way while we were evalu-
ating the whole deal that their personal contact with Mr.
West—they would not have to make personal contact with
him. So I felt like that would alleviate the concern. . . .
I felt like they were protected because I think they knew
that I was serious about not having him back. . . . I
thought my staff, early on, trusted me enough to know
that their health and wellbeing was my number-one con-
cern. I was unequivocal in sharing that I wanted them to
be protected.207

If this is the message Representative Meadows intended to send,
it was muddled at best. The female staff's concerns are dem-
onstrated in a February 6, 2015, email to Gowdy Staffer, months
after she completed her investigation. The female employee wrote,
“there are still talks of him coming back up. He is also still in con-
trol of the budget/salaries, which has many concerned. Mr. Mead-
ows was adamant that it has been addressed, though.” 208

Second, Representative Meadows’ plan to prohibit contact be-
tween the female staff and Mr. West did not work. On several occa-
sions, Mr. West intentionally disregarded the limits placed on him.
In January 2015, after the independent investigation was com-
pleted, the D.C. Deputy Chief told Representative Meadows Mr.
West was calling female staff.209 The D.C. Deputy Chief told the
Committee that female staff felt they were in a bind:

I think there was a bit of an expectation: He is still the
chief; I don’t want to just hang up on him because I have
been told otherwise, like I don’t know how to handle this.
There was a concern of if Kenny calls me, what do I do?
He is still the chief of staff, even though I have also been
told . . . I am not going to be interacting with him. So I
am not sure what to do because he is still in a managerial
role, at least in title, but not in practice, at least according
to what the Congressman had told them previously.210

Mr. West continued to flout the rules Representative Meadows
put in place as late as mid-March 2015, when Mr. West called two
female employees, multiple times.211 These continued contacts
show that however genuine Representative Meadows’ intention to
protect his staff, his ground rules were not working, and female

20718(a) Interview of Representative Meadows.
208 See Exhibit 10.
209 18(a) Interview of Representative Meadows.
21‘1) lg(a) Interview of Employee J.

11]d.
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employees continued to feel uncomfortable in the work environ-
ment that Representative Meadows oversaw.

Third, retaining Mr. West in his supervisory position created an
environment ripe for retaliation. As mentioned previously, the CAA
not only prohibits sexual harassment in the House, but also re-
prisal or intimidation against a person for reporting sexual harass-
ment.212 The investigative record shows that Mr. West continued
to provide Representative Meadows with evaluations of the con-
gressional staff, in November 2014 and February 2015. In those
evaluations, he was critical of the D.C. and District Deputy Chiefs
and several of the female employees that raised the harassment al-
legations. The record also shows that Mr. West made recommenda-
tions for salary increases and promotion for two female employees
in March 2015, which Representative Meadows ultimately put into
place. As mentioned previously, a female employee raised a concern
about Mr. West’s control over the salaries and budget in her email
to Gowdy Staffer in February 2015. Representative Meadows also
allowed Mr. West to secretly access the email accounts of the D.C.
and District Deputy Chiefs. According to Mr. West’s testimony, it
was “to see what was transpiring between [the Deputies],” because
“lilt’'s my opinion that them [sic] two were a main cause of what
happened.” 213

The Committee asked Representative Meadows if he had any
concern about keeping Mr. West in his supervisory role after the
allegations. He said, “[blecause I had the ultimate responsibility of
hiring and firing and payroll, it certainly did not create the type
of elevated concern that, you know, that, all of a sudden he was
going to let somebody go or there was going to be some issue where
they didn’t get compensated properly. So, you know, in retrospect,
maybe I should have looked at it differently.” 214

It is true, and significant, that neither Mr. West nor Representa-
tive Meadows took any formal adverse employment action against
any of the female staff or the Deputies that reported the allega-
tions, and several complainants were actually promoted or received
raises while Mr. West was Chief of Staff. However, by allowing Mr.
West to continue to evaluate employees and to secretly access the
D.C. and District Deputy Chief’'s email accounts, Representative
Meadows fostered the potential for retribution by Mr. West. Rep-
resentative Meadows could and should have done more to remove
Mr. West’s supervisory authority and inform the staff that he had
done so. He did not adequately protect his staff from the possibility
of retaliation.

It seems that Representative Meadows did not fully comprehend
the ramifications of his decision to keep Mr. West as Chief of
Staff—despite being told otherwise by Gowdy Staffer—until the of-
fice of the Speaker raised the issue with him, five months after the
initial complaints about Mr. West and four months after the inde-
pendent investigation was complete and recommended termination.

Based on the entire record in this matter, the Committee found
that, when he learned about allegations of sexual harassment by
Mr. West, Representative Meadows took some immediate and ap-

212 Title VII jurisprudence also prohibits retaliation. See e.g., McGrath v. Clinton, 666 F.3d
1377, 1380 (D.C. Cir. 2012).

213 18(a) Interview of Kenny West.

21418(a) Interview of Representative Meadows.
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propriate steps to separate Mr. West from his female staff and to
request an independent investigation. However, these steps were
insufficient. Mr. West retained his title and all the actual and ap-
parent authority over staff that went with it. Further, Representa-
tive Meadows’ actions did not communicate to his staff that he had
taken the complaints seriously, and it did not protect them from
potential future harassment or retaliation.

When asked if he was concerned about the impact this situation
would have on his female staff, Representative Meadows stated “I
think there was a bigger concern on my part, is making sure that
in any evaluation of the truth [Mr. West] got a fair shake all the
way around. And so, to just immediately terminate without hearing
the facts was a concern.” 215 Due process is of course essential, and
had Representative Meadows utilized House resources such as
OHEC, the Committee, or OOC, Mr. West would have received it.
Instead, Representative Meadows ignored the results of an inde-
pendent investigation and did not remove Mr. West for five
months. The Committee found this was not an adequate or timely
response.

Moreover, Representative Meadows’ attempt to fix the “pervasive
problem” 216 of harassment in his offices by limiting Mr. West’s con-
tact with female employees created a serious risk of gender dis-
crimination. After the complaints came to him in October 2014,
Representative Meadows cut off communications between Mr. West
and all female staff, except one female scheduler. As a result, most
of the female staff could not have any contact with the person who
was supposed to be providing supervision and direction, and who
had significant input into promotions, compensation and the office
budget, among other things. Male staff were not limited in the
same way. The Committee found Representative Meadows’ attempt
to fix the problem risked subjecting his female employees to further
discrimination.

As described above, Members are ultimately responsible for en-
suring their offices function in accordance with applicable stand-
ards and they also must “take account of the manner in which
their actions may be perceived.” 217 Representative Meadows is re-
sponsible for ensuring that his office is free from discrimination
and any perception of discrimination, and he failed to adequately
or promptly do so after learning about the allegations involving Mr.
West. As such, his actions were contrary to the spirit of the anti-
discrimination provision of the Code of Official Conduct (clause 9),
in violation of clause 2 of the Code (which requires Members to ad-
here to the spirit of the rules of the House). The Committee also
found that Representative Meadows’ actions did not reflect
creditably on the House, in violation of clause 1 of the Code of Con-
duct. Congressional offices should serve as an example of discrimi-
nation-free workplaces for the rest of the country. Members should
never tolerate sexual harassment or any other discriminatory con-
duct in their offices, or give even the slightest impression that such
conduct is acceptable in the congressional workplace.

If Representative Meadows had sought assistance from any of
the House resources available to him when he learned of the alle-

215]d.
216 [,
217 Shuster at 49.
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gations, like the Committee, OOC or OHEC, and followed their ad-
vice, his actions would likely have complied with applicable House
Rules. It is the best practice for a Member to utilize the appro-
priate independent House resources when faced with allegations of
sexual harassment or discrimination in their offices. It is also a
best practice for Members to follow recommendations after seeking
appropriate outside assistance. Had Representative Meadows fol-
lowed the recommendation from Gowdy Staffer and terminated Mr.
West’s employment after the investigation, most of the violations
discussed in this Report would have been avoided.

Members and employees alike should be able to work free from
sexual harassment or discrimination of any kind. The Committee
notes that House Resolution 630, which was passed on November
29, 2017, requires each Member, Officer, and employee of the
House to complete an education program focused on workplace
rights and responsibilities. The Committee is hopeful that this will
increase awareness of sexual harassment and discrimination in the
workplace, encourage Members and staff to identify any issues that
may arise in their offices, and educate Members and staff about the
range of resources available to them.

C. MR. WEST’S REVISED DUTIES, COMPENSATION, AND SEVERANCE

Representative Meadows’ decisions to continue paying Mr. West,
at his full salary, after he was (1) barred from working in the con-
gressional offices and contacting most female staff; (2) demoted to
Senior Advisor and lost his supervisory responsibilities; and (3) no
longer serving in any position in Representative Meadows’ office,
raise questions as to whether Representative Meadows violated
House Rule XXIII, clause 8.

1. House Rule XXIII, clause 8, and the Committee’s guidance and
precedent

Clause 8 states “[a] Member . . . of the House may not retain
an employee who does not perform duties for the offices of the em-
ploying authority commensurate with the compensation such em-
ployee receives.” The Code of Ethics for Government Service fur-
ther instructs every employee to “[glive a full day’s labor for a full
day’s pay,” 218 and federal law requires that appropriated funds are
to be used solely for purposes for which appropriated.21® CHA regu-
lations require employing Members to submit monthly salary cer-
tifications for their staff to ensure compliance with applicable regu-
lations.220

Notwithstanding these restrictions, the “general terms, condi-
tions, and specific duties of House employees traditionally have
been within the discretion of the employing Member.” 221 Accord-
ingly, while a staffer is instructed to “give a full day’s labor for a
full day’s pay,” the employing Member may dictate what a “full
day’s labor” consists of.

Clause 8 aims to prevent fraud or misuse of the House payroll,
particularly the use of “ghost employee” schemes. In such schemes,

218 Code of Ethics for Government Service 3.

21931 U.S.C. §1301(a); see also Ethics Manual at 279.

220 Members’ Handbook (2018) at 4; Exhibit 1 at 3—4. See also Ethics Manual at 277.

221 Ethics Manual at 267; see also Members’ Handbook (2018) at 4 (“the Member determines
the terms and conditions of employment and service for their staff.”); Exhibit 1 at 3.
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an employee is recorded on the payroll, but—with the Member’s
knowledge—does not perform official work equivalent to the earn-
ings he or she collects. The “ghost employee” may be a real indi-
vidual, or a fictitious person who is misrepresented on payroll
records as a bona fide employee, whose wage or salary payments
are then used for some impermissible purpose.222

Consistent with the animating purpose of House Rule XXIII,
clause 8, and its predecessor, former Rule XLIII, clause 8, the Com-
mittee has historically found violations of the “ghost employee” rule
in cases where Members have knowingly converted official funds,
originally disbursed as staff compensation, for their personal finan-
cial benefit or other unauthorized use.223 For example, in The Mat-
ter of Representative Charles C. Diggs, Jr., the Committee found
that Representative Diggs had inflated the salaries of several of his
employees, beyond levels commensurate with their respective du-
ties, to enable those employees to “kick back” the additional funds
to Representative Diggs to pay certain personal and official ex-
penses.22¢ The Committee also found that Representative Diggs
had placed several individuals on his congressional payroll to com-
pensate them for personal services they provided to him.225 On the
basis of those findings, the Committee recommended censure to the
House and required Representative Diggs to repay official funds for
various violations of clause 8.

Violations of clause 8 may also implicate federal criminal laws.
During the 100th Congress, the Committee initiated an inquiry
into allegations that Delegate Fofo I.LF. Sunia authorized the dis-
bursement of compensation to individuals who did not perform
services for the House, in violation of Rule XLIII, clause 8.226 The
Committee deferred its investigation at the request of the U.S. At-
torney’s Office for the District of Columbia, which was actively in-
vestigating the matter.227 Delegate Sunia later pleaded guilty to
having conspired to commit fraud in violation of 18 U.S.C. §371
(the criminal conspiracy statute) by submitting payroll forms and
collecting salary checks for individuals who performed no work.228
Upon reviewing the evidence relating to the guilty pleas, the Com-
mittee found that Delegate Sunia had used the salary checks to
pay for hotel and meal expenses for visiting constituents and staff,
campaign expenses, and personal expenses of his family, in viola-

222See U.S. v. Robinson, 903 F. Supp. 2d 766, 791 (E.D. Mo. 2012) (“{Aln employee who re-
ceives salary money for time in which he did not work or perform services is a ‘ghost’ employee
who is not receiving bona fide salary or wages”); U.S. v. Harloff, 815 F. Supp. 618, 619
(W.D.N.Y. 1993) (citing U.S. v. Stout, 1990 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 12343 (E D. Pa. 1990) (notlng that
18 U.S.C. §666(c) authorizes prosecutlon based on “ghost employees,” or situations in which an
employee “invents fictitious workers and collects their ‘wages’ for his/her own use”).

223 Before the permanent Committee on Standards of Official Conduct was created in 1967,
and before the existence of either Rule XXIII, clause 8, or Rule XLIII, clause 8, various sub-
committees of the House investigated Representative Adam Clayton Powell, Jr. for expenditures
he made as chairman of the Committee on Education and Labor, including salary payments he
made to his wife over more than two years, even though she performed no official duties during
that time. In the 90th and 91st Congresses, Representative Powell was removed from his chair-
manship and fined, and an attempt was made to exclude him from the House. See Select Comm.
Pursuant to H. Res. 1, In re Adam Clayton Powell, H. Rept. 90-27, 90th Cong., 1st Sess. 19—
20, 31-32 (1967); see also Ethics Manual at 5.

224 Comm. on Standards of Official Conduct, In the Matter of Representative Charles H. Diggs,
Jr., H.dRept. 96-351, 96th Cong., 1st Sess. 5-6, 44 (1979) (hereinafter Diggs).

225]1d. at 5.

226 Comm. on Standards of Official Conduct, Summary of Activities, One Hundredth Congress,
H. Rept. 100-1125, 100th Cong., 2d Sess. 15-16 (In the Matter of Delegate Fofo LF. Sunia and
Matthew K. Iuli).

227]d. at 15.

228]d. at 15-16.
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tion not only of the conspiracy statute, but also of the Code of Offi-
cial Conduct and the Code of Ethics for Government Service.22°
However, Delegate Sunia resigned before the Committee could hold
a disciplinary hearing to consider sanctions.230

The Committee has also found violations of the “ghost employee”
rule where a Member did not profit or otherwise obtain a financial
benefit from the misuse of official funds appropriated for staff com-
pensation, but retained and paid an employee even though the
Member knew the employee was not physically present to perform
official work. In The Matter of Representative Austin J. Murphy,
the Committee recommended, and the House voted to issue, a rep-
rimand to Representative Murphy for various violations of law and
House rules, including hiring and retaining an individual on his
subcommittee staff who did not perform duties commensurate with
the compensation he received.23! In that matter, the subcommit-
tee’s staff director began to have frequent absences from work.232
Indeed, despite his position as staff director, and the management
responsibilities associated with the position, his frequent absences
left staff “wonder[ing] among themselves what [he] was doing.” 233
Given the nature of the employee’s responsibilities and the cir-
cumstances surrounding his absences, the Committee found that
his attendance had deteriorated to the point that he was no longer
performing the duties of his position and that Representative Mur-
phy knew that the employee was not working, though he remained
on the House payroll.23¢ Thus, the Committee concluded that Rep-
resentative Murphy’s conduct violated House Rule XLIII, clause 8.

In The Matter of Representative Barbara Rose Collins, the Com-
mittee found Representative Collins violated House Rule XLIII,
clause 8, by providing several of her staff members with temporary
salary raises that were not commensurate with official duties they
performed.235 The Committee found that the pay increases—which
Representative Collins was personally involved in implementing—
were wholly unrelated to staff's performance of official duties.
Rather, the Committee found that the raises were paid to Rep-
resentative Collins’ congressional staff to enable them to accom-
pany her on a trip to Ghana that was personal in nature. More-
over, the Committee obtained evidence that Representative Collins
had specifically linked payment of the salary increases to staff’s
willingness to participate in the trip.236

Finally, in The Matter of Representative Charles H. Wilson, the
Committee found Representative Wilson hired a person whose sal-
ary was not commensurate with duties performed, in violation of
XLIII, clause 8, when he employed a friend and political supporter
as a congressional staffer.237 The individual was hired for the stat-
ed purpose of advising Representative Wilson on postal matters,
preparing and editing a newsletter, and serving as a business liai-

2291d. at 16.

230 [,

231 Comm. on Standards of Official Conduct, In the Maiter of Representative Austin J. Murphy,
H. Rept. 100-485, 100th Cong., 1st Sess. 5 (1987) (hereinafter Murphy).

23214 at 5,

233]d. at 33.

23414 at 5.

235 Comm. on Standards of Official Conduct, In the Matter of Representative Barbara Rose Col-
linz%’s% l::ie;p?t):.5 1{(\))&?876, 104th Cong., 2d Sess. 35 (1997).

237 Comm. on Standards of Official Conduct, In the Matter of Representative Charles H. Wil-
son, H. Rept. 96-930, 96th Cong., 2d. Sess. 2 (1980).
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son with the California business community. However, the Com-
mittee found many of the duties for which the staffer was paid
were incidental to his role as Representative Wilson’s personal con-
fidant and campaign representative.238

2. Representative Meadows’ compensation of Mr. West

Representative Meadows paid Mr. West a salary of at least
$155,000 per year from the time he became a House employee on
January 3, 2013 until the he left his employment with the House
on August 15, 2015. In October 2014, Representative Meadows ad-
justed most of his employees’ salaries, including Mr. West’s salary,
to a higher rate apparently for a year-end bonus.23° Representative
Meadows adjusted Mr. West’s salary from $155,000 to $168,411,
the maximum rate of pay at that time.249 The other staff who re-
ceived the temporary pay increase in October had their pay ad-
justed back to their regular salary as of November 2014. Mr. West’s
salary remained at $168,411 for November and December 2014,
was moved to $157,400 in January 2015 and finally back to
$155,000 in February 2015, where it remained until his employ-
ment ended on August 15, 2015. As a result, Mr. West received
$3,552.74 of additional gross pay, apparently as a bonus, from Oc-
tober 2014 to January 2015, which coincides with when Mr. West
began to be prohibited from entering the congressional offices and
from contacting the female congressional staff.

The Committee examined Mr. West’s duties and pay at the fol-
lowing junctures in his tenure with Representative Meadows: (1)
Mid-October 2014 through April 1, 2015, when Mr. West was re-
stricted from the congressional offices and from contacting most of
the female employees, but still served as Chief of Staff; (2) April
1, 2015 to mid-June 2015, when Mr. West held the title of “Senior
Advisor” and lost his supervisory responsibilities; and (3) Mid-June
2015 to August 2015, when Mr. West was paid “severance” and no
longer served in any House position.

i. Pay as Chief of Staff from Mid-October 2014—April 1, 2015

Representative Meadows has asserted Mr. West maintained all
of his supervisory and managerial responsibilities over the more
than five month period following the initial complaints of sexual
harassment until he demoted Mr. West on April 1, 2015. The Com-
mittee found it difficult to understand how a chief of staff could
perform some of the core functions of that position, particularly su-
pervising all staff, when he was unable to speak with over half of
the employees (those who were female) and could not set foot in
any of the congressional offices. In fact, Mr. West himself told Rep-
resentative Meadows when he was barred from the offices, “I can’t
even do my job.” 241

When asked how Mr. West could do his job, Representative
Meadows explained that Mr. West could continue to have conversa-
tions with the Deputies. He said, “You know, to make the assump-

238 d. at 354-55.

239The D.C. Deputy Chief told the Committee that in 2014, Representative Meadows gave the
staff bonuses in October so they could use them for the holidays. 18(a) Interview of Employee
J.

240 Rate set by Order of the Speaker of the House of Representatives, pursuant to 2 U.S.C.

2.
24118(a) Interview of Representative Meadows.
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tion that you have to have a personal interaction with a female em-
ployee to properly supervise would be to suggest that everything is
a flat plane, and that you've got to have that. I mean, so he still
had that same supervisory managerial role that he would have
without the personal interaction . . .” 242

The Committee questions how this arrangement actually worked
in practice and is concerned that Mr. West received an apparent
bonus in the months following the allegations. However, the Com-
mittee has long held that Members have discretion over the terms,
conditions and duties of House employees that they employ.243 Mr.
West was still doing a “full day’s labor.” Even if the Committee be-
lieves the rate of pay he received was higher than what most Mem-
bers would choose to pay an employee performing similar duties,
it was still within the reasonable exercise of Representative Mead-
ows’ discretion. Accordingly, the Committee found no violation of
clause 8 from mid-October 2014 to April 1, 2015.

ii. Pay as Senior Advisor from April 1, 2015—Mid-June 2015

After Mr. West was demoted to Senior Advisor on April 1, 2015,
Representative Meadows told the Committee Mr. West lost his su-
pervisory responsibilities.244 While Representative Meadows said
that Mr. West was still “operating,” he admitted that he considered
this a “transition period” and he did not follow up with Mr. West
as much as he should have to ensure that he was doing his job.245
The mileage reimbursements that Mr. West received when he was
Senior Advisor show he traveled on 14 of 48 possible working days,
approximately thirty percent of the time, presumably for con-
stituent meetings.246 As demonstrated by Representative Meadows’
and Mr. West’s testimony, they were not on the same page as to
what Mr. West’s responsibilities were as Senior Advisor.247 The
rest of Representative Meadows’ congressional staff did not know
that Mr. West was even on staff at this time, let alone what he was
doing, which further suggests that Mr. West’s work during this
time was infrequent and inessential.

When asked why he did not change Mr. West’s pay when his re-
sponsibilities changed, Representative Meadows told the Com-
mittee, “if I was in the private sector, I would have left his pay the
same and figured out a way to get him gone. . . . I had no idea
that I was violating any kind of [rule]l—in fact, quite the oppo-
site.” 248 He elaborated, “I think that’s the normal way that you
would do this in the private sector, and I assumed that that’s the
way that we would do business, you know, in this environment.” 249

Representative Meadows does not work in the private sector, and
the payments that he authorized despite the substantial decrease
in work by Mr. West were made with public funds. The Committee
credits Representative Meadows’ testimony that he did not intend
to violate the rules regarding compensation for House employees.
Nonetheless, Mr. West’s terms, conditions, and duties of his em-

242 18(a) Interview of Representative Meadows.
243 Ethics Manual at 267.

24418(a) Interview of Representative Meadows.
245 Id

246 See Exhibit 13.

247 See 18(a) Interview of Representative Meadows; 18(a) Interview of Kenny West.
248 18(a) Interview of Representative Meadows.

249 [,
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ployment drastically changed during this time period, but his com-
pensation did not. The Committee has stated previously that when
an employee’s time working in the congressional office substan-
tially decreases, a corresponding decrease in pay is appropriate.250
The Committee has previously found Members to have violated
House rules where they used official funds to compensate House
employees who did not do work commensurate with their pay.251
Further, the Committee has long held that ignorance of a House
rule is no excuse for violating it, or defense to an adverse action.252
Thus, the Committee found that Representative Meadows violated
both the letter and spirit of House Rule XXIII, clause 8 during the
two and a half months Mr. West was Senior Advisor.

iti. Severance from Mid-June 2015—August 15, 2015

After Mr. West completed his official work as Senior Advisor,
Representative Meadows payed him “severance” by leaving him on
House payroll for two months when he was not working. There is
no dispute that Mr. West was not giving a “full day’s labor for a
full day’s pay” for those two months. The Committee acknowledges
that there was little and inconsistent guidance on severance pay-
ments available to the House community at the time Representa-
tive Meadows paid severance to Mr. West. That said, Representa-
tive Meadows sought no guidance from OHEC, the Committee, or
any of the other appropriate source in determining the amount,
terms, or conditions of the “severance.” 253 He has claimed that he
consulted with OHEC after the fact and they told him that he han-
dled the matter consistent with advice OHEC has offered in similar
situations.25¢ However, the Committee was not privy to those com-
munications. Representative Meadows also did not obtain anything
of discernable value to the House in exchange for the “severance”
he paid to Mr. West. For example, despite asserting that he paid
the “severance” in part to avoid an age discrimination lawsuit, Rep-
resentative Meadows did not obtain a waiver of legal claims
against his office. By keeping Mr. West on the payroll without
working, Representative Meadows retained an employee who did
not perform duties commensurate with the compensation he re-
ceived. As mentioned above, the Committee has previously found
Members to have violated House rules where they used official
funds to compensate House employees who did not do work com-
mensurate with their pay.255 For this reason, the Committee found
that Representative Meadows’ payment of “severance,” by keeping
Mr. West on House payroll for two months without performing any
work, violated the letter and spirit of House Rule XXIII, clause 8.

250 Ethics Manual at 136.

251 See e.g., Murphy at 5 (Member violated clause 8 by keeping the staff director of the Com-
mittee that he chaired on the payroll despite knowing he was not fulfilling the responsibilities
of his position); Richardson at 91-92 (Member violated clause 8 by retaining a full time staffer
who actually spent most of her time performing campaign work).

252 Whitfield at 45 (“a Member’s mistaken belief in their compliance with the rules does not
excuse a violation of those rules”).

253 18(a) Interview of Representative Meadows.

254 Letter from Elliot S. Berke, Counsel to Representative Meadows, to Chairman Charles W.
Dent and Ranking Member Linda T. Sanchez, Committee on Ethics (May 10, 2016) (Appendix

B).
255 Supra Section V.C.2.ii.
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D. REPAYMENT OF FUNDS TO THE U.S. TREASURY

The Members’ Handbook states, “[elach Member is personally re-
sponsible for the payments of any official and representational ex-
penses incurred that exceed the provided MRA or that are incurred
but are not reimbursable under these regulations.” 256 Consistent
with this guidance, where Members have used official funds for im-
permissible purposes, the Committee has frequently directed them
to repay any misspent funds.25” There have, however, been in-
stances where the Committee has sanctioned a Member but has
not required repayment of misused funds. Most notably, In the
Matter of Representative Austin J. Murphy, the Committee rec-
ommended and the House voted to issue a reprimand for various
misuses of official resources, including paying an absentee em-
ployee.258 In the Committee’s discussion of the matter, it did not
discuss repayment, and stated that, while Representative Murphy
acknowledged misuse of official resources, he “either disclaimed his
knowledge or approval of such activity, or asserted that such in-
stances were de minimis.” 259

In this case, Representative Meadows cannot claim that he was
unaware of Mr. West’s pay when he was Senior Advisor or while
being paid “severance,” because he was the one who authorized it.
Further, Mr. West’s pay was in no way de minimus: from April 1,
2015 to June 15, 2015 he made $32,291.68 as Senior Advisor, and
his two months of “severance” totaled $25,833.34. As such, reim-
bursement in this matter is appropriate, consistent with the Mem-
bers’ Handbook 260 and the Committee’s more recent precedent.261

Accordingly, the Committee attempted to calculate the amount
by which Representative Meadows overcompensated Mr. West dur-
ing the time periods where he did not perform duties commensu-
rate with his compensation, in violation of clause 8. As stated pre-
viously, when Mr. West was Senior Advisor from April 1, 2015 to
June 15, 2015 he earned $32,291.68. Because the 1nvest1gat1ve
record is inconclusive about the amount of official work Mr. West
performed during that time period, it is difficult to estimate how
much of that pay was commensurate with his duties. Even so, in
recent matters, the Committee has directed Members to make re-
payments even where “estimating [a] value is imprecise,” 262 or de-

256 Members’ Handbook (2018) at 2; see also Exhibit 1 at 2; Ethics Manual at 323 (“Members
may be personally liable for misspent funds or expenditures exceeding the MRA.”).

257 See, e.g., Comm. on Ethics, In the Matter of Representative Luis V. Gutiérrez, H. Rept. 115—
617, 115th Cong 2d Sess. 29 (2018) (hereinafter Gutiérrez) (Member was issued a reproval and
requ1red to repay $9,700 for misusing MRA funds to pay a contractor for services outside the
scope of the contract and beyond permissible scope under CHA rules); Diggs at 17-18 (Member
was required to repay House $40,031.66 for the “personal benefit he received from his mis-
conduct” in giving his office staff raises and requiring them to pay certain of his personal ex-
penses out of those raises); Powell at 19-20, 31-32 (Member was removed from his chairman-
ship, fined $40,000 and an attempt was made to exclude him from the House for various acts,
including misappropriating public funds for personal travel, and for paying his wife a salary
though she performed no official duties; the Committee noted that the fine would “offset any
civil liability of Mr. Powell to the United States of America with respect to” the allegations);
Richardson at 15 (Member was reprimanded and fined $10,000 for her “misconduct,” which in-
cluded retaining a full time staffer who did not perform the duties of her office commensurate
with compensation received).

258 Murphy at 5.

259]1d. at 4.

260 See Members’ Handbook (2018) at 4; Exhibit 1 at 3.

261 See, e.g., Gutierrez at 29.

262 See Comm. on Ethics, In the Matter of Allegations Relating to Representative Don Young,
H. Rept. 113-487, 113th Cong. 2d Sess. 62 (2014) (ISC could not determine the precise value
of lodging and hunting services given to a Member because the host “did not prepare an invoice
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termining a valuation “is relatively complicated.” 263 In that vein,
the Committee has opted to take a conservative approach to calcu-
lating an appropriate reimbursement. While Representative Mead-
ows and Mr. West described the Senior Advisor role differently,
they both mentioned that Mr. West performed some form of out-
reach in the district. Consequently, the Committee decided to com-
pare Mr. West’s salary to the most senior employee in the district
at that time, the District Deputy Chief, who had similar outreach
responsibilities. The District Deputy Chief earned $14,791.68 less
than Mr. West for the period from April 1, 2015 to June 15, 2015.
While not an exact approach, the Committee believes that the dif-
ference between these salaries is a fair and reasonable amount for
Representative Meadows to repay to the U.S. Treasury for the
clause 8 violation related to the Senior Advisor role.

The calculation for the repayment for Mr. West’s “severance” is
much simpler. From June 15, 2015 to August 15, 2015, Mr. West
earned $25,833.34. There is no dispute that this portion of his sal-
ary was “severance” and that he did not do any meaningful work
during that time period. Thus, the entire amount should be reim-
bursed to the U.S. Treasury for the clause 8 violation related to im-
permissible severance.

In sum, Representative Meadows must repay the U.S. Treasury
a total of $40,625.02 for Mr. West’s pay that was not commensu-
rate with his duties and thus, violated House Rule XXIII, clause
8.264 The Committee directs Representative Meadows to repay that
amount to the U.S. Treasury no later than May 15, 2020, and pro-
vide proof of repayment to the Committee by that date.

E. REPRESENTATIVE MEADOWS’ CONDUCT MERITS REPROVAL BY THE
COMMITTEE

The Committee concluded that all of the violations detailed in
this Report are sufficient to warrant a reproval by the Committee.
Although the Committee accepts Representative Meadows’ asser-
tions that his actions related to Mr. West’s harassment and his
payments to Mr. West when he was Senior Advisor and as “sever-
ance” were never intended to violate House Rules, they did. He was
ultimately responsible for ensuring that his office was free from
discrimination and any perception of discrimination. He failed to
adequately do so, in violation of clauses 1 and 2 of the Code of Offi-
cial Conduct. Further, his attempts to transition Mr. West out of
the office precipitated another violation of the Code of Official Con-
duct, by employing Mr. West when he was not performing duties
commensurate with his pay, in violation of the letter and spirit of
clause 8. The Committee has previously issued reprovals to Mem-
bers who unknowing violated House Rules, but the Committee de-

for the trip” and it was unclear what hunting services the Member took advantage of. Accord-
ingly, the ISC valued the hunting services based on the least expensive option available).

263]d. at 63 (ISC could not determine the actual value of food eaten by the Member, so it
valued meals based on the maximum per diem rate for travel in the geographic area where the
meals were taken).

264 Representative Meadows asked the Committee whether Mr. West’s unused accrued leave
was factored into the calculation of the amount of repayment to the U.S. Treasury. Representa-
tive Meadows did not, however, provide the Committee with any information regarding the
amount of leave Mr. West may have accrued or the personnel policies in place in his office re-
garding accrual of leave. House regulations state that Members’ offices “may provide lump sum
payments for accrued annual leave only if such leave was accrued in accordance with written
personnel policies established prior to the accrual of such leave.” Exhibit 1 at 9; see also Mem-
bers’ Handbook (2018) at 11.
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termined should have taken additional steps to ensure their con-
duct was consistent with the Code of Official Conduct.265

VI. CONCLUSION

The Committee takes allegations of sexual harassment and dis-
crimination extremely seriously. Mr. West’s behavior toward the fe-
male employees in Representative Meadows’ office, regardless of
whether or not a federal court would consider it sexual harassment
under Title VII, has no place in the House of Representatives. In
2014, the Committee advised Members “to scrupulously avoid even
the impression of a workplace tainted by sexism.”266 The Com-
mittee emphatically reiterates that message again today.

Representative Meadows could have and should have done more
to ensure that his congressional office was free from discrimination
or the perception of discrimination. While Representative Meadows
did take some important immediate steps after learning of the alle-
gations of sexual harassment by Mr. West, he did not do enough
to address the allegations or to prevent potential further harass-
ment or retaliation. His failure to take decisive action led to his re-
tention of an employee who did not perform duties commensurate
with his pay. Based on the totality of the circumstances, the Com-
mittee decided to reprove Representative Meadows for his conduct
in this matter. Additionally, the Committee concluded that Rep-
resentative Meadows must reimburse the U.S. Treasury in the
amount of $40,625.02 for Mr. West’s salary that was not commen-
surate with his work.

The Committee is conscious of the current climate, as the nation
seeks a more full-throated societal condemnation of sexual harass-
ment than what has been the norm of past generations. As rep-
resentatives of the people, the House should be a leader in this na-
tional conversation. It is the Committee’s hope that this Report will
not only hold Representative Meadows accountable for the inad-
equacy of his response to allegations of sexual harassment against
someone under his supervision, but serve as a caution to the entire
House community to be sensitive to the potential for sexual harass-
ment and discrimination. Amid an evolving national conversation
about sexual harassment, Members’ offices should serve as an ex-
ample for the modern American workplace, and accordingly those
offices should be professional and fair environments for all who
work within them.

Upon publication of this Report and Representative Meadows’ re-
imbursement of funds to the U.S. Treasury, the Committee con-
siders the matter closed.

265 See Whitfield at 45 (citing In the Matter of Allegations Relating to Representative Phil
Gingrey, H. Rept. 113-664, 113th Cong. 2d Sess. 25 (2014) (finding violations of House Rules,
and issuing a reproval, even though “the Committee credited Representative Gingrey’s assertion
that he believed his actions were consistent with House Rules.”)); see also In the Matter of Alle-
gations Relating to Representative Shelley Berkley, H. Rept. 112-716, 112th Cong. 2d Sess. 10
(2012) (reproval was appropriate even though “[t]he ISC found that Representative Berkley mis-
takenly believed the rules governing what assistance her office could provide to her husband’s
practice required only that they treat him in the same manner by which they treated any other
constituent.”).

266 Hastings at 16.
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VII. STATEMENT UNDER HOUSE RULE XIII, CLAUSE 3(c)

The Committee made no special oversight findings in this Report.
No budget statement is submitted. No funding is authorized by any
measure in this Report.
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CONFIDENTIAL

Subject to the Nondisclosure Provisions of H. Res. 895 of the 110th Congress as Amended

OFFICE OF CONGRESSIONAL ETHICS
UNITED STATES HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES

REPORT

Review No. 15-1671

The Board of the Office of Congressional Ethics (hereafter “the Board™), by a vote of no less
than four members, on February 26, 2016, adopted the following report and ordered it to be
transmitted to the Committee on Ethics of the United States House of Representatives.

SUBJECT: Representative Mark Meadows

NATURE OF THE ALLEGED VIOLATION: After a series of personnel issues in October
2014, Representative Meadows’ Chief of Staff, Kenny West was not present in either
Representative Meadows’ district or Washington, DC offices. In April 2015, Representative
Meadows informed his staff that Mr, West was no longer Chief of Staff and made
representations that he was no longer an employee of the office. Mr. West did not appear to
perform any official work after April 2015, yet Representative Meadows continued to authorize
compensation to Kenny West until August 15, 2015.

If Representative Meadows retained an employee who did not perform duties commensurate
with the compensation the employee received, and certified that the compensation met applicable
House standards, then he may have violated House rules and standards of conduct.

RECOMMENDATION: The Board recommends that the Committee on Ethics further review
the above allegations because there is substantial reason to believe that Representative Meadows
retained an employee who did not perform duties commensurate with the compensation the
employee received, and certified that the compensation met applicable House standards, in
violation of House rules and standards of conduct.

VOTES IN THE AFFIRMATIVE: 6
VOTES IN THE NEGATIVE: 0
ABSTENTIONS: 0

MEMBER OF THE BOARD OR STAFF DESIGNATED TO PRESENT THIS REPORT TO
THE COMMITTEE ON ETHICS: Omar S. Ashmawy, Staff Director & Chief Counsel.

Page10f18
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FINDINGS OF FACT AND CITATIONS TO LAW

Review No. 15-1671
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Subject to the Nondisclosure Provisions of H. Res. 895 of the 110th Congress as Amended

OFFICE OF CONGRESSIONAL ETHICS
UNITED STATES HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES

FINDINGS OF FACT AND CITATIONS TO LAW
Review No. 15-1671

On February 26, 2016, the Board of the Office of Congressional Ethics (hereafter “the Board™)
adopted the following findings of fact and accompanying citations to law, regulations, rules and
standards of conduct (in italics). The Board notes that these findings do not constitute a
determination of whether or not a violation actually occurred.

L INTRODUCTION

A. Summary of Allegations

1. After a series of personnel issues in October 2014, Representative Meadows” Chief of
Staff, Kenny West was not present in either Representative Meadows’ district or
Washington, DC offices. In April 2015, Representative Meadows informed his staff that
Mr. West was no longer Chief of Staff and made representations that he was no longer an
employee of the office. Mr. West did not appear to perform any official work after April
2015, yet Representative Meadows continued to authorize compensation to Kenny West
until August 15, 2015.

2. If Representative Meadows retained an employee who did not perform duties
commensurate with the compensation the employee received, and certified that the
compensation met applicable House standards, then he may have violated House rules
and standards of conduct.

3. The Board recommends that the Committee on Ethics further review the above
allegations because there is substantial reason to believe that Representative Meadows
retained an employee who did not perform duties commensurate with the compensation
the employee received, and certified that the compensation met applicable House
standards, in violation of House rules and standards of conduct.

B. Jurisdiction Statement

4. The allegations that were the subject of this review concern Representative Mark
Meadows, a Member of the United States House of Representatives from the 11th
District of North Carolina. The Resolution the United States House of Representatives
adopted creating the Office of Congressional Ethics (hereafter “OCE”) directs that, “[n]o
review shall be undertaken... by the board of any alleged violation that occurred before
the date of adoption of this resolution.”’ The House adopted this Resolution on March
11, 2008. Because the conduct under review occurred after March 11, 2008, review by
the Board is in accordance with the Resolution.

"L H. Res. 895, 110th Cong. §1(¢) (2008) (as amended).
Page 30f 18
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10.

1L

12.

C. Procedural History

The OCE received a written request for preliminary review in this matter signed by at
least two members of the Board on October 23, 2015. The preliminary review
commenced on October 24, 20157 The preliminary review was scheduled to end on
November 22, 2015.

On October 27, 2015, the OCE notified Representative Meadows of the initiation of the
preliminary review, provided him with a statement of the nature of the review, notified
him of his right to be represented by counsel in this matter, and notified him that
invoking his right to counsel would not be held negatively against him?

At least three members of the Board voted to initiate a second-phase review in this matter
on November 20, 2015. The second-phase review commenced on November 23, 2015.
The second-phase review was scheduled to end on January 6, 2016.

On November 23, 2015, the OCE notified Representative Meadows of the initiation of
the second-phase review, notified him of his right to be represented by counsel in this
matter, and notified him that invoking his right to counsel would not be held negatively
against him.*

The Board voted to extend the 45-day second-phase review by an additional fourteen
days on December 18, 2015. The additional period ended on January 20, 2016.°

The Board voted to refer the matter to the Committee on Ethics for further review and
adopted these findings on February 26, 2016.

The report and its findings in this matter were transmitted to the Committee on Ethics on
March 18, 2016.

D. Summary of Investigative Activity

The OCE requested testimonial and in some cases documentary information from the
following sources:

(1) Witness A;
(2) Witness B; and
(3) Witness C.

% A preliminary review is “requested” in writing by members of the Board of the OCE. The request fora
preliminary review is received by the OCE on a date certain. According to H. Res. 895 of the 1% Congress, as
amended (hereafter “the Resolution”), the timeframe for conducting a preliminary review is 30 days from the date of
receipt of the Board’s request.

3 Letter from the OCE Chief Counsel to Representative Meadows, dated Oct. 26, 2013,

4 Letter from the OCE Chief Counsel to Representative Meadows, dated Nov. 23, 2015.

* The 14-day extension begins after the 45-day second-phase review ends. The 14-day extension does not begin on
the date of the Board vote.

Page 4 of 18
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13. The following individuals refused to provide any information in response to the OCE’s
requests and were determined to be non-cooperative witnesses:

(1) Representative Meadows;

(2) Kenny West, former Chief of Staff;

(3) Wayne King, District Director/Deputy Chief of Staff;
(4) Pamela Ward, District Office Manager;

(5) Eliza Thurston, Scheduler;

(6) Alyssa Farah, Communications Director;

(7) Martha Van Lieshout, Legislative Assistant; and

(8) Patrick Fleming, former Legislative Assistant.

REPRESENTATIVE MEADOWS MAY HAVE VIOLATED HOUSE RULES AND
STANDARDS OF CONDUCT BY AUTHORIZING COMPENSATION TO
KENNY WEST DURING A TIME WHEN MR. WEST DID NOT PERFORM
OFFICIAL WORK

A. Applicable Law. Rules. and Standards of Conduct
14. House Rule 23, Clause 8

“4 Member, Delegate, Resident Commissioner, or officer of the House may not retain an
employee who does not perform duties for the offices of the employing authority
commensurate with the compensation such employee receives.”

15. House Ethics Manual

“The regulations of the Committee on House Administration require employing Members to
provide monthly salary certifications for their staff. A salary may be disbursed to an
employee only upon submission of a signed statement by the appropriate Member certifying
that the Office of Human Resources has correctly listed the name and salary of each
employee, and that the employees have certified that they have no relationship to any current
Member of Congress, unless specifically noted. Compensation may be received only for
duties performed within the preceding month.””

“The underlying standard for the receipt of compensation by an employee of the House is
that the employee has regularly performed official duties commensurate with the
compensation received.”

® House Rule 23, Clause 8(a).
7 House Ethics Manual (2008) at 277-78.
8 1d. at 279,

Page S of 18
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B. Employees in Representative Meadows® Congressional Offices Reported
Misconduct by Kenny West in October 2014

16. Kenny West was hired as Representative Meadows’ Chief of Staff in January 2013, when
Representative Meadows assumed office.” He was based in Washington, DC but had
management responsibilities over both the district office in North Carolina and the
Washington, DC office.'” According to witnesses interviewed by the OCE, no other
employee shared Chief of Staff duties with Mr, West, or was named Chief of Staff,
during tll}e time when Mr. West was present in Representative Meadows’ congressional
offices.

17. In October 2014, a group of employees in Representative Meadows® Washington, DC
office reported to the then-Deputy Chief of Staff that they were uncomfortable with Mr.
West’s inappropriate behavior towards them. '

18. Witness A, a staff member in the Washington, DC office, stated that, in response to the
reports, Representative Meadows had a conversation with the staff members in the
Washington, DC office, in or around January 2015. B During that conversation,
Representative Meadows told the staffers that he did not want anyone in the office made
to feel uncomfortable and that he would “take care of it.”'* Representative Meadows did
not specify what actions he would take at the time. "

19. Witness B, a staff member in the Washington, DC office, corroborated Witness A’s
statements, differing on the timing of the first reports made to the then-Deputy Chief of
Staff and the timing of Representative Meadows’ response. Witness B told the OCE that
in late October 2014, after experiencing uncomfortable interactions with Mr. West, she
and other staffers alerted the then-Deputy Chief of Staff about Mr. West’s actions so that
he would present them to Representative Meadows.'® They did so in writing."?
According to Witness B, when made aware, Representative Meadows seemed “surprised”
by the information and told the staffers he would “address it.”*®

® Kenneth D. West Payroll Authorization Forms, dated Jan. 4, 2013 (Exhibit 1 at 15-167 1_0002)

'® Transcript of Interview of Witness A, Dec. 15, 2015 (“Witness A Transcript™) (Exhibit 2 at 15-1671_0020);
Transcript of Interview of Witness B, Jan. 7, 2016 (“Witness B Transcript™) (Exhibit 3 at 15-1671_0047); Transcript
of Interview of Witness C, Jan. 14, 2016 (“Witness C Transcript”) (Exhibit 4 at 15-1671_0075). Witnesses
interviewed by the OCE confirmed that Mr. West was the Washington, DC Chief of Staff but did not maintain a
residence in Washington, DC,

' Witness A Transcript (Exhibit 2 at 15-1671_0002); Witness B Transcript (Exhibit 3 at 15-1671_0046); Witness C
Transcript (Exhibit 4 at 15-1671_0076).

"2 Witness A Transcript (Exhibit 2 at 15-1671_0021-22); Witness B Transcript (Exhibit 3 at 15-1671_0048, 51).

B Id. at 15-1671_0022-23.

“Id.

Y 14, at 15-1671_0023,

' Witness B Transcript (Exhibit 3 at 15-1671_0048, 50).

17 1d. at 15-1671_0051. The OCE also obtained evidence of the written reports to the then-Deputy Chief of Staff.
However, certain documents are not included as exhibits to these findings. They will be provided to the Committee
on Ethics as supplemental information. They will be referenced as “Supplemental Information.”

8 Id. at 15-1671_0048.

Page 6 of 18
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20. Witness B stated that in November or December 2014, after the concerns were presented
to Representative Meadows in October 2014, Representative Meadows asked
Representative Trey Gowdy’s Chief of Staff to interview his female employees about
their interactions with Kenny West and to report back to him.'® Witness B’s belief was
that Representative Meadows planned the interviews so that he could assess the legal and
personnel ramifications of Mr. West’s interactions with his employees Witness B and
other female employees consented voluntarily to the interviews. n

21. Witness C, a staff member in the district office, told the OCE that she reported
uncomfortable interactions with Mr. West separately to the District Dlrector/Deg
Chief of Staff, Wayne King, in October 2014 during a performance evaluation.” Witness
C believed at the time that Representative Meadows was aware of her reports made to
Mr. King because she received emails from Representative Meadows acknowledgmg the
information.> After receiving the emails, Witness C stated that it was her impression
that “nothing was altered” in the ofﬁce and nobody followed up with her about Mr. West
or her reports concerning Mr. West.** Witness B told the OCE that she was generally
aware of Witness C’s uncomfortable interactions with Kenny West.”

C. Beginning in October 2014, at the Direction of Representative Meadows, Kenny
West Was Not Present in Either Congressional Office

22. Multiple witnesses confirmed that due to the personnel issues described above,
Representative Meadows took actions to limit or prohibit Kenny West’s presence in the
Washington, DC and district offices.

23. Witness A explained to the OCE that after the employees made the reports dlscussed
above, Kenny West was asked not to return to the Washington, DC office.?® Witness A
did not elaborate on the source of the information or who asked Mr. West not to return.

24. Witness B stated that after the female employees made their reports in October 2014, and
were interviewed by Representative Gowdy s Chief of Staff, Kenny West “never came
back” to the Washington, DC office.?’ She further explained that in November 2014,
“[Representative Meadows] told us . . . that Kenny wouldn’t be back in the office
amymore:.”28

" Id. at 15-1671_0048-49.
2 Id. at 15-1671_0048.
U Id. at 15-1671_0050.
* Witness C Transcript (Exhibit 4 at 15-1671_0077).
 1d. at 15-1671_0078-79.
* Id. at 15-1671_0079.
% Witness B Transeript (Exhibit 3 at 15-1671_0066).
* Witness A Transcript (Exhibit 2 at 15-1671_0021, 23).
¥ Witness B Transcript (Exhibit 3 at 15-1671_0050). The Board notes that Witness B was employed by Rep.
Meadows during the entirety of the events described in these findings. Id. at 15-1671_0043-44.
B 1d. at 15-1671_0047.

Page 7 of 18
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25.

26.

217.

28.

29.

30.

Witness B stated that occasionally, after he left the office, Kenny West would email or
call the Washington, DC office but those contacts were “sporadic.”®® Witness B further
explained that during these calls Mr. West would mention things like: “I'm going to be
up there [in Washington, DC] soon.”®® Although Mr. West was not present in the office,
and Representative Meadows told the staff Mr. West was not returning, the calls and
emails led Witness B to believe that Mr. West was still Chief of Staff and that
Representative Meadows had not terminated Mr. West’s employment.®!

After the calls and emails by Mr. West in late 2014, Witness B emailed Representative
Gowdy’s Chief of Staff in January 2015, reporting Mr. West’s continued
communications with the congressional office.

Witness B stated: “That week or the following, [Representative Meadows] was very
upset” because someone approached him on the House floor and told him that he needed
to terminate Mr. West’s employment.®® At that point, Representative Meadows knew
Representative Gowdy’s Chief of Staff had been contacted again, this time without his
knowledge. >

That same month, in January 2015, Representative Meadows responded to the renewed
contact with Representative Gowdy’s Chief of Staff by explaining to his then-Deputy
Chief of Staff that “Kenny’s not allowed back into the office so it’s not a problem.”
Although Witness B did not recall whether Representative Meadows responded to her
directly, she confirmed that Representative Meadows informed the then-Deputy Chief of
Staff who informed Witness B.*

According to Witness B, after the events in January 2015, Mr, West may have made
telephone calls to the congressional offices or sent officially-related email.’’ She recalled
a specific email sent by Mr, West in February 2015 concerning the departure of an
employee, showing some degree of official work despite Mr. West’s continued absence.
The OCE obtained an email that matched the description of the email discussed by
Witness B.>

38

Witness C told the OCE that the day after she informed the District Director/Deputy
Chief of Staff, Wayne King, about her uncomfortable interactions with Kenny West in
October 2014, Mr. West appeared at the district office.”’ Pamela Ward, the District

® Id. at 15-1671_0050.
;’ Id. at 15-1671_0052.

21,
B,
*H.
¥
%,
1,
38 Id

* Email from Kenny West to Rep. Meadows” staff, dated Feb.11, 2015 (Exhibit 5 at 15-167 1_0090).
* Witness C Transcript (Exhibit 4 at 15-1671_0079). The Board notes that Witness C was employed by Rep.
Meadows during the entirety of the events described in these findings. /d. at 15-1671_0073.
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Office Manager, asked Mr. West to leave the office and not return again.‘” An argument
between Mr. West and Ms. Ward ensued. After Mr. West left that day, Witness C
never saw Kenny West again in the district office.*®

31. Witness B stated that when Representative Meadows’ office moved to the Longworth
House Office Building in January 2015, Mr. West did not have a desk or work space in
the new office and his personal items were placed in a storage unit.** Al other staff
members in the Washington, DC office had a work space.*®

32. The OCE obtained additional evidence indicating that as of February 2015, members of
Representatwe Meadows’ staff expressed confusion as to the status of Mr. West’s
employment.*® Emails show that, although Mr. West was not present in the
congressional offices, there were “talks” of his return.*’ These emails also indicate that
Mr. West may have had some control over office budgets and staff salaries at the time.*

33. In early 2015, Mr. West appeared to play a limited role as an employee of Representative
Meadows’ congressional office. For example, on March 14, 2015 Mr. West emailed
Representative Meadows’ congressional staff regarding personnel and district issues.*

From: Wst, Kery

Sent Saturday, March 14, 7015 836 FM

Tox NC1L1 OC $taff, NC11 DO Swaff

Cex Z113 Meadows, Mare

Subjact: This Past Wesk

First of %] wouks ke to thank you alt for making thi Bhark. We sran’s ins the district
both oificiat and County Events. our staff from Elzs doing schaduling,

Ayssa’ xdom.oufnewsmteniuMartmddlﬂev:mmmabcwowmﬂamm«rloﬂowupmnmm
1o mention. Mark-d!mmmnmmmmmb«uﬂmmkwunuhmmrmdmmn;avmxbrm
support for ad his d his fisten to the people of the 11™ District. tadies and
Gentiemen, THANK.YOUT We have a tiusy schedule in the district snd DC in the coming months, but § know we can
ststairs the mamentum that we 3il have helped make. Have o blessed weeksnd,

Kenneth O Wast
Chiaf of Staft

Rep. Mark Meudows, NC 21
1028 tongworth

Washington, DC 20515
(202) 725-8401 offcs (202} 216-6422 fox

34. Also in March 2015, Mr. West took part in staff salary discussions with Representative
Meadows for at least one employee on staff,>

35. Based on the witness accounts and evidence obtained by the OCE, the Board finds that
beginning in October 2014, at the direction of Representative Meadows, Kenny West did
not return again to either the Washington, DC or the district offices. Although staff

! Id. at 15-1671_0079-80, 87.

“ Id. at 15-1671_0079.

* Id. at 15-1671_0080.

:‘; Witness B Transcript (Exhibit 3 at 15-1671_0053).

* See Supplemental Information,
¥ Id.

“ Email from Kenny West to Rep. Méadows” staff, dated Mar. 14, 2015 (Exhibit 6 at 15-1671_0092).
* See Supplemental Information.
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remained unclear as to Mr. West’s official role, Mr. West performed minimal official
work and likely completed it entirely outside of the congressional offices.

D. Representative Meadows Indicated to His Staff in April 2015 that Kenny West
Was No Longer an Employee and Hired a New Chief of Staff in July 2015

36. The witnesses interviewed by the OCE stated that Representative Meadows indicated to
his staff in April 2015 that Kenny West was no longer Chief of Staff. Significantly,
witnesses also explained to the OCE that at the time they believed Mr. West was no
longer employed by Representative Meadows.

37. Witness A told the OCE that although she had left the House of Representatives in
February 2015, she kept in contact with members of Representative Meadows’ staff.’!
One member of his staff informed Witness A that Mr. West was asked to step down from
his Chief of Staff role and was asked to leave Washington, DC.** Witness A did not
know if that meant that Mr. West’s employment had been terminated,*®

38. Witness B told the OCE that Representative Meadows sent an email in April 2015
announcing the departure of the then-Deputy Chief of Staff and his search for “a new
Chief that is DC-based.”> Following this email, Witness B believed that Mr. West was
no longer an emgloyee of the office and that “everyone just took that as being he’s
officially fired.”>® Witness B stated that although she and others maintained that belief at
the time, after press reports surfaced concerning Kenny West's relationship with the
office in the summer of 2015, she reviewed the email and noted that it did not state
explicitly that Mr. West’s employment had been terminated.*®

39. Witness C told the OCE that “some time in maybe spring or early summer 2015,”
Representative Meadows sent an email to the staff “stating that Kenny West was no
longer employed by the office.”’ Witness C left the House of Representatives in August
2015 but stated that she believed that Mr. West’s employment was terminated prior to her
departure.’® Witness C described the email as the first indication she received that Mr.
West was no longer an employee in Representative Meadows’ congressional offices and
that the email was sent to all staff, possibly excluding the interns.” Witness C explained
further that “after we received the email, we all assumed that he was terminated, no
longer working for the office, so at that point, [ guess you could say the speculation
[about Mr. West’s employment status] had died down.”%

2 Witness A Transcript (Exhibit 2 at 15-1671_0033-34).

% Id. at 15-1671_0034.
j: Witness B Transcript (Exhibit 3 at 15-1671_0057).
.
% Id. at 15-1671_0058.
37 Witness C Transcript (Exhibit 4 at 15-1671_0076).
% Id. at 15-1671_0075.
¥ Id. at 15-1671_0077.
1. at 15-1671_0082.
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CONFIDENTIAL

Subject to the Nondisclosure Provisions of H. Res. 895 of the 110th Congress as Amended

40. As shown below, and consistent with the witness statements, on April 1, 2015

41.

Representative Meadows — through a staff intermediary — emailed his staff regarding
office re-organization.®!

In the April 1, 2015 email, Representative Meadows told the staff that “I have made the
decision to have a full time Chief of Staff in Washington, DC. This decision doesn’t
come easily and will require adjustments in a number of areas but I thought it was
important to let everyone know that I will be interviewing possible candidates to replace
Kenny as our Chief of Staff.”5? Representative Meadows continued: “Kenny has been
working with me on the re-organization plan and possible impacts for both the DC and
the District offices....”®

From: Thurstors, iz o behalf of ZX13 Meadows, Mark
Sunt: Wednesdzy, April 0L 2015 1243 PN

Tor NELE U Sto

ce: 2113 Meadowss, Mark

Subject: Re-Organization and  Gaodbye

Al

Over the fast faw months, { have asked for input from several of pou regarding the best wayt we can serva the
people of Wastern North Carolina, As with any organization, thare 2r CONSTHT Rmands witich Cause Us to f
evaluate and find ways 10 bettar serve the nweds that confront us daily. Whils soma of the changes put forth
have not baen fully vetted or decided, circumstances have developad that mada this interim announcemant
more appropriste,

On Friday, Apri} 17th, Phitip Newmen, who has servid as Depty Chilef and been with me since the very
beginning, will be leavng to take a new position with Senatar Cory Gardner. Phil will be serving as 2 commerce
policy adviser, and aviation lssues for the §: . 1t's 2 great carear move for pur
friand and wift aflow him biish his Colorado ties. 1spuak for ak of us when § 53y that Phil's
tatent and anergy wi be missed.

At the sarmve time, as part of the 1e-organization, | have made a decision to have a fult tima Chief of Stft in
Washington, OC. This dacision doesn't come easity and will require adjustments in # number of areas, buti
thoughtit § with " e "
a5 our Chich of Staff. Kenny has been working with me on the re-ocganizational plan and possibie impacts for
bath tha DC and the District offices, with our sole focus being how 3 best sevve the peaple of this great state.

1want to thank aif of you for your dedication and willingness to adapt during this transRional time.

Thanks,

Mark

42, In addition to this email from Representative Meadows, the OCE also received additional

43.

evidence that Kenny West may not have remained an employee of Representative
Meadows.5 Less than two weeks after the email shown above, Representative Meadows
communicated via email with a staff member and made Mr. West’s departure clear in the
discuss6150n, describing Mr. West as “gone” and explaining staff re-organization and job
duties.

According to Witness B, in May 2015, one of Representative Meadows’ staff assistants
in Washington, DC received a telephone call from Kenny West.® During that telephone
call, Mr. West asked that his call to the office not be disclosed to other staffers or to
Representative Meadows and made inquiries about his personal items left in the

:‘ Email from Eliza Thurston on behalf of Rep. Meadows, dated April 1, 2015 (Exhibit 7 at 15-1671_0094).
? Id.
® 1.

See Supplemental Information.

Id.
& Witness B Transcript (Exhibit 3 at 15-1671_0052-53).
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CONFIDENTIAL

Subject to the Nondisclosure Provisions of H. Res. 895 of the 110th Congress as Amended

44,

45.

46.

47.

48.

Washington, DC office.%” The staff assistant then informed Witness B, who informed
Representative Meadows.® In response to that call, in June 2015 the office Scheduler
Eliza Thurston, at Representative Meadows’ direction, shipped Mr. West his personal
items via FedEx.%

Representative Meadows hired a new Chief of Staff in the summer of 2015. Witnesses
told the OCE that in late July or early August 2015 after conducting job interviews as
early as May 2015, Representative Meadows’ new full-time Chief of Staff in
Washington, DC started work.”

Based on the evidence obtained by the OCE, Representative Meadows confirmed to his
staff in April 2015 that Kenny West was no longer Chief of Staff and made further
representations that Mr. West was no longer an employee in his congressional office.

E. Representative Meadows Continued to Authorize Compensation to Kenny West
During a Time When He Was No Longer Performing Official Work

From April 2015, when Representative Meadows indicated to his staff that Kenny West
was no longer Chief of Staff or an employee, through August 15, 2015, Representative
Meadows authorized salary payments to Mr. West as a House employee.

Representative Meadows submitted to the OCE, via counsel, a copy of a November 18,
2015 letter he sent to the Committee on Ethics that described Kenny West’s role in the
office as follows:

On April 1, 2015, T changed Kenny’s title and duties to that of Senior Advisor,
maintaining full-time advisory and constituent relations roles, but transferring his
supervisory functions to other personnel. Eventually I came to an agreement with
Kenny that he would resign full time duties from my office towards the end of May,
2015, and that I would continue to pay him for a short period of time both for the sake
of a smooth transition, and so he would continue to perform some official duties for
me during that transition. Kenny did continue to perform some services and was paid
through August 2015.”*

The OCE requested information from both Representative Meadows and Kenny West
that would have established whether or not Mr. West performed official work from April
1, 2015 to August 15, 2015. Both Representative Meadows and Kenny West refused to
cooperate with the OCE’s review.

1.
1d.
® I4. at 15-1671_0054.

™ Witness B Transcript (Exhibit 3 at 15-1671_0058-59); Witness C Transcript (Exhibit 4 at 15-1671_0083).

" Letter from Rep. Meadows to the Chair and Ranking Member of the Committee on Ethics, dated Nov. 18, 2015
(Exhibit § at 15-1671_0096-57),
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CONFIDENTIAL

Subject to the Nondisclosure Provisions of H. Res, 895 of the 110th Congress as Amended

49. On September 3, 2015, a press report was published about Kenny West’s employment
with Representative Meadows and payments he received in the summer of 2015.7
Representative Meadows’ Communications Director, Alyssa Farah, was quoted in the
report, explaining that Mr. West “received vacation and severance pay until August
157 Mr. West was quoted in the article, stating that he “turned in his resignation on
May the 21st.7™

50. In Representative Meadows” November 18, 2015 letter referenced above, he also stated
that payments to Kenny West constituted “severance” paxy.75

5

-

. The chart below summarizes all actions submitted to the House Office of Payroll &
Finance, affecting any aspect of Kenny West’s employment, including title changes,
salary adjustments, or bonus requests. According to the House Office of Payroll &
Finance, all changes must be requested by Representative Meadows.

Representative Meadows - NC11
Action Effective Date  Salary Title Amount
Appointment 1/3/2013  $155,000 Chief of Staff -
Lump Sum Bonus 10/30/2013  $155,000 - $1,000
Salary Adjustment 11/1/2013  $167,000 - -
Salary Adjustment 1/1/2014  $155,000 - -
Salary Adjustment 10/1/2014  $168,411 - -
Salary Adjustment 1/1/2015  $157,400 - -
Salary Adjustment 2/1/2015  $155,000 - -
Title Change 4/1/2015 - Senior Advisor -
Termination 8/15/2015 - - -

52. The Board notes that there are no records of any “lump sum” or “severance” request
forms filed by Representative Meadows for Kenny West except an October 30, 2013
bonus request for $1,000.

53. Mr. West was paid at a rate of $155,000 per year, or $12,916.67 per month, for April,
May, June, and July of 2015. For August 2015, Mr. West received $6,458.33. In total,
from April 1, 2015 to August 15, 2015, Representative Meadows authorized payments to
Kenny West in the sum of $58,125.01.” Despite Representative Meadows’ claim that
Kenny West would “resign full time duties . . . towards the end of May” and would

™ Meadows cuts check for false mileage reimbursement, POLITICO, Sept. 3, 2015, available at
http://www.politico.com/story/2015/09/mark-meadows-repay-false-mileage-reimbursement-213259 (accessed
%\;Iarch 16, 2016).

1.

7 Letter from Rep. Meadows to the Chair and Ranking Member of the Committee on Ethics, dated Nov. 18, 2015
(Exhibit 8 at 15-1671_0096-97).

7 Employees of the House may also receive “terminal leave” payments for accrued compensated time off, subject to
each Member’s internal office policies. According to the Office of Payroll & Finance, this typically occurs after
long-serving employees leave the House with substantial accrued compensated time off. As of April 2015, Kenny
West had served just over two years in the House. To receive $58,125.0! in terminal leave, Kenny West would
have had to accrue roughly 45 days of compensated time off in just over two years. The OCE obtained no evidence
that Mr. West accrued any compensated time off.
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CONFIDENTIAL

Subject to the Nondisclosure Provisions of H. Res. 895 of the 110th Congress as Amended

perform “some official duties™” after May 2015, Mr. West’s salary was not adjusted to
reflect any change in duties after February 1, 2015.

54.0n Agril 9, 2015, Representative Meadows submitted a title change form for Kenny
‘West.”® The form changed Mr. West’s title from Chief of Staff to “Senior Advisor” and
made the effective date April 1, 2015, the same date that Representative Meadows
informed his staff that he was seeking to replace Kenny West as Chief of Staff.”

PATROLL V.8 oL REPRESUNTATIVES nne we Tyt
Waahingies, NC 20815 or Bulfpeint Pasg.
of ¥ g
S————— LT
Kenneth D, Weat 04012013

55. When asked about whether Mr. West’s title had been changed to “Senior Advisor,” all
witnesses interviewed stated that they were not aware of the designation.*

56. Witness B told the OCE that following the publication of press reports: “I was surprised
that [Kenny West] was still on payroll after April. Iwas honestly surprised and had
always been surprised that he was still on payroll without a change in salary that whole
time since we told him [about Mr. West’s behavior] in October.”® She also stated that
Alyssa Farah, Representative Meadows’ current Communications Director, shared the
same surprise upon learning that Mr. West was paid after April 2015.%

7 Letter from Rep. Meadows to the Chair and Ranking Member of the Committee on Ethics, dated Nov. 18, 2015
(Exhibit 8 at 15-1671_0096-97).

8 Kenneth D, West Payroll Authorization Forms, dated April 9, 2015 (Exhibit 1 at 15-1671_0010).

7 See Email from Eliza Thurston on behalf of Rep. Meadows, dated April 1, 2015 (Exhibit 7 at 15-1671_0094).

8 Witness A Transcript (Exhibit 2 at 15-1671_0021); Witness B Transcript (Exhibit 3 at 15-1671_0047); Witness C
Transcript (Exhibit 4 at 15-1671_0076).

& Witness B Transcript (Exhibit 3 at 15-1671_0060).

% Id. at 15-1671_0060-61.
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CONFIDENTIAL

Subject to the Nondisclosure Provisions of H. Res. 895 of the 110th Congress as Amended

57. The OCE also obtained documents showing that on April 17, 2015, Representative
Meadows filed a form notifying the House Office of Payroll & Finance that Kenny
West’s employment was terminated as of May 31, 2015. 8 This filing was signed eight
days after Representative Meadows filed the form requesting Mr. West's title change to
“Senior Advisor.”*

PAROLL us OF AP n D
e

T o Chet Adwbeiairstive DMl of he Houss
Sta— T N

Kannel: 0. Weet

58. Representative Meadows then filed forms with the House Office of Payroll & Finance,
extending Kenny West’s employment These forms were filed on May 21, 2015,
extending Mr. West’s employment to June 30, 2015, and on June 10, 2015, extendmg Mr.
West’s employment to August 15, 2015.%

us Pray
( l § oot
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59. The Board notes that Representative Meadows changed Mr. West’s ofﬁcxal title, filed
termination paperwork with the House, and then extended Mr. West’s employment in
subsequent filings, indicating no intention of paying Mr. West any form of “severance.”

& Kenneth D. West Payroll Authorization Forms, dated April 17, 2015 (Exhibit 1 at 15-1671_0011).
%1,

8 Kenneth D. West Payroll Authorization Forms (Exhibit 1 at 15-1671_0012-17),
% 1d.
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CONFIDENTIAL

Subject to the Nondisclosure Provisions of H. Res. 895 of the 110th Congress as Amended

60. In addition, conflicting with any claim that Mr. West received “severance” pay,
Representative Meadows also submitted to the OCE, in a letter to the Committee on
Ethics, that Mr. West performed some amount of official work after April 1, 2015, The
OCE instead received testimony and documents from witnesses illustrating that Mr. West
did not perform any official work after April 1, 2015.

HI. REPRESENTATIVE MEADOWS MAY HAVE VIOLATED HOUSE
STANDARDS OF CONDUCT BY CERTIFYING THAT KENNY WEST WAS
PERFORMING OFFICIAL DUTIES COMMENSURATE WITH HIS
COMPENSATION

A. Applicable Law, Rules, and Standards of Conduct
61. House Ethics Manual

“Members must regularly certify that all official funds have been properly spent. 4 false
certification may bring criminal penalties, and the government may recover any amount
improperly paid. "

B. Representative Meadows Submitted Payroll Authorization Forms to the House
of Representatives’ Office of Payroll and Finance Certifying the Payments to
Kenny West Were Commensurate with His Official Work

62. From April 2015 to August 15, 2015, Representative Meadows signed a Payroll
Authorization Form, certifying that funds paid to Kenny West were properly spent and
were commensurate with work performed.®

63. Based on the information obtained by the OCE, and the non-cooperation by
Representative Meadows and Kenny West, it does not appear that Mr. West performed
any official work from at least April 2015, yet Mr. West received a salary from the House
of Representatives, authorized by Representative Meadows, each month until August 15,
2015.

IV. CONCLUSION

64. In October 2014, employees in Representative Meadows’ congressional offices raised
concerns about inappropriate behavior by Kenny West, Representative Meadows’ Chief
of Staff, and the presence of an uncomfortable work environment.

65. Soon after the complaints were made, Representative Meadows assured the staff that he
would take steps to address the situation regarding Kenny West. Mr, West was ordered
not to be present in either the district office or the Washington, DC office.

87 House Ethics Manual at 126 (citing 18 U.S.C. § 1001).
88 See generally Kenneth D. West Payroll Authorization Forms (Exhibit 1 at 15-1671_0002-17).
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Subject to the Nondisclosure Provisions of H. Res. 895 of the 110th Congress as Amended

66. Mr. West appears to have conducted a limited amount of official congressional work
from October 2014 to April 2015, though the OCE was unable to confirm where Mr.
West conducted the work or the extent of the work completed.

67. In April 2015, Representative Meadows notified his staff that Mr. West was no longer the
Chief of Staff and that he would be interviewing candidates for the full time Chief of
Staff position once held by Mr. West. In certain communications, Representative
Meadows also characterized Mr. West as no longer with the office and kept no work
space for him in Washington, DC.

68. In July 2015, Representative Meadows hired a full time Chief of Staff to fill Mr. West’s
previous position.

69. From April 2015 to August 15, 2015 Representative Meadows characterized Mr. West’s
role with the office as transitionary or less than full time, while continuing to compensate
him at his full time rate. Representative Meadows simultaneously characterized this
payment to Mr. West as “severance” pay.

70. From April 2015 through August 15, 2015, Kenny West continued to receive a salary
from the House of Representatives, authorized by Representative Meadows. Moreover,
Mr. West received a salary dating back to October 2014, when he was no longer present
in either the district or Washington, DC offices.

71. Based on the information obtained by the OCE, the Board recommends that the
Committee on Ethics further review the above allegations because there is substantial
reason to believe that Representative Meadows retained an employee who did not
perform duties commensurate with the compensation the employee received, and
certified that the compensation met applicable House standards, in violation of House
rules and standards of conduct.
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Subject to the Nondisclosure Provisions of H. Res. 895 of the 110th Congress as Amended

V. INFORMATION THE OCE WAS UNABLE TO OBTAIN AND
RECOMMENDATION FOR THE ISSUANCE OF SUBPOENAS

72. The following witnesses, by refusing to interview or provide requested information to the
OCE, did not cooperate with the OCE’s review.

) Representative Meadows;
) Kenny West;

(3) - Wayne King;

(4) Pamela Ward;

(5)  Eliza Thurston;

(6) Alyssa Farah;

(7)  Martha Van Lieshout; and
(8) Patrick Fleming.

73. The Board recommends the issuance of subpoenas to the above named individuals.
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PAYROLL AUTHORZATION PFORM U8, HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES {Plonna use Typawriter
. Washington, DC 20615 ' or Bafipoint Peny
To the Chisf Administrative Officer of the House of Rep: | hereby rize the following payrall
I ) Effaciive Date
Kennath D. West 01/03/2013 \
: Bwmployes Socidl Securtty Number Type of Action
 Appointment
_Smploying Offics or Comenittes'Subs Balary Adjustment
Honerabls Mark Meadows Thie Cherge ) ,
154186 Longworth Building Tetrnination (&t ciose of businees on effactive dein)
Washington, DC 20515 m \ ‘ Lanvs without pay (Saginning with efiacive dete sbovs
and ending cloas of business )
of action Is an ntment, Adjustmant or TRie Change, comelete jate information below
) . Poslion it~ Gross Annunl Sahery™
Chief of Staff 155,000.00
— N—
ki be deugy Pasd Wkorne, Tamporary EmpRye, o7 Shared Employeet S0 Wil
oot thair posion tite.
o aritan (rsck 5 Housa of e ge y a4ty recahied by

{# Clark Hire Employee, complete sppropriate itemis) below.)

Permanent
{rustapecily ane of the following
categories) $Denates not siigible for Baneflts NOTE: Any iong or ct
Part-Time Emploves on this form must ba intialad by the
1Paid intern euthorizing official.
{Temporary Employse
LWOP Empioyee
Shared Employes
Ty e dwcacaaee woowm
(i Employess of an Offiosr of the House, complete tem below.}
Pouitiort Number. it ble, Lave! Step 4 s
1f posifion transfer, previous position nurmber., Level Step
"~ Act must ba House it . ,{

HEN

o oot b e

7 (Signature of Authorizing Official)

{Blgnature of Bubcommittss Chairperaon {Type or print name of Authorizing Cfficial}

or Renking Minority Membar)
{Typs or print namo and title of above officlal) {Title—if Monbar, District and State}
Appropristion Code OfficeotfayroliSBeneftswsoonty .
MIOTRlY ARDUIY $....crocovesneercens 00) [
esof Payroli

ORIGINAL-TO OFFICE OF PAYROLL & SENEFITS {(FOR OFFICIAL PERSONNEL FOLDER)

15-1671_0002
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PAYROLL AUTHORIZATION FORM  U.8, HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES (Plosse 008 Typamier
Washington, DC 208618 or Bulipaied Fen)
To the Chief Administrative Officer of the House of R | hereby the following payroll action:
e B plOpRY Natie Pirabamdeid sut _ective Dnte :
Kanneth . West 111412013
— i1 i Yype ol Action
- Appointment
Empioying Office or Goummit Salary Adj
Honorebie Mark Meadows e Crangs L
15818 Longworth HOB ¢
Washingbon DC 20§15 without pay Begkning wits sitective dute sbove
204 secing chose of busioans )
{iTiype of ackion w an Salm o Tile Chan EEWL 3
Postion Ty St Aoty
Chiaf of Staft $167,000.00
o ok be ’:;m ok Ikorws, Temporary Fowred ﬁm )
Sy v__i"—’ U, House of @ y -,gqnaglq -1
g ’ € &5om
{H Clerk Hire Employes, complets 8ppropriats items) below.) - = ‘r';
Pormenant £ 1 143}
Norpermanent {misst specily ons of the following O oy T
catogories) fDencies not eligitie for Benafts NOTE: Any erasures, comections or changlll 2% ~
Part-Tima Emgioyse on ths form must be nkisled by the {13 = m
tPaid fntom authortzing offcial, = = 9
Temporary Empioyes w @
LWOP Employne
Shared Empioyee
L ARG WO
{ Employes of an Officer of the Houss, complete ltem betow.}
Poaltion Number. If applicable, Leve ..
Dets  11/14/2013 =
{Signature of Aul ng
Honorable Mark Meadows
{Signature of Subcommittes Chairperson (Type of print name of Authorizing Official)
or Runking Minority Member)
NC1t
{Type or print name and titie of above official) (Title—4f Member, District and State)
Aoarcpraton Code: Officn of Payicll & Banekin yseon
(MOntlY ANOURY $...cccereerrrreen OBY 51—
ssof Payrol

ORKGINAL-TO GFFICE OF PAYROLL & BENERITS (FOR OFFICIAL PERSONNEL FOLDER)
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U.S. HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES
LUMP SUM PAYMENT AUTHORIZATION FORM

Thereby suthorize 2 Lumip Sum payment to the employee, in the amount and for the
purpese, specified below:

Bmploymg Office:  Honorsble Mark Meadows

Employec Name; KonwthD. West

Employes #; _162%

Check the appropriate box, and complets the associated formation,
) Frachora! days MUST ba expressed as 25 or SGor 73
Accrued Annual Leave: Number of Days Termination or
Effective Date
Fractonl days MUST be expeonsant 16 25 o1 S0 o .75
Severance Pay: Number of Days Termination Dagg. -3
i
E Bonug; 10080 Amouns 10002013 Effective Date(s) 1~ Z‘Z‘
Q”
Other: Amount* Effective Date(s) % =
3 -
(spexify) o

8

"Note: Insert actual amount of payment (not an ammusl rate).

Tha=Zl—

Honorsbie Mark Meadows.

(Type or print name of Awthorizing Official)

Date 111412013

€If appropriate, signature of Subcommittee
Chairperson or Ranking Minority Member}

Revised 2/14/2011
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PAYROLL AUTHORIZATION FORM  L1.8, HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES {Pisass usa Typewrte
Washington, 00 2088 or Ralpoint Pen)
payroll sction:

To the Chief Administrative Officer of the House of
Eftective Duty

L Eovployen dume (Firet Middle- ani)
Kanineth D, Wast 010172014
Exployes Sosia Sacurity Nember Type of Astion
] Appoinsment
Ofios or CommittsaBuhcommittes Salary Adjusiment
Honorsble Mark Meadows Tia Change I
1518 Longworth HOB M
Washingtort DC 20615 Lgave without pay [Begiving win effacive drie above
nd sy clows of businass )
. daan,
of sclion e an S o T8 Cha ™ [ below.
Posion T Grom Aty |
‘ssss,oco,oo

Chief of Staf!
o N SplopaaS Woud et Farrwoney Erployess, or Shared Explopes and Wil
- " (RS — oty

ioyes
Y L]

¥ Clork Hire Employes, somplate appropriate itam(s) below.)
Pamanent
8 Nonpermanent {must specify one of the foliowing
) 10enotes not sligible for Banofits NOTE: Any of ¢h

Pat-Time Employee on this forrn muat be initisled by the
1Paid Inism authorizing officist
TTomporary Empioyse
LWOP Employee
Shared Employee

T T S -
(¥ Exmpioyes of an Officer of fhe House, compiete fem bel
Poalion Number.
e 111472013 [)q‘ ‘)/L\
(Signsture of Authortzing Officlal}

Honorable Mark Meadows
{Type ot print nams of Authorizing Official)

4
1
o

?llj.’-.?h'ES P 1I0uAY

€9 4g gy ABN {1

ow.)
if applicable, Level . v
SRRV ¥ | SRRUININE - . pROS

(Signuture of Subcommities Chairprson
or Ranking Minoeity Membar}
NC11

{Title-if Member, District and State)

{Type or print name and #the of above ofcial}
Ofice ol Pevioh & feomfpusently

Coow:
(MOthly AOURY S 00}
sl Payeo!

ORKHNAL-TO OFFICE OF PAYROLL & BENEFITS (FOR OFFICIAL PERSONNEL FOLDER)
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PAYROLL AUTHORZATION PORM 11,8, HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES Plaase uas Typowdier
Washington, DO 20645 wrBelipcini Perj
To the Chisf Administrative OMcer of the Hous of 1 herebyy e X payrod acsion:
L iayee s Fraipdnioe) Tt Do
Kenneth West 100172014
L Smgioyes Seci Spuuriy Nurber Jpeotheen . .
L
Rraeying Oo or Cemwiites/Sabocrit iiee ] Adusiment
Honorable Mark Meadows ; charge o
1518 Longworth HOB ¢
Washingion, DC 20515 Without pary (Segining witr eflective daly nbove
' . 20 40ing cious of buskase R
- ) T L ——
Chiet of Stafl $168,411.00
R YO0 vl e SuGNIG 86 For T B mm‘j““———*‘—uu—.mm-m" Enployses Wi vi )
Muﬂnumm-umu - iy
{ Clerk Hire Bmpl npiots appH Raais} below.}
Pemmanant
Nonpermanent (must apecily ana of the Rllowing
$Osnotee not efigible for Benefis HOTE: Any cotractions of
PutTime Erployes on this fom must be initialed by the
1Paid jntom suthorizing offical.
LWOP Exployes =
Shaved Empiorss ]
m-=#“ —
o
g
o
@
Py

{Sigmature of Subcommitive Chalrperson {Type or priat namwe of Authovtzing Officia)
or Ranking Minority Nember)
NCY1

{Type or prist nswe and tith of sbove oificisl) (‘I’MMMIMW

[Rpproprioton Code: Oiesfnciitedaasaty
[0 RN TR SR— ) Benefis...
T F

ORIGINAL-TO OFFICE OF PAYROLL & BENEFITS (FOR OFFICIAL PERSONNEL FOLDER)
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" PAYROLL AUTHORZATION FORM .8, HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES 11 LY T |6ese o ryvomer
T — etz

Washingion, DC 20515 or Balipoint Pan)
To the Chief Administrative Officer of the House of Rep | hereby authorize the ing payrod action:
) T ] Effective Dete
Kanneth West 10:01/2014
—— 1o LTl TypeAhction
e Appaintmant '
Emphoying Ofioe or Commiven/Subcommities Salary Adj
Honorabie Mark Meadows o Gherige
1516 Longworth HOB I Taemination (At closs of business on sfectve Sete)
‘Washington, DC 20515 Leave without pay (Beginning wih sfective dets sbave
sndending doseofbusioens )
([T type, of aciion Is an Appoinimant, Samry Adiuskment of Yiie Change.compiete appropriate Kiommebon beiow.)
Poston TR (LT L
Chief of Staff $188,411.00
erpermar o a5 s 24 i Pald intams, Taetporsry Employess, of Shred EMployaes sed wil
:aﬂluiy Tespective desgnaon ax ?ﬁ?‘:‘: R ¥ shown de the winelty received by
(f Clerk Hive Employse, ppeopriate tem{s) below.)
Penmanent
Nonparmanent {muat spacify one of tha following
categories) TDenoles not ekgible for Banafts NOTE: Any or chang
Part-Time Employee on this form must be inflialed by the
1P intern authorizing official -
TTemporary Employes f-
LWOP Employes
Sharmd Employee
[ T T
{¥ Empioywe of an Officer of the House, complete item below.}
Position Number. if applicable, Level Step i

Date  1O/1572014
{Signature of Authorizing Offici)
Honorable Mark Meadows
{Big: of ittos Chairp {Type or print name of Authorizing Officlall

or Ranking Minority Member)

NC11
(Type or print name and fitle of above oMclal} {Titie-if Member, District and State}
Code: Offica of Payro & Benefitsuseonly oo e
y Annuty §. 00) Benefs............
e of : _Payrol

QRIGINAL-TO OFFKCE OF PAYROLL & BENEFITS (FOR OFFICIAL PERSONNEL FOLDER)

15-1671_0007
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PAYROLL AUTHORIZATION FORM U8, HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES (Pivase use Typewrtier
Waashington, DC 20816 or Ballpoint Pen}
To the Chist Administrativa Officer of the House of Repr 1 hereby riza the b payroli action:
L Bwpioyes Uame (Firatioddie-idet Effective Dete
Kenneth D. West 01/01/2015
Employss Social Sewurlty Number Type ot Action
_ | Appointment
Sommite slary Adjustment
Honorable Mark Meadaws Change o
1518 Longworth HOB {Atolows " »
Washington, DC 20515 Leave withoul pay (Segining with effective date above
nd anding dose ot usimess S )
(iffyve of ackon an Salary Adjustmerd o Tide Change, compios iate infgmmation below:
Fosition Ty Grost Anniual Saiary™
Chie o Stalf 13157.400.00
Whoukd be Part-Ty Fad evtmna, Tamporary Ervployees, or Shared Employest and wil
NOloyes i 4 il ﬂ“"‘“ e groos anunl ity Shown Bhoukd aciids B annulty recaiviid by
S suployer plox the siary calesd om e erpioping ofice.
{if Clerk Hire Employee, complete sppropriate tem(s) below.)
Pemanent
Nonpermenent (must spscify one of the Toliowing T om
) tDenctes not efigibla for Benefits NOTE: Any ons orchanges ¢ ==
Part-Time Employes on this form must be Inidaled by the A a;,j
1Paid nlem authorizing official. ;: ix L"}
fTemporaty Employes R o m
LWOP Emplovee 52 SR g
Shared Empioyes E_r_'. =3 -5_:
o
4 S ey .-_-:_ £ ;::
- Tm
{1t Employes of an Officar of the Howsa, complets Hem below.) n W
Posttion Numb j 4 bie, Lavel Step

(8ignature of Authorizing Official)
Honorable Mark Meadows
(Big of Sub itwe Chelrp (Type or peint name of Authorizing Officlal)
or Renking Minority Member)
NC11
{Type or print nama and titie of above officisl) {Title-df Member, District and State)
' Code: Offos of Payrol & Benefits uee onby
(Monihiy ANDUNY $.....cvu..cevesenneren 00} Bonefits...........
250! Payrol

ORIGINAL-TO OFFICE OF PAYROLL & BENEFITS (FOR OFFICIAL PERSONNEL FOLDER)
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PAYROLL AUTHORRZATION FORM U8, HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES (Fleess e Typownries
Washington, DC 20818 or Belipoint Pon)
To the Chief Administrative Officer of tha House of 1heesby the payro action:
[ Eplores Nems (Pevtiadieisen Eiecii Data
Kenneth D, West 02/01/2015
Socisl ‘Nunber of Action
(. .
Employing Offios e Salary Adjustment
Honorable Mark Moadows e Change -
1518 HOB s
Washington, DC 20518 cave without pay (Bagining with etective dete sbove
and anging closa of businom. & )
(i type of acbon  n o, Salary Adjusiment or Tiile Chai leie it Information below.
Peaition Thiv Grovs Annust Sslery™”
Chief of Staff $155,000.00
nperanent MY A Tien Faud Itema, Temperary o Sl Ep ™
o 5 heir postion tie, .
U8, House e grous amnusl Y
phss the salwy smploying ofice.
" Mirs Employes, compiets appropriate item{s) bolow.}
Pemanent
Nonpermanent {muat apecily ona of the following s
calegories) tDenotes not efigibie for Benefits NOTE: Any oroh ":é :._:.,\’
Part-Time Employee on this form must be initisled by the = zJa o
1Paid fotern authorizing official. = T
{Tamporary Employse ~ T o0
LWOP Empioyee £ fa:
Shared Employoe ;{'L.v - -
o = -
[ ey
;I'] e
{1 Employes of an Officer of the Housa, compiete item baiow.} o o
Position Number, if applicable, Lsvel ..
iF position transfer, oravious poSIIon MUMDBN...........ccermm e WB¥EL .,
oste 01062015 q 2/\%
{Signature of Authorizing Official)
Honorahle Mark Meadows
{Bignature of S ltee Chat {Type or priat nams of Authorizing Officlal)
or Ranking Minority Member)
NC1t
(Titte~if Mamber, District and State)

{Type or print name and tithh of sbovs officia)

[Appropriation Code:
00)

thly Annuity .
aof

ORIGINAL-TO OFFICE OF PAYROLL & BENEFITS (FOR OFFICIAL PERSONNEL FOLDER)
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PAYROLL AUTHORIZATION FORM U8, HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES (Please use Typowtier
Washington, DC 20818 oF Ballpokt Pen)
To ths Chief Administrative Officer of the House of Rep ) heraby authorize the folkowing payrol aclion;
| Smpioyes Neow (Fintiiddalet) Effoctive Date
Kenneth D, Wast 04/01/2015
08 Socie) Nnber Yype of Astion
. Appointment
Office or Commitiverlubcomenitiee Salary Adj
Honorable Mark Meadows THte Change
NC11 "ermination (Al closs of business on affeckive dale)
without pay (Segiaing with stfactive dete sbove
B andening closecfbusiness _____}
i typs of sobion i en Seis ‘o Tibe Chany ets Tnformation balow.
Tie ‘Oroes Anvuial Schery™
‘ Benior Advisor I $165,000.00
N ™ 28 P Tiwe P Mieg, Tommporary Empioyess, or Sharsd Employees a0 WE
58 ther poultion B0, )
"ﬂl....... > HrviCe Srwitant U.8. Howsa e groes ansuil setary Shown stiouid include 9 Mty recalved by
(i Clerk Hire Employes, compiete 2ppropriats itam(e) below.)
Permanent
Nonpermanent (must specify one of ths following
categoriss) +Dsnotes not sligible for Benafits NOTE: Any comections or
Part-Time Employee on thia form must be initialed by the
1Paid Intem authotizing offivial.
1Temporary Empioyes
LWOPR Employoe
Shared Employse .
S SR SRR -
{ Empioyse of &n Officer of the House, complete Rem below.)
Popilion Numt #f applicable, Level....
Dats  O40R/2048 % )/ -
ignature of Authorizing Official)
Honorabie Mark Maadows
Sige of itted Chatrp {Type or print name of Authertzing Official}
or Ranking Minority Member}
NC11
{Type or print name and title of above official) {Titio~it Member, District and State)
Appropristion Code: Qffice of Payroh & Beneftywseonly o
{MoaBly ADNURY $...ocvvariornrennaesd 00} Benefith..conien
asof Payroll

ORIGINAL-TO OFFICE OF PAYROLL & BENEFITS (FOR OFFICIAL PERSONNEL FOLDER)
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Washington, DC 20618

PAYROLL AUTHORIZATION FORM U8, HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES \f@)@mm [
o

To tw Chief Administretive Oficer of the House of Reprasantatives: | hereby authorize the l mxgm
e Eflactive Date \
Kenneth D, West " | osr31/2015 P \\ \
Socisd Number . Type ot Action 7
] -—
OWice or Comemitiss/Subrommities Salary Adjustment A
Honorabls Mark Meadows T80 Change L
NC1t [, )
without pay (Begining with affectys duie abxve  «
L 5t aring close of LU )
o
Senior Advisor 3155.000.09/
TNORpeCIEn O Part- T

ooy art- T Tasnporwy vmmmn'_,
N wmuumm%‘gf&jﬂwwu‘:ummmmmm%m%
10 salary recaived

(M Clork Hire Employse, complate apnropriate itemis) belgd.) ‘?3
Permanent '
Nonpermanent (must specity one of tha following fo
categries) tDenotes not eligibie for Benefits NOTE: Any comections o c‘g‘

Part-Time Employes on this forr must be initialed by the -
suthorizing offcial. 52
-
wd
4

(K Employos of an Officer of the , compiste Hem below.)
Pusition Number. 1§ applicable, Level Step
¥ position transfor, pmbu?edon TATDOL ... crerncrensconeesrmer MR oo anenee E. T S
Dute  DM1712015 / m\,. Q‘N—
{Bignature of Authorizing Officlal}
Honorable Mark Meadows
{Sige 8ub itoe Cha {Type or print name of Authorizing Official)
or ing Minority Member)
H NCH1

{Typa or prist name and title of above officll) {Titie-if Momber, District and State)

APPropAation Goos: Niice ¢

QaclFewol S Benefavseony

Annusty 3. 00)

Payred.

asof

ORIGINAL-TO OFFICE OF PAYROLL & BENEFITS (FOR OFFICIAL PERSONNEL FOLDER)
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PAYROLL AUTHORIZATION FORM U8, HOUSE OF REPRESE
Washington,
To the Chial Administrative Officer of the House of Represi
Employee Namé (First-dfiduleLasty
Kennath D, West 06/30/2015
Soslal Rumber Typs of Action
- (Appointment
Employing Office or Committen/Subeommittios Salary Adjustment
Henorable Mark Meadows Tite c"..ng y N N
NC11 [Tarmination (At cicse of butiness on slfactive dete)
Logve without pay (Beginning with sfactive dele sbove
#nd snding close of busmess - H
If type of action i an intment, Sal ustmant or Titke Chan; te ite information below.
Posiion Tide* Groas Annuai Saierg*t
Senlor Advisor 13155.000.00
mpioysss shoud Farv-Tiew Empioyoees, Fald interny, Tempacary Employant, or Shared Employess and wit
it itaet 8. Houve o e gruse ‘ahoutd inchade the snmlly received by
i werplores Dl the ssary recetved from the employiag oiios. .
(it Clerk Hire Employ fata appropel 1) .
Permanent _g
Nonparmanant {must apacify one of the followlng
categories) {Denotés not aligidle for Benefits NOTE: Any arasules, corrections or changes
|} Part-Tima Employee on this form must be initialed by the
1Paid intemn sutharizing official.
YTemporary Employee
{1 LWOP Employss
[__| shared Emplayse
oAy e Ghar WG, -

(if Employes of an Officer of the Houre, complate item below.)

Puosltion Numbay,

i applicable, Level

€ position transfar, pravious position numbar.

Leval

wnd volwy e e

pate  0B/21/2015

LN~

{Signature of Authorixing Official)

Honarable Mark Meadows

{Signsture of Subcommiittes Chalrperson
ar Ranking Minority Membar)

{Type or print name of Authorizing Official)

NC11

{Iype or print name and titke of above official)

{Title~if Mamber, District and State}

Rapronriation Cooe: Dficoof Favol & Beneffauseony
{Monthly AUy $ecr v o 08} Bona®Ms. ooeus
agof Payrolt

ORIGINAL-TO OFFICE OF PAYROLL & BENEFITS (FOR OFFICIAL PERSONNEL FOLDER)
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TERMINATE
PAYROLL AUTHORIZATION FORM  U.S. HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES (BlassauseTyp
Waahington, DL 20515 o Builpoint Pen)
e e e i
To the Chief Adminlstrative Officar of ihe House of T hareby-wuthornze e TNGWig payrall action:
| Smpioyss Name (Firet-Middte-Lasy Effactive Dute
Kenneth D. Wast 0613072015
Empioyes Sovis! Secutty Number Type of Astion
Otfce o L) Salary Adjustment
Hongrable Mark Meadows Tile Change
NC1Y [Termination (At closs of business on eifactiva date)
Leave without pay (Beginning with sffuctive dste sbove
#nd ending clons of busioess B
of action is an Saola justment or Title Change, complate appropripte information below.
Posltion Title* Gross Annust Sstary™
Senior Advisor ! $155,000.00
] 3 Paet-Ti Paist intaers, Tompory Ernploywes. or Shared Employses end will

33 thar namon v,

n-mw;mmmﬁmmmmm

{If Clark Hire Emy
Pamnunt
Nenpemnanent {must spacify ans of the following
categories} tDencies not eligible for Benefits

Pan-Time Employse
1Paid intemn
{Temporary Employee
LWOP Employee
Sharedt Employes

B pprog

TBRecy cha other empeYg ot

{t Emplayes of an Officer of the House, complete item bolow }

Ihe gross ennual saiary shown aixuld 7iCtle e wnulty received by

UlerseDeS

NOTE: Any ions or
on this form must be initislad by the
authorizing official.

Position Numbar,
if position transfor, pravious position number.
¥ ploy 0
Date 05/21/2015
{Signature of Authorizing Official)
Honarable Mark Meadows
{Sigr of 8 - {Type or print name of Authorizing Official)
or Ranking Minarity Member)

NC11

{Type or print name and title of above officlal}

(Titis—1f Mamber, Oiatrict and State)

Appropristion Code:

Qe ofPavioli S Becefigysaonty

Bansfits....

\

asol. ..

Annuity §.

)

Payrol

ORIGINAL-TO OFFICE OF PAYROLL & BENEFITS {FOR OFFICIAL PERSONNEL FOLDER)
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cc:

PAYROLL AUTHORIZATION foRM  U.8. HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES
Washington, DC 20818
To the Chisf Administrative Officer of the House of Rep 1 hereby the
Exiployes Name (First-siddls-Last) Effactive Dats 4
Kenneth D. West 0815/2015
& Poolal Seawrky Rumber Type of Action
(. JAepcinument
OMics or iBut Salary Adjustment
Honorable Mark Meadows Tile Changa
NC11 [Temmination (at ciose of businesa on effecthes dele)
L.aave WHhOUt pay (Begining with effective dals sbove
ordendingclosacfbusiness )
gty
8 of action is an Sala stmant of Titls Change; cony riale information balow. \
Position Title® Grows Annual Sslary”>
Senior Advisar [$1 §5,000.00
i by Part-Tin Paid Inleme, Tomporary Gmployens, or Shermt Emplayees sid wil
L &6 their gosRan (1.

i ampioyw {8 & G senvic mmmn {ncudas 1.5, House of RepresantaNvss), (o (foss anus satary shown shouid inciuds the annuly recsived by

e arglopwe piu she eniary recslved foes ihe amploying office.
(1f Clerk Hire Employ
Permanent

PPpIop

itami{s) baiow.}

Nonpamanent {must specify one of the following

categories) TDenotes not eligitde for Benefits
L} Past-Tirme Employes

RPNy o s gl BAFCETE

i Empioyes of an Officer of ths House, compiete Hem balow.}

NGQTE: Any erasures, corrections or chaniges
an this form rrust be initialed by the
ng official.

Position Number. if applicable, Level Step
1 position transfer, previous position number. Level Step
A% popoirieeits arvd salacy MHuaments 1ar wenployess Lte e Housd Al tust be
Date  08/10/2015 W\“;\‘
(Signature of Authorizing Official)
Honorable Mark Meadows
{Siy of Sub ittee Chalrp (Type or print name of Authoriziag Officlal)
or Renking Minority Member}

NGt

{Type or print name and tite of above officlal}

(Title—1f Member, District and State)

{Appropristion Code: Office of Pavroli & Banefity use anly
¢ y Annulty $ 20} Benafils...
f X T Payroll

ORIGINAL-TO OFFICE OF PAYROLL & BEN

EFITS (FOR QFFICIAL PERSONNEL FOLDER)
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ANV
e

! i
AN - ﬁ

et

PAYROLL AUTHORIZATIONFORM 1S, HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES Typewtitat
Washingten, DG 20516 \ o Peny
‘ e
T0 the Chinf Adwinisirative Oficur of the House of fep 1 heroby the g Beyrol
Eployee Name FirtMdohe-Laey Edgctive Date ’ N\
Kennelh D, Wast 081572015 \ \
[ 20 Social Senvrity Number Trpe ol Astian DN %
2
' lAppaintment '
ying Oifice of Salary Adjustimant
Honcrable Mark Meadows T (.;hu,me
NCTY {Terrninalion (At tioss of tusinesa on etfective Gate}
luavu without pay {Haginaing with a¥sctive dets sbove
andendngcosecrveness )
It type of action is ar Appoinimant, Salary Adjustmen of Tile ) Iele ‘hnﬁm% \
Poition Title' Grovs Apal Sty ™
Senior Advisor $155,000.00
o Employens, Pt Intems. Temporary Emgiovens, of Sres Emuloyaes eng wit

avtommticaly niasive the reepaciive dusignalin) ws Insle paskon M.
avi U8 House of

18 amiployve plus thu vaisry ecowed Foms The dwplowng oice

(i Ciark Hirs Employ wplete approprh
Permanent

Nenpsrmanent {(must specify ona of tha {ofowing
catagociss) TOemes not eligibia for Banelits
e PE1:TImE Employes

0 Qroes BANUAL selary Shown shoukd inClude The enneky retsved by

itemis} batow.}

NOTE: Any erssires, corrections or changes
on this form must be initialed by e Lo
aulhgizing official. c

SulerS fd£s¥

(i Brployea of an ONficar of the House, eompmv ftem below.}

Position Number... 1 appii Level Stap
if poSHiON tranafer, PravIoUs POSHION MUMBOT..c-.ruvc cruresssssssiseirisc b BIBH o scrsiorniess SUED worimecoarans
pae  OBA0/2015 ’ p \
{Signature of Authorizing Officisl}
Honorable Mark Meadows
{Sign of Bub dttan Chalrp {Yype or print name of Authorizing Officlal)
or Ranking Minority Member)

NC11

{Type or print name and title of above official}

{Titke--if Mambar, District and State}

pprogriation Code: Office oA Pawoh & Beewftauseonly o
{Monthly ANRUILY Boevern.neover oenr 00) Benefits.............
s asof... Payroll

ORIGINAL-TO OFFICE OF PAYROLL & BENERITS (FOR OFFICIAL PERSONNEL FOLDER)
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“feer!

PAYROLL AUTHORZATION FORM  U,S. HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES

Washington, DC 20518

To the Chief Administrative Officer of the House of Rep

{ heraby the
Employss Neme (FirstMiddle-Last) Eftective Duke
Kenneth D. West 08/15/2015
Emy Social Number Type of Action
L Aepointment
_Empioyieg Offios or itsee Selary Adjustment )
Honorable Mark Meadows Title Change ] \ \
NC14 I Terminstion (At ciose of business or efctive date)
!.qwe withoul pay (Beginning with ¢icive dus above \ \
nd arding clowe of buel
oo o \
if type of action |8 an Agpointment, Salary Adjusiment or Title Changs, te 3 iatn information below. \{\
Position Tile” Gross Aanual Salary™
Senior Advisor $155,000.00
should be o Pt T Temporsy o and wit
posttion tea,
*4f aenpicyes is. sttt (b 1.5, Houss of ha grosa annual SEIY ANowR shoukd nchuds the aonully recaved by

i ampioyes Hius e salacy received from Bve smploying offics.

(1t Clork Hirs Employ plete appropriate tsm(s) below.)

Permanant

Nonpermanant (must spacity ong of the fallowing

catsgories) tDenotas not efigible for Banefits
| 1 Part-Time Employes

[ tPaid imem

L TTemporary Employeo

[ ] twoP Employee

|_] Shared Employee

“TRpaly o HH SR ST

NOTE: Any erpsures, comections or changes
on this form must be inltisled by the
authorizing official.

(i Employee of an Officer of the House, camplete item helow.)

Pasition Numbes, " I appli Level B0 e
# position transfer, pravious position number Lavel Step

Al opy ¥ for s 4w X e # e .

Datg  06/10/2015 ? & \@&\
{Signature of Autherizing Officlal)
Honorable Mark Meadows
{Sig of Sub lttes P (Type or print name of Authorizing Official)
or Ranking Minority Member)

NC1Y

{Yype or print name znd title of above official}

(Titie-f Member, District and State}

Appropristion Code: Qificeof Pavroll & Beneftausaonlye oo
(Monthly ABRURY $.....ocor o 00) Benefis.....
...... 25 of Payrol.

ORIGINAL-TO OFFICE OF PAYROLL & BENEFITS (FOR OFFICIAL PERSONNEL FOLDER)
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COsY

U.S5, HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES
Washington, DC 20515
To the Chisf Administrative Officer of the House of 1 hereby i
Employan Nems (First-Middie-L.aat) Effective Data
Kenneth D, West 081512015
Employss Boclal Sscurity Number XL \~}
Appointment
ing OMiaw ge Soimmitte Salary Adjustment
Henorable Mark Meadows e ?haru 8o
NC14 "ERTINBLON (At close of businass on effective deie)
Leave without pay (Baginaing with aflective date shove
ondending clossofbusiness o}
8 of sction Is an Sal ustment or Title Change, te information balow.
Soation Thi’ Srows Amum g " ]
Senior Advisor $165,000.00
HOuHS 08 % PabTime Yomporary pyous, or Shared Enployses and wi

a8 thelr

‘postion iie.
4 ompioyes I a ol servios annuitani Oncludes 4. 8 House of Reprasontatives), the gross snnual satary shown should inchuds the annuly recslved by
ploying office.

a omployss piut e safary recuived flem fha am)

{if Clerk Hire Employes, complete appropr
Permanent

Nonpenmanent {must specify one of the folfowing
categorias) tOanoles not eligiblz for Benefits

| ] tPaid ntem

[} 1Temparary Empioyes
|} LWOP Emplayee

|1 Shared Employes

TR o e g SR
{if Employee of an Officer of the House, complete Xem bolcw ]

Rem(s) helow)

NOTE: Any 18 OF
on this form must be inma!ed by the

8 izing official.

St fe rSedes

Stop ... ]

ERRE -

Poaition Number. Level
f pasition transfer, previoua position number.... el SIBD
Date 08/10/2015 ’ b \k
{Signature of Authorlzing Officlal}
Honorable Mark Meadows
{Sig of Sub ittee Chail (Typo or print name of Authorizing Official)
or Ranking Minority Member)

NC11

{Type or print name and tite of above official)

{Title-if Member, District and Stata}

Appropristion Code:

Q‘E .ﬂ Payrplt & Henefis uge only

00) Bengfis............

Anmcity $

Payrolt

ORIGINAL-TO OFFICE OF PAYROLL & BENEFITS (FOR OFFICIAL PERSONNEL FOLDER)
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P. Solis:
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P. Solis:

Witness A:
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P. Solis:
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P. Solis:

Witness A:

P. Solis:

Witness A:

77

This is Paul Solis with the Office of Congressional Ethics. I'm joined by
Omar Ashmawy. It is December 15, 2015. We are here with Witness A.
We have provided Witness A a copy of 18 U.S.C. 1001 and she has signed
the acknowledgement form understanding the law applies to our
conversation today, and we can begin.

Witness A, where are you currently employed?

TI'm currently employed at the National Republican Senatorial Committee.
How long have you been there?

Since February. The day after President's Day. The 15th I believe.

What is your title?

1 am the budget coordinator in the finance department.

Have you kept the same title since you started there?

I have, yes.

What are some of your job duties there?

1 see every check that comes in to the building, make sure it's FEC
compliant, make sure it gets batched to the right account, so we're using
the money properly. I keep track of any Senators that talk to any donors
and make sure that everybody, check is, you know, given, credited or
whatever. I do a lot of that stuff. Tracking money.

Previously to that job, where did you work?

1 was with Congressman Mark Meadows.

Okay. How long were you with Congressman Meadows?

One full year, 1 believe. I was there from January, 13 months. January
2014 to February, until I started at the NRSC, February 15th.

From the time you started until you left, can you run down the titles you
had there, and your responsibilities?

1 was the staff assistant. I also was intern coordinator. That was all under

the staff assistant title. I was front of house, so I made sure everybody got,
you know, the front office was maintained. Front office was maintained,

Page 1 of 23
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P. Solis:

Witness A:

P. Solis:

Witness A:

P. Solis:

Witness A:

P. Solis:

Witness A:

P. Solis:

Witness A:

P. Solis:

Witness A:

P. Solis:

Witness A:

P. Solis:

Witness A:
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interns were busy and had things to do, book tours for constituents, 1
helped with constituent outreach, things like that.

The entire time you were staff assistant? That was your title?

Yes.

Who were your supervisors?

Directly to Eliza Thurston. I also worked under Martha VanLieshout. 1
guess if you move up, one, Phillip Newman was deputy chief of staff, until
he left. Then, Kevin, wow, this was a long time ago, Kevin Klein, before
that. Actually, to clarify that, I was an intern in the office the summer of

2013 as well.

You were in the office, summer of 2013, as an intern. You probably went
back to school?

Yes. I finished my last semester August to December of 2013, then I
started full time in January of that year, of 2013.

Okay. You mentioned Phil Newman, you mentioned Kevin Klein, anyone
else?

Then, ultimately, Kenny West, the boss. The Congressman, Mark
Meadows

Okay. Kenny West was Chief of Staff?

Yes.

During your entire time with the office?

Ibelieve so, yes.

Was anybody else Chief of Staff during that time?
Nobody was, no.

What were some of ... Again, this is your interpretation and sort of what
you saw there. But what were Mr. West's job duties while he was there?

I think the Congressman saw him as kind of a manager. He managed

personnel, both in the DC office and the District offices in North Carolina.
I don't think ... T don't believe he played that much part in policy. I wasn't
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in tune with that. I was at the bottom rung of things. To my knowledge, it
was a management role.

You said he had personnel management over the DC and the District?
Mm-hmm (affirmative).
Was he based in DC?

I would say, he didn't hold residence in DC, ever. He split his time though.
He was in DC, maybe, a week and a half out of every month, maybe 2
weeks out of every month, but, he held residence in North Carolina.

When he was in DC, would he stay in a hotel?
Yes. That's to my knowledge, yes.

Okay. What was your relationship with Mr. West like? Was it strictly
professional? Were you personal friends outside the office?

1 wasn't personal friends with him. He was my boss, that's how I saw him.
Yeah. I mean, I don't even believe ... I'm Facebook friends with a lot of
other former co-workers, but we are not Facebook friends outside of the
office.

Were any other staffers personal friends with Mr. West?
No. Not that I know of.

You left in February of 2015. Are you aware of any title changes Mr. West
might have had, during his employment with Congressman Meadows?

I'm not sure of any title changes. I know there was a time where he was
asked to not come to the DC office. After that, I'm not sure of his title
change. Again, I wasn't in tune with all that, but I do know that he was
asked not to come to the DC office.

We know the nature of some of the drama there. Do remember around
what date or time frame, even just month and year, that was?

By my guess, my best recollection, things started unfolding after the
election, in November 2014, Part of the reason 1 left was because of things
... I wasn't made to feel uncomfortable, but I didn't want to be in the office
anymore. I wasn't moving forward, I wasn’t moving upwards, so I moved
onwards. I would say, I want to say it was December, January, December
2014, January 2015. I honestly, that's my best guess.
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What do you mean by unfolding?

There was a time where there were other women in the office that were
made to feel uncomfortable by Mr. West, and they had approached both ...
1 guess they approached Phil, Mr. Newman, and he approached the
Congressman, and said “this is what's happening, they feel
uncomfortable” The Congressman sat us all down, I can't remember, I
believe it was January, and he said, "Tll take care of it." At that point, I
believe, that was when Mr. West was asked to not come to the DC office. I
don't believe there was any title change at that time.

Representative Meadows, you said, "Sat us down in January.”

Oh. Yeah. Us, as in, it was Phil, because he was the one that had
approached the Congressman, and then all of the women in the office. At
that time it was me, Martha VanLieshout, Ansley Rhyne, Alyssa Farah,
Eliza Thurston.

1 want to get it straight. Phil was the first one to hear about this?

Yes, There was, to my knowledge. Kevin may have known about this
before, I can't speak to that, I was an intern at that time. Kevin left in the
first few months that I was a full time employee. I believe Phil was the
first to be made aware of this, yeah.

That would have happened sometime after the November 2014 election?
I believe so, yeah.

Okay. Women in the office, Martha, Ansley, Alyssa, Eliza, would have
been the ones to bring that to Phil's attention?

1 can say that I wasn't made to feel uncomfortable, and to my knowledge, I
am personal friends with Martha outside of the office, she's never been
made to feel uncomfortable there. I think there have been instances ...
She's still ini the office, so after I left, I think she just felt that it was
creepy, but she never felt she was made uncomfortable. I believe that
Alyssa and Ansley were made to feel uncomfortable. I'm not sure Eliza
was, but she may have been. I know that Alyssa and Ansley did feel, they
were made to feel uncomfortable.

How do you know that?
They had expressed that to me, at some point, and I kind of seen ...
Nothing physical had happened, but there were things that were said that

were just kind of off color, nothing that I can remember off the top of my

Page 4 of 23

15-1671_0022



ot

15

16

17
18

19
20

21
23
24
25
26
27
28
29

30

P. Solis:

Witness A:

P. Solis:

Witness A:

P. Solis:

Witness A

P. Solis:

Witness A:

P. Solis:

Witness A

P. Solis:

Witness A:

P. Solis:

Witness A:

P. Solis:

81
head, that made them feel uncomfortable. That didn't seem workplace
appropriate.
These are Mr. West's comments?
Yes.
Okay. When Representative Meadows sat you down, this would have been
January 2015, and he said he’1l “take care of it," could you elaborate on
that?
1 wish I could. He said that he didn't want anybody to feel uncomfortable
in his office. That we're like family to him and he wanted everybody to be
in a safe environment and that ... I don't believe he said exactly what he
was going to do, but he said he wanted to make sure that everybody felt
safe and he would take care of it. He didn't say exactly what he would do.

You said that you know, at some point, Mr. West was told not to come to
the DC office, correct?

That's correct.
‘When did you know about that?

I would say about 2, 3 weeks after that conversation with the
Congressman.

You were still employed in the office when Mr. West was told not to come
toDC.

I believe so. Yeah. I may have already given my 2 weeks notice. I can't
remember exactly. I want to say I was definitely still employed. It was on
my out.

TI'm going to show you some of the documents that you submitted to us. I
apologize, these are pretty fresh, you just gave them to us the other day.
They're not bates stamped with an identifying mark.

Yeah.

Tll just try my best to identify what we're tatking about.

Okay.

This is a Google Hangout, right?
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Yes that is.

With Martha VanLieshout?

Yes.

If T could direct you to the second page -
Sure.

Below your name, and this would have been a message sent to Martha,
correct?

Mm-hmm (affirmative).

This is sort of like an instant messaging service?

Yeah. Mm-hmm (affirmative).

Would you have been in the office together when you were sending these?
Yes. At this point, we were in a new office, I want to say. The front office
was in a separate part. It was the same office, just different parts of the
office.

Okay. Below, January 28, 2014, your comment there, you say, "Kenny,
walking around in his trench coat, is freaking me out.” Do you remember

what was going on at that time?

Honestly, I couldn't tell you. I think this was after I had been made aware
of other things that were happening in the office.

Okay.,
If' I could guess, it was probably he was just walking around, for no
reason, in his trench coat. Honestly, any male walking around in a trench

coat probably makes me uncomfortable. I don't know why.

As of January 28th, the end of January, he still would have been in the
office?

Yeah. I think so.
Okay.
1 think it was probably right around then that ...
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If I could have you flip 2 more pages ...

Mm-hmm (affirmative).

This is February 4th.

1 guess T had no ... My time frame must be off then, but I apologize.

Okay. No, no problem, February 4th, you write, "Kenny is standing over
my shoulder as I did the signatures. Was my punishment for me sassing
you?" Martha responds. You write "still uncomfortable.” She writes,
"Always." At this point in early February, he still would've been in the
D.C. office.

Yeah.

Do you recall this specific conversation?

1do.

‘What was happening in the office?

Yeah. We had an auto signature machine for when we did whatever it was
for the Congressmen, and that was one of my tasks that I did. We'd sign
constituent letters. I believe he was still in the office, and I know that in
our old office we had the auto signature machine in Kenny's office. It may
have been true that it had moved.

Okay.

Oh, wait, this is 2014, Okay. I understand where we are. I do remember
that, Yep. Mm-hmm (affirmative).

Yeah, I want to be clear here.
This is 2014.
This is 2014,

Sorry, no, no, I apologize. Yep. Okay. Yep. That was in his ... We were in
the old office. This is chronologically. I apologize. This is my fault.

Tt go back fo the sort of trench coat discussion, when you said at this
point you had been made aware of-

That's not true.
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That would've been-

That was later on in the year, in 2014. I apologize.

No problem. No problem. At this point in 2014, you're making some of
these statements to your co-worker about being uncomfortable and
freaking you out. Are you feeling, at this point, uncomfortable? Do you
feel that Mr. West is acting inappropriately in the office in 2014?

Yeah, I do remember that it was not comfortable. He never said anything
directly to me, but there were instances like these two instances where 1
was, I guess, made to feel uncomfortable. Honestly, for me, I've been
through other things, so my uncomfortable level has kind of changed.
Right.

But I do remember this now that it's in front of me, even though I already
printed these out and gave them to you. Yeah.

Did you report that to anybody?

1 believe I talked to my parents about it. That was it.

In early 2014, again, this is probably when you just started, right?
Yep. Mm-hmm (affirmative).

Is anybody else talking to you? Alyssa, Eliza, Martha, about them feeling
uncomfortable?

I believe at that time it was just Martha had talked to me about how some
of the other girls were made to feel uncomfortable. Martha was probably
my closest friend in the office, so that was obviously who I spoke to most
about this.

If you turn to the next page. This is, again, February 2014. You write,
"Kenny talking about how these girls will fall in love with Patrick.”

That goes into a different conversation immediately. I understand that
now.

Is Kenny talking about things like that in the office frequently?
There were various times where he would talk about various people's love

lives in the office unprompted. That wasn't the only incidence, but [ don't
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know who these girls were in this instance. Yeah, that wasn't the only time
that that happened.

I I could have you flip almost all the way to the end of the last two pages.
There's no date stamp on this.

1 could find them if you need them.

That's probably okay. I assume it's still in 2014. The last date stamp, if you
go back two more pages before, is June 2014.

Mm-hmm (affirmative).
The last two pages-
Yeah.

You write, "Upside, Kenny won't be there creepily watching people and
not listening."

Yep.
Do you know what that was in reference do?

Yeah, I guess in staff meetings, he would kind of sit in the meetings and
you could kind of see that he didn't very much participate in those
meetings. He was more-so there to watch and I never felt watched, but at
this point, I think Alyssa ... I'm not sure, I believe Alyssa had started not
very long before this, and Ansley as well, and had felt in those meetings
that they were being watched in those meetings.

Okay.
I think that's what I was alluding to there.

The next page, the time stamp above is June 17th, 2014. You write,
*Scolded by Kenny, which I figured would happen, but I'm okay." Do you
know what ..

Yeah. That was, I don't know, a tour fell through, the constituents were
mad so the congressman was mad and he asked Kenny to sit me down and
talk about it, and I felt very bad that it had happened. There was nothing I
could really do about it. That was work related. That was one of the few
times, I think, that ... I think that was the only time I'was ever, per se,
scolded for a work related thing. I don't think there was much else.
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‘Was that handled in a professional matter?

Yeah. To my recollection, yeah. He just wanted to clarify what had
happened. Make sure it didn't happen again. There was no ... In that
situation, I remember clearly that I wasn't made to feel any discomfort.
Okay.

Twould just add that T had messed up.

This is another group of emails that you provided to us.

Yep. Mm-hmm (affirmative).

This is pretty much all July 25th, 2014

Yep.

1t's from your Gmail account, and the subject is "Surprise” but it's about a
Boehner event.

Ub-huh.

Do you want to go ahead and review it a little bit?

1 don’t remember this one,

Can you tell me the circumstances surrounding this?

This was an event that the then Speaker was going to have for the
congressmen, and that we were all invited to. We weren't pressured in any
way to go. We were allowed to if we wanted to type of thing.

Is thi’s why it's all in your personal-

That's why it was on my personal account.

If I could direct you to the second page?

Mm-hmm (affirmative).

The request, or the ask comes in from Philip Newman, and then there's
some responses about whether or not people will be in, and then pretty

much down at the bottom Ansley Rhyne writes, "KW will be there so
thanks, but no thanks."
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Mm-hmm (affirmative).

Is KW Kenny West?

Yes, that is Kenny West. Yep.

1 realize you didn't offer this email, but do you recall her saying that?

1do. I remember this. Yeah, when T was pulling these emails out, T
remember this conversation.

Did Ansley ever provide any other context to why she might've said that?
1 think it had to do from what | remember, I never really asked her out
loud, to the "in there like swimwear" comment, and Phil said, "Please

don't wear swimwear." I think that was in relation to that.

At this time in July, were you hearing from women in the office that they
were made to feel uncomfortable by-

Yeah, I think that was around the time we had all started to tatk about it.
Again, had Representative Meadows been made aware?

No.

At this point?

No.

What about Mr. Newman?

1 believe that he ... Based on this, I think he knew peripherally. 'm not
sure. I never spoke to him about it, so I can't speak to that. The first time 1
remember there being a big conversation about it was later on in the year.
Are you friends with Ansley?

Not outside the office, no.

Okay.

I haven't seen her since we both left.

Okay. Do you know where she works?
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I believe she is with a different congressman now. I'm not sure, if I'm
being honest.

We'll move on to some more emails, Not too many more to go through.
Thank you.

This is emails-

Yep.

-again from your Gmail account. September 3rd and 4th, It's an exchange
between you and William Howes.

Mm-hmm (affirmative).
Who is William Howes?
That was my grandfather.
Grandfather.

Mm-hmm (affirmative).

Okay. He writes on the 3rd, "FY1, Mark and Kenny in the news," and then
you respond, "My co-worker sent me a short blurb about this."

"Seems like a never-ending story.”

Right. Do you recall this conversation with your grandfather?

Ido. I do, yeah. It was only a couple months ago. At this point, I had left.
This was three months ago. Two months ago. He had been aware of my
employment at Congressman Meadows' office, and he always kind of
looked out for me. He's from North Carolina.

This is your grandfather?

My grandfather, yeah.

Okay.

That was ... | think that's what this was about, and he wanted to talk about
it.

Does he know Representative Matthews?
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He does know Representative Meadows, yeah.
T'm sorry, Meadows. I'm sorry. He knows him on a personal level?

1 wouldn't say personal. They haven't spoken to my knowledge since the
last election. I believe it was more on a political level, but I never really
had in-depth ... We tatked about what happened in the office, but I wasn't
really sure of my grandfather's relationship with the Congressman.

Does your grandfather know Kenny West?
Yes.

He does?

Yes.

Does he know him on a personal level?
Again, just political.

When you say political, can you-

My grandfather is always .. Not always. My entire family is a bunch of
political ... They like to do things. Not do things. T don't what that means; I
don’t know why 1 said that. He likes to be involved. He likes to support
local politicians. I believe before it was Congressman Meadows it was the
person before him in the district. Again, I'm not sure at what level. T know
that they spoke and my grandfather went to events but other than that, not
entirely sure.

Let's see. "My co-worker sent me a blurb this morning." You write that.
What co-worker would've sent that?

That was somebody at the NRSC, so honestly I can't remember who that
would've been. My work Gmail gets ... Not my work Gmail, my work
email gets cycled through every month, so I lose what happens. I think it
was my co-worker, Alex Clark. She also was staff assistant on the Hill for
Senator Sessions, before we both started at the NRSC at the beginning of
this year. She knew that I worked for Congressman Meadows, so she sent
itto me.

Then, your grandfather writes, "I would like to talk to you and get your

full take on the Meadows-West saga." You reference that you had talked
to your grandfather about what happened-
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Yeah.

-Did this conversation sort of precipitate because your grandfather had
asked you to talk about it?

We had talked about it. I don't know if we spoke specifically at that time,
but I did speak to my grandfather around the time I was leaving, probably
again around November, December, January of 2014 into 2015 about what
was going on. He knew what was happening.

Did he say he had talked to Representative Meadows or Mr. West about
what was happening?

Not to my recollection. He may have said he did? I can't remember. I think
he may have said so, but that is something I can't corroborate.

T'm going to ... This one. This is another Google hang out conversation
with Martha VanLieshout. This is pretty much the same time frame. It's
between September 3rd, 2015 and September 11th.

Yeah.

Well I see 2014 in the back, so disregard that. We'll just focus on the first
page.

Yeah. Sorry.

We'll focus on the first page of September 3rd, 2015. You write here,
"What is this Kenny thing going on?"

I think I was referring to the article that my grandfather had sent me.

Okay. Prior to ... Did your grandfather send you the article, or did your co-
worker send you the article?

T'd seen it by my co-worker prior to that, but it was in regards to that
article on The Blurb that my co-worker had sent me.

When you read the article ... We'll rewind a little bit. When you read the
article, what's your reaction to it?

Honestly I don't really remember having much of a reaction. I think it was
... I think T was kind of disappointed to see that. To see that there was a
fall ... T just remember thinking, "That was so silly, why would that have
happened?" I don't remember ... I remember just thinking, "Why would
that have happened?”
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Just to possibly refresh your memory on it. These articles that sort of came
out at that time, discussed a little bit about some of what you're talking
about with regards to potential allegations of misconduct or sexual
harassment potentially going on in the office. There was also some
discussion in those articles about Mr. West receiving payment, you know
salary, from The House of Representatives during the summer of 2015
when there were some questions raised about whether or not-

1 had forgotten about that.

-he was in the office. That part of the story, did you have a reaction to that
part?

Yeah I did. I remember thinking ... Well I mean, if I'm being honest, the
entire time I remember knowing that Mr. West was paid the maximum
amount a Chief of Staff could be paid. I remember thinking, "I thought
that was ridiculous.”

This is during your time working for-
Yes and that-
Why did you think that was ridiculous?

Compared to the Deputy Chief and the Legislative Director it seemed as if
he didn't do as much work, but that was again from my point of view. [
remember think ... Now that you refreshed my memory, I do remembering
thinking that it was ridiculous. That he was continued ... He still got paid
after he was asked to leave DC, and after he was asked not to be the Chief
of Staff, T know there were a lot of other people in the office that worked
very hard, and so I think for me I was kind of disappointed to see that the
funds that were allocated for the office were allocated to him.

You knew that he was asked to not be Chief of Staff anymore?

At ... T think at some point Martha had told me over the phone, or in
person. I don't remember ... Yeah at some point I learned that.

At some point after your employment there, you knew that he was ... Well
during your employment you knew that he was not supposed to be in the
DC office anymore?

Correct.

Then after your employment you had learned from Martha, that he was
asked not to be the Chief of Staff anymore?
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Yes at some point, yep.

What about just him being in the office at all? Was he still employed by
the office to your knowledge?

1 didn't know. I knew that after he was asked to leave DC, that he was
working in the district office, and to my knowledge I think some of the
women in the district office were made to feel uncomfortable as well, so
I'm not sure.

Where did you hear that?

1 had heard that from again Martha, I believe. Let me think. I believe L had
heard that from Ansley or Martha. Maybe it was Ansley it was.

Did they ever talk about the fact that women in the district office might be
uncomfortable? Did they ever talk about whether Kenny West was coming
to work, or what work he was doing? Was there any complaints about
that?

Yeah I remember Ansley was always very disappointed . Not
disappointed, but frustrated and put off by the fact that it seemed as if that
Kenny wasn't doing anything-

This was-
-compared to other Chiefs of Staff.
You were talking to Ansley about this in 2015?

In 2014, so it would have been around I would say ... I believe she started
working in the office in March of 2014, and then we would have started
talking about this later on in the year, at the end of the summer.

Did you guys ever talk about sort of how it was a little strange that Kenny
West would ever be Chief of Staff in the first place?

Yes that was discussed. Yeah, I think there was ... He always made it very
clear that he had run against Congressman Meadows, and he loved to tell
the story of how he ran against the congressman and that he didn't win, but
he got to be Chief of Staff. It was always very weird. That's not
necessarily somebody I would want to be ... If it were me, Imean I
wouldn't want him to be my Chief of Staff. We all thought it was an
interesting choice. I know that I ... Yeah there were definitely
conversations about-
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1 O. Ashmawy: Was there any gossip about it, or how that arrangement came to be?
2 Witness A: Other then what we heard from Mr. West, I think a lot of us speculated
3 that there must be something that ties them together. Especially ... Imean I
4 remember thinking, I don't know if I ever spoke to anybody about this, but
5 I remember thinking after these articles came out, "There must have been
6 something for him to-"
7 O. Ashmawy: Did anyone ever speculate what that something might be?
8 Witness A: No. I couldn't even guess. I wish I had known. It would’ve been helpful.
9  P.Solis: Again I want to focus on the spring or summer of 2015, when you're out
10 of the office.
11 Witness A; Okay.
12 P. Solis: Who were you talking to about what's happening in Representative
13 Meadows' office? In any capacity. Is it just Martha or anyone else?
14 Witness A: Martha. I believe I spoke with my co-worker Alex Clark about it, because
15 it was in the news and she had seen it.
16 P. Solis: T want to focus on not just the Mr. West situation, but any former co-
17 worker who's still with Representative Meadows, or maybe someone who
18 feft Representative Meadows' office but you used to work with. Patrick
19 Fleming or Martha.
20 Witness A: 1 guess Patrick at that point was still at the office. I think we had ... Yeah
21 he's friends with Martha, so I'd see him every once and awhile. At that
22 point I think he recently left the office, so he was still there. I didn't tatk to
23 him a whole lot about it, but there were a couple of g-chats exchanged I
24 think. Whenever ... Not every time I saw him with Martha, but sometimes
25 it would be like, "Oh this Kenny thing. Did you hear about it?" I didn't
26 really keep in touch with many other people outside of Martha and Patrick
27 in the office. I mean yeah. I know from Martha where everybody ... What
28 has happened. What's the office been like,
29  P.Solis: What would Patrick say about what was happening?
30 Witness A: 1 think he just didn't like that these things were happening, and he didn't
31 really ... I think a lot of people were kind of worried about saying
32 something, at the risk of their job. I think to my knowledge initially when
33 Phil had told the Congressman, and this is hearsay. I don't know, but Phil
34 when he had first approach the Congressman about it, it was very tense; it
35 was not an easy conversation to have. I think the Congressman didn't want
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to believe it, so I think a lot of people were confused and it was hard for

. them to figure out how to handle it.  know for me, I also felt the same

way.
Are Mr. West and the Congressman friends? Did you get that impression?

1t seemed that way, I guess. I mean for the life of me I couldn't ... That had
to be the reason why ... There had to ... I mean I guess there should have
been some friendship there. There wasn't very much of a working
relationship. He was the Chief of Staff, but it didn't seem as if it was to be
the Chief of Staff, I don't know.

Did you ever see them interact in a friendly manner?

Yeah I mean they were ... Yeah, They were just ... It was never anything
out of the ordinary for-

Did they seem like buddies? Did they seem like colleagues? How would
you describe their interaction?

1 guess it seemed like buddies to me? I didn't see them interact all that
often. I wasn't ... There was only so many times that they'd be in the office
at the same time.

Understandable. Did you ever hear any stories about them hanging out
together outside of work?

No. They went to ... I mean outside of work they were ... I shouldn't say
no. Outside of work sometimes they went to events with their wives
together, that were work related and like parades in the district for
holidays, but I don't remember anything per like hanging out outside of the
office, other than that.

When you said that Kenny would tell stories about how he ran against
Representative Meadows, what kind of stories would he tetl?

1 guess he tatked about you know the debate, and how Mr. West thought
he was a great debater and all that stuff. Talked about how the
Congressman approached him after the election was called and asked him
to be his Chief of Staff, but I mean there was never any in depth story. It
was just kind of like this underlying thing that would always come up.

He approached him before or after the election?
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After the primary election I believe it was? I don't think there was no
general opponent, so I believe it was just after the primary. I'm not quite
sure. I don't remember.

Previously I had asked you in 2015, after you had left, who you kept in
contact with. You said Martha because she's a friend, Patrick a few times-

1 saw Eliza once recently.

Once recently?

Yeah.

How long ago was that?

This past week.

Okay.

Martha had texted me after work. My office is right across the street from
the 201 Bar on Massachusetts Ave. The North Carolina Society, or
something of that nature was having a Christmas happy hour. She was
like, "Stop by. We'd love to see you", so Martha and I guess Alyssa was
there too. I only saw her for about a split second. Yeah and that was it.
You saw last week, what day was it?

Thursday.

Thursday you saw Alyssa, Eliza, and Martha all at 2017

Yes.

Okay. When you saw Alyssa for a split second, what did you guys talk
about?

"Hi how are you? How are things going?" Nothing really. I think she went
on to talk to somebody else. I was there in total for half an hour, my
boyfriend was coming to meet me,

Eliza, what did you guys talk about?

We talked about she had gone on a trip recently. We talked about my new
job. We talked about me maybe moving up at my new job, her still being
at Congressman Meadows' office. You know stuff like that. Nothing out of
the ordinary. Martha was standing with us, and I think ... I don't remember
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what was said, but I think it was maybe, "Aren't you glad that" ... I don't
remember who said it, it was just kind of in passing but, "Aren't you glad
Kenny's out of the office?" It was like, *Something is different now." It
wasn't a conversation, It was like somebody had made a comment, and
then there was no conversation really after that, I don't think anybody
made a comment after.

Was our office, or the fact that I had contacted you, or I had contacted
anybody else whatsoever discussed at all in that conversation?

No. Ne.

Alyssa, Eliza, and Martha did not bring up that I had contacted them?

No.

Obviously one of the things that's in the public, is that maybe Kenny West
received money. You know a severance package or something like that
before he left. What had you guys ... Has that come up in conversation
amongst the former staff?

Excuse me. I think ... I mean I don't ... Other than what we saw in the
news, I never really got into the weeds about it. Honestly, if I'm being
honest, when I left that office, I really just wanted to leave as much of it
behind me as I could. Ido ... I can say that at some point I did speak to ... I
mean did g-chat about the article. I don't know if there was much more
than that. Other then maybe another-

Well I have one last one to show you. This is with Patrick Fleming, and
this is only a few days ago I think. No I'm sorry this is-

Last year.

Sorry this is last year. Again this is September 11th, 2014.

Yeah.

This is a conversation that I had with Patrick, and you wrote, "I just can't
zle;itei:; that he is Chief of Staff after all that" Do you remember what all

20157 Yeah I think that was-

This is 2014.
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2014. This is as I'm preparing to leave the office, after things have ... I
think ... I guess ... I mean I guess this helps me get my timing straight. I
guess at that point Phil had approached the congressman, and the
Congressman had said that he would make sure everything was okay. 1
think, I can't speak to how long after that conversation this was, but I
remember that there were several weeks that went by before we were
made aware of any change.

That change would have been his sort of non-appearance in DC?

1 think that may ... I can't remember the specific circumstance of this
conversation, It could have been after that. It could have been me saying
you know, "I can't believe that he" ... At that point I remember that he was
still Chief of Staff, so it could have been after that.

Patrick goes on to say that, "We deserve and explanation now." An
explanation for what?

1 think it was an explanation for why he was still the Chief of Staff after
what the Congressman had heard.

Do you know if anybody got an explanation?

Not that I know of. No.

Do you still keep in contact with Representative Meadows since you left?
No.

Haven't spoken to him at all?

Nope. Maybe. No. I thought I'd got a Christmas card, but I didn't. Igota
Christmas card when I was still in the office, but after 1 left no.

What about Pamela Ward and Wayne King? Do you know who they are?
They were in the district office. Pam, I'm not sure what her exact role was.
Yeah they were both, and Wayne King, they were both in the district
office. I think because they both requested to be on LinkedIn with me, but
that was maybe the extent. I mean I would talk to them when I was in the
office, but it was always professional.

Okay. Jennifer Elliot?

She was our accounting person I believe?
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InDC?

In DC yeah. For the office. I believe she worked with several offices on
the House side. I'm not-

Okay so she wasn't physically located in the Representative Meadows’
office?

No she did the books, so she would stop by every once and awhile. Excuse
me. She did my on boarding and all that stuff. T saw her maybe once a
month, once every other week.

Have you been contacted at all about ... Have you been contacted at all
about our review, or the fact that we'd be talking to you?

Nope.

Anybody who says they're a lawyer for Representative Meadows?

No.

1 think that's about it. You know just generally, even in the past month or
50, if you've heard anything about what's going on, from anybody, can you
recall any conversations?

In the past month? No. I would've passed it along, but no I haven't.

Okay. I think that's pretty much all we have. Just checking real quick here.
Yeah.

Oh I wanted to ask you, Phil Newman?

Yeah.

Do you know where he works?

1 do, because we are both ... We both work for Senator Gardner and down
the office he works with senator ... I haven't seen Phil since, but I know
that he's with Cory Gardner's office.

Okay.

That was by word of mouth.

Do you know what position he holds with-
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I think Martha told me that he was a Legislative Assistant, doing
transportation work.

He was still with the office when you had left?

Yes. I gave him my two weeks’ notice, and he ... I believe left not to long
after I left. I can't remember though.

Do you know who would have been, or any of the people who you stayed
in touch with, who would have still been working with Representative
Meadows' office in the summer of 20157

Not sure when Ansley left. 1believe she left in the summer. Martha's still
there. Alyssa is still there. Eliza is still there. Who does that leave?
Patrick, I believe was there this summer? I think he left in the fall? End of
the summer? I'm not sure, but-

Pamela and Wayne do you know?

1 have no idea.

Okay. Alright, 1think that's all we have.

Thank you.

Thank you very much.

Thank you. We appreciate it.
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This is Paul Solis with the Office of Congressional Ethics, I'm joined by
Annie Cho and Helen Eisner. We are here for an interview of Witness B.
1t is January 7, 2016. We have provided Witness B a copy of 18 US.C.
1001 and she signed our acknowledgement form. We can begin the
interview. Witness B, where are you currently employed?

Is that committee in the House of Representatives? Is it in the Senate?
What's the setup?

It's both, and the jurisdiction of the chairmanship transfers every congress,
so currently it's housed within the Senate underﬂ
Are you paid as a Senate employee, or a House employee?

Senate,

Would that change in the next congress, ot ...

Potentially, I'm sti i _ If I'm working under the new chairman
who would be Ibelieve I could be House, but I'm
honestly not sure how that ... The budget items work out that way.

Okay. How long have you been there?

Since September of 2015.

What's your job title?

Professional policy staff.

Did you maintain the same job title the whole time you've been there?
Yes.

Then previously, well let me ask you first, what's your job responsibilities
currently?

Tt was currently [indecipherable], so it's somewhat in flux, but I handle
health care for the committes, as well as oversight. Then for the Senator’s
personal office, I handle budget issues, social security, SSTI, and non-
health care portions of the senate finance committee.
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You said “the Senator”, is there a senator you're currently working for
then?

Dan Coats, he's also the chairman of the JEC, so a little bit of 2 dual role,
He's retiring so there's not a lot of point to bring in new staff.

Previously, before September of last year, where were you employed?
1 was with Representative Mark Meadows.

Okay. When did you start in his office?

1 don't recall the exact date, but it was sometime in February of 2014.

February 2014, okay. What was your job title in Representative Meadows'
office?

Istarted out as a legislative assistant, and by the time I left I was
legislative director.

What were the dates that you switched from an LA toa LD?

T honestly don't remember the exact dates, and then there was a brief
period of time where the Congressman had me as a counselor, which was
just ... I saw it as kind of an elevated senior LA kind of position because
actually don't have a 1.D., but I don't remember the exact dates. do know
that when Phillip Newman left, sometime I think April, March or April of
2015, that was around the time that I moved to the LD position, but there
wasn't a very smooth transition, that's why I'm kind of not positive on the
dates.

Okay, but when you left, you had had that LD position?
Yes.

Okay. Who were your supervisors in the office, T guess throughout the
time you were employed?

From the district side, he started out as the district director, Wayne King,
and he eventually became the deputy chief of staff. I didn't work with him
a whole lot, but he technically was a superior. It started out with Joe
Murray, he was the deputy chief, and Phillip Newman was the legislative
director. Then after Joe left in, I believe it was June of 2014, Phillip
became the LD/Deputy Chief and from that time out, he was my direct
supervisor. Then Kenny West was the chief of staff from the time I started
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until, kind of ghost figure I guess, but then in July of 2015, that's when the
newest chief, Paul Fitzpatrick, came on board.
Okay, let's see if we can unpack that a little bit. So, basically in terms of
direct reports or supervisors that you recognized throughout your time, it
was Wayne, Joe, Phillip, and Kenny?
I wouldn't say Wayne was a direct supervisor, He was technically chain of
command wise, but he was pretty ... He was fairly well separated from the
D.C. office, and he really didn't get involved with D.C. matters as much,
so most of the interaction with Wayne was primarily with Phil and Joe. 1
didn't work with him quite as much until the very end, I talked with hima
little bit more, but I would say the people I went to the most were D.C.
folks, and Wayne was only on the district side.

When did ... Do you know if Joe was still at the office, or when did he
leave the office?

He left in I believe it was June, 2014,
20147

Yes, and he went to Senator Johnson's office, and he has since left to work
with a non-profit that T can't remember the name of.

‘What was Joe's title?
Deputy Chief.
Then Phil was — his title?

He started as just legislative director, and then when Joe left, he was
fegislative director/deputy chief, kind of from two hats.

Kenny West then was the chief of staff, the singular chief of staff
throughout that time period?

Except when Paul came in and took. .. 2015, yes.
Who filed the paperwork in the office, or did payroll?

I believe we primarily outsourced it. Jennifer did a lot of it, it was kind of

Jennifer Elliot?

Page 3 of 29

15-1671_0045



20

21

22

23
24

25

26

27
28

29
30

31

Witness B:

Paul Solis:

Witness B:

Paul Solis:

Witness B:

Paul Solis:
Witness B:
Paul Solis:
Witness B:

Paul Solis:

Witness B:
Paul Solis:

Witness B:

Helen Eisner:

Witness B:

104

Yes, she was a shared employee, but Kenny was primarily responsible for
setting the payroll, and determining salaries.

Do you know if Congressman Meadows had a role in that process of
helping to determine salaries, or hiring and firing, that type of thing? Do
you know what his role was?

1 don't think it was a very set in stone role. I know that he was involved,
like he interviewed people who were coming in to make sure he was okay
with them. He personally reached out to me at one point telling me that he
and Kenny both discussed raise options for myself, so those kinds of
things gave me an indication he was certainly involved, but I don't know
the formalities or anything except I don't think there was a formal policy.

How did you know that Mr. West then was involved in determining
salaries?

Because he told me. I guess this is what I'm doing when I first negotiated
salary, it was directly with him. Then I remember when I moved to that
counsel role, I guess in March of this past year, Mark directly emailed me
saying that he and Kenny discussed my salary and they would like to put
me at this amount.

Okay.

That told me Mark and Kenny were both involved as well.

That was March, 20157

Yes.

Al right. Okay, I wanted to sort of ask about Mr. West. Was he chief of
staff the whole time you were employed there?

Except, again, until Paul came on board.
You said in July, 2015?

Yes, that's when Paul came on board. Kenny wasn't always in the office
the whole time, but as far as I was aware, he was still listed as chief.

‘When you say the whole time, do you mean the whole time that you were
in the office?

Mm-hmm (affirmative).
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Was he chief of staff to both the district, and the D.C. office?
Yes.

Okay, so Mr. King would have had to report to him?

Yes.

Okay. What was your relationship like with Mr. West, strictly
professional, were you friends outside the office?

We were not friends outside the office. It was definitely only for work
purposes. I don't think that, I mean, I never had direct professional
probiems. Like, he was always very praiseworthy honestly of my work,
but T was respectful to him because he was my boss, but I didn't exactly
like him.

Okay. 1 asked you if he was the chief of staff the whole time while you
were there, did his, do you know if his titles, his work title changed at ali?

Tread, honestly, I read articles about it, but I didn't know about any title
changes.

Okay, so for example in April, 2015, him taking on a "senior advisor
role?"

I had no idea about that. I had no idea he was still on payroil at that point.
Okay, why didn't you have any idea of that?

Because Mark told us that ... I mean, we had a hunch something was up
because his email still existed, he hadn't turned in any of his Blackberry's
or anything like that, so that was odd, but he wasn't allowed to talk to
anybody. He wasn't allowed to come into the offices.

Okay. Well, let's ... We'll get into that.

Okay.

You were about to say Mark told you, what did Mark tell you?

1 mean Mark told us, I guess, November of 2014 that Kenny wouldn't be
in the office anymore. He told me, actually T had another opportunity on
the table, someone offered me their LD position. Honestly it was not a
good fit, but Mark said that he would move me to LD position soon, we

just needed to work out a few things, and that he wanted Kenny to be
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gone, or to not be a problem anymore. I don't remember the exact
wording, he didn't say firing, 1 know that much. It lead me to believe that
Kenny would no longer be on payroll. That was just my interpretation, and
1 honestly was kind of surprised that someone would stay on payroll after
the concerns that were raised.

Okay, so we'll get into that. You mentioned Representative Meadows
mentioning he wouldn't be a problem anymore, what was the problem?

He was sexually harassing, and what - I'm not, obviously not a legal
scholar, but he was definitely making every woman in the office feel very
uncomfortable. We presented those concerns to Mark late October, 2014, T
don't recall the exact date though.

What was Representative Meadows' response to that?

He seemed very surprised by it. He said that he was appreciative of us
bringing it up, and that he would address it, and that we shouldn't be
concerned about it at all. Then there was kind of dead silence for a while,
and we just ... just assumed that he was trying to get past the final
campaign of the election 2014, and then come back and figure out what to
do, 50 not long after that he actually brought in another chief of staff to
interview us, all the females, separately, and determine whether or not, I
guess, what the consequences are. How he should react from both a legal
profession, because she was a former, I think she was a former prosecutor,
and also from the Hill of chief of staff perspective. After that, we didn't
hear a whole lot from Kenny, there was no conclusion. He occasionally
would call, but that was about it,

Okay.
We were never told what was going on, though.

All right, there's a few things 1 want to ask there, so the first thing, first,
did you when you first ... This was happening, did you report directly to
Representative Meadows first, or did you go through another supervisor?

Ttold Phil and Joe, and at that point I realized it was not uncommon
knowledge. It kind of was first brought to my attention when I was
brought on board, and I was told, "Hey, by the way, you probably don't
want to wear your hair in a ponytail when Kenny's in town, because he
really likes to play with girl's hair when it's a ponytail for some reason,
and he seems to touch girl's hair a lot, so by the way, don't do that." That
was kind of my first heads up. I just was like, okay.

That's when you first started?

Page 6 of 29

15-1671_0048



107

1 Witness B: Yeah, that was when I first started, but / obviously really didn't know what
2 to do about that. I just didn't wear my hair up. Then I slowly started to see

3 he would just, T don't know, there's just this creep factor about him. I don't
4 know how else to describe it. You just know when someone's checking

5 you out and he did it all the time. He would pull me into his office and just
6 sit down with me and just talk with me and try to just tatk for an hour,

7 hour and a half, in the middle of the day. He would get uncomfortably

8 close to you and just talk to you. At one point I could honestly tell he was

9 trying to look down my shirt and I immediately snapped and wasn't realty
10 thinking and I told him that I needed him to go away, for which I didn't
11 apologize for because I was a little concerned. I just always went to Phil
12 and Joe directly.
13 Paul Solis: Okay.
14  Helen Eisner: When you had the conversation when you first came on board, who was it
15 who gave you that heads up?
16  Witness B: 1 think more than one person told me. In the offices it's a room, a lot of
17 people are housed. I think it was everyone, I don't remember a specific
18 person starting, but it just became a conversation.
19 Helen Eisner: Okay.
20 Paul Solis: You mentioned that another Chief of Staff was brought in to interview the
21 women in the office. When was that?
22 Witness B: 1t was 2014. T honestly can't remember if it was November or December,
23 but it was after the election and it was before we broke for Christmas, but I
24 don't know the exact date.
25  Helen Eisner: This was after late October 2014 when you sent the Representative
26 information?
27  Witness B: Yes.
28  Helen Eisner: She would have been brought in after.
29  WitnessB: Yes.
30 Paul Solis: ‘Who was this Chief of Staff?
31 Witness B: Cindy Crick, I believe is the last name. She's with Trey Gowdy.
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What did you feel the purpose? Did she explain the purpose of her
interviewing you? Would she present what you told her to Representative
Meadows so you could make a decision or what was the purpose?

I believe Mark told us what the purpose was. I don't remember the exact
rationale he provided. I think it was more making sure that he covered his
bases too. Make sure that there would be no charges against him for
wrongful termination and making sure that we're not taking things out of
context is what I took from it. I don't remember. I think it was what he
should do. It was just very generalized, like that terminology.

Did you all volunteer to speak with her? Did he make it a condition of
employment that you speak with her?

We were all on board with speaking. At that point, we'd already presented
the concerns to Phillip to give to Mark one on one. It was already out
there. I think everyone was okay with it and there was no condition of
employment.

Train goes by. You weren't pressured in any way?

1 didn't think so, no.

During this time, after your speaking with this Chief of Staff, around this
November period or prior to the holiday break, was Kenny West in the
office at all?

No, he would occasionally call or email but he was not in the office. Any
calls or emails were very sporadic.

Prior to that, he was the Chief of Staff in the DC office right?

Yes. I do know at one point after we presented the issues to Mark, that
same week he did go to the District office, but he never came back to the
DC office.

That would have happened late October?

Yes.

Do you have a question?

In late October, sorry to go back a little bit, but you said that “we

presented the issues.” What precipitated that decision to present the issue
at that point in time?
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1t had been building. When Joe left, it was really me and Phil doing a lot
of the managerial issues and I'd been pushing more and more for
something to be done, something to be said. Not only just was Kenny
terrible and not fun to be around, but we were also just doing a disservice
to Mark. I think it started — we had an intern Tara who's actually now with
Tom Rice, South Carolina. We asked her when she finished her internship
that summer, what were your highs and lows? Couldn't tell you what her
high was but she said her low was how Kenny touched her. That was part
of it.

We brought in a new comms director, Alyssa. Very pretty girl, but she was
also in her own silo in a separate room so she became the center of
attention for Kenny. The comments that were made by to everyone were
pretty bad, but they were apparently, also this is all from Alyssa, but they
seemed to be much worse towards Alyssa and she had a harder time
standing up to it. Kenny kept saying, "Oh, I need to bring you down to the
District. Just you, I'm going to drive you around the District in my truck
all by myself. I'm going to introduce you to all the comms people in the
district.” She didn't want to go. We kept trying to push it off and we kept
trying to put somebody else there with her, like if she went down, send
two people with her. Or make sure Wayne's always with her and not
Kenny, but Kenny was the boss; there was no way we could guarantee
that. We also couldn't continually brush him off for months. It was either
she has to go, which nobody wanted, or we finally needed to tell him. That
was when we finally were like, "All right, this has got to happen.”

The next time, whenever Mark came up to me, we were in recess most of
that month of October. The next time Mark came up, Phil just outlined the
concerns. Each of the females put their comments down and just maybe
one to three issues they really had concerns with and then Phil presented it
to Mark.

‘Who were the females that would have made-

It was me, Martha Van Lieshout, she's still on staff, Alyssa Farah, still on
staff, Eliza Thurston, she's still on staff too.

What about Ashley Howes?

Oh yeah, Ashley, sorry. Yeah, Ashley was there too.

After this happened, then Mr. West is not in the DC office, however he's
making sporadic calls. Were you aware at all of a either informal or formal
decision made by Representative Meadows that Mr. West is not allowed

back in the DC office? You had mentioned something earlier about that he
wasn't allowed into the office? You had used those words.
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When he was still calling, I didn't personally talk to him or at least I don't
recall talking to him, but he apparently was still talking about, "Oh, I'm
going to be up there soon." This, that, and the other. It led me to think
nothing happened at all. He's still going to be in the picture, he's still going
to be the Chief and now it's going to be probably a lot worse because he
knows that we all tried to basically get him fired. I emailed Cindy and the
office didn't know that I was the one that did that but I did it because [
knew nobody else would. I said, "Hey, this is what's happening. He is still
trying to call, he's still talking about coming up here. We don't know what
to do. What do you suggest?”

Al T know is at that point, then later it was maybe that week or the
following, Mark was very upset. Apparently someone approached him on
the floor and told him that he needed to fire him immediately. Again, this
is through Phil, who heard it from Mark, who was the only person there so
1 don't know the exact language or anything like that but that was when
Mark was very upset that someone from the office spoke out. He said that
Kenny's not allowed back in the office so it's not a problem.

‘Who did he say that to?

1 don't remember him saying it to all of us, but again I'm not sure. I know
he said it to Phil.

The best you can give a specific time on when he would have told that to
Phil, when did that happen?

Probably January, 2015.
Did the calls persist from Kenny after that?

Eliza may have gotten calls if they were specifically work-related. I know
that he emailed because he emailed about Ashley leaving. I remember that
in February, so the following month, and then I know in March that was
when Mark mentioned that he and Kenny discussed my salary for the
raise. He occasionally emailed me, "Good job on a bill," something like
that. Then he called Ben Williamson, who's now the legislative
correspondent, he was a former intern and that's how he knows Kenny.
Basically it sounded like he just wanted his stuff back from the office but
he consistently told Ben, "Don't tell anybody I called. Don't tell anybody 1
called." So of course Ben told me he called. Then I let Mark know.

When was that?
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Maybe May, June, this past year. I honestly don't ... Ben started as part-
time and he came on sometime full-time in April so it had to have been
April or beyond that.

As specific as you can remember, what did Ben tell you about that phone
call?

He said that he was just asking how things were going. He wanted his
stuff from the office, wanted it FedEx'd.

He still had his desk maintained or personal items?

No, we were in a new office at that point and I think we just had it all up
in the storage unit upstairs,

Did he still have a desk in the office?

No.

No?

Not in the new office.

In the old office did he have one?

Yes. ‘

When was the move? When did that happen?

January 2015,

January 2015 you moved to a new office. What building?
Longworth, from Longworth. 5th floor to the ground floor.
At that point, there is no work space for Kenny West?

No, there was not.

Did all other staff members at that point have work space?
Yes.

Did anybody in the office talk about that? That Kenny doesn't have a desk

or any personal effects around?
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1 don't remember anyone talking about it.

Did Representative Meadows ever discuss that or tell someone not to
create a space for Mr. West?

1 don't think it was about not creating a space for Mr. West, but what
would have been the Chief's area, it was an interesting type of an office. It
was divided into a separate section with two bookshelves. He suggested
putting in a sitting area so that folks could take meetings.

That was from Representative Meadows?

Yes, he supported that. He liked the idea. I remember him, if he was not
one of the ring leaders, he was one of the stronger supporters.

Again, Ben Williamson tells you around May 2015 he gets this call from
Kenny asking how things are going, and he's making inquiries about some
of his personal items that may be still in the storage unit. What else was
said that Ben told you about?

I honestly don't recall a lot more. I don't think there was anything that
caused red flags except for the whole continued, "Don't tell anybody I
called," Then I know that we did eventually ship his things for him.
When did you ship those things?

I think it was June.

Who shipped them?

Eliza.

At whose direction?

Mark's.

Where did you ship them to?

Kenny's house, 1 believe. I wasn't part of that but I'm pretty sure it was
Kenny's house.

How did you become aware of that?
Because they talked about how expensive it was.
What are we talking about, what type of personal items?
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Calendars, a lot of Reagan paraphernalia, just trinkets on the desk, 1 think
a statue or two.

As of January, they had all been put in the storage unit?

Yes or whenever the move was. I think it was January. It was right when
the Congress changed.

When you emailed that Chief of Staff, her name is Cindy, right?
Mim-hmm (affirmative).

That happened in December or January?

January.

Tanuary 2015. Tt sounds like calls stopped from him to the office. You
either heard from you, or it went through Phil, Representative Meadows
saying he's no longer allowed back in the DC office. That was sort of a
definitive statement by Representative Meadows.

Yes. He never came back.

Okay. After that point until May, this sort of late winter, springtime, what
is the understanding about where Mr. West is, or his place in the office?

No one really knew.

Did you ever make an inquiry about that?

No. I can tell from Mark’s reaction that this was not something that he
wanted to have discussed. It was not up for discussion. We kind of got
what we wanted, so there wasn't a whole lot that we could do anyway.
Who was in charge of the DC office at that point?

Phil,

Phil. Are you close to Phil, or were you close to Phil?

Yes.

Is Phil talking to you at all about what's going on?

A little bit, but he didn't seem to know what Kenny's exact role was either.
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Did Phil and Representative Meadows have a close relationship?

Most of the time. They certainly had their .. Around this subject, there was
tension, which was also kind of what led me to not ask, just because I
knew that that was one of the few points of contention that existed with
them. Otherwise, I think that Mark really did like Phil, and I think Phil
respected Mark until some of this stuff happened, and he saw that Mark
did not let Kenny go. T think like myself, he was a little alarmed by that.

Again, in this late winter, springtime, are you aware, I mean do you have
definitive knowledge that Kenny West is still on staff or playing some
role?

It was when he sent the email for Ashiey, and when Mark in February.
Then he also ... That was when Mark emailed me saying that he and
Kenny had discussed my salary, and they thought that I deserved this
amount of a pay raise. I could also just see on disbursements when they
came out quarterly. He still had his emails up and running. We were still
having to put him on staff-wide emails. Little things like that told me
something was, he was still ... He still had his BlackBerry. He still had
access. The email address was still active. Something told me that he
wasn't entirely out of the picture, but I never knew what that was.

Okay. When that call came into Ben Williamson, did that change your
perception of what was going on?

No, because T still knew that he had an active email address. I was
surprised he was calling, but not entirely, no.

But the fact that he asked for his personal items, did that change any
perception you had of what was happening?

No.

Then, after May of 2015, and you get into the summer, and you had taken
on a new role, right? You were legislative director?

Mm-hmm (affirmative).

Okay. Is Phil still there at that point?

No.

Okay. Who was leading the office, or you know, June?
Iwas. In 20157
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Yes.

Twas.

Okay. You were taking on a Chief of Staff-type role?

T would say it was the full Chief of Staff responsibility. I will say that
Mark did send out an email in April when Phil left saying that he was also
going to look for a new chief who is DC-based, which I honestly did think
that Kenny would be gone at that point. I do remember he mentioned there
would be a gradual process, but never what that looked like, but because
we knew that there was going to be a new chief, I never took on full chief
responsibilities. I kind of just maintained what I was doing, and Mark
stepped in when needed.

1 want to figure that out a little bit more with you. You said you knew
there was going to be a new chief.

Yeah.
Why did you know that?

In April, T will say, Mark said that he wanted a DC-based Chief, and he
was ... Yeah

Okay. That was clear that it wasn't going to be a return of Mr. West?
1 thought so. Yeah.

Okay. When he explained that to the staff through an email or even in
conversation, was there any discussion at all about Mr. West's role, or
what would be Mr. West's role?

1 think everyone just took that as being he's officially fired.

That would have been in April?

Yes, because it was the same time Phil left.

Okay, I just want to be clear. T had asked you previously when Ben got
that call in May, did your perception change?

Yeah. Sorry. I guess it didn't change, because I already thought that he
was kind of done, and because Kenny was not coming up. Kenny hadn't
been up in months, and it didn't change because I never thought that
Kenny was coming back up.
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Okay. In April 2015, or as April's passing, you're thinking that Kenny is
fired, or is terminated with employment in Representative Meadows
office?

Yeah.
I don't mean to put words in your mouth. Can you tell me what your-

As far as I knew, yeab, but L, of course, I didn't honestly, when the reports
came out, I did look back in that email, and it never actually said that he
was fired.

At that time, you have close coworkers that you speak with. What is
everybody else saying when they get that email?

They thought he was gone too. I remember I actually told my husband
Kenny and Phil are both leaving. I honestly took that as he was actually
gone, gone.

Are you having conversations with other staffers in the office about that?

1 remember Phil and I saying that we were shocked, like we were very
surprised. We kind of just succumbed to this idea of, "All right, well he's
still here. He's still going to be the Chief. He's just not going to be in the
office.” I remember we both were very surprised by it.

Around that time, was there any searches made by Representative
Meadows for a new chief, a DC-based Chief? Did he interview anybody?

1 don't remember when interviews started, but he did interview people. It
took him a long time, I do remember that. I want to say he started around
May. I would honestly have to double check the dates exactly, but he
started like a number of months before Paul actually came on board. I
know it wasn't June when he started. I know what much. It was at least
April, May. T don't remember the dates, honestly.

How do you know that he's interviewing Chiefs?
We, of course our scheduler, Eliza at the time told us, and I actually had a
friend of mine who was from the district, who's been on the Hill for a

number of years. He's currently deputy chief who came in to interview.

That kind of interim chief position, while people were being interviewed,
did you have any responsibility for payroli?

No.
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‘Who would have, I think you had mentioned to us that Kenny did have
some responsibility for that, in addition to it being outsourced. Who would
have taken on that responsibility?

It was my understanding that was Mark.

Okay. Why was that your understanding?

That would be the only person who could. Wayne didn't handle payroll.
He didn't know what was going on. I didn't handle it. Eliza wasn't
handling it. Nobody else was handling it.

What about Jennifer?

Jennifer takes direction from the office, though. She couldn't ...

So the way it typically worked before Kenny left was Kenny would sort of
tell Jennifer, and Jennifer would file.

Right.

Okay. In the absence of Kenny, if you didn't do it, Eliza wasn't doing it,
you're saying you think it came from Representative Meadows?

Yes. He never told me that, but that was the only logical conclusion I
could come to.

Okay. He never asked you to do that?

No.

Phil leftin ... Sorry, refresh me again when Phil left.
Sometime in April. I think it was mid-April.

May to June, before Paul starts, any filings with payroll are most likely
coming from Representative Meadows?

Yes. It would have actually been pretty late June, so the day ... The final
week we're in session July of last year, that Monday was Paul's first day.
His second day, I remember was when Mark filed his resolution, his
discharge petition. That was Paul's second day on the job. Up until that
point, it would all had to have been Mark as far as I know.

Okay. When Paul started, did you have a good relationship with Paul?
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Yeah, I think Paul is really nice. I think he's a great guy, actually.
Did Paul ever mention Kenny?

He mentioned at one point, because we talked about how we all as an
office had to be extremely conscious in what was said, because Mark has a
target on his back by all means. We both were well aware that the Kenny
thing very well could become public any day. He had mentioned, "Yes, I
know about that. It has been handled. It may not have been handled as
quickly as maybe it should have been, but at least that's done. There's a
new chief on board," kind of thing. Like, "I'm running the show now."

Okay.

We just kind have to all be cautious. It was kind of just like a, "Let's be
sure we're all like not just gabbing," kind of thing. It wasn't actually
talking about what happened with Kenny.

Okay. So Paul starts. Paul recognizes. He understands that this occurred.
He said he mentioned to you that it's been handled.

Yes. Then I think he meant as in like he's no longer in the picture. I do
remember when, I think first reports from Politico came out about the
mileage reimbursement. Alyssa had mentioned to me, because she had to
handle the press side of it that Paul seemed genuinely very surprised by

* this and he didn't seem to know about what had happened in the months

before he came on board. Then he met with Jennifer Elliott to kind of
figure all that out, but I wasn't part of any of that.

Okay. Then the next reports that come out about Mr. West and severance
pay and those types of things. Do you recall that?

Yes. That one was Politico. It was before the Huffington Post piece, I
think. I was gone by that point. I do remember that, and I remember I was
really surprised.

What were you surprised about?

1 was surprised that he was still on payroll after April. I was honestly
surprised and had always been surprised that he was still on payroll
without a change in salary that whole time since we told him in October.
Then the fact that he was on payroll from October through the following
September, I was ... I don't know. It's just kind of shocking to think that
someone wouldn't do anything,
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In at least one or two of those pieces, Ms. Farrah was quoted. Did she talk
to you about her response to the press?

Which response?

I'm not sure which one it was, but I know she was quoted in one of the
pieces. Something about, it was severance or a lump sum payment or
something.

Yeah.
Did she talk to you about that?

No, I think that was something that she and ... I remember about it. I think
that was a direct Mark quote, but it was something that she and Paul and
Mark kind of hashed out with themselves, amongst the three of them.

Were you in the office at that point?

1 was in the office, but honestly I felt like ... T think Mark knew T was
looking at that point, and so T wasn't part of those conversations, and I had
been looking for a while.

Okay. Again, when this is happening, and you said you were surprised that
he had potentially been receiving a full salary during that time, did you
talk to Representative Meadows about it? Did you bring it up with
anybody?

No. I remember talking to Alyssa about it because we were both just
surprised, because we were like, "Well, I thought he was fired." That's
when I started to go back to find that email. I realized, "Oh, it never
actually said he was fired. He just said he's going to be stepping down, no
conclusion as to when.” That was when Mark wanted a DC based Chief. I
tried not to talk, because I know there was anxiety already, in the office. I
didn't talked openly amongst staff. This was all Gehat kind of stuff. It was
never openly discussed. I didn't talk to Mark about it.

Given that you mentioned Alyssa and Paul and Representative Meadows
were figuring out how to respond to the press, and sounds like you had
spoken to Alyssa about this. What was her take on it?

1 don't think that she realized, at first ... I don't think that first of all, she
came up with that direct quote. I think it was just from Mark, because she
didn't know about it. She didn't seem to know about it at least, until the
reports came out. She was very stressed out about it. She was not happy
that all this had gone down.
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She told you that?

Yezh. I mean we were both just very stressed out and very just concerned.
It wasn't just that, it was also ... I think we were also just both frustrated
because he filed that motion of discharge without telling anyone on staff
either. I think it was just the culmination of all of it, all at once, was justa
lot. It was a very high tension week.

Okay. What about Paul? Was Paul saying anything to the staff while this
was coming out? You know trying ...

Paul was very positive. He tried to do what he could to make sure
everyone was okay. He tried to be very calm. He actually did a very good
job in going to Ethics trying to get everything figured out. Working with
Mark, working with Jennifer, making sure money was paid back for the
mileage. I think that he was physically stressed, but he never expressed
frustration, or anything like that, to any of the staff.

What about the specific issue of Mr. West staying on the payroll, and
getting paid through the summer, did Paul tatk about that at all?

No.

Did he talk about whether he felt that to be something made out of the
press, or that it's not accurate, or whether it's true? Did he discuss it at all?

No. No one ever claimed it was false, no. He never discussed it. He was
actually very positive, never said anything negative. I don't recall
discussing it with him at ail.

How did you know that the issue was being taken to the Ethics
Committee?

Politico Reports. I saw that outside organizations had filed petitions for it
to be reviewed. Then, T knew for sure, when you called me.

At the time it was happening, was anything taken to the Ethics
Committee?

All T knew is that he had to go talk to Ethics.
Representative Meadows?
Yeah. Or, to House Administration. I couldn't remember. One of the two. I

didn't take that as, they were actually investigating. I remember we had a
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Facebook ad that didn't get franking approval and we had to remove it. I
didn't take that as a full investigation.

When you say, "He had to go,” do you know if he was asked by the
Committee?

I'm pretty sure he was asked to go.

Do you know if it's the Ethics Committee or the Committee of House
Administration?

You know, 1 really ... I don't know. I knew at the time, but I honestly can't
remember. Now, I'm second guessing myself. I'm not positive, but he and
Paul went.

T've asked you extensive questions about this summer period. Especially
after Representative Meadows sends you an email in April. You said you
... Again, if T get any of this wrong, let me know. You said that you were,
at that point, thinking that Mr. West was no longer with the office.
Mm-hmm (affirmative).

You had taken on other responsibilities, in sort of a leadership role.
Interviews were being conducted. Paul had started in July. You know,
when the reports come out, that Mr. West is still being paid, I believe you
used the word earlier, you said, "Ghost Figure." Then you mentioned that
it was surprising to you. Did you know whether or not Mr. West was still
on staff, at all, during that time?

1 assumed he was not, but I was never told directly he was no longer on
staff. I thought he was not on staff.

Did other staffers in the office share that perception?

Yes.

Who would that have been?

Alyssa, Patrick Fleming, Martha VanLieshout, Ben Williamson, Eliza
Thurston and, I know Wayne King. I never asked him directly, but he
would have been one of the people who would've been involved.

Okay. Go ahead.

I have a few more questions.
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Sure.

Just, kind of, separate chain of thought here. What was the procedure in
the office when people left the office? I guess you recently went through
this. How did that work?

You had to file some paperwork, 1 just gave them two weeks. Filed the
new paperwork over here. Got the IT sent down. It was fairly smooth
transition.

You filed paperwork and then sent it over ... Filed paperwork with
Representative Meadows or?

Yeah. It's like office and payroll kind of stuff.

Okay.

It's not with the actual office.

Okay.

1t was kind of House wide payroll paperwork.

What about housekeeping things? What was the typical procedure there?
Making sure folks are caught up to date on what you’re doing, contacts,

giving contact information over, information on legislation I worked on,
bills, that kind of thing.

Turn in Blackberrys, that kind of thing?

Yes.

Any specific procedures within the office, outside of House
Administration? Catching people up?

Departure emails, turning in information, any kind of security information,
usually, if not an auto, like "Hey, I'm no longer with the office," and then
just straight to leaving, Sometimes, with Phil's emails, a lot of them were
then redirected to my email account. Turn in parking. That kind of stuff.

What about any procedures in regards to sick time, or vacation time,
anything like that, if you hadn't used it?

I never got paid out. I was never aware of any policy like that, and I never
got paid out for anything.
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Anything else, specific, about the office, that would be noteworthy?
Nothing that comes to mind, honestly.
Okay.

Do you still keep in contact with current staffers in the Representative
Meadows’ office?

1 talk to Alyssa occasionally. Yeah.

Okay.

Not too recently, I think it was September, October, someone asked me if 1
knew of any LCs, and I asked Ben if he'd be interested. That's probably
the last time I really chatted with him.

Okay. When you speak with Alyssa, would you consider yourself personal
friends?

Yes.

Do you speak with her outside of the House Complex? You guys would
go out to just ...

‘We haven't as much. Yeah. We'll occasionally grab lunch. It's not a close
friendship, but I still keep in touch with her. Yeah.

What has she told you about things, since you've left?

We honestly don't talk that much about the office. She has said that Mark
seems to miss me and wishes that he hadn't started to push me out. I think
he only did that because he knew I was looking. Paul was doing well. T
think it's just basic, "Oh, Hey. Here's what's going on. We have a new staff
assistant." It's nothing really specific or detailed.

Does she ever mention Mr. West to you?

Not since I left, no.

You said, "Push me out," what do you mean by that?

1just got the impression that he wanted somebody who was going to be
behind him. The fact that he didn't tell me about the discharge position
gave me some concern that he didn't trust me. He didn't include me as

much in his conversations. Like, with the Freedom Caucus, not that,
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necessarily he should, just didn't get the impression that he wanted an
LD in its traditional sense of an LD. Someone who's actually running
policy shop, who's involved in it. T know that he thought that I was
interviewing elsewhere. So, at that point, he was like, "Okay. She wants to
leave."

Is it in any way, that feeling, tied to the issue with Mr. West, or you
sending that email to Cindy?

1 don't know he knows it was me. I get the impression he thinks that I had
more to do with people knowing about Kenny West, but that's never been
directly from him. Other than when he brought Cindy in, I wasn't really
going around, because I didn't really want people knowing about it. I
didn't really want to be the face of sexual harassment in the office place. I,
of course, came to learn that everybody already kind of knew about
Kenny. Apparently he was — this is all hearsay, through Phil. Apparently
he was kind of a laughing stock of the entire North Carolina delegation.
He wasn't even invited to Chiefs’ meetings anymore, because he creeped
out a couple Chiefs and people just didn't like him. This was not any news,
to anybody, that he was not pleasant to work with.

Do you know if the same things, about the potential harassment, or
making people feel uncomfortable, do you know if that happened in the
district as well?

I do. I have heard, this is before I came on board, that someone raised it to
Mark's attention, before I ever came on board. I don't recall who that was.
1 know it was one of the more senior women. I honestly don't remember.
Again, T was not on staff. Don't know about it. He would always try to hug
her too closely. She felt like it was always him trying to feel her chest, and
look down her shirt, and she didn't like that.

This is a district employee?

Yes. Again, I never saw that email, but according to, I think Phil told me,
and that Mark just forwarded it to Kenny. I never saw any of this. Then, I
know, the same week that we presented our concerns to Mark, something
happened with Savannah in our district office. I never knew what it was. I
don't know if anybody ever knew exactly what it was. All Tknow is, it was
enough for her to cry, Then, I believe it was Pam, with the district office,
she physically blocked Kenny from coming into the office and told him
that he was not allowed in anymore and if he had issues with it, then she
would go to the Sheriff's Office, and let him deal with it

How did you know that Pam did that?
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Phil told me.

When did that happen?

The same week we presented our concerns to Mark. Kenny, of course, was
not happy about that. Wayne knew about it, then Mark knew about it.
According to Phil, Mark kind of insinuated to Phil, that we, basically,
created, like we conspired. He and Wayne conspired to get us to say
things, and plan all this out, so that they could move up.

That came from Representative Meadows?

It came through Phil from him. Yes. This is not anything I personally
heard.

Were they close, Representative Meadows and Kenny?

1 thought so. Kenny always said they were best friends. I never had reason
to think that they weren't.

Because he ran against him in a primary.

1 know. T don't know what transpired, at all, to make that happen. Mark
just said they became close, somehow, became friends during the election.
I never understood what went on. I never asked really. Kenny always
made it sound like they were closer friends than I would say Mark did, but
they never had visual animosity, or anything like that. At least that I saw. I
also don't really know if there was some that I just wasn't a part of.

As of, let's say January of 2015, up in to, let's say May, when he's not at
all in the DC office, do you know if he's even, Mr. West, is even walking
in to the district office?

Not that I know of.

Because of what happened with Pam Ward? Because of her blocking him,
his entrance.

I think it was that, plus the concerns we raised. I think it was everything.

That physical blocking of him, into the office, would have happened in
October 20147 Around that time?

Yes, I believe so.
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If he's out of the DC office, it's your perception, at least, that he's not even
allowed in the district office, during 20157

Yes.

‘When was the last time you saw everybody together? Ashley and Martha
and Alyssa?

1t was probably around the time Ashiey left the office. I guess that was
February. I know Ashley and Martha kept up a little bit more, but [ think
that was it.

Did you see them last month? Was there an event at Bar 2017 Were you
there?

Oh, for the North Carolina thing?

1 think that might have been it.

North Carolina Beverage Association?
Possibly.

1 didn't go to that. My husband was at that.
Okay.

Tdidn't go.

Before I called you yesterday, had you heard at all, from anybody, that the
OCE was looking into this matter?

No.

Okay. No calls from Alyssa or Martha, or anybody?
No.

Emails or Gehats?

No.

What about Representative Meadows? Anybody, a lawyer of his, or
anybody, reaching out to you? Has anybody contacted you?
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No. I did, actually, run into Mr. Meadows yesterday though. My husband
parks his car on the House side. I walked over and I happened to run into
him in the hall. It was fairly cordial actually.

Okay.

Is your husband employed by Representative Meadows?

No. He is employed by- who's also in the delegation now.

When was the last time you saw Kenny West?

I honestly don't remember. He didn't come up to the office much at all,
even before any of this happened. I honestly couldn't teil you.

But he was the DC Chief of Staff, right?
He was never really based out of DC though.
Okay.

He was rarely ever in the office. T honestly couldn't tell you when T ast
saw him.

In all of 2015, did you see him?
Yes.
Okay. When did you see him in 2015?

Whenever he was up here. I don't remember the dates, He didn't live in
DC though.

Okay. I just want to make sure that I'm understanding that then.
Wait, sorry.

You're 2015 ...

2015 was last year. No I did not.

Okay.

2014.

Right.
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2015, no I did not see him at all.

Then, through the summer, until you left, did he make any phone calls to
the office, after that time with Ben Williamson in May?

Not that I recall, no.
Or any communications -
Or emails?

1 don't remember. I don't remember ever hearing of any. I, personally,
never heard from him.

Any questions? Anything else that you'd like to share with us that we may
have left out. Anything that we might be missing that you would like to
provide us with?

Not a lot's coming to mind.
Okay.

But, I'm going to let you know, because, I have to decompress and think
about it.

Do you have emails and Gehats, and things like that, contemporaneous
with when this happening, with members of the staff?

1 don't have the Gehats. Emails, I don't know. I would have to fook. I
remember going through a search, fairly recently, in part because I had
been trying to finding emails from my House side, making sure they don't
come over. I did look through some for Kenny, that's when I recalled the
dates for like Cindy and Ashley's departure, so I do, definitely have those.

Those would have been House emails or on personal email?
House email.

Even though you have a Senate email address, you still have access to
your House...?

1 have old emails. It's, as far as I know, it's an inactive account though. I
don't have access to it. But, the IT folks saved it on my personal external
hard drive, so I could take some over, for like my contacts, bills, and what
not.
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What about your personal email? Would you discuss these issues at that
time on any personal emails?

1 sent my concerns to Phil on personal email. He then took to Mark. I have
that. I would have to look, honestly.

Okay.

I don't think we emailed a lot. T have my Gchat set up, that they don't save,
just because it takes up space. I just always had that.

1 think, right now, we would ask you to not delete anything related to your
previous employment, Mr. West, the concerns at that point, interactions
with other staffers, out of both your old House emails and your personal
email. We may make a request to you, for you for that. You can consider
it. It's not a certainty that we're going to. At this point, we're going to
suggest and request that you preserve those emails.

Okay. If I were to send them, would they then know?

No. I mean, again, if you sent them to us, we could go through them and
discuss with you steps that can be taken to ensure confidentiality and
anonytmity. We can discuss those at the time, if we do make the request.
Okay.

Okay. 1 think that's all the questions we have. Thank you very much.

Thank you.
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This Paul Solis with the Office of Congressional Ethics. I am joined by Annie
Cho and Helen Eisner also with the OCE. This is an interview of Witness C on
January 14, 2016. I have previously provided Witness C with a copy of 18 U.S.C.
1001, which she has reviewed. She also responded by submitting the 18 U.S.C.
1001 acknowledgement form to our office. We can begin the interview. Witness
C, T'want to let you know we have spoken to some people outside the office, other
witnesses, so not all the questions I ask you will be because I don't know the
answer to them, so it'll be important that you tell the truth. It's just an aspect of our
office of making sure that all witnesses that we speak to are credible. Is that all

right?

Sure.

I want to go with a little bit of background first. Where are you currently
employed?

1 work at Christ School in Arden, North Carolina.

How long have you been there?

T've been there since August 24th of 2015

What's your job title?

Advancement office director, or office manager, I'm sorry.

1 want to get that. It's advancement office manager?

That's correct.

Prior to your position at the school, where were you employed?

{worked for Congressman Mark Meadows first as a staff assistant and lateras a
field representative.

When did you start employment there?
I began employment June of 2014.

So from June of 2014 until August of 2015, you were employed with
Representative Meadows?

Correct.

You mentioned you were a staff assistant and also a field representative. Out of
that year or so, a little over a year period you were employed at the office, what
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months were you 2 staff assistant, and what months were you a field
representative?

Let's sec. I believe I made the transition to field representative in December of
2014. It could have been January of 2015,

Were you always based in the district office, or did you ever work in DC?
T've never worked in the DC office.

Who else worked with you in the district office during your time with
Representative Meadows?

1 worked with Wayne King, Pam Ward, Tate Apodaca and Deborah Potter.
So Wayne King, Pam Ward, what was the third name you mentioned?

Tate Apodaca.

Tate Apodaca, okay, and then Deborah Potter.

Deborah Potter, mm-hmm (affirmative).

In that district office who did you report to?

I reported to Wayne King.

‘What was his title?

‘Wayne is the deputy chief of staff and district director.

Did he hold that title the whole time you were with the office?

I believe he was promoted to deputy chief of staff during my time at the office,
gz-tei tcoa;xjﬁ‘t remember for sure. I believe when I started he was just the district

Who hired you? Sorry, this is Helen Eisner speaking. You said you started as a
staff assistant in June 2014,

Correct.
‘Who hired you?

1 was hired actually by Congressman Meadows. I had previously intered in the
office during the summer of 2013, and he offered me a job the following year.
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And you had interned in the district or in DC?

In the district.

Pam Ward, what is her job title?

Pam Ward is the office manager.

Did she hold that title the whole time you were employed at the office?
Yes.

Who filed paperwork for the office, so payroll forms and things like that with the
House, any administrative paperwork?

To the best of my knowledge, that type of paperwork was handled by either
Wayne King or Kenny West. There was never much clarity given on who was
responsible for that.

Do you know who had that responsibility in the DC office?

Ido not.

You mentioned Mr. West. Who is he? What was his job title with Representative
Meadows?

He was the chief of staff.

Did he have that title the entire time you were there?

1 believe he was terminated before my time ended there, but yes.

TIi go back to that aspect of your statement a little bit later, but I want to get some
of this background down first. Was Mr. West based out of the district office or
DC office?

DC office.

You said DC?

Yes, correct.

How do you know that?

He was never in the district unless he was accompanying the Congressman. 1
guess that that's just an assumption on my part that he was based out of DC.
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The time that you're aware of that he was employed with the office, while you
were there as well, he didn't spend much time in the district, is that fair to say?

Yes.
Do you know if he lived in DC?

Ibelieve he keeps his permanent residence in North Carolina. I don't think he had
a home of any kind in DC.

If he's based out of DC, do you know where he's living, or where he's staying?
I believe that he would stay in hotels.

Do you know if Mr. West changed job titles during the time you were there?
No, I don't believe so.

Y(;u believe he was chief of staff the entire time?

Yes.

Does it maybe refresh your recotlection if some time in 2015 his title changed to
senior advisor? Do you know if you heard about that?

We were told at that point that he was no longer working for our office, so what
we were told, and, I guess, what had actually happened was different. I never
knew him to be a senior advisor. I only knew him as the chief of staff.

Let's jump into this now. You mentioned a couple times, you said you believe he
was terminated. You just mentioned that we were told he was no longer with the
office. When were you told that?

We received an email from Congressman Meadows, and I honestly cannot
remember the date, it would have been some time maybe in spring or early
summer of 2015, stating that Kenny West was no longer employed by our office.
Do you know if that happened in April?

That seems about right.

And you recall the email?

Tdo.

Do you recall what actually the text of it read?
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It was very clear and explicit that Kenny West was no longer employed by our
office,

Did that go out to everybody in the office, district and in DC?
If I remember correctly, it was to the entire staff minus interns I believe.

‘Was that email sent from an official House of Representatives account, or would
it have gone to a personal email account?

Tt would have been sent from his official @house.gov email account.
And that's been sent to your mail house.gov email account?
Right.

Prior to that email, did anybody else tell you that Mr. West was no longer with the
office?

The email was the first indication that T had that he was no longer with our office.

So when you mentioned to us that you believed he was terminated in 2015, it's
because after that email had been sent to you, you formed that basis of that belief?

Correct.

We've talked to other witnesses and we have a general understanding of some of
the things that were happening in the office in late 2014 and 2015 both in DC and
in the districts. But I want to hear from you. Were there some incidents with Mr.
West that were problematic for you or for anybody in the district that may have
caused you to report certain behaviors or activities by Mr. West to your superiors?
1 reported after a performance review that I had with Mr. West to Wayne King
that Kenny West made me feel very uncomfortable and that I would prefer that in
the future that he keeps his distance from me,

When was that evaluation?

Maybe October or November. I'm sorry, I don't remember specifically.

Of 20147

Yes.

Was there a specific incident or event that allowed you to provide that
information to Wayne King?
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Kenny was just very ... he would make comments and remarks that made me feel
uncomfortable and also very touchy. He would place his hand on my shoulder and
on my back, and it just felt very uncomfortable.

1s that specific to October 2014, or can you give us a time frame for your
observation of these comments or that type of touching?

He always kind of made me feel uncomfortable, but that incident was the only
one I felt a real need to let somebody know.

1 know that some of this might be sensitive, but if you can tell us what those
comments were 0 we can have an understanding of that.

Sure. It was nothing explicit or anything blatant, just things that didn't feel
appropriate, maybe about liking an outfit or the way something looked, things of
that nature.

Do you know if Mr. King reported this to Representative Meadows?

Ibelieve he did, yes.

And why do you believe that?

Well, there is a confusing series of events that occurred afterwards where an email
was sent that implied that we shouldn't talk about the incident and what happened,

that it should be dropped, I guess, for lack of a better word, that came from
Congressman Meadows. He really just sent an email stating that ... no, no, I'm

SorTy.

The first email came from Wayne King that the incident should not be talked
about any further and dropped. That email was followed up from an email from
Congressman Meadows stating that he was referring to Deborah Potter, and 1
believe that that was at the same time that she was fired from our office. It wasa
confusing series of emails related to the event and also to Deb Potter.

Okay, so this would have occurred after you reported this to Wayne King in
October 20147

Right.
Okay, but Representative Meadows was aware and responded it to Mr. King?
Yes.

How did you know these emails were going back and forth? Were you cc'ed on
them?
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1 believe they were sent directly to me. I was either cc'ed or they were being sent
directly to me.

Was anyone else included on the email besides you and Wayne King?

1t's possible that Pam Ward would have been included as well, but I can't
remember that for sure.

After that happened, what was your understanding of Mr. West's place in the
office after you made that report?

As far as T know, nothing was altered. He continued on as chief of staff and no
action was taken.

How do you know that?

That's the impression I got. It was never followed up on with me beyond those
emails.

‘Was he still receiving emails or sending emails or making phone calls?
He would occasionally send some emails. We never heard from him much in the
district. He was not very involved in our day-to-day operations, or involved at all

really.

After you reported that to Mr. King in October of 2014, did Mr. West ever come
back into the district office?

He came actually the next day to the office.

Did he discuss with anybody what you had reported to Mr. King?

He came into the office and Pam Ward, who was there with me, asked him to
please leave the office because we both felt uncomfortable with him there. They
argued back and forth about that for maybe 5 minutes and ultimately ended with
Mr. King leaving the office.

Mr. King or Mr. West?

Mr. West.

Okay, and you witnessed this interaction between Ms. Ward and Mr. West?
1did.

You mentioned that ..
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I'm sorry, you were cut out a little bit there. You did witness it?

Idid.

Okay.

You mentioned that Pam felt uncomfortable. Can you explain that to us?

Yes. I can't speak for Pam honestly, Ijust know what she said that day and she
included herself in feeling uncomfortable in that situation and around Mr. West.

When she told him that he should leave that day, did you ever see him again in the
office?

No, 1 believe that's the last time I saw him.
Still to this day that's the last time you saw him?

Isaw him at an election party after Congressman Meadows had been re-elected,
but as far as in the office, [ believe that was the last time he was there.

Okay. When Ms. Ward was having this interaction with Mr, West, did she
reference whether or not Representative Meadows had said he's not allowed in the

office or that Representative Meadows didn't want him in the office?

No, we didn't know how Representative Meadows felt about him being in the
office at that point or at any point after that.

Okay, but for this one election party that presumably was 2014, right, in
November, December 2014?

Right.

But for that event, you never saw Mr. West again after that interaction he had
with Ms. Ward?

Correct.
Okay.

To the best of my knowledge, I can't remember seeing him again after that.
Nothing coming to mind.

Do you know about anything similar that was going on in the D.C. office with Mr.
West, that whether similar reports were made to supervisors in the D.C. office?
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Only through office gossip, nothing confirmed. I never spoke to anyone
specifically in D.C. about making a complaint against Kenny West.

Were you friends with anybody in the D.C. office?

No, I wouldn't describe myself as friends with anyone in the D.C. office. I had
friendly interactions with Philip Newman, who was the legislative director.
Beyond that, he helped me for a while look for another job, but beyond that, no.
When did Mr. Newman leave Representative Meadows” office?

You know, I cannot remember. I don't know.

Okay, so moving into early 2015, in the spring of 2015, is Mr. West sending
emails or making phone calls to the office at all?

He may have sent me occasional emails. I don't believe he made any phone calls
to the office. Generally, from what I understood, he would call Wayne King on
his cell phone directly if he needed to communicate with someone in the district.

Did Mr. King or Ms. Ward, or I guess anybody in the district office, talk to you
during this time in early 2015 about the status of Mr. West's employment?

We speculated. I'm friends still with Pam Ward and was friendly with Wayne
King as well, so we would talk about it and speculate, but nothing really
confirmed.

Okay, what would that ...

We didn't know what was going on.

The speculation, what was it aimed at?

Just whether or not Kenny was working. We didn't know if he was in D.C. orif he
was just sitting at home all day. We had no idea what he was doing.

You mentioned that email that came in 2015, sometime in the spring. I had asked
you if it was potentially April; you said that sounds like it could be right. After
that email came from Representative Meadows, did Mr. West ever send an email
or make a call or appear in any way in the office?

No, I don't believe so.
Okay, and then in the same timeframe there after that email, is it the same
speculation with Ms. Ward and Mr. King and others in the district office about the

status of his employment?
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Well, after we received the email, we all assumed that he was terminated, no
longer working for office, so at that point, I guess you could say the speculation
had died down.

Okay. Who is the chief of staff or who's running the office in early 2015 and into
the summer of 2015, ifit's ...

The chief of ...

I'm sorry.

That's all right, go ahead.

If Mr, West is not appearing and there was speculation about whether or not he
was employed, and then after April you said it was pretty conclusive amongst the
district staff that he was not employed, who's running the show? Who's the top

supervisor for Representative Meadows' congressional offices?

Iwould say that in the D.C. office for a time until he left, it would have been
Philip Newman, and in the district, it would have been Wayne King.

Okay, and why do you say Philip Newman?

Well, he had the title for a while, deputy chief of staff, along with Wayne King, so
they both had that title, so I would just assuthe that he would have been in charge
of day-to-day operations, and he was also our go-to contact. If we needed
something done in D.C., we'd call Philip to pass it down to the others.

When Philip left, was there someone else who took over the role in D.C. as being
in charge as a chief of staff role?

Ansley Rhyne maybe would have been ... I don't know that her title ever changed,
but I believe that she would have been the de facto leader in D.C.

Was she the legislative director at that time?

After Philip left the office, yes.

1 apologize. I might have asked you when Philip left, but when did he leave?
T'm not sure. I can't remember.

Okay. It would have been in sometime of 2015, early 20157

Ibelieve so that it would have been eatly 2015, yes.
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Do you know if Representative Meadows was interviewing for chiefs of staff at
any point, again in this early 2015, spring 2015, timeframe?

1do not. I did not hear anything about a new chief of staff or anything like that
until Paul Fitzpatrick was hired shortly before I left the office.

Do you know, as best you can specify, when he was hired?
I believe it would have been either late July or early August of 2015.
Did Paul ever come down to the district office and meet you?

I never met him. I spoke on the phone. We spoke on the phone, but I've never met
him in person.

Did he ever talk to you about Mr. West?

I can't remember. I had an exit interview with him when 1left the office, briefly. I
believe that we did discuss Kenny West, if I'm remembering correctly, and some
of the problems that I had with him.

This would have been in August of 20157

Right, correct.

Did Paul say anything about what had transpired with Mr. West?

No, he didn't. He was asking my impressions of the office as I was departing and I
told him that I thought that it was going to take a lot to rebuild the office from the
negative after-effects of having Kenny on staff, and we talked about it maybe for
a minute, but L only spoke with him briefly.

Okay. Do you know if Mr. West was interacting at all with DC staff in carly 2015
into the spring and summer, I guess, from maybe June or July before Paul was
hired, looking back to January, just that first half of the year. Do you know if he
was emailing, calling DC staff, interacting with them in any way?

Ido not.

Have you seen some of the news reports that have come out about some of these
issues?

Ihave, yes.

Okay. Particularly one of the news reports discussed Mr. West leaving sometime
in 2015 and then being paid throughout the summer of 2015 even though he
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reportedly was not in the office and was given ... The article mentioned something
about a severance package. Do you know ... Once you read that, did you have a
response to that, or did you think a certain way about what was written?

It seems very likely, in my opinion, that something like that would have
happened. Obviously I believe there was a statement from Alyssa Farah, who is
Congressman Meadows’ spokeswoman, that says that Kenny West was paid a
severance, but I don't know anything for sure.

Did anybody in the office ever talk about a severance package for him?

No. I don't believe that ever came up.

Have you had any conversations since then with anyone in the office about a
severance package?

T'm friends with Pam Ward. We talk frequently. Yes, we have talked about the
possibility that he received a severance package.

Okay. What did you talk about?
Just that we felt like that it was very possible that that had happened. Just kind of
talking it about it within the context of did he really deserve or need it? It was a

personal thing more than a professional.

Okay. Did Miss Ward reveal at all to you, reference anything she heard from
Representative Meadows about this?

She did not.

Why do you think ... This is based on your opinion and the conversation you had.
Why did you reach the conclusion that it was likely that he had received a
severance package?

Our office was, at least in the district, in my opinion, mismanaged and
disorganized. It never felt like really anyone knew what was going on, or anything
like that. Tt just seemed like it was very possible that something like that would
have happened.

‘Were you aware of anyone else in the office receiving a severance package?
T'was not,

Was that something you discussed in your conversations about the severance

package, the potential for one?
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No.

Have you prior to me reaching out to you, had you talked to anybody about our
review, about the Office of Congressional Ethics, looking into this matter?

Pam Ward had mentioned that she thought that something was being looked into.
What did she say?

She mentioned that she thought that there had been some kind of investigation
started, but wasn't sure what was being looked for specifically.

Did she talk about whether or not she was cooperating with the investigation?
She did not.

Okay. Since I've contacted you, have you heard from anybody or have you
discussed this issue with anybody?

I did mention to Pam that we were going to speak. We did not talk about it in any
kind of detail.

Okay. Did she mention to you in that conversation whether or not she was
cooperating with our office?

She did not.

Have you heard from Representative Meadows at all about this?

No. I have not heard from Representative Meadows since 1 quit.
Okay. Any attorneys for Representative Meadows?

No.

Check our notes here and just make sure we have everything we need.

One question I have for you is, you've mentioned a few specific emails to us. One
was from-

I'm sorry. I can't hear you very well.
Sorry about that. Let me know. Can you hear me now?

That's better, yes.
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Okay. You've mentioned few specific emails to us. One was approximately April
2015; also one from Wayne King, October or November 2014, and I think there
was another one from the Congressman around that same time period in late 2014.
Do you have any of those emails or access to any of those emails?

I betieve that I have a copy of the email I sent to Wayne King regarding Kenny
‘West. I'm not sure that T have duplicates of any of the others, and I do not have
access to them.

Okay.

1 think what we'll ask you to do, Witness C, is take a look just to double check to
see if you have copies of those. I can tell you especially the email from
Representative Meadows to the staff regarding Mr. West, if you have a copy of
that, that's definitely something we're going to want, if you do have a copy.
Please, if you have it, preserve it and let me know so you can send it over.

Okay.

Take a look to see what you have regarding these issues that we've been asking
you questions on, and let me know what you find.

Absolutely. I'm happy to cooperate, happy to help however I can.

Great. Okay. Appreciate that. Thank you. Again, we'll take a moment to review
our notes to see if there's anything we're missing.

Okay.

Yep. Okay. I think that's all we have. Just to make sure, too, in addition to emails,
Witness C, do you have G-chats or anything like that that revolve around the
topics we've discussed here?

No. If 1 have anything, it'd only be email.

Okay. Okay. Just to go back, briefly. After you had told Mr. King in your
performance evaluation of October of 2014, you said that Mr. West had appeared
in the office. Miss Ward told him she didn't want him there and they had an
interaction, an altercation, maybe. After that, were these emails that you were
either CC'd on, or they were directed to you from Mr. King and Representative
Meadows, right?

Yes. I'm sorry. It seems like so long ago. I may have misspoken earlier when I
said that the email that came from Representative Meadows asking us not to
speak about the incident that occurred, 1 believe that came after the interaction
between Pam Ward and Kenny West,
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Okay. Would it have happened in 2014?

Yes. It would have been the same timeline, exactly the same timeline, but I think
it came after that rather than directly after my email in regards to Kenny West.

Okay.

1 just want to make sure to clarify. I think we've referred to 2 different things. An
email, asking people not to talk about the incident, and a later email having to do
with some further follow up into the issue. The email, regarding just internal
discussion and tatking about some of the specific issues and complaints, who did
that come from?

Let's see, I believe that the first email I believe came from Wayne King speaking
on behalf of Congressman Meadows. The follow up came from Congressman
Meadows himself. The clarification, if you will.

Isee.

‘When you say that he asked that nobody speaks about it, can you be more
specific? Did he say, "Don't speak with anybody outside the office?" or "Don't
even speak with anybody in the office about it."?

1 can't remember if there was a caveat like that placed on it. T don't believe so. T
believe it just said that we should not speak about the incident that occurred.

1 want to be clear what the incident is. The incident is the back and forth between
Miss Ward and Mr. West, or the incidents that you reported to Mr. King?

1 honestly, I don't know. It was kind of ambiguous. He never specified what he
was referring to, if I'm remembering correctly.

Okay. I may have asked you this in a different way earlier, but after this happened
with Miss Ward and she told Mr. West, she's basically said not to come back,
right?

Essentially she asked him to leave and not come back. Yes,

Okay. Do you think that she meant for the day or for the week or don't come back
at all?

No, she meant don't come back at all.
Okay. That's what I thought based on what you've told me. Do you know if in DC
a similar request or demand was made of Mr. West that he not come into the DC

office?
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1 do not know of any request or demand that was made of Kenny in regards to
DC.

Okay. All right, Witness C. I think that's all the questions we have for you. Really
appreciate your cooperation. The next step is, again, I think if you could review
anything you might have in your personal possession about the topics we've
discussed, the emails that Helen had mentioned, especially. Get back to me on
that in the next couple days.

Absclutely.

I think you have a sense of what we're interested in learning about and some of
the issues we're looking into. Given everything that we've asked you about and
the information you've told us, is there anything else that you think we should
know or anyone that would be helpful for us to talk to?

I would say that if you haven't talked to Philip Newman, that would be extremely
useful to you. Other than that, in my opinion, I think you're asking all the right
questions. It sounds to me like you're on the right track.

Okay. So again, get back to me on that. We're going to take what we have from
you here on our recording and develop a transcript and we'll send that on to you.

Sure. Okay. T'll be in touch with you about whether or not I have any emails. I
believe I do, but I'l take a look.

Okay. Thank you very much, Witness C.
Great. Thank you for your time.

Thank you.

Okay, bye.

Thank you. Bye-bye.
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From: West, Kenny

Sent: Wednesday, February 11, 2015 3:00 AM

To: NC11 DC Steff NC11 DO Staff; Etliott, Jennifer

[ 7113 Meadows, Mark; Debbie Meadows (NN o et com)
Subject: Ashiey Howes

We have been blessed to have such good people working for Marks office. One of them has been Ashley Howes who
first came to us as an intern, then having graduated came back and started her career with our office as our Staff Asst.
She has been the face of the Congressman's office for the last year and has done a great job. As things happens in our
journeys in this busy world, other opportunities become known to good people. One has been presented to Ashley, and
she will be leaving us this Friday, and | know she will be missed. She has set the bar high for a replacement. Ashiey thank
you for all that you have done for Mark and our entire office. | know all of our staff wish you well in this part of your
journey. | know that God will bless you and you will do great things. THANKSH

Kenneth D West

Chief of Staff

Rep. Mark Meadows, NC 11
1024 Longworth Building
Washington, DC 20515

(202) 225 osfice 202) 226 Jro

Ihoos
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From: West, Kenny

Sent: Saturday, March 14, 2015 8:35 PM
Tot NC11 DC staff; NC11 DO Staff
Ce 7113 Meadows, Mark

Subject: This Past Week

First of all | would like to thank you all for making this week a success for Mark, We visited many area’s in the district
hoth official and County Events, At every event there were praise and stories about our staff from Eliza doing scheduling,
Alyssa’s doing our News Letters for Mark and different success stories about our staff and their follow up to numeraus
1o mention. Mark and [ went to six or seven conventions this week and at each one he received standing ovations for his
support for all his votes and his determination to continug to listen to the people of the 117 District. Ladies and
Gantlernen, THANK YOU! We have a busy schedule in the district and DC in the coming months, but | know we can
sustain the momenturn that we all have helped make. Have a blessed weekend.

Kenneth D West

Chief of Staff

Rep, Mark Meadows, NC 11

1024 tongworth Building

Washington, DC 20515

(202) 225 osrice (202) 226- Y e

o
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From: Thurston, tliza on behalf of 7113 Meadows, Mark
Sent: Wednesday, April 01, 2015 12:49 PM

To: NC11 Alt Staff

Ca: Z113 Meadows, Mark

Subject: Re-Organization and a Goodbye

All,

Over the last few months, | have asked for input from several of you regarding the best ways we can serve the
people of Western North Carolina, As with any organization, there are constant demands which cause us to re-
evaluate and find ways to better serve the needs that confront us daily. While some of the changes put forth
have not been fully vetted or decided, circumstances have developed that made this interim announcement
more appropriate.

Qn Friday, April 17th, Philip Newman, who has served as Deputy Chief and been with me since the very
beginning, will be leaving to take a new position with Senator Cory Gardner. Phil will be serving as a commerce
policy advisor, working on transportation and aviation issues for the Senator. It's a great career move for our
friend and will aliow him to re-establish his Colorado ties. | know that t speak for all of us when | say that Phil's
talent and energy will be missed.

At the same time, as part of the re-organization, | have made a decision to have a full time Chief of 5taff in
Washington, DC. This dacision doesn't come easily and will require adjustments in a number of areas, but!
thought It was important to let everyone know that | will be interviewing possible candidates to replace Kenny
as our Chief of Staff. Kenny has been working with me on the re-organizational plan and possible impacts for
both the DC and the District offices, with our sole focus being how to best serve the people of this great state.
{want to thank all of you for your dedication and willingness to adapt during this transitional time.

Thanks,

Mark

o2
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MARK MEADOWS

ks Ty, NORth CARGUNA

C()MM(E)TT[E[f ON OVERSIGHT AND , 200 Norrn Gaove SineeT, Sure 85
ERN EFOF i g4 . o ONWVILLE, NV
COVERRIENT NEFORH Congress of the Tnited Htates e i et
s ’ sl
T House of Repregentativey S
COMMITTEE ON THANSPORTATION N .
ANE INFRASTRUCTURE TWHashington, DE 20515-3311

COMMITTEE ON FOREIGN AFFAIRS

November 18, 2015

Chairman Charles W. Dent

Ranking Member Linda T. Sénchez
Committee on Ethics

1015 Longworth House Office Building
Washington, DC 20515

Dear Chairman Dent and Ranking Member Sénchez:

T am writing to you to report an allegation made against me for the manner in which I paid a
member of my staff upon his termination. This allegation is currently the subject of a -
preliminary review by the Office of Congressional Ethics. Prior to the OCE inquiry, however, T
had personally reviewed this matter with your staff and have been considering their advice. At
this time, because I genuinely would like to know if [ have done anything wrong, and whether
any remedy is necessary, because the OCE cannot provide answers to those questions, and
because I would like fo save the cost and burden of duplicate inquiries, I have informed the OCE
that T will not participate in their review, but will coopetate fully with your Committee in order
to reach a resolution of these allegations.

The background of this matter is as follows. Kenny West became my chief of staff when I first
took office on January 3, 2013. On April 1, 2015, I changed Kenny’s title and duties to that of
Senior Advisor, maintaining full-time advisory and constituent relations roles, but transferring
his supervisory functions to other personnel, Eventually, I came to an agreement with Kenny
that he would resign his full time duties from my office towards the end of May, 2015, and that 1
would continue to pay him for a short period of time both for the sake of a smooth transition, and
s0 he would continue to perform some official duties for me during that teansition. Kenny did
continue to perform some services and was paid through August 15, 2015,

For example, on three occaslons between the date this transition began (May 21) and Awgust IS5,
Kenny travelled to constituent meetings on my behalf and submitied claims for reimbursement as
he has atways done for such official fravel over the course of his employment, When questions
were raised in the press about these submissions, T chose to reimburse the U8, Treasury $400
out of personal funds for these claims in order to address any concerns my constituents may have
had, However, despite my personal reimbursement, these claims represented legitimate official
aclivily during a time that Kenny was still on payroll. He also engaged in other official activity
independent of the aforementioned travel claims.

Throughout this process, I always intended to act in good faith compliance with all rules and
regulations, and in the best interests of my constituents in my stewardship of the Congressional

PAINTED Ot RECYOLES PASER
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office. 1believe I met those goals, even if my interpretation of what kinds of severance are
technically permitted may have been in error.

It is commonly known that Member offices of both parties pay “severance” in various ways and
" in various situations for both well-performing and under-performing employees. In fact, the
Committee on House Adminisiration publishes a form on its web site that specifies an option to
pay severance. In addition, the House each year pays “severance” in matters subject to the
Congressional Accountability Act. T now understand, however, that there are some ways in
which some methods of paying severance may not be consistent with the Committee’s
authoritative interpretation of House Rule 23, Clause 8. While I believe my own actions were
consistent with some official language and practices of the House in situations similar to the one
1 was in, I now undetstand that my interpretation may have been inconsistent with yours, which
of course is controlling on all of our actions. I apologize if that was the case, )

Given the confusion that exists, as created by several administrative and authoritative House
offices, I hope you will not see the need to impose any sanction or remedy for this matter,
Instead, T hope you will clarify whether and how my conduct may have been in conflict with the
House Rules, and that you will then issue guidance for the House community in general,
resolving any conflict that exists. Finally, T hope you will seek the cooperation of other House
offices to reduce the confusion other Members may face in similar situations.

Should your office need any additional information, please do not hesitate to ask, It is my intent
to cooperate fully with your review.

Sincerely,

Mark R. Meadows
Member of Congress

Enclosure:

15-1671_0097
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MARK MEADOWS 1024 LonaworTs House Oserce Buitoms
WaskingTON, DC 20815
1 Distarey, Noress Carotisia NS

COMMITTEE ON OVERSIGHT ANO 200 Norw Grove STReey, Surte 30

GOVERNMENT REFORM Congregs of the Uniteh States lckospscrras, NG oz

c:z;mmm, SUBCOMAIITES ON
OVERNMENT UPERATIGNS I T —
pb e FHouse of Repregentatives e ousa govimeadowss
COMMITTEL ON TRANSPORTATION .

AND INFRASTHUCTURE Tashington, BC 205153311

COMMITTEE ON FOREIGN AFFAIRS

November 17, 2015

Mr. Omar Ashmawy

Office of Congressional Ethics
U.S. House of Representatives
425 3rd Street, S.W.

Suite 1110

Washington, DC 20024

Dear Mr. Ashmawy,

1 am in receipt of your letter dated October 27, 2015, requesting documents and information
from me regarding allegations that I may have retained an employee, Mr. West, who did not
perform duties commensurate with the compensation he received, in possible violation of
applicable House standards. ’

In response, I would like to draw your attention to official documents (a copy is attached) of the
House of Representatives that permit Members of the House to designate pay for
terminated/outgoing employees as “severance.” This uncertainty warrants clarification from the
Committee on House Administration, It is commonly known that Member offices of both parties
regularly pay “severance” in various ways and in various situations for both well-performing and
under-performing employees. In addition, the Housc cach year pays “severance” in matters
subject to the Congressional Accountability Act. In light of these facts, I believe it would be
fundamentally unfair, the equivalent of entrapment, to accuse a Member of violating House
standards for understanding this direction to permit a practice that is common in every other
sector of our society. This is particularly true for Members who come from business
backgrounds, such as myself.

Despite these documents and practices in the House, It is apparent that they mislead Mombers,
and that the most common form of severance, as it is understood everywhere outside of this
institution, may not be technically permitted in the legislative branch according to your letter.
Given that fact, and the fact that your organization’s purpose is merely to screen allegations and
to determine if they should be referred to the Committee on Ethics, I am choosing to forego the
costly and burdensome process of participating in duplicate investigations, and instead will self-
report to the Committee on Ethics and follow their instructions to resolve this matter.

While your process may label me “uncooperative” and refer the matter for further review, it is
my belief that referring this issue directly to the Conunittee on Ethics would address any

uncertainties in the most expeditious and efficient manner. I understand this is because my
actions, though taken in good faith and in compliance with the best practices of businesses
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everywhere, and consistent with the language and practice in the House of Representatives, may
not have been consistent with interpretations of which I was unaware, and that your office does
not consider such context or background to warrant referrals for dismissal. Next, it is my
understanding that your practice, when referring matters for further review, is to cause the
publication of complete transcripts of interviews, even if they contain irrelevant and ancillary
personnel content, as well as numerous other materials, which I do not believe is always
appropriate. Finally, to the extent any remedy is necessary, I understand that such direction will
have to come from the Committee on Ethics in any event.

It is my sincere hope that the Board will recognize the confusion that the House has created on
this issue and either dismiss in the first phase or refer the matter to the Committee for dismissal,
consistent with your authorizing resolution, as a de minimis violation, if one at all.

For all of these reasons, I respectfully decline to provide the documents and information you
have requested and I request that you share this letter with the members of the Board.

Should you wish to discuss the matter further, please feel free to contact my counsel.

Sincerely,

Mark R. Meadows
Member of Congress

Enclosure

COE.MEADOWS.001556
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MARK MEADOWS 1024 LowGwonRTs HOUSE Orice BULOING
WastinaTon, DC 20515

110t DisTAICT, NORTH CARDLIIA . {2021 2256401

COMMITTEE ON OVERSIGHT AND ?30!\50".7":6"0 Sral

SOVERNMENT REFOR Congress of the United States R

Gaovenl T 00 5 5,
e Touge of Repregontatives —
COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION 5

AND INFRASTRUCTURE Tashington, BE 20515334

vanEadows

COMMITTEE ON FOREIGN AFFAIRS

November 18, 2015

Chairmarn Charles W. Dent

Ranking Member Linda T. Sénchez
Committee on Ethics

1015 Longworth House Office Building
Washington, DC 20515

Dear Chairman Dent and Ranking Member Sanchez:

I am writing to you to report an allegation made against me for the manner in which I'paid a
member of my staff upon his termination. This allegation is currently the subject of a -
preliminary review by the Office of Congressional Ethics. Prior to the OCE inquiry, however, 1
had personally reviewed this matter with your staff and have been considering their advice. At
this time, because I genuinely would like to know if I have done anything wrong, and whether
any remedy is necessary, because the OCE cannot provide answers to those questions, and
because I would like to save the cost and burden of duplicate inquiries, I have informed the OCE
that I 'will not participate in their review, but will cooperate fully with your Committee in order
to reach a resolution of these allegations.

The background of this matter is as follows. Kenny West became my chief of staff when I first
took office on January 3, 2013. On April 1, 2015, I changed Kenny’s title and duties to that of
Senior Advisor, maintaining full-time advisory and constituent relations roles, but transferring
his supervisory functions to other personnel. Eventually, I came to an agreement with Kenny
that he would resign his full time duties from my office towards the end of May, 2015, and that I
would continue to pay him for a short period of time both for the sake of a smooth transition, and
so he would continue to perform some official duties for me during that transition. Kenny did
continue to perform some services and was paid through August 15, 2015.

For example, on three occasions between the date this transition began (May 21) and August 15,
Kenny travelled to constituent meetings on my behalf and submitted claims for reimbursement as
he has always done for such official travel over the course of his employment. When questions
were raised in the press about these submissions, I chose to reimburse the U.S. Treasury $400 ~
out of personal funds for these claims in order to address any concerns my constituents may have
had. However, despite my personal reimbursement, these claims represented legitimate official
activity during a time that Kenny was still on payroll. He also engaged in other official activity
independent of the aforementioned travel claims.

Throughout this process, I always intended to act in good faith compliance with all rules and
regulations, and in the best interests of my constituents in my stewardship of the Congressional
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office. I believe I met those goals, even if my interpretation of what kinds of severance are
technically permitted may have been in error.

It is commonly known that Member offices of both parties pay “severance” in various ways and
in various situations for both well-performing and under-performing employees. In fact, the
Committee on House Administration publishes a form on its web site that specifies an option to
pay severance. In addition, the House each year pays “severance” in matters subject to the
Congressional Accountability Act. I now understand, however, that there are some ways in
which some methods of paying severance may not be consistent with the Committee’s
authoritative interpretation of House Rule 23, Clause 8. While I believe my own actions were
consistent with some official language and practices of the House in situations similar to the one
I was in, I now understand that my interpretation may have been inconsistent with yours, which
of course is controlling on all of our actions. I apologize if that was the case.

Given the confusion that exists, as created by several administrative and authoritative House
offices, I hope you will not see the need to impose any sanction or remedy for this matter.
Instead, I hope you will clarify whether and how my conduct may have been in conflict with the
House Rules, and that you will then issue guidance for the House community in general,
resolving any conflict that exists. Finally, I hope you will seek the cooperation of other House
offices to reduce the confusion other Members may face in similar situations.

Should your office need any additional information, please do not hesitate to ask. It is my intent
to cooperate fully with your review.

Mark R, Meadows
Member of Congress

Enclosure:
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Mark Meadows US House of Representatives

To: Mark Meadows

Mark, | have come to the most difficult decision that | ever have had to make. | believe things happen
for reasons. | think with the situation that has happened to me, | truly believe that this has affected the
kind of job that you are capable of doing for the people of the 11" District. It has truly been an honor
working side by side with a good man and getting to know your family.

{ think God led me to be by your side at this time and journey in your life and it has been a plcasure. You
are exactly what the people in the Nation needs. My reputation means a lot to me also. After several
meetings over the last few weeks with people that know me, and they ask about if I'm still working with
vou because they had heard that you had fired me. Well it took its toll on me. | have always tried to live
and act Christ like and failed many times, with that said God has always been there and guided me.

{ don't know why this collous situation and lie was allowed to manifest into this destructive manor.
What t do know is that God has and always will control and guide my fife. With this said { will be
resigning my position with your office and will move ahead with my lifa,

twould really like to be paid through August if possible or July minimum. T know that is three months
out, but with this happening | am going to have to get insurance for myself through Wilma and give me
time to start getting business back on track with whatever insurance company | decide to go with. |
would prefer nobody in staff knows of my decision, ke they would really care. You are the only one that
matters to me.

Also can you write me a great letter of recommendation?
Your Lasting Friend
Kenny West

05/21/2015




164

PAYROLL AUTHORIZATION FORM U.8. HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES (Pieass use Typewriter
Washington, DC 20518 ' or Balipaint Pat)

;/oﬂ;e Chlef Administrative Officer of the Houss of Representatives: | hereby authorize the following payroll action:

Employee Name {First-Middie-Last) Effective Date
Kenneth D. West 01/03/2013
Employee Soclal Securily Number Type of Action
254-13-5780 Appointment
Office oF Committee/Subcommittes |__ISalary Adjustment
Title Change
Honorable Mark Meadows -.- N 9
1516 Longworth Building Termmaﬂon {Atclose of business on effecive date)
Washington, DC 20515 i Leave without pay (Begining vith ellective date above
and ending close of business }
tSpachty dain)
{If type of action is an Agpoiniment, Salary Adjusiment or Titls Change, complats appropriate information below.)
Position Title® . N Groas Annuat Salary™
Chief of Staff 185,000.00
shouldbe as Pz't e s, Pald Intsms, Tempesary Employees, or Shared Employees a0d vt

P

2ily revslya the pech igngticn as their po Ty
*Hfemployee Is @ civil servies annullant includes U.S. House of Representativoe), the gross annust salary shown should knchide tha annaity recelved by
the employse plus the salary recelved from Ure employing office, .

¢

. {if Clark Hire Employee, complate appropriate item(s) below.)

- Permanent
[ 1 Nonpermansnt (must specify one of the faliowing q @p\i
Categories) fDenotes not eligible for Benefits NOTE: Any erasures, corrections of changes

§ Part-Time Employes . on this form must be initialed by the
i_l +PRald Intern autherizing official,

|__}l tTemporary Employee

{1 LWOP Employes

- Shared Employee

iy O cdier o payag suie:

{if Employee of an Officer of the House, complete item below.)

Position NUMBEL..cenn it a;\ph¢ able, Level .. .. Step ..
If position transfer, previous position NUMbBBL...c. e LLewel.. .. Biep..
A and salery adh i< unider ths Houss At must 5o spgeoved by the Seremilies on Kouse Admin

pate 0110412013 % /4 /éza

(Slgnature of Authorizing Officialy

{Signature of Subcommitiee Chairperson (Type or print name of Authorizing Official)
or Ranking Minority Member)

(Type or print name and title of above efficial) {Title-4f Member, District and State)
Appropriation Code: Office of Payroll & Benefits use on
(Monthly Annuity $... 00}
asof

ORIGINAL-TO OFFICE OF PAYROLL & BENEFITS (FOR OFFICIAL PERSONNEL FOLDER)
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U.8, HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES
Washington, DC 20616

{Please use Typewriter
or Balipoint Pen)

PAYROLL AUTHORIZATION FORM

To the Chief Administrative Officer of the House of Representatives: | hereby suthorize the following payrall action:

1516 Longworth HOB
Washingion DC 20515

Employee Name {First-Riddle-Last) Effective Date
Kenneth D. West 111142013
Employes Social Securdly Number Type of Action
165239 E Appointment @ f‘ {fj ‘:, @%;f
Office or & Salary Adjustment e
Honorable Mark Meadows ! Title Change

! Termination (At close of buslness on effectva date)

- Laave withowt pay (Beginning with effective date above
and ending close of business o

i

{Hf type of action is an Appointment, Salary Adlustment o

{Sp! Y
r Title Change, complete appropriate Information below.}

Position Title*

Grogs Annusl Salary™*

Chief of Staff

$167,000.00

e

and vl

Paid Inlerns, yE or Shared

as Past-Tine
a6 thoir pasition tite.

¥

P shouid be
racalve thes i

1 smployes 18 8 chil servico annultant dncudes LS. Housa of Reprasentatives), the gross anntal salary shown stiould includs the annulty recaived by

the employes plus the salary recelved from he employing office,

{if Clerk Hire Employes, complete appropriate item{s
Pemanent

¥ I

Y below.}

Nonparmansnt {must specify one of the following

categeties) 1Denotes not eligible for Benefits
{ | Part-Time Employee

1 LWOP Employee
Shared Employes

{8ty 63 ofet panploying sutidnly)

NOTE: Any erasures, corections or changes
on this form must be initialed by the
authorizing official.

{if Employee of an Officer of the House, complete item helow.}

Position Number.....
if position transfer, previous positi

on numbe

. Step

it applicable, Level ...
. Slep..

SRR ¥ - ;-1 S

Al Bt satary for ungar tm House € ien Astrnust Da approved by the Comimitien on House Admirisiotion.
>
Date  11/14/2013 cﬁ‘%
{Slgnature of Authorizing Official
Honorable Mark Meadows
(Signature of Subcommittee Chalrparson {Type or print name of Authorizing Officlal)
or Ranking Minority Member)
NC11
{Type or print name and title of above official) {Title--If Member, District and State}
Appropriation Code: Office of Payroll & Benefits use only
{Monthiy Ansuity $...oen 000 Benefits...........
ASOf Payroll ...,

ORIGINAL-TO OFFICE OF PAYROLL & BEN

EFITS (FOR OFFICIAL PERSONNEL FOLDER)
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PAYROLL AUTHORIZATION FORM U.8. HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES {Pleass use Typowriter
Washington, DC 20818 or Ballpoint Pan)

To tha Chief Administrative Officer of the House of Representatives: | hereby authorize the following payroll action:

Employea Nama {Firat-Middie-Last) Effpctive Date
Kenneth D. West 01/01/2014

Employee Soclal Security Nussber Type of Action
165238 Appaintment @ g } py

ploying Office or © | ‘ it Salary Adjustment ¥
Title Change

Honorable Mark Meadows o o !
1616 Longworth HOB Termination (At closs of business on elffective date)
Washington DC 20515 Leave withou! pay (Baginning with effecive date sbove

and ending close of business

)
{If type of action is an Appolntment, Salary Adjustment or Title Change, complete appropriate informalion below }
Position Title* Gross Annual Salany*

Chief of Staff $1585,000.00

5 should be as Part-Tima Employees, Paid Intems, Temporsry Employees, or Shared Empioyess and vij

ally recolve Ihe raspect jon as tnelr position Hle
I employes Is a oVl survics annultant dackedes U.S. House of Roprosentalives), the gross aanual salary shovn should inciude the sanuity recoived by

the employee plus the salary recaived from ihe employlng office.

7 33}

{if Clerk Hire Employes, complete appropriate item{s) below.}

Permanent

Nonpermanent {must specify one of the following

categories) 1Denotes not eligible for Benefits NOTE: Any erasures, corrections or changes
Part-Time Employee on this form must be initialed by the .
1Paid Intern authorizing official. . [
YTemporary Employee
LWOP Employee
Shared Employee

(Specty cra athar Srpiogng BCTRAE

{if Employee of an Officer of the House, complete item below,}
Position Number. f applicable, Level
If position transfer, previous position numbs [EVOTRRPUOROIVE X -3': SO

Al appo aed swiary agusir for undse the House Act must bo sppeoved by the Comaitee on House Adminislration

pate 1171412013 & )/L gﬂm%

(Slgnafure of Au?t’;orizing Official)

Honorable Mark Meadows

{Signature of Subcommittee Chairperson {Type or print name of Authorizing Official)
or Ranking Minority Member)

NC11

{Type or priat name and title of above official) {Title--If Member, District and State)

Appropriation Code; Office of Payroll & Benefils uge only

{Monthly Anpuity $....oovrceoricnneene.00) Beneftg..c.ou.n.
A5 0f i e Payroll.........

ORIGINAL-TO OFFICE OF PAYROLL & BENEFITS (FOR OFFICIAL PERSQNNEL FOLDER)
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PAYROLL AUTHORIZATION FORM U8, HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES tPlenss usy Typtvrriter
Washington, DC 20818 or Gatipoint Pen}
To the Chief Administrative Officer of the House of Rep ves: | heraby ize the payroll e@@ P Y
Employes Name (Flrst-Middle-Last} Effective Date i
Kenneth West 10042014
Employes Soclat Securfty Number Typo of Actien
165239

[~ JAppointment

o)

Salary Adjustment

ploylng Offlee or O

Tille Change

Honorable Mark Meadows ! ! o 9 ; A

1516 Longworth HOB ) Tonmination (At close of business on affective date)
Washington, DC 20515 Leave withou! pay (Beginving with effective date above

and ending closs of business )
& 8 B
{if type of action is an Appoiniment, Salary Adiustment or Title Change, complete appropriate infermation below) ©
Paaition THin* Gross Annual Safary*® :
Chiof of Staff $168,411.00 !
playens shaud be &3 Part-Timy , Pajd tnlems, porary . of Shved Employees end el 1
toceive the hy as helr postion tite,

*if amployed Is & £hil sorvice annufant {inciudes U.S. House of Represeniatives), the gross anaual Satary shawn shoukt include the anaulty received by
the gimployed pius the salary received from the smploying offica, o
{if Clark Hire Employse, complete appropriate item(s) betow.)

X} Permanent )

4 Nonpemanent {must specify one of the followin, {y
categories) tDenotes not eligible for Benefils NOTE: Any erasures, corrections or changes P
1} Part-Time Employee on this form must be initialed by the N o
TPaid Intern authorizing official, A
{ {Temporary Employee -
LWOP Employee
| Shared Employes

{EPTR Gos ST S mpdeying BUDS)

{if Emiptoyee of an Officer of the House, complets ftam belove)
PosHion NUMBBl.....on e oo oo f applicable, Level .. SID e
 position transfer, previous position numbe Level Stap

Alt 2 and salary for undh the Housa Claswification Ant must ba approved by the Gommitiea on House Adivirdslration

pate 107152014

{Slgnature of Authorizing Official)

Honorable Mark Meadows

{Signature of itteo Chairperson {Type or print name of Authorizing Official)
or Ranking Minority Member)
NC11
i1 {Type or print name and title of above official) (Title--if Member, District and State)
Appropriation Cods: Office of Payroll & Benefits use only

{Monthly Annully §.
as of

00} Benefits..
Payroll,

CRIGINAL-TO QFFICE OF PAYROLL & BENEFITS (FOR OFFICIAL PERSONNEL FOLDER)



PAYROLL AUTHORIZATION FORM

U.8. HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES
Washington, DC 20615

168

(Fleasa use Typswriter
or Balipotnt Pen)

To the Chiaf Administrative Officer of the House of Representatives: | hereby authorize the following payrol acl

Emp!%ee Name (First-Middied sst) Effeclive Dalo
Kennath D, West 01/01/2015
Employes Social Security Number Type of Action
165238 ?__ Appointment
ploying Office or & Salary Adjustment

Honorable Mark Meadows
1516 Longworth HOB
Washington, DC 20515

. Title Changs
T N "
- Termination (Al close of business on clfective dats)

i Leave without pay (Beginning with effective dale abova
5

and ending close of business
§

{If type of action is an Appoiniment, Salary Adjustment o

¢ Title Change, complete appropriale information below )

Posltion Titls®

Gross Annual Satary**

Chief of Staff

$157,400.00

should ba

receive the ag thelr posibion title.

a3 Pat-Time Employees, Pald intems, Yamporary

plsyees, of Shared and vk

“if employe Is a civil senvica annuitant (indudes U.S. Honze of Representalives), tho gross aanual salary shown should tnciudo the sanulty reonived by

ihe employea plus the salary recelved from the smploying office,

{if Clerk Hire Employes, complete appropriate itom(s) below.}

Permanent

Nonpermanent {must specify one of the following

categories) 10enotes not eligible for Benefils
| _J Part-Time Employee
1Paid intemn
fTemporary Employee
[__| LWOP Employee
|1 Stared Employee

TSPTTy one ONEE Ep g AWROT)

{if Employee of an Officer of the House, complete itain below.}

Position Number...
if position transfer, preﬂous posmon number

on mes form must be mmaled by the
authorizing official.

. Sigp ..
. Step ...

. a;)phcabie Lavel
. . ...Level

Adagp and satary for eenplayees unides the Housa Classification Act must ba apevaved by tha Commates on Housa Administration.
T
~ (¥
pate  01/05/2015 L« ad
{Signature of Authorlzing Official)
Honorable Mark Meadows
{Sig e of Sub ittee Chalrperson (Type or print name of Authorizing Official)

or Ranking Minority Member)

NGC11

{Type or print name and title of above official}

{Title--If Member, District and State)

Appropriation Code:
(Monthly Anmuity $

Office of Payroli & Baensfits use ony

@S0 L e

Benefits..........

Payroll.oiv.

QRIGINAL-TO OFFICE OF PAYROLL & BENEFITS (FOR OFFICIAL PERSONNEL FOLDER)



169

PAYROLL AUTHORIZATION FORM U8, HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES +(Piesse ysadypeyiiies
Washington, DC 20618 Nz “é«ﬂ{;é@ﬁ%ﬁt 1én)

To the Chief Administrative Offfcer of the House of Representatives: | hereby authorize the foliowing payroli action:

Employse Name (First.Middle-Last) Effective Dafo
Kenneth D, West 02/01/2015
Employee Social Security Number Type of Acllon
165239 - Appointment
Employing Office or Committee/Subcomimiites Salary Adjustment
Honorable Mark Meadows -.-.- Title Ghange

. Termination (At closs of business on sffective date}

1518 Longworth HOB
Washington, DC 20515 i Leave Withowt pay Beginning with effective date sbove
snd ending closa of business | 5
{Eoah
{If type of action is an Appointment, Salary Adjustiment or Title Change, complete appropriale inlormation below.}:
Poglilon Title® Gross Annual Satary™* :
Chisef of Staff $155,000.00
ploy shovid be 83 Pec-Time Paid Inlems, porary Employees, or Shared and v
recetve the resp i as thslr posillon Gitfo.

“*f employes is a civl sarvice Anuttant (includes U.S, Housa of Represenialives), the gross annual satary shown should Includa the 2anutly recajved by

ha employco plus the salary recelved from the employlng office.

(if Clerk Hire Employes, plete appropriate itemi{s} below.)
Parmanent

Nonpermanent {must specify one of the following
Gategories) tDenotes not efigible for Benefits NOTE: Any erasures, corrections or changgs.
|1 Pat-Time Employee on this form must be initialed by the ¢
i] 1Paid Intern authorizing official. .
[ ] tTemporary Emiployee o
| LWOP Employee
Shared Employes

(Spac By 6 TG ERFAT ST

{if Emplayee of an Officar of the House, complete item below.) s e
Position NUmbBer.......cov e If applicable, Level ..
If position transfer, previous position number..
Al and satary o udas the House ClassH At must bo spproved by tha Committes on Hxues Admindstration,
pate  01/05/2015 C”“yy/\(;f z‘ﬂ _—
{Slgnature of Authorizing Official)
Honorable Mark Meadows
(8ly of Subcommittee Chalry {Type or print name of Authorlzing Officlal)
or Ranking Minority Member)
NC11
{Type or print name and title of above official) {Title-If Member, District and State)
Appropriation Code: Qffice of Payroll & Benafits use only
(Monthly Annuity 8. 00y Benefits....oun
BS0f s Payroll..........

ORIGINAL-TO OFFICE OF PAYROLL & BENEFITS (FOR OFFICIAL PERSONNEL FOLDER)
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PAYROLL AUTHORIZATION FORM  U.5. HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES (Plaase use Typewriter
Washington, DC 20815 o aan;xnm Pen}

To the Chief Adininistrative Officer of the Houso of Representatives: | hereby authorize the following payroll achon

Employee Name (First-Middle-Lasgt) Effestiva Date
Kenneth D. West 04/01/2015

Employee Soclal Sesurity Number Type of Actlen
185239 Appointment

P Office or Commi Salary Adjustment
Title Change

Honorable Mark Meadows o g )
NC14 | Temmination (At closs of Business on eifective date)

Leave without pay {Begining with efiective date above
and ending close of business . }

4} -
{ii fype of aclion is an Appoiniment, Salary Adjustment or Title Change, complete appropriate information below.)
Position Title* Gross Annual Salary®® :

Senior Advisar $186,000.00

should ba des a5 Part-Time Employ Pait interns, T
recelve the i as thelr position tile,
i employee ia o civil sevice aanuitant fincfudes ULS, House of Reproseniatives), the gross annual satary shown should includs the snaulty rece.vec} by
ihe employes phis the salary recelvad from the employing offics.

P apd val

Emp , or Shared

{H Clark Hirs Employee, complete appropriate item{s) below.}

Permanant

Nonpermanent {must specify one of the following

categories) tDenotes not eligible for Benefils NOTE: Apy erssures, corrections or changes

_} Part-Time Employee on this form must be initiated by the
Rald intem authorizing official.
! +Temporary Employes
|1 LWOP Employee
| shared Employee

BN ond WA e R ey T
{f Employee of an Offfcer of the House, complete item helow.}

Position Number... rerenenes i @Dplicable, Level
if position (ranafer prevrous posmon number Lavel o

Al

e Bnd salary &k for emp undst o Heuse Class o0 Aot musi b approved by the Goammites 00 House Adminisiation.

7 k o~ .
Date  04/09/2015 (w:\m’w 8 }},«w* =

(§?gnature of Authorizing Officlal)

Honorable Mark Meadows

{Signature of Subcommittee Chalrperson {Type or print name of Authorizing Official)
or Ranking Minority Member}
NG
{Type or print name and titlo of above offickl) {Title--If Merober, District and State)
Appropriation Code: Office of Payroll & Bepefits use oniv

{Monthly Annuity ... e 00Y Benefita............

Payroll.,....

ORIGINAL-TO OFFICE OF PAYROLL & BENEFITS (FOR OFFICIAL PERSONNEL FOLDER)
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PAYROLL AUTHORIZATION FORM U.8. HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES (Plosse tba Typawiiter
Washington, DC 206156 or Bafipoint Pen)

To the Chief Administrative Officer of the House of Representatives: | hereby authorize the following payrolt action:

Employes Nams {First-Middle-Last} Effective Date
Kenneth D, West 05/31/2015
Soclsl Secudty Number Type of Actlon
1656239 Appointment
Employlng Office or CommitteefS ities Salary Adjustment
Title Change
Honorabie Mark Meadows . M )
NC11 Temmination (Atciose of businass on effective date)
Leave without pay {Beginning with effective date above
and ending tlose of businass )
Py Bty
{If type of action is an Appointment, Salary Adjustment or Tills Change, complete apprapriate information below.)
Position Title® Gross Annuad Salary**
Senior Advisor $155,000,00
it should be a5 Part-Tima Employens, Pald tntems, Tomporasy Employees, or Shared Employees sad will
fecalve the as their position tila.

T employe 13 a ol service anultant (Includes U.S. House of Ropresentatives), the gross anaual salacy shown should Indude the annuity received by
the gmployea plus the selary recelvad from the omploying offica,
{if Clerk Hire Employee, complete appropriate item{s) below.}
Permanent
_‘___ Nonpermanent (must specify one of the following e
categories) 1Denotes not eligible for Benefits NOTE: Any erasures, corrections or changes

Part-Time Employee on this form must bs Initlaled by the o
1Paid Intemn authorizing official i
{Temporary Employee

] LWOP Employee
Shared Employee

EOH oo et empiogtvg astboty

{if Employee of an Officer of the House, complete ltem below.)

POSHION NUMDBI. o e o ceresce e if applicable, Level ... . Step ...
If position transfer, Pravious POSHION MUMDEL ..o ir o vrrransen Level e SIED v
A ¢ and satary for emps wngst the Housa At st ba spproved by the Cammities on House Admiisteaton,
. e
. ) Lo
pate  04/17/2015 g W T it

(Signature of Authorizing Officiat)

Honorable Mark Meadows

(Sty ¢ of Sub itteo Chalrperson {Type or print name of Authorizing Officlal)
or Ranking Minority Member)

NC11

{Type or print name and title of above official) {Title~-If Member, District and State)

Approprigiion Code: Qffice of Payroll & Benefils use only
{Monthly Annuity $......ocoo. .00} Benefits.. v

B8 O i Payrol ...

ORIGINAL-TO OFFICE OF PAYROLL & BENEFITS (FOR OFFICIAL PERSONNEL FOLDER)
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PAYROLL AUTHORIZATION FORM U.8. HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES
Washington, DC 20515

(Please uss Typawsitar
or Baflpaint Peny

To the Chief Administrative Officer of the House of Representatives: | hereby authorize the following payroll action
Employee Name {First-Middie-Last)

Effective Date

"y
Kenneth D. West 06/30/2015 ) / U ‘\

o /
4‘ "i
Employee Social Security Number Type of Action £ I \ i
f 7
165239 [ K ) .
Appointment L
i Office or C i Salary Adjustment
. vy 5
Title Change - B
Honorable Mark Meadows - ;
NC11 Termination (At close of business on affeclivs date)

Leave without pay (Beginaing with effective date above

and ending closs of business B

f i
(1f type of action is an Appointment, Salary Adjustment or Title Change, complete appropriate information below.)
Position Yitle*

Senior Advisor l $156,000.00

Shouid b as Part
recaiva the respective desi as their posit:
*if emploves is 8 civil servics anauilant {includes U.S. House c Reare<enl/

Bross Annual Salary**

Flme 3 Paid nterrs, Temporaey Employeas, or Shated Employees sad vl

2
afves}), the gross arnual salary shown shoud include e annully seceied by AN /‘ -
the emptoysa plus the salary received fron: the empleying ofiice.

{If Clerk Hire Employee, complete appropriate itam(§)
Permanent {

Nonpermanent {must spacify one of the following

calegeries) tDenotes not eligible for Benefils NOTE Any erasutes, corrections or c‘\angns
§ Part-Time Employee on this form must be initialed by the
[ ] tPaid intern authorizing official.

g +Temporary Employee
% LWOP Employee

Shared Employes

ShRely TAG SREl g

22

{If Employes of an Officer of the House, complete item below.) sl
Position Number, if applicable, Level..
if posttion transfer, previous position number, e okevel

Step
Step

s 4 sa'ary adustents fo” o ployaes under Ihe Houss Classificabio Act rust ba aepicvad by the Compilles on Mouse Auministation. |

Date 0812112015 (%/ hé

{Signature of Authorizing Official)

oy

Honorable Mark Meadows

{Signature of Subcommittes Chairperson

{Type or print name of Authorizing Official)
or Ranking Minority Membaer)

NC11

{Type or print name and titte of above official) {Title--If Member, District and State}

Appropriation Code: Qffice of Payroli & Benefits use only

(Monthly Annuily S .00)

Benefits...........

............................................... 85 OF e e e Payroll . ...

ORIGINAL-TO OFFICE OF PAYROLL & BENEFITS (FOR OFFICIAL PERSONNEL FOLDER)
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PAYROLL AUTHORIZATION FORM U8, HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES (Ploase use Typewiriter
Washington, DC 20815

or Balipoint Pen)

To the Chief Administrative Officer of the House of Representatives: { hereby authorize the following payroll action:

Employes Name (First-Middie-Last)

Effactive Date

Honorable Mark Meadows
NC11

Kenneth D. West 08/15/2016
Employee Soclal Sacurity Number Type of Action
i
165239 [_|Appointment
Employing Ottice or Committes/Subeommitten ! Salary Adjustment
Title Change

(if type of aclion is an Appoiniment, Salary Adjusiment or Title Change, complete appropriate information below. )

Position Title*

Gross Annual Salary*®

Senior Advisor $155,000.00

of Shared yaes and vil

Pald Intens, Temp

0 slxw!d be i as Part-Time €
recolve ih ian as thelr position o,

Y g

i empk)yee is & civil servics annuitant {includes U.S. House of Representatives), the gross anoual salary shown should fncluds the ansuity recelvsd by

the umployes plus ihe sslary recelved from Ina smploying office.

{if Clerk Hire Employes, complets appropriate ltomi{s) below.)

Permanent

Nonpsrmanent {must specify one of the following
categories) tDenoles not eligible for Benefils
Part-Time Employee

1Peid Intern

$Temporary Employee

LWOP Employee

Sharad Employee

TSP ik ot SMRyag RO

{if Employee of an Officer of the House, complete ftem
Position Numbser....
if position transfer, prev:ous posmon number

Al and salay for e the Rouse

NOTE: Any erasures, corrections or changes
on this form must be inilialed by the
authorizing official,

belov.)

Date O6/10/2015

. Napplicable, Level. ..
Leval...

SWP e
W SIEP e

ot Act must b epproved by the Domanities on House Adminisiration.

{Signature of Authanzmg Omclal)

Honorable Mark Meadows

(Slignature of Subcommitiee Chalrperson
or Ranking Minority Member}

{‘fype or print name of Authorizing Officlal)

NC11

{Type or print name and 8ite of above official)

{Titie-If Member, District and State)

Approprigtion Code: Office of Payroll & Benefits use only

Monthly Annully 8
asof..

0}

Benefits..

Payroll

ORIGINAL-TO OFFICE OF PAYROLL & BENEFITS (FOR OFFICIAL PERSONNEL FOLDER)
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Elliott, Jennifer

From: Z113 Meadows, Mark

Sent: Thursday, June 11, 2015 8:08 AM
To: Etlliott, Jennifer

Subject: Re: Kenny

| want to give Kenny a little more time to make the transition, His health makes it hard for him to get health insurance. |
just want to err on the side of being compassionate. Thanks

Sent from my iPhone

On Jun 10, 2015, at 6:36 AM, Elliott, Jennifer <jemmi oy> wrote:

Gaood morning, | spoke to Kenny yesterday because he had questions about what to do with bis
retirement when he leaves and he mentioned to me that his end date may be changed. Just wanted to
touch base with and see if that is correct because if so need to make sure Payroll does not terminate
him at the end of this month. Thank you!

Jennifer Eilioit

Financial Administrator

U.S, House of Representatives
{202) 295-7952

{443} 968-2318 (fax)
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Elliott, Jennifer

From: Z113 Meadows, Mark

Sent: Thursday, May 21, 2015 815 AM
To: Elliott, Jennifer

Subject: Kenny

Kenny has been finishing up some stuff for me so I want to pay him through the end of June
please, not the end of this month as previously discussed. Thanks

Sent from my iPhone
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Effiott, Jennifer

From: Kenny West [kwestnational@aol.cora}
Sent: Tuesday, August 11, 2016 412 PM
To: Elliott, Jennifer

Ce: Foster, Kristin

Subject: Re: proof of joss of insurance

Thanks, when will | receive letter.

Sent from my iPhone

On Aug 11, 2015, at 3:02 PM, Elliott, Jennifer <Je

Hi Kenny, Kristin in the Peyroll and Benefits will be able to help you with the information. Please letmie
know if you need anything from me Kristin, Thank you!

Jenaifer Ellioit

Financiol Administrator

U.5, House of Representotives
(202} 2957952

Fromy: Foster, Kristin

Sent: Tuesday, August 11, 2015 1:51 PM
To: Sollers, Danielle; Elliott, Jennifer

Cc! Rosloff, Michael

Subject: RE:

Hello Jonnifor,

P would be happy to assist vou. If you would fike to provide my contact information to the employec |

can provide additional information.

{hank you,

¢ of Payroll & Benelifs
e of the Chiel Admbdstvative Offiver
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Elliott, Jennifer

From: Kenny West [kwestnational@aol.com}
Sent: Friday, June 12, 2015 1:40 PM

To: cangressnc@gmail.com

Ce: Elliott, Jennifer; kwestnational@aol.com
SBubject: Final Expense Report

Attachments: june 12.pdf

Mark this should be my last expense report. Jennifer can you let me know you received.

Kenny West

Liberty National

Cell (828) 557-3633

email: k ational@aol com
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Elfiott, Jennifer

From: Kenny West [kwestnational@aol.com}
Sent: Wednesday, August 12, 2015 11.07 AM
To: Eltiott, Jennifer

Subject: Re: Letter

Interesting.

Sent from my iPhone

L. house.govy wrote:

> On Aug 12, 2815, at 18:53 AM, Elliott, Jennifer ennifer,i)liot
>

> Hi Kenny he told me the 15th
>
> Sent from my iPhone

>

> On Aug 12, 2015, at 10:48 AM, Kenny West <o
>

>> Jennifer, I thought Mark had agreed to pay me through August 31. I was just told it is
only through the 15th?

5

>> Sent from my iPhone

>

»>> On Aug 11, 2015, at 12:37 PM, Elliott, Jennifer <
33>

>>> Kenny hey sorry I missed you at the beach. Yes out payroll office can send something I
think I will check with them

>

>>> Sent from my iPhone

>

>>>> On Aug 11, 2015, at 12:34 PM, Kenny West <kumsit
>35>

>>>> Jennifer, can you write a letter concerning my last day with Mark's office. It's
regarding me not having insurance through the Hill after the 31st of August. I can't get new
coverage without them knowing I don’t have coverage anymore. Thanks!

>35>

>>>> Sent from my iPhone

sthational@eol. com wrote:

L house. govy wrote:

onalfnol, com wrote:
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Elliott, Jennifer

From: 2113 Meadows, Mark

Sent: Thursday, June 11, 2015 9:02 AM
To: Eliiott, Jennifer

Subject: Re: Kenny

8/15

Sent from my iPhone

On Jun 11, 2015, at 8:50 AM, Elliott, Jennifer <lenniicr, Lint @y

Jiouse gov> wiote:

Ok s0 shouid  change to 8/31? Thank youl

Jeanifer Elliott

Financiol Administrator

. House of Representrtives
2957952

218 {fox}

From: Z113 Meadows, Mark

Sent: Thursday, June 11, 2015 8:08 AM
Tos Elliott, Jennifer

Subject: Re: Kenny

I want to give Kenny a little more time to make the transition. His health makes it hard for him to get
health insurance. | just want te err on the side of being compassionate. Thanks

Sent from my iPhone

sOv> wiote:

On Jun 10, 2015, at 6:36 AM, Elfiott, Jennifer <) joteermallh

Good morning, | speke to Kenny yesterday because he had questions about what to do
with his retirement when he leaves and he mentioned to me that his end date may be
changed. Just wanted to touch base with and see if that Is correct because if so need to
make sure Payrofl does not terminate him at the end of this month, Thank youl

dennifer Elljort

Financial Administrator

U.5, House of Representatives
(202) 295-7952

(443} 968-2318 (fux)
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Elliott, Jennifer

From: Fitzpatrick, Paul

Sent: Monday, August 31, 2015 2:26 PM .
To: Efiott, Jennifer th
Subject: Reimbursement correction

Jennifor,

Mark will send a personal check to your address,

fe will be $400.96 for three of Keriny West's expenses that should not have been refmbursed,
They are:

May 27, 2015 231 mifes

June 2, 2015: 245 miles

June 9, 2015: 240 miles

‘Totaling 716 riles or $400.96

Thank you,

Paul

From: Effiott, Jennifer
Sent: Monday, August 31, 2015 2:16 PM
Yo Fitzpatrick, Paul

... Subject: My

PR O
of

|
|
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Berke | Farah nip
Attorneys at Law

1200 New Hampshire Ave. NW @ Suite 800 @ Washington, DC 20036 ¢ cberke@berkefarah.com ¢ 202.517.0585
www.berkefarah.com

May 10, 2016

Congressman Charles W. Dent
Chairman

Congresswoman Linda T. Sanchez
Ranking Member

House Committee on Ethics

1015 Longworth House Office Building
Washington, DC 20515-6328

RE: OCE Referral
Dear Chairman Dent and Ranking Member Sanchez:

This letter is in response to your letter dated March 18, 2016 to Congressman Mark
Meadows. On behalf of Congressman Meadows, please consider this letter as his response to the
Referral the Committee on Ethics (“Committee™) received from the Office of Congressional
Ethics (“OCE™). We appreciate the extension that was granted to us to submit this response that
was necessitated by change of counsel.

As you are aware, Congressman Meadows self-reported in November 2015 the
underlying allegations regarding the employment of a former staffer that were raised in the May
18, 2016 OCE Referral to the Committee. In self-reporting, Congressman Meadows asked the
Committee to investigate the matter and has been consistently proactive in addressing these
allegations and voluntarily provided relevant documents to the Committee last month.
Congressman Meadows intends to continue to cooperate fully and voluntarily with the
Committee.

Not surprisingly, these are facts that the OCE ignores or disregards in its Referral.
Congressman Meadows informed the OCE on November 17, 2015 that rather than engage in
their duplicative, costly and burdensome process, he would instead self-report the issue to the
Committee in the interest of expediency. It is, after all, the Committee — and not the OCE — that

s the Law of Poliges
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is the ultimate arbiter of compliance with House Rules and Standards of Conduct. Congressman
Meadows, in declining to participate in the OCE’s review, also took issue with the OCE’s
longstanding practice of publishing entire transcripts of interviews even when they contain
irrelevant, ancillary, and personal content. Such a practice does not serve the best interests of the
House or of staff members who are merely witnesses in a matter. While he anticipated that the
OCE would still label him “uncooperative” notwithstanding his decision to self-report to the
Committee, we are nevertheless disappointed to confirm such a determination was reached.

As Congressman Meadows informed the Committee in November 2015, employment
issues were raised regarding his then Chief of Staff Kenny West in the fall of 2014 by other
members of his staff. Congressman Meadows took swift and appropriate steps to address the
issues, including but not limited to the undertaking of an internal review; arranging for an
independent third party review; making changes to the scope, nature and title of Mr. West’s
official responsibilities; transferring Mr. West’s supervisory functions to other personnel; and
ultimately coming to an agreement with Mr. West that resulted in his resignation.

These actions were later confirmed by counsel with the Office of House Employment
Counse] (“OHEC”) to be consistent with advice OHEC has offered in similar situations.
Congressman Meadows also, for a short time, agreed to pay Mr. West compensation to ensure a
smooth transition of his official responsibilities. It was his belief that these severance payments
were consistent with House Rules and practice.

Throughout this process, Congressman Meadows took steps to comply with all House
Rules and Standards of Conduct and did so in the best interests of his staff and his constituents.
He believes that he met these goals, and even if his ultimate interpretation of severance may be
proven in error, it was an interpretation taken in good faith.

Congressman Meadows continues to believe that the open and clear official House
practice of paying actual severance and payments labeled “severance” should have led the OCE
to dismiss this matter, even assuming the underlying allegations proved true — that a traditional
“severance” (compensation at the time of termination that is not tied to specific hours worked)
was paid to Mr. West.

We thank the Committee for its time and will address any additional questions it might
have. That being said, nothing in this communication should be viewed as a waiver of any
privilege, including attorney-client privilege or the Speech or Debate privilege under the U.S.
Constitution.
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Please do not hesitate to contact me at (202) 517-0585 should you have any additional
questions.

Very truly yours,

NAS (Bdea

Elliot S. Berke



APPENDIX C



EXHIBIT 1
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- COMMITTEE ON HOUSE
ADMINISTRATION

41\101CE S. MILLER, CHAIRMAN ROBERT A. BRADY, RANKING MéMBER

113™ CONGRESS

UNITED STATES HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES




THE COMMITTEE ON HOUSE ADMINISTRATION HAS ISSUED
THE FOLLOWING REGULATIONS TO ENSURE THAT MEMBERS
OF THE UNITED STATES HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES UTILIZE
OFFICIAL RESOURCES TO SUPPORT THE CONDUCT OF THE
OFFICIAL REPRESENTATIONAL DUTIES ON BEHALF OF THE
DISTRICT FROM WHICH HE OR SHE IS ELECTED.

CHAIRMAN CANDICE S. MILLER

ADOPTED DECEMBER 16, 2011

All citations to the House Rules refer to the Rules of the House of Representatives

FOR ADDITIONAL ASSISTANCE, PLEASE CONTACT THE COMMITTEE AT (202) 225-8281.
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INTRODUCTION:
MEMBERS'’
REPRESENTATIONAL
ALLOWANCE

During each session of Congress, each Member

has a single Members’ Representational Allowance
(“MRA”) available to support the conduct of official
and representational duties to the district from which
he or she is elected. Ordinary and necessary expenses
incurred by the Member or the Member’s employees
within the United States, its territories, and possessions
in support of the conduct of the Member’s official and
representational duties to the district from which he or
she is elected are reimbursable in accordance with the
regulations contained in this Members’ Congressional
Handbook.

“Ordinary and necessary” means reasonable
expenditures in support of official and representational
duties to the district from which he or she is elected
that are consistent with all applicable federal aws,
Rules of the House of Representatives and regulations
of the Committee on House Administration.

The following regulations of the Committee on House
Administration, collectively known as the Members’
Congressional Handbook (“Handbook”), govern all
expenditures from the MRA.

The Handbook regulations are guidelines that assist
Members in determining whether expenses are
reimbursable. Therefore, the Handbook contains broad
descriptions of reimbursable expenses, but is not an
exhaustive list of such expenses.

Questions about reimbursement of an expense
should be directed to the Committee on House
Administration at x58281 prior to incurring the
expense.

For all questions relating to equipment and equipment-
related issues, refer to the Guide to Outfitting and
Maintaining an Office available from the Committee

COMMITTEE ON HOUSE ADMINISTRATION

on House Administration.

Administrative, financial and non-legislative support
services (e.g., equipment purchases, technology
standards and services, office supplies, room
reservation and set-up) are acquired through the Office
of the House Chief Administrative Officer ("CAO”).
For further information about the CAQO's services,
please refer to HouseNet, the House intranet (https:
housenet.house.gov) or the CAO's services office, First
Call, at x58000.

‘The Handbook is a collection of regulations issued by
avote of the Members of the Committee. In drafting
these regulations, the Committee consults with other
committees of the House, House leadership, Member
office staff, and the Officers of the House.

General

When an expense is incurred, the Member must
determine the primary purpose for the expenditure.
Is the primary purpose for the expenditure official
and representational? Or is it primarily related to
personal, campaign-related political party, campaign
or committee activities? Only expenses the primary
purpose of which are official and representational and
which are incurred in accordance with the Handbook
are reimbursable.

1. The MRA may only be used for official and
representational expenses.

2. A Member may expend personal funds in support
of official and representational duties.
The MRA may not be used to pay for any expenses
related to activities or events that are primarily
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social in nature.
4. The MRA may not pay for personal expenses,
5. The MRA may not pay for campaign expenses.

6. The MRA may not pay for campaign-related
political party expenses.

7. 'The MRA may not pay for committee expenses.

8. Committee resources may not pay for a Member’s
official and representational expenses.

9. Except where authorized by the Committee
on Ethics, campaign funds may not pay fora
Member’s official and representational expenses.

10. A Member may not maintain, or have maintained
for his use, an unofficial office account for the
purpose of defraying or reimbursing ordinary
and necessary expenses incurred in support ofa
Members official and representational duties.

11. A Member may not accept from any private source
in-kind support having monetary value for an
official activity.

o
1™

. Only appropriated funds, not personal or unofficial
funds, may be used to pay for mail sent under the
frank.

. Each Member is personally responsible for the
payments of any official and representational
expenses incurred that exceed the provided MRA
or that are incurred but are not reimbursable under
these regulations.

o
w

14. Unless specifically authorized by an applicable
provision of federal law, House Rules, or
Committee Regulations, no Member, relative of
the Member, or anyone with whom the Member
has a professional or legal relationship may directly
benefit from the expenditure of the MRA.

15. The MRA is available for services provided and
expenses incurred from January 3 of one year
through January 2 of the following year. All
expenses incurred will be charged to the allowance
available on the date the services were provided
or the expenses were incurred. Upon the death,
resignation, or expulsion of a Member, the
Member’s allowance will be made available only
for services provided and expenses incurred at the
direction of the Member up through the last day of
the Member's term in office. Otherwise such funds
will be subject to the direction of the Clerk of the
House.

16. Requests to obligate prior year funds after January
2 of the succeeding year will be considered
by the Committee when a Member provides
documentation demonstrating a bona fide intent to
obligate the prior year’s funds during the applicable
year.

17. The MRA is not transferable between years.

18. Members may not use official resources to
misrepresent their current official positions or
titles within the House.

19. Pursuant to 18 US.C. § 1913, the MRA may
not be used for certain activities in the absence
of authorization by Congress. Contact the
Committee on House Administration at x58281 for
more information.

Budgeting and Disclosure

The Committee recommends that each Member
establish an annual budget for the MRA. To assist

in this process, the Office of Finance sends each
Member monthly statements showing year-to-date
expenditures and obligated amounts. The quarterly
expenditures reflected in these statements are
compiled and published as the Quarterly Statement of
Disbursements, which is a public document.

Disbursements

Disbursements from the MRA are made on a
reimbursement or direct payment basis and require
specific documentation and Member certification as to
accuracy and compliance with applicable federal laws,
House Rules, and Committee regulations.

Reimbursements and payments from the MRA may be

made only to the Member, the Member’s employees, or

a vendor providing services to support the operation of
the Member’s offices.

incidental Use

Incidental personal use of equipment and supplies
owned or leased by, or the cost of which is reimbursed
by the House of Representatives is permitted only
when such use is negligible in nature, frequency, time
consumed, and expense.

For example, limited use of government resources to
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access the Internet, to send or receive personal email,
or to make personal phone calls is permissible, so
Jong as the use meets the above criteria, and otherwise
conforms with the Regulations of the Committee

on House Administration and the Code of Official
Conduct {House Rule XXIT).

Each Member office may adopt a more restrictive
incidental use policy.

Overspending

Each Member is personally responsible for the
payment of any official and representational expenses
incurred that exceed the authorized MRA. Ifa
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Member incurs an obligation to the U.S. House of
Representatives and the amount of the obligation
incurred exceeds the MRA, the Member shall pay the
obligation from personal funds. If the Member fails
to pay the obligation voluntarily, the CAO will deduct
the amount owed from any pay, mileage, or expense
money due to the Member in the case of a sitting
Member or through an administrative offset or legal
action in the case of a former Member. The Office

of Finance will notify a Member if that Member is
projected to overspend the MRA.

Contact the Office of Finance at x57474 or the
Committee on House Administration at x58281 for
assistance with accounting and budgeting.

STAFF

Each Member is the employing authority; the Member
determines the terms and conditions of employment
and service for their staff. These terms and conditions
must be consistent with applicable federal laws and
House Rules.

1. Personnel actions affecting employment positions
in the House of Representatives must be free from
discrimination based on race, color, national
origin, religion, sex (including marital or parental
status), service in the military, disability, or age.

2. A Member may not retain an employee on the
Member's payroll who does not perform official
duties commensurate with the compensation
received for the offices of the employing authority.
(House Rule XXIII, clause 8(a)).

3. “Employee” means an individual appointed
to a position of employment in the House of
Representatives by an authorized employing
authority including individuals receiving pay
disbursed by the CAO and individuals in a Leave
Without Pay or furlough status,

“Staff” means all individuals including employees,
fellows, unpaid interns, and volunteers who serve
in the office of a Member,

5. Annual rates of pay may not exceed the amount
specified in the Speaker’s Pay Order.

6. Total compensation in any month including any
lump sum and regular pay, student loan program
payments, (including cash reimbursement for
accrued annual leave) may not exceed 1/12th of the
maximum rate of pay specified in the Speaker’s Pay
Order.

7. Retroactive pay adjustments are not authorized.

8. Government contributions to retirement, life
insurance, Thrift Savings Plan, transit benefits,
Student Loan Repayment Program and health
benefits programs are not charged to the MRA.

9. Each month, Member Offices receive a Payroll
Certification Form from the Office of Payroll
and Benefits that lists the annual pay and gross
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pay earned for each employee. If an employee is

a relative of a current Member of Congress, the
nature of the relationship to the Member must

be noted on the Payroll Certification Form. The
Member must certify the information and return
the form to the Office of Payroll and Benefits no
later than the 15th day of the month. Contact the
Office of Payroll and Benefits at x51435 for payroll
forms.

Employee Ceiling

Under 2 US.C. § 92, each Member of the House of
Representatives may employ 18 permanent employees
and 4 additional employees. The 4 additional
employees must be appointed to one of the following
categories:

Paid interns
Part-time employees
Shared employees

Temporary employees

G W N

Employees on leave without pay

Categories of Staff

Employees

The term “employee” means an individual appointed
to a position of employment in the House of
Representatives by an authorized employing authority
including individuals receiving pay disbursed by

the CAQO and individuals in a Leave Without Pay or
furlough status,

Interns

Interns, paid or unpaid, must perform services for the
Member on a temporary basis as part of an educational
plan. Examples of an educational plan include, but

are not limited to, participation in the Intern Lecture
Series, attendance at committee hearings, attendance at
CRS internship training programs, etc. Each Member
is responsible for determining the activities of the
Member’s interns consistent with these requirements.

Paid interns may work for no more than 120 calendar

days in a 12-month period, per employing authority,
and are not employees for purposes of compliance
with the minimum wage and overtime provisions of
the Fair Labor Standards Act. The gross annual rate

of intern pay is established by the Committee on
House Administration. For the current applicable rate,
contact the Committee on House Administration at
x58281.

Any Member interested in employing a foreign
national as an intern should contact the Office of
General Counsel at x59700.

The use of unpaid interns is subject to regulations
established by the Committee on Ethics. Contact the
Committee on Ethics at x57103.

Interns are ineligible for the following benefits:

Federal Employees’ Retirement System
Federal life insurance

Federal health insurance

‘Thrift Savings Plan

Student Loan Repayment Program

ok w e

Part-time Employees

The term “part-time employee” means an individual
who is employed by the Member and whose normally
assigned work schedule is not more than the equivalent
of 15 full work days per month. A typical month has
22 work days so a part-time employee would be an
individual who typically works 15 or fewer full 8-hour
days per month, or the equivalent amount in hours
(e.g., all 22 work days, but only 5 hours per day).

Temporary Employees

The term “temporary employee” means an individual
who is employed for a specific purpose or task

and who is employed for not more than 90 days in

a 12-month period, except that the term of such
employment may be extended with the written
approval of the Committee on House Administration.

Temporary employees are ineligible for the following
benefits:




194

Federal Employees’ Retirernent System

2. Federal life insurance

3. Federal health insurance
4. Thrift Savings Plan
Shared Employees

The term “shared employee” means an employee who
is paid by more than one employing authority of the
House of Representatives.

L

Two or more employing authorities of the House
may employ an individual.

Subject to telecommuting policies, such shared
employees must work out of the office of an
employing authority, but are not required to
work in the office of each employing authority.
‘The pay from each employing authority shall
reflect the duties actually performed for each
employing authority. The name, title, and pay of
such an individual will appear on each employing
authority’s Payroll Certification. Such employees
may not receive pay totaling more than the highest
rate of basic pay in the Speaker’s Pay Order
applicable to the positions they occupy.

Employees may not be shared between a Member
or Committee office and the office of an Officer
of the House if the employee, in the course of
duties for an Officer, has access to the financial
information, payroll information, equipment
account information, or information systems of
either Member, Committee, or Leadership offices.
Each House employee who, during any pay
period, is simultaneously employed by three or
more House employing authorities is required to
inform each employing authority in writing of
the employee’s employment status and any change
in employment status with other employing
authorities.

Each House employee who, during any pay period,
is simultaneously employed by three or more
House employing authorities is required to file with
the Office of Finance a signed Acknowledgment

of Receipt and Understanding of Shared

Employee Manual and Certification of Continued
Compliance upon becoming simultaneously
employed by three or more employing authorities.
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(see attached Acknowledgement and Certification).

6. Pursuant to 5 U.S.Capp. § 101 et seq., each House
employee who is simultaneously employed by three
or more House employing authorities for more
than 60 days during a calendar year must file a
FPinancial Disclosure Statement by May 15 of each
year.

7. Any House employee engaged in any outside
employment or business activity may not directly,
or indirectly through such outside employment or
business activity, sell, lease, or otherwise provide
any goods or assets to any House office or entity.

Consultants

Pursuant to 2 US.C. § 72a, only committees are
authorized to procure the temporary services of
consultants.

Member offices are not authorized to procure
consultant services.

Contractors

Members may contract with firms or individuals
only for general, non-legislative and non-financial,
office services (e.g., equipment maintenance, systems
integration, data entry, staff training, photography,
custodial services, web services) for a specified time
period not to exceed the Member’s current term.
Such contracts are reimbursable. Such contractors
are not employees of the House and are ineligible for
government-provided personne] benefits.

Contractors do not count against the Member’s
employee ceiling,

Members are advised to consult the Committee on
House Administration before entering into such
contracts.

Civilian Annuitants

If a Member employs a federal civil service annuitant,
the amount of the annual annuity, when added to the
annual rate of pay at which the employee is to be paid
by the Member, may not exceed the highest rate of
basic pay as authorized by the Speaker’s Pay Order.
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The combined total of the civil service annuity and the
amount of the salary will be charged to the MRA.

‘Waivers

Member offices will not be granted waivers of
applicable annuity reductions or pay reductions.

Detailees

The term “detailee” means a non-Congressional federal
employee assigned to a committee for a period of up to
one year.

Pursuant to 2 U.S.C. § 72a(f), detailees may not be
assigned to a Member office.

Fellows

The term “feliow” means an individual performing
services in a House office on a temporary basis as part
of an established mid-career education program while
continuing to receive the usual compensation from his
or her sponsoring employer.

Fellows may be assigned to a Member office.

Fellows do not count against the Member’s employee
ceiling.

Fellows may not be reimbursed from House
appropriated funds. Outside of using existing office
resources, if a fellow incurs an expense as a result of
work performed for the Member, the fellow may either
be reimbursed by the fellow’s sponsoring entity or a
Member may use personal funds as authorized under
House Rules.

The use of fellows is subject to regulations established
by the Committee on Ethics. Contact the Committee
on Ethics at x57103,

Temporary Agencies

Ordinary and necessary expenses related to services
provided by an individual employed by a temporary
agency are reimbursable if the following conditions are
met:

1. Payment for such services is commensurate with
the official duties performed by the individual;

2. Such individual remains an employee of the agency
and is not eligible for pay, benefits, rights, or
privileges available to House employees; and

3. 'The total of such individuals and employees may
not exceed 22 individuals.
Volunteers

The term “volunteer” means an individual performing
services in a House office without compensation from
any source.

The voluntary service should be of significant
educational benefit to the participant and such
voluntary assistance should not supplant the normal
and regular duties of paid employees.

Volunteers should be required to agree, in advance and
in writing, to serve without compensation.

Volunteers do not count against the Member’s
employee ceiling.

The use of volunteers is subject to regulations
established by the Committee on Ethics. Contact the
Committee on Ethics at x57103.

Telecommuting

Telecommuting is entirely at the discretion of the
employing office. An employing office is under
no obligation to offer a telecommuting option to
employees.

Offices may obtain a copy of the Telecommuting policy
on the Committee on House Administration website.

Employment Law

Congressional Accountability Act
Pursuant to the Congressional Accountability Act, the
following civil rights, labor, and workplace safety laws

are applicable to House employing offices:

1. 'The Fair Labor Standards Act of 1938;
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2. Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964;

3. The Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990;

4. The Age Discrimination in Employment Act of
1967;

5. The Family and Medical Leave Act of 1993;

6. The Employee Polygraph Protection Act of 1988;

7. The Worker Adjustment and Retraining
Notification Act;

8. The Rehabilitation Act of 1973;

9. The Uniformed Services Employment and
Reemployment Rights Act of 1994;

. Chapter 71 of Title V of the U.S. Code, the Federal
Service Labor-Management Relations Statute;

1
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. 'The public service and accommodations provisions
of the Americans with Disabilities Act;

12. The Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1970;
and

13. The Genetic Information Nondiscrimination Act of
2008.

The Office of Compliance has published A Guide to
the Congressional Accountability Act of 1995, which

is available from the Office of Compliance’s website,

or at Room LA-200, John Adams Building, Library of
Congress, Washington, DC 20540-1999, (202) 724~
9250. The Office of Compliance also provides materials
that employing offices can use to notify employees of
their rights and protections under the CAA.

A Model Employee Handbook providing sample
office policies to assist in developing an organization
that complies with applicable laws and House Rules is
available on HouseNet.

The Office of House Employment Counsel is available
to provide advice and guidance on employment
matters generally, and on establishing office policies
consistent with these laws. The Office of the House
Employment Counsel can be reached at x57075.

Nepotism

A public official may not appoint, employ, promote,
advance or advocate for appointment, employment,
promotion, or advancement in or to a position in the
office in which that public official is serving or over
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which that public official exercises jurisdiction or
control any individual who is a relative of that public
official. Pursuant to 5 U.S.C. § 3110, the term "public
official” includes a Member, an employee, and any
other individual who has authority, or to whom the
authority has been delegated, to appoint, employ,
promote, or advance individuals, or to recommend
individuals for appointment, employment, promotion,
or advancement in connection with employment in an
office.

Every employee must certify a relationship to any
Member of Congress on a certificate of relationship
form available from Payroll and Benefits. If, at any
time, the relationship of an employee to any current
Member of Congress changes the employee must
file an amended certificate of relationship form with
the employing office. Contact Payroll and Benefits at
x51435 for such forms,

Individuals with the following relationship to the
Member may not be employed by the Member:
«  Aung

«  Brother;

« Brother-in-law;

« Daughter;

« Daughter-in-law;
» Father;

«  Father-in-law;

« First cousin;

» Half-brother;

« Half-sister;

« Husband;

» Mother;

+  Mother-in-law;
« Nephew;

« Niece;

+  Sister;

«  Sister-in-law;
« Som

¢ Son-in-law;

«  Stepbrother;

«  Stepdaughter;
«  Stepfather;

« Stepmother;




197

MEMBERS’ CONGRESSIONAL HANDBOOK

+  Stepsister;

«  Stepson;
» Uncle;and
«  Wife.

However, if a House employee becomes related to

the employing Member (by marriage), the employee
may remain on the Members personal or committee
payroll. Similarly, if a Member becomes the employing
authority of a relative who was hired by someone else
{e.g., the Member ascends to the chairmanship of a
Committee or subcommittee for which the relative

is already working), the relative may remain on the
payroll. However, the Member may not then give that
individual further promotions or raises, other than
cost-of-living or other across-the-board adjustments.

The statute does not prohibit a Member from
employing two individuals who are related to each
other but not to the Member. Contact the Committee
on Ethics at x57103 for further information.

Non-Disclosure Qath

House Rule XXIII, clause 13, requires Members and
employees to execute an oath of non-disclosure before
having access to classified information.

Post-Employment Restrictions

Members and employees paid at a rate equal to or
greater than 75 percent of the basic rate of pay of a
Member for at least 60 days in the one-year period
preceding termination are subject to post-employment
restrictions. For the current applicable rate and
information regarding the applicable restrictions,
contact the Committee on Ethics at x57103.

Working from Home due to a Disability

Pursuant to the Americans with Disabilities Act
(“ADA"), a Member may reasonably accommodate a
qualified employee with a disability by allowing the
employee to work from home. As a condition of such
a request, the Member may require certification from
a physician of the need for such accommeodation.

For questions concerning compliance with the ADA,
contact the Office of House Employment Counsel at

x57075.
Pay

Appointment

The official appointment of each employee requires
the Member’s signature on the payroll authorization
form. Required payroll forms must be received by the
Office of Payroll and Benefits no later than the Jast
business day of the month in which the appointment
is effective. Subsequent adjustments to a payroll
appointment (pay adjustments, title changes, furlough
status, terminations, etc.) must also be made on the
appropriate forms. Such forms are due at Payroll and
Benefits by the 15th day of the month in which the
adjustment is effective.

Dual Compensation

‘The aggregate gross annual salary of an employee
receiving payment from the House who is also
receiving payment from the U.S. Senate, Architect of
the Capitol, or any other department or agency of the
U.S. Government, may not exceed the gross annual
rate established by 5 U.S.C. § 5533. For the current
applicable dual compensation rate, contact the Office
of Payroll and Benefits at x51435,

Financial Disclosure

Members and employees receiving basic pay at a rate
equal to or greater than 120 percent of the minimum
pay for GS-15 for at least 60 days during any calendar
year must file a Financial Disclosure Statement upon
appointment, termination, and annually on May 15th.

Each Member’s office that does not have an employee
paid at or above the threshold must designate one
employee as the “Principal Assistant” who must file a
Financial Disclosure Statement. ,

Ordinary and necessary expenses incurred by
Members and their employees, in support of the filing
of reports consistent with the provisions of the Ethics
in Government Act, are reimbursable.

Contact the Committee on Ethics at x57103 for
guidance concerning the current applicable rate of pay
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and other information regarding Financial Disclosure
requirements.

Lump Sum Payments

A Member may authorize a lump sum payment to
an employee for any purpose consistent with the
following:

1. Payments must be consistent with House Rule
XXI1I, clause 8(a), which requires that employees
perform official duties commensurate with the
compensation received. Employees may not be
compensated from public funds to perform non-
official, personal, campaign-related political party,
or campaign activities on behalf of the Member,
the employee, or anyone else; ;

2. Alump sum payment may not be more than the
monthly pay of the employee receiving the lump
sum payment;

3. Lump sum payments may be for services
performed during more than one month;

4. Members may provide lump sum payments for
accrued annual leave only if such leave was accrued
in accordance with written personnel policies
established prior to the accrual of such leave;

5. Total compensation in any month including any
lump sum payment, student loan payments, and
regular pay (including cash reimbursement for
accrued annual leave) may not exceed 1/12th of the
maximum rate of pay specified in the Speaker’s Pay
Order;

6. Lump sum payments will be disclosed separately in
the Quarterly Statement of Disbursements;

=~

Lump sum payments are considered as part of “rate

of pay” under the Speaker’s Pay Order;

8. Lump sum payments are considered “supplemental
wages” for taxation purposes; and

9. Lump sum payments are not considered as part

of “basic pay” for purposes of calculating Thrift

Savings Plan, life insurance, or federal pensions.

Contact the Committee on Ethics at x57103 for
information on the treatment of lump-sum payments
with regard to financial disclosure, post-employment
restrictions, and outside earned income limitations.
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Outside Earned Income

Members and employees receiving basic pay at a rate
equal to or greater than 120 percent of the minimum
basic pay for GS-15 for at least 90 days in a calendar
year are subject to the outside earned income
limitation established by 5 US.C. app. § 501(2)(1) and
House Rule XXV, clause 1(a)(1).

For the current applicable rate of basic pay, the amount
of the limit and application of the House Rule, contact
the Committee on Ethics at x57103.

Overtime Wage Rate Compensation

Employees who are covered by the minimum wage
and overtime provisions of the Fair Labor Standards
Act (“non-exempt”) must be compensated at a rate of
time-and-a half for all hours worked in excess of 40
hours during any work week, either in pay or in time-
off during the same pay period.

Overtime wage sheets must be received by no later
than the 15th day of the month by the Office of Payroll
and Benefits following the month in which overtime
wages were earned.

Contact Payroll and Benefits at x51435 for the
appropriate forms.

Contact the Office of House Employment Counsel
at x57075 for assistance in establishing overtime and
time-off policies.

Pay Adjustments

Members may adjust, in any month, an employees
pay to reflect exceptional, meritorious, or less than
satisfactory service.

Such adjustments must be received by the Office of
Payroll and Benefits on or before the 15th day of the

month in which the adjustment is to be effective.

Retroactive pay adjustments are not authorized.

Payroll Schedule

Pursuant to 5 US.C. § 5505, the monthly payroll is
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based on a 30-day pay period. child; or

2. To adopt a child or to receive a child in foster care;
Payment is made on the last business day of the month. or .

3. To care for a spouse, son, daughter, or parent who

Rates of Compensation has a serious health condition; or

4. For the employee’s own serious health condition

Members are responsible for adhering to the applicable
which makes the employee unable to perform the

minimum wage provisions of the Fair Labor Standards

Act {$7.25 per hour as of July 24, 2009). functions of his or her job.
5. FMLA also includes a special leave entitlement that
Interns are not employees for purposes of compliance permits employees to take up to 26 weeks of FMLA
with the minimum wage and overtime provisions of leave to care for a covered service member during a
the Fair Labor Standards Act. single 12-month period.
The maximum rate of pay is established for Member Employees on Family and Medical Leave remain
offices by the Speaker’s Pay Order. eligible for all benefits. Please contact OHEC at
%57075 with questions concerning FMLA leave,
Terminations
Furlough
Terminations must be made on a Payroll Authorization
Form and submitted to the Office of Payroll and Furlough is an absence without pay initiated by
Benefits as soon as the date of termination is known. the Member. Placement in furlough status is at the
If the termination notice is received by Payroll and discretion of the Member, unless a statute otherwise

Benefits after the 15th day of the month during which requires placement in such status.
the termination becomes effective, the payroll for that

month may have already been processed. 1. To be eligible for appointment to furlough status
at the discretion of the Member, an employee must
have been employed by the Member for the entire
month prior to the effective date of furlough status.

General 2. Anemployee placed in a furlough status continues

to fill an employee position. The name of such
employees will be listed on the monthly payroll
certification forms.

The Member determines the terms and conditions
of employment, including provisions for leave (e.g.,

Annual, Administrative, and Sick). i i L
3. Continuation of employee benefits while in a

Contact the Office of House Employment Counsel at furlough status:

%57075 for model Ieave policies. a. Health benefits enrollment and coverage may
be continued for up to 12 months. However,
Family and Medical Leave to maintain such enrollment and coverage,
an employee placed in a furlough status is
Pursuant to the Family and Medical Leave Act responsible for the payment of the employee’s
(“FMLA"), a person employed by a Congressional portion of the insurance premium for the time
office for at least one year and for a total of at least period of the furlough status, either by direct
1,250 hours during the previous 12-month period is payment or by incurring a debt to the House.
entitled to up to a total of 12 weeks of unpaid leave Employees should contact the Office of Payroll
during any 12-month period for the following family and Benefits for more information.
and medical reasons: b. Life insurance continues for up to 12 months

without employee contribution.

1. For the birth of a child and to care for the newborn ¢. Retirement coverage continues without

10
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employee contribution. Up to 6 months in
a calendar year is credited for service in the
annuity computation, while in furlough status.

d. The placement of an employee in a furlough
status must be made on the appropriate form
provided by the Office of Payroll and Benefits
and received on or before the 15th day of the
month in which the furlough status is to be
effective. Contact Payroll and Benefits at x51435
for such forms.

Contact Payroll and Benefits at x51435 for information
on employee benefits while on furlough.

Jury and Witness Duty

Under 2 US.C. § 130b, the pay of an employee shall
not be reduced during a period of absence with respect
to which the employee is summoned as a juror; or as

a witness on behalf of any party in connection with
any judicial proceeding to which the United States or a
State or local government is a party.

An employee may not receive fees for service as

juror in a court of the United States or the District

of Columbia; or as a witness on behalf of the United
States or the District of Columbia. If an employee
receives an amount {(other than travel expenses)

for service as a juror or witness in such a court, the
employee must remit such amount to the Office of
Finance for deposit in the general fund of the Treasury.

Leave Without Pay

Leave Without Pay (“LWOP”) is an absence without
pay. LWOP status is initiated by the employee and is
subject to Member approval, unless a statute otherwise
requires placement in such leave status. To be eligible,
an employee must have been employed by the Member
for the entire month prior to the effective date of the
LWOP status.

1. Asabasic condition for approval of LWOP status,
there should be a reasonable assurance that the
employee will return to duty at the end of the
approved period. Members are encouraged to
contact the Committee on Ethics at x57103 prior to
approving a LWOP status request to confirm that
no conflict of interest issues exist.
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2. LWOP status should be requested in advance of the
period of absence.

3. LWOP status may not exceed 12 months in a
24-month period.

4. When an employee has been appointed to LWOP
status, he or she continues to fill a payroll position.
The name of such employees will be listed on the
monthly payroll certification forms.

5. Continuation of employee benefits while on LWOP
status:

a, Health benefits enrollment and coverage may
be continued for up to 12 months. However,
to maintain such enrollment and coverage,
an employee placed in a LWOP status is
responsible for the payment of the employees
portion of the insurance premium for the
period of the LWOP status, either by direct
payment or by incurring a debt to the House.
Employees should contact the Office of Payroll
and Benefits for more information on applicable
regulations,

b. Life insurance continues for up to 12 months
without employee contribution.

¢. Retirement coverage continues without
employee contribution. Up to 6 months in
a calendar year is credited for service in the
annuity computation.

6. The placement of an employee on LWOP status
must be made on the payroll authorization form
and received by the Office of Payroll and Benefits
on or before the 15th day of the month in which
the IWOP status is to be effective.

Contact Payroll and Benefits at x51435 for more
information on LWOP.

Military Leave

Under 5 US.C. § 6323, an employee in the National
Guard or Reserves is entitled to up to 15 days of paid
military leave per fiscal year for active duty, as well
as for other qualifying purposes (such as inactive-
duty training). Employees are also entitled to non-
reduction in pay. In addition, under 5 US.C. §5538,
an employee called to active duty in the uniformed
services in support of a contingency operation, as
defined under 10 U.S.C. §101(a)(13)(B), is entitled to
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up to five years of paid leave offset by the employee’s
military salary. Please contact the Office of House
Employment Counsel at x57075 for additional
information on the rights, benefits, and obligations of

individuals absent from employment for service in a
uniformed service.

OFFICE EXPENSES

Appliances

Ordinary and necessary expenses for small appliances
(microwaves, coffee makers, etc.) for use in the
Member’s congressional offices are reimbursable.
Equipment, including appliances, with a purchase
price over $500 must be added to the Member's
inventory by contacting CAO First Call at x58000.

An Artistic Discovery, The Condressional Art
Competition

Ordinary and necessary expenses, within a category
of authorized official and representational expenses,
related to the Congressional Art Competition, An
Artistic Discovery, are reimbursable.

A Member may not mail An Artistic Discovery entry
under the frank. Shipping An Artistic Discovery
entry by means other than the frank js reimbursable.
Insurance expenses for the artwork are not
reimbursable except for shipping insurance.

Academy Nominations

Ordinary and necessary expenses related to
reimbursement of travel expenses in support of
attending information sessions/briefings at any of the
National Military Academies is reimbursable.

Amicus Briefs

Ordinary and necessary expenses related to amicus
brief filing fees are reimbursable for the following
purposes:

1. To file an amicus brief in his or her capacity as a

Member of Congress; or

2. To participate in a civil action challenging the
validity of any federal law or regulation; or

3. To participate in a civil action challenging the
lawfulness of an action of a federal agency, or
an action of a federal official taken in an official
capacity, provided that the action concerns a
matter of public interest, rather than a matter that
is personal in nature,

All other legal fees associated with the filing of an
amicus brief are not reimbursable from the MRA.

Cortificales

Certificates of recognition to a person who has
achieved some public distinction for distribution in
connection with official and representational duties are
reimbursable.

Certificates must comply with the Franking
Regulations. Examples of public distinction include,
but are not limited to, state, regional or national
recognition of some public, community or civic
duty or service. Others include acts of heroism, US.
citizenship, high school graduations, the award of
an Eagle Scout Gold Star, and military academy
nominations,

Contact the Franking Commission at x60647.

Clipping Services
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Ordinary and necessary expenses related to clipping
services (newspapers, periodicals, magazines, etc.) are
reimbursable.

Decorating Expenses

Decorations of nominal value (e.g., as frames,
bookends, flags, seals, rugs, etc.) for Congressional
offices are reimbursable.

Contact the Committee on House Administration at
x58281 for a list of government agencies that provide

wall decorations free of charge.

Deposits

Security and other deposits are not reimbursable and
must be paid from the Member's personal funds. Each
Member should notify vendors that any return of
deposits should be made to the Member.

Drug Testing

Ordinary and necessary expenses related to drug
testing, in accordance with the Member’s written drug-
testing policy, are reimbursable.

Offices should consult with the Office of House
Employment Counsel at x57075 when establishing
drug-testing policies.

Pursuant to 5 US.C. § 5946, dues, membership fees,
assessments, and annual fees are not reimbursable.

Educational Expenses

Ordinary and necessary expenses for Members or
employees to attend vendor-sponsored conferences,
seminars, briefings, professional training, and
informational programs related to the official and
representational duties to the district from which he or
she is elected are reimbursable.

1. Members or employees may not be reimbursed
for expenses to attend educational programs in
order to obtain a primary, secondary, graduate,
postgraduate, or professional degree.

02
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2, Expenses associated with acquiring or maintaining
professional certification or licensing are not
reimbursable, except for basic first-aid, CPR, or
notary certifications.

3. Informational programs are events in which

interaction with participants relates to official
business, including but not limited to discussions
about the federal role of government in various
issue areas, discussions involving how the Member
may assist constituencies through action from

the federal government or seek relief from the
government in any manner, discussions of policy
matters, etc. Information programs should not

be primarily social in nature, including but not
limited to awards events not related to official
business, galas or balls that are primarily social, or
other events in which official interaction is more
incidental than is the primary purpose.

Employment-Related Expenses

Ordinary and necessary expenses related to filling
employment vacancies are reimbursable.

The following expenses are not reimbursable:

1. Transportation to and from employment
interviews; or

2. Relocation expenses upon acceptance or
termination of employment; or

w

Relocation expenses incidental to a change in duty
station,

U.S. flags for purchase by individuals may be obtained
by a Member from the Office Supply Service (“OSS”) at
x53321. Initially, the costs of the flags will be charged
to the MRA. Once payment for a flag is received by the
Member office, the office may submit the check to OSS.
OSS will credit the MRA.

If a request is made to have a U.S. flag flown over the
Capitol, an additional flag flying fee must be paid by
the individual purchasing the flag.

Food and Beverage Expenses

13
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Except where noted, Members and employees may be
reimbursed for food and beverage expenses incidental
to an official and representational meeting that
includes one or more person(s) who are not a Member
or employee of the House.

Members and employees may be reimbursed for food
and beverage expenses no more than two times per
year for legislative planning session meetings involving
Members and staff.

Members and employees may not be reimbursed

for food and beverage expenses related to social
activities or social events (e.g., hospitality, receptions,
entertainment, holiday or personal celebrations, and
swearing-in or inauguration day celebrations).

Members and employees may not be reimbursed for
the cost of alcoholic beverages.

Framing

Framing services for items to be displayed in the
Member’s DC or district congressional offices are
reimbursable. In Washington, DC, when a Member
uses the in-House framing service provided by the
CAQ, costs will be automatically charged to the MRA.

Furniture

Furniture {e.g,, furniture, rugs, carpet, draperies,
repairs, etc.) is supplied and maintained by the CAO
for Washington, DC, congressional offices through
First Call at x58000 without charge to the MRA.
Furniture is not reimbursable for the Washington, DC,
congressional offices.

Gifts and Donations

Only the following gifts and donations are
reimbursable:

L. Items purchased for official presentation when
on official travel for the House of Representatives
outside the United States, its territories and
possessions. To purchase items from the House
Gift Shop, select the item(s) and notify the sales
clerk that it is for official presentation in the course
of overseas travel. Receipts for such items should
be vouchered for payment to the Office Supply

Service, and the voucher description should note
that it is for official presentation in the course of
overseas travel.

2. US. flags flown over the Capitol for official
presentation as a gift, including the flag flying
fee, are reimbursable. Such flags must be for
the personal use of or display by the recipient.
Donations of flags purchased through the MRA for
fundraising activities are prohibited.

o

Ordinary and necessary expenses associated with
the purchase of presentation folders or frames,
which are of nominal value,

4. Informational and educational federal government
publications of nominal value.

5. U.S. Capitol Historical Society publications of
nominal value (including calendars).

6. Expenses related to framing the Congressional Art
Competition winning artwork, when a Member
determines in his or her discretion that hardship
case is demonstrated.

No other gifts or donations are reimbursable.

House Gift Shop

The CAOQ operates a gift shop in B-217A Longworth

that sells souvenirs and mementos to Members, staff,
and the public. Gift Shop purchases may be made by
cash, check or credit card. A Member Account Card

may not be used to purchase items at the Gift Shop.

Contact First Call at x58000 for special orders from the
Gift Shop.

Expenses related to the purchase or distribution of
greetings, including holiday celebrations, condolences,
and congratulations for personal distinctions (wedding
anniversaries, birthdays, etc.), are not reimbursable,
except if authorized by the Franking Commission.

Insurance

A Member may be asked to provide a certificate of
insurance for the purpose of entering into a lease
for a district office or for securing space in which to
conduct a town-hall meeting or other official and
representational event. The House does not carry
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a private insurance policy and generally does not
permit Members to use the MRA to pay for a private
insurance policy.

Under the provisions of the Federal Tort Claims

Act, codified at 28 U.S.C. § 2671-2680, the United
States acts as a self-insurer and recognizes liability
for the negligent and wrongful acts or omissions of
its employees acting within the scope of their official
and representational duties. The United States is liable
to the same extent an individual would be in like
circumstances.

Although the Federal Tort Claims Act is not the
equivalent of private [iability insurance, it does provide
an aggrieved party with administrative recourse, and
if that proves unsatisfactory, legal recourse for damage
or injury sustained. Thus, to the extent negligent acts
of Members or congressional staff, while conducting
official and representational duties, result in either
property damage or bodily injury, such damage or
injury should be compensable under the Actina
manner that affords protection similar to private
Hability insurance,

However, if the provisions of the Federal Tort Claims
Act are not considered adequate, the ordinary and
necessary expenses for liability insurance to cover
these risks are reimbursable. When a compensable
event occurs, the deductible portion of a policy may be
paid from the MRA.

The expenses of fire and theft insurance are not
refmbursable.

Contact the Office of the General Counsel at x59700
for guidance regarding the Federal Tort Claims Act.

Interpreting and Translating Services

Ordinary and necessary expenses related to
interpreting and translating services, including
accommodations ordinary and necessary expenses
related to interpreting and translating services

are reimbursable. For events held in House Office
Buildings, contact the Office of Congressional
Accessibility Services at x44048.
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Ordinary and necessary fees related to late payments
incurred beyond the control of the Member are
reimbursable.

Mailing Lists

Ordinary and necessary expenses related to the
procurement and production of mailing lists may

be reimbursed, Lists may not contain information
about individuals whose primary residence is outside
the district the Member is elected to represent with
the exception of government officials. The list may
not contain any campaign or campaign-related
political party information. The list must be procured
or compiled as a result of a bona fide arm’s length
marketplace transaction.

Members may not purchase or acquire mailing lists
from their campaign offices or campaign-related
political party entities. Official mailing lists may not
be shared with a Member’s campaign committee,
any other campaign entity, or otherwise be used for
campaign purposes.

Use of mailing lists must comply with House
information technology and security policies as
approved by the Committee on House Administration.

39 US.C. § 3210 prohibits Members from sending
any mass mailings outside of the district from which
elected. For further guidance, please refer to the
Franking Regulations.

The CAO provides a service of sorting constituent
mailing lists to eliminate outdated/duplicate addresses
and reduce mailing costs. Contact CAQ Mailing
Services for more information at x54355.

Mail Preparation

Ordinary and necessary expenses associated with the
printing and preparation of Member correspondence
are reimbursable. Franking expenses associated with
all mailings will be deducted from the MRA.

Mass Transit Benefits

Members and staff working in Washington, DC or
the Member’s district are eligible for transit benefits.
For information regarding this benefit, please contact

15




205

MEMBERS CONGRESSIONAL HANDBOOK

Office of Payroll and Benefits at x51435.

Messenger Services
Ordinary and necessary expenses for messenger
services related to the Member’s official and

representational duties are reimbursable.

Official Meetings

Ordinary and necessary expenses related to
conducting official meetings are reimbursable. These
expenses include, but are not limited to, procuring
space, chairs, tables, audio/video equipment, etc.

Parades

Members may only use official funds from the MRA
to pay for transportation to and from a parade, not for
anything else related to the parade. If the Member uses
official funds to get to the parade, then no campaign
activity or materials are permissible at the parade,

Parking

Please see the Committee on House Administration
website for the House Parking Policy.

Information regarding District Office parking expenses
is available in the District Office section of the
Handbook.

Photography Expenses

Ordinary and necessary photography expenses

related to a Member’s official and representational
duties, including but not limited to, the Member’s
official photo, official photographs for distribution to
constituents, and photograph presentation folders and
frames of nominal value, are reimbursable,

Official photographs are those taken with the use of
House resources (equipment, staff, etc.) for official

use. These include photos for use on House credentials
and in House directories. Additionally, photos taken
with House equipment by House staff are considered
official photographs. Members may use MRA

funds to procure photographic equipment and use
staff resources to take official photos. Additionally,
Members may hire a photographer as a shared,

temporary, or contract employee. Official photographs
must comply with applicable rules and regulations

for official use and may not be used for personal or
campaign purposes.

In Washington, DC, contact the House Photography
Studio at x52840 for services, charges, and availability.

Photographs provided by a constituent may implicate
the gift rule. Contact the Committee on Ethics at
x57103 for more information,

Publications

Ordinary and necessary expenses related to purchasing
or subscribing to publications, including but not
limited to research materials, reference books,
informational brochures, electronic services, or
periodicals are reimbursable.

All invoices for subscriptions received by the Office of
Finance through the close of business January 2 will
be debited from the current MRA year. Subscriptions
beginning on January 1 or 2 may be debited from
either allowance year, as directed by the Member.

Subscriptions to newspapers and periodicals may
exceed the Member’s term.

Subscriptions that exceed a Member’s term in office
will be assigned to the Member’s successor.

Congressional Record

Costs related to providing Congressional Record
subscriptions to constituents, private entities, or public
entities are not reimbursable.

Offices are authorized to purchase additional copies of
the Congressional Record, as necessary for office use.

Representational Programs

Ordinary and necessary expenses related to programs
established by the Member to promote the public good
or civic service, or to solicit input/information from
constituents related to official business is reimbursable.
Any program’s title may only include the state and
district of the Member. The program title may not

bt
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include the name of the Member. Members and staff
may not solicit any items of value for the program,
and may not offer any officially paid goods or services
as a result of participating in the program that is not
authorized as a gift.

Staff Meetings

Members and staff may attend staff meetings (e.g.,
staff retreats, internal staff development, legislative
planning sessions, etc.) at a Member-authorized
location in the Member's State or in the Washington,
DC metropolitan area for official and representational
purposes, and may seek reimbursement for expenses
relating to attendance at such meetings, provided that
such expenses are otherwise consistent with all other
Handbook regulations. Staff whose duty station is

in the location of the meeting may not incur lodging
expenses when staff meetings are held in that area.

The MRA may not be used for social events or
activities.

Supplies

Office supplies to support the conduct of the Member’s
official and representational duties are reimbursable.

The Office Supply Store (“OSS”) is located in Room
B-217 Longworth at x53321. OSS issues each Member
an Account Card for official purchases, which may
only be used by the Member and/or stafl. The cost of
all iterns purchased with the Account Card is charged
to the MRA.

Supplies for a Member’s district office may be procured
in the district through supply stores or through
regional General Services Administration (“GSA")
supply centers.

Ordinary and necessary expenses related to procuring
storage space are reimbursable. Long term space or
storage rental contracts should be submitted to the
CAO Office of Administrative Counsel for review and
approval, and may not exceed the Member’s term.

Telecommuting

COMMITTEE ON HOUSE ADMINISTRATION

Ordinary and necessary telecommuting expenses
incurred in compliance with the Committee on
House Administration telecommuting policy are
reimbursable.

Telecommunications

Ordinary and necessary expenses related to the
official use, including periodic or flat service fees,

of telecommunications lines (voice and data) in the
residence of a Member or employee are reimbursable.
The cost of installation of such lines is not
reimbursable.

Audio and Video Expenses

Ordinary and necessary expenses related to audio
and video recording and materials, including but not
limited to the following, are reimbursable:

—

Production of public service announcements for
distribution to the stations serving the Member’s
district; or

I

Filming related to the appearance of a Member or
the Member’s employee at an official event; or

Videotapes and transcripts of commercial
broadcasts related to the Member or the Member’s
district for in-office use; or

Videotapes that are produced by the Member
or videotapes that are provided to a Member
and authorized by the providing entity to be
reproduced for official distribution; or

b

Video teleconferencing services incurred
in support of the Member’s official and
representational duties.

Except where authorized, the costs related to
purchasing television broadcast time are not
reimbursable. Members are subject to copyright laws
when utilizing outside materials.

In Washington, DC, the House Recording Studio is
available for audio and video services. Contact the
House Recording Studio at x53941 for information on
services, charges, and availability.

There are certain election-related restrictions on mass
communications. Audio and video content must relate

17
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to official and representational duties to the district
and must comply with Franking standards if sent out 1. Member’s name;
as an unsolicited Mass Communication. 2. Member's district and state; and

Printing and Production 3. Congress of‘the United States, House of
Representatives, or comparable language.

Printed materials produced by the Member are

reimbursable when they are in compliance with the Official stationery may include professional license(s).

Franking Regulations. Reimbursable printing and

production expenses include, but are not limited to: Official stationery may not contain the following
information:

1. Newsletters, postal patron mailings, mass mailings,
notices of town hall meetings or notices of personal
appearance of the Member at an official event or State Seal

o

Seals other than the Great Seal, Congressional Seal,

2. Administrative papers (casework tracking forms, 2. Member's political party identification
personne} record forms, etc.) 3. Slogans

3. Legislative papers (bills, drafts, summaries, 4. Private entity information or endorsement
amendments, etc.) 5. Campaign contact information (e.g., address,

4. Business cards for Members and their employees phone number, email address)

5. Stuffing, sealing, and associated expenses relating 6. Greetings
to printing and sending official mail 7. Picture or likeness of the Member

6. Stationery 8. Family crest

Printed materials only require a Franking Advisory Use

when they are distributed as an unsolicited mass
communication. Items not distributed as a mass
communication are not required to meet Franking
content standards, but the content must be official.

Official stationery may be used only for a letter or
other document the content of which must be official
in nature, When sent out under the frank, content
must comply with th.e Ifranking RegulatifmS. Con?act

the Franking Commission at x60647 for information
Pursuant to 44 US.C. § 734, ordinary and necessary on content of official correspondence.
expenses associated with the printing and production
of official stationery are reimbursable. Official
stationery may be procured from the Government
Printing Office.

Contact the Committee on Ethics at x57103 for
information on the use of official stationery.

Business Cards

Contact the Congressional Printing Management ) .

Division at 202-512-0224 and the Office of Publication ~ Ordinary and necessary expenses for business cards for

Services at x65200 for stationery requests. Members and employees are reimbursable. The content
of business cards must comply with the Franking

Additional stationery requests (writing paper, bond, Regulations. Business cards must contain the name of

etc.) are reimbursable. the employing authority and accurately describe the
position to which the employee has been appointed.

Appearance

PP Business cards may be obtained through Office Supply

Official stationery must contain the following Service at x53321.

information:

18
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Postal Expenses

Postal expenses incurred only when the frank is
insufficient, such as certified, registered, insured,
express, foreign mail, and stamped, self-addressed
envelopes related to the recovery of official items, are
reimbursable. Postage may not to be used in lieu of the
frank. All mailings initiated by a Member must be in
compliance with the Franking Regulations.

Members must return unused postage stamps to CAO
First Call (x58000) at the end of a Member’s service in
the House.

Postage expenses up to $100 per month are
reimbursable to return items not authorized as gifts
under House Rules for purposes of returning the
item{s) to the donor.

Equipment

Ordinary and necessary expenses for equipment

for use in the Member’s congressional offices are
reimbursable subject to Committee regulations. For
all questions relating to equipment and equipment-
related issues, refer to the Guide To Outfitting

and Maintaining an Office of the U.S. House of
Representatives, available at (http://cha.house.gov),
For further information relating to any of the CAO’s
services, please refer to HouseNet or call First Call at
x58000.

Booths

Ordinary and necessary expenses associated with
renting or outfitting a booth to provide public
information directly related to the Member’s official
and representational duties are reimbursable. While
the booth may be located outside the district, it must
serve your district’s constituency.

Cable

Costs of cable television subscriptions in support
of official and representational duties in the district
office(s) are reimbursable.
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Custodial Services

Ordinary and necessary expenses for custodial services
for district office(s) are reimbursable.

Furniture

If available, GSA will provide furniture to district
offices at no cost to the Member’s MRA.

Otherwise, these expenses are reimbursable for
congressional district offices. Furniture requests for
district congressional offices can be processed through
First Call at x58000 and charged to the MRA. Please
contact First Call prior to the purchase of any furniture
for district offices.

Leases

Rental expenses related to district offices, except for
security deposits, are reimbursable. There is no limit
on the number and size of district offices a Member
may establish. No lease may extend beyond the
Member’s elected term. Members must notify the
Office of Finance at 57474 in writing when a lease is
terminated.

District offices may be located in:

L
2. Commercial buildings; and

Federal buildings;

3. State, county, or municipal buildings.

District office space must be located within a Member’s
district unless there is no suitable office space ina
federal building in the Member's district. In that event,
a district office may be located in a federal building
serving the Member’s district.

Members may not accept free office space from private
entities. Private office space must be leased at a fair
market value as the result of a bona fide, arms-length,
marketplace transaction. The Committee on Ethics
has ruled that Members may accept free office space,
located in their district, when such space is provided
by a federal, state, or local government agency.

All leases must include a House lease attachment,

19
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Leases and lease attachments must be submitted to the
CAO Office of Administrative Counsel at x56969 for
review and processing. The Committee recommends
that Members submit such leases for review prior

to being signed by the Member and lessor, because
the Member is personally liable for payments under
any lease not in compliance with House Rules and
Committee regulations.

The House will authorize disbursement of funds
under the terms of the lease agreement only if the
lease agreement complies with House Rules and
Committee regulations. The House will not authorize
disbursement of funds to make payments under the
terms of the lease agreement until the CAO Office

of Administrative Counsel has reviewed the lease
agreement and has signed the attachment. Similarly,
the CAO Office of Administrative Counsel must
review any proposed substantive amendment and
sign the attachment for the amendment before the
House will authorize any payment pursuant to such
an amendment. Any amendment to a lease agreement
must be in writing.

Contact the CAO Office of Administrative Counsel at
x56969 for lease standards.

Mobile District Offices

Mobile district offices must remain in the Member's
district unless they are being stored, receiving
maintenance and repair, or traveling between points

in the district. If signs are used to identify the mobile
district office, they must be removed if they contain the
Member’s name when the vehicle is in transport.

Parking

Parking should be negotiated as part of the district
office lease. However, if parking is unavailable or
insufficient through the district office lease, Members
may pay for parking expenses at the district office

or may negotiate a separate parking space lease and
submit it to the CAO Office of Administrative Counsel
for review and processing.

Contact the CAO Office of Administrative Counsel at
X56969 for lease standards.

20

Repairs

Ordinary and necessary expenses for minor office
repairs that are the responsibility of the tenant, or
cosmetic changes that are requested by the tenant

and are not covered in the lease are reimbursable. The
expenses of capital improvements to district offices are
not reimbursable.

Contact the CAO Office of Administrative Counsel
at x56969 to determine if a repair qualifies as a minor
office repair or cosmetic change.

Security

Ordinary and necessary expenses associated with
security measures necessitated by official duties are
reimbursable.

Members may, without prior House Sergeant at Arms
(“HSAA”) approval, use their MRAs to purchase
security upgrades for their district offices from certain
HSAA approved vendors, if the total cost of the system
does not exceed $10,000 per office. Security system
purchases greater than $10,000, not including monthly
monitoring fees, require HSAA review and approval.
Offices wishing to obtain security assessments and
upgrades from vendors other than those speciffically
exempted may de so; however, they must first obtain
approval from the HSAA, regardless of cost. This
review is necessary for the HSAA to ensure the
qualifications and capabilities of various vendors not
previously evaluated.

Finally, the costs of security upgrades considered
capital improvements (e.g., constructing a new
doorway, installing bulletproof glass, etc.), must be
borne by the landlord and can later be incorporated
into the monthly rent of the district office lease. For
questions on capital improvements or modifying
district office leases, please contact the CAQ Office of
the Administrative Counsel at x56969.

Sharing Offices

A Member may share office space with Members of the
United States Senate from the Member's state or with
state and local officials, but all expenses (including
rent, utilities, etc.) and space must be kept and billed
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separately. Members may not share district office space
with other Members of the House of Representatives.

Contact CAQ Office of Administrative Counsel at
*56969 to submit such leases for review, and the Office
of Finance at x57474 to establish billing arrangements.

Signs

Ordinary and necessary expenses related to purchasing
sign(s) to identify the location of a district office are
reimbursable. Such signs may not include a picture

or likeness of the Member and must identify that the
premises is a district congressional office. If a sign
includes more than a Member's name and district, the
content must comply with the Franking Regulations.

Storage
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Storage should be negotiated as part of the district
office lease. However, if storage space is unavailable
or insufficient within the district office space,
Members may negotiate a separate storage space lease
and submit it to the CAO Office of Administrative
Counsel for review and processing. GSA will provide
temporary storage for up to 90 days for district offices
at no cost to the Member’s MRA. Contact the CAO
Office of Administrative Counsel at x56969 for lease
standards.

Utilities

Utilities are reimbursable. They may be integral to

the lease and included in the monthly rent, or may be
vouchered separately, or processed through automatic
payment. Contact the Office of Finance at x57474 for

information regarding automatic payment of utilities.

COMMUNICATIONS

Town Hall Meetings

A town hall meeting is an official meeting a Member
holds within the Member’s district with their
constituents to facilitate the exchange of information
regarding the Member’s official and representational
duties.

Ordinary and necessary expenses related to town hall
meetings are reimbursable.

Ordinary and necessary expenses include, but are not
limited to, the following:

Advertisements
Rental of rooms, chairs, audio systems
Audio/Video Expenses

Interpreting Services

Rl o o

ADA Accommodations

*

Reporting and transcription services

21

7. Electronic Transmission {not television)

8. Custodial Services
9. Signs/banners/leaflets/flyers that comply with the
Franking Regulations

10. Security (Members are strongly urged to
coordinate any security needs with the House
Sergeant at Arms)

1

-

. Plants or other relevant decorative items of
nominal value

Members may invite any Member of Congress

to participate in their official town hall meeting.
Travel expenses for a guest Member or Senator are
reimbursable from the MRA of the host Member. No
other travelers are reimbursable.
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Town hall meeting notices should include a contact
person to arrange for accommeodations for persons
with disabilities.

Members and employees may not accept, from any
private source, in-kind support having monetary value
for a town hall meeting. Contact the Committee on
Ethics at x57103.

Joint Town Hall Meetings

Members may be reimbursed for ordinary and
necessary expenses associated with holding joint
town hall meetings with Members of the House of
Representatives representing adjacent districts or
United States Senators representing the same state, as
specified below.

1. Joint town hall meetings must be held in one of the
hosting House Members’ districts, or if held jointly
with the home state Senator, then the meeting must
take place within the House Member’s district.

™

Expenses (excluding mail) may be divided

to reflect an accurate representation of each
Member’s expenses, and may be directly vouchered
through the Office of Finance with supporting
documentation (invitation, agenda, etc.) for the
meeting.

39 US.C. § 3210 prohibits Members from sending
any mass mailings outside of the district from
which elected. Therefore, Franked mail expenses
that relate to advertising joint town hall meetings
must be separately accounted for and charged to
the MRA of the Member into whose district the
Franked mail was delivered.

Virtual Town Hall Meetings

Ordinary and necessary expenses related to
conducting a virtual town hall meeting, including but
not limited to, radio broadcast time, internet resources
(Skype, Oovoo, streaming, etc.), or telephone town hall
meetings, for constituents in the district from which
the Member is elected are reimbursable. Costs related
to television broadcast time are not reimbursable.

Press Conferences

Ordinary and necessary expenses related to conducting

hed
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an official press conference are reimbursable.

Advertisements

Ordinary and necessary expenses related only to the
following types of advertisermnents are reimbursable:

1. Notice of personal appearance of the Member at
an official event, which the Member sponsors and
hosts in support of the conduct of the Member’s
official and representational duties to the district
from which he or she is elected.

2. Notice relating to the nominating process to the
U.S. Military Academies.

3. Notice relating to the Congressional Art
Competition, “An Artistic Discovery.”

4. Notice of employee and internship openings.

5. Notice of the address, location, and contact
information (including web presence), and email
for the Member’s congressional offices.

Notice of town hall meetings (physical and virtual).

Notice of constituent services available through the
Member’s congressional office(s) including, but not
limited to:

«  Assistance in contacting and working with
federal, state, or local agencies (casework);

« Information regarding visiting the U.S. Capitol
& available congressional tours;

+ How to request a presidential greeting
or congressional acknowledgement (e.g.,
citizenship, public distinction, community
service);

« How to participate in a survey related to the
Member's official and representational duties;

« How to request a US. flag flown over the US.
Capitol; and/or
How to subscribe to the Member’s
e-communications programf(s}.

Advertisements will be subject to review by the
Pranking Commission for an Advisory Opinion. In
the cases of online advertisements, some embedded
links and landing pages are subject to review. The FCC
disclaimer is not required for online advertisements
and relevant photos are permissible.




Advertisements are subject to Franking blackout dates
except in cases of the Congressional Art Competitien,
House STEM Competition, Military Academy
nominations, employment listings, and information in
the event of a disaster.

Contact the Franking Commission at x60647.

There are restrictions on mass communications within
90 days of an election.

Internet

Only advertisements within the authorized categories
on web pages that serve the Member’s district are
reimbursable.

Radio

Ordinary and necessary expenses only for a radio
advertisement within the authorized categories are
reimbursable.

The radio station broadcasting the advertisement or
meeting must serve the Member's district.

Television

Ordinary and necessary expenses only for a television
advertisement within the authorized categories are
reimbursable.

A television advertisement may only contain text

and voiceover and relevant graphics. The television
station broadcasting the advertisement must serve the
Member's district.

Disclosure

Members must disclose, within a television and
radio advertisement, the source of payment for the
official advertisements. Members may use any of the
following:

1. “Paid for with official funds from the office of
[Member’s name}.”
2. “Paid for by the funds authorized by the House of

Representatives for the [district number] District
of [name of state]”
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3. “Paid for by official funds authorized by the House

of Representatives”

Inside Mail is a delivery service for the transmittal
of interoffice communications provided by House
Postal Operations, pursuant to the regulations
established by the Committee on House
Administration. Inside mail service is available
among offices in the Capitol, the House and Senate
Office Buildings, the Library of Congress, the
White House, the State Department, and the Social
Security Administration.

Inside mail is provided to support the conduct
of the official business of Members, committees,
Officers of the House, and Congressional Staff
Organizations.

Inside mail service may not be used to circulate
letters which are personal or campaign-related, or
which constitute commercial advertising except
when postage is paid for with personal expenses.

All mail to be delivered via inside mail should
be clearly marked Inside Mail and should be
deposited in an Inside Mailbox.

Authorized items for circulation of inside mail
include:

1. A Dear Colleague or similar correspondence
relating to the official and representational
business of the Member. This correspondence
must be on official letterhead and signed by the
Member.

A position paper, report, legislative analysis, or
any material published or produced by another
individual or organization that a Member
wishes to circulate. This correspondence must
be accompanied by a signed cover letter on
official letterhead. A copy of the cover letter
must be attached to each item to be distributed.

Franked mail.
Stamped mail.
Mail for which a delivery fee has been paid.

Mail in a reusable blue U.S. House of
Representatives Inside Mail envelope.

A v w

Mail produced by Congressional Staff
QOrganizations registered with the Committee
on House Administration.
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Dear Colleague letters and similar correspondence
must be transmitted to House Postal Operations, in
the appropriate quantity, with a cover letter signed
by the Member, indicating to whom the mailing
should be distributed. For information regarding
these procedures, contact House Postal Operations at
x63764,

Electronic Communications

Ordinary and necessary expenses related to electronic
communications (Internet, fax machines, etc.) are
reimbursable.

All official electronic communication content,
which is sent out as an unsolicited mass
communication, must comply with the Franking
Regulations.

All official electronic communications must
comply with House information technology and
security policies as approved by the Committee on
House Administration.

All official electronic communications sent to an
email list of 100 or more individuals must include a
usable opt-out in the body of the email that enables
an individual to opt-out from the Member’s email
list. Opt-out requests must be honored. These
mailings much comply with IT Policy 007.0 -
Email List Management Policy as approved by the
Committee.

All unsolicited mass communications must be
reported on the Quarterly Mass Communications
Report.

Subscribed Emails

A subscribed email is an email sent to individuals

who have taken a willful action to subscribe to the
Member’s email list. Members must notify individuals
who subscribe to email updates that the individual is
authorizing the Member to send regular email updates
from the Member’s office to the individual’s email
account. All email updates to subscribers must contain
an option that enables the individual to unsubscribe
from the email list. Members may send subscribed
email updates without obtaining an advisory opinion,
but the contents must still adhere to Franking
regulations.
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Non-subscribed Emails

If each email address used in a mass communication
was not obtained with an individual subscribing for
subscribed email updates, then the Member must
receive a Franking Advisory prior to the distribution of
the mass communication.

Newspaper Inserts

Ordinary and necessary expenses related to the
production and distribution of newspaper inserts are
reimbursable. The content must be in compliance with
the Franking Regulations.

There are certain election-related restrictions on mass
communications.

Unsolicited Mass Communication
Restrictions

Unsolicited mass communication is defined consistent
with Franking Regulations as any unsolicited
communication of substantially identical content to
500 or more persons in a session of Congress.

Except where noted, unsolicited mass
communications, regardless of the means of
transmittal, must receive an Advisory opinion from
the Franking Commission, prior to dissemination.
Advisory Opinions may be obtained from the Franking
Commission at X60647.

Expenditures from the MRA for unsolicited mass
communications, regardless of the means of
transmittal, are prohibited if such communication
occurs fewer than 90 days immediately before the date
of any primary or general election (whether regular,
special, or runoff) in which the Member’s name will
appear on an official ballot for election or reelection to
public office.

Examples of unsolicited mass communications are:

Radio, TV, internet, or newspaper advertisements
of town hall meetings or of a personal appearance
of the Member and/or the Member’s employees at
an official event
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Mass mailings

Newspaper inserts

Mass automated phone calls
Mass Facsimiles

Posters, flyers, leaflets, handouts, etc., that are
distributed as mass communications

Radio programs aired on broadcast time purchased
with official funds

Video or audio communication for which

official funds are expended for production and
distribution

Mass email communications distributed to a non-
subscribed emailing list

This restriction does not apply to the following:

Direct responses to communications (solicited
communications)

Communications to Members of Congress and
other government officials

News releases, press releases, or media releases
(written or recorded communications from
Members, directed at the news media), in any
format. Note that expenses for production and
transmittal are reimbursable; expenses for satellite
downlink and broadcast are not reimbursable.
Websites (including a Member’s official website)
and other electronic bulletin boards on which
information is posted for voluntary public access
Advertisements for employee position and
internship openings, U.S. Military Academy Days,
and An Artistic Discovery

Member’s participation in a media hosted
interview or program

Previously recorded programs and public service
announcements aired at the discretion of a media
outlet, when no expenses are incurred by the
Member

Purchases of research materials, including
videotapes, audiotapes, and other electronic media

Video teleconferencing services

. Mass email communications distributed to a

subscribed emailing list

COMMITTEE ON HOUSE ADMINISTRATION

Internet sites paid for with official funds (Websites) are
a series of centrally maintained Web pages, accessible
to the public via the Internet and stored on a specific
host. The home page is the first accessible page for that
site.

4.

8.

Ordinary and necessary expenses associated
with the creation and continued operation of
Websites, in support of the Member's official and
representational duties, are reimbursable.

Except as noted in item 6, below, Members’ Web
sites must be located in the HOUSE.GOV host-
domain and must be hosted in conformance with
the regulations issued by the Committee on House
Administration.

Members’ Websites may be maintained by

either House Information Resources (HIR), the
Member’s congressional office, or a private vendor
authorized to provide Web services to the House
in compliance with the regulations issued by the
Committee on House Administration.

Members’ Websites may link to Committee
Websites, but Committee Websites may not be
located on Websites paid for by the MRA,

Members may include information within their
Website about CMO issues and activities. All CMO
references within a Website must relate to the
Member’s official and representational duties.

In addition to their official HOUSE.GOV website,
a Member may establish profiles, pages, channels
or any similar presence on third-party sites

that allow individuals or organizations to offer
information about themselves to the public (Social
Media Accounts). Member-controlled content

on Social Media Accounts is subject to the same
requirements as content on Member websites,

Websites should be compliant with the accessibility
standards set out in § 508 of the Rehabilitation Act
of 1973 and the World Wide Web Consortium’s
‘Web Content Accessibility Guidelines.

Websites may link to non-government sites, so
long as the link content relates to the Member’s
official and representational duties to the district
from which he or she is elected, and the content
would not otherwise violate any other House rules,
regulations, or federal laws. Internet resources
may not contain content that misrepresents a
Member’s current role in Congress.

25
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9. For Member internet social media accounts,
Members should ensure their social media
URLs and account names reflect their position.
Departing Members may not maintain their
official social media pages/sites after they leave the
House; however, they may retain their personal
accounts provided the name (and other identifying
information) of such accounts clearly do not
convey the impression that the former Member is
still a Member of the House, or that the account is
an official account of the House.

Content
The content of a Member’s Website:

1. 'The official content of any material posted by the
Member on any website must be in compliance
with Federal Jaw and House Rules and Regulations
applicable to official communications and
germane to the conduct of the Member’s official
and representational duties. Accessing a web site
(whether by using a link or by other means) is to
be treated as a “solicited communication” from a
Member’s office.

2. May not include personal (outside of incidental
references), political party (except for political
party affiliations), or campaign information.

3. May not include grassroots lobbying or solicit
support for a Member’s position.

4. May not generate, circulate, solicit, or encourage
signing petitions.

5. May not include any advertisement for any private
individual, firm, or corporation, or imply in any
manner that the government endorses or favors
any specific commercial product, commodity, or
service.

Name (URL)

The URL name for an official Website located in the
HOUSE.GOV domain must be recognizably derivative
or representative of the name of the Member or the
name of the office sponsoring the Website and comply
with the regulations issued by the Committee on

House Administration.

The URL name for an official Website located in the
HOUSE.GOV domain may not:

1. Beaslogan.

2. Imply in any manner that the House endorses
or favors any specific commercial product,
commodity, or service,

3. Be deceptive and must accurately represent the
Member’s name or district represented.

A Member may use personal funds to purchase a
personalized URL as a locating address, so long as it
points back and resolves to the official website address.

Information Security

The Committee on House Administration issues and
maintains policy and standards to guide Members
and staff for the protection of House information and
equipment.

The purpose of these policies and standards is

to protect the Members and the House from the
inappropriate release of privileged or protected
information. Categories of information designed to
be protected include: legistative information, legally
protected information such as personally identifiable
information and medical information protected under
HIPPA. Information related to the advance travel
plans and locations of Members a_nd staff should be
protected to help ensure the safety of Members and
staff.

National Security Information is protected by law and
procedures established by the Sergeant at Arms’ Office
of House Security.

Members and staff are expected to comply with
applicable laws, House Rules, and House Security
Policy in thelr daily practice of using the Internet,
House computers, and mobile equipment. The House
Information Security Office at x66448 offers practical
guidance to assist Members in this effort.
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TRAVEL

General

Travel by Members, Members’ employees, and vendors
in support of the official and representational duties
of that Member to the district from which he or she is
elected is official travel. At times, authorized travelers

Official travel may not exceed 60 consecutive days.

may need to travel to remote parts of the district or Members have two duty stations: their Congressional
airline schedule may not meet the traveler’s need. District and Washington, DC. Staff duty stations are

Members and staff may use an alternate or other determined by their primary residence.
convenient airport, so long as Washington, D.C,, or the ~

district is the primary destination. Vendor OHficial Travel

Ordinary and necessary expenses associated with Official travel also includes travel by a vendor when

official travel are reimbursable. traveling to provide service or training to Member
offices.

Official travel includes Jocal travel and travel away

from home overnight to conduct official and A vendor is an employee of a private company that

representational duties, when returning to the duty provides maintenance and support for equipment and

station or residence is impractical. software (computer and non-computer) under a valid
House contract or working on a time and material

Living expenses and commuting expenses are not basis.

reimbursable, except in extraordinary circumstances

(e.g., extreme weather conditions, staff working All travel costs must be negotiated and agreed upon in

beyond availability of mass transit or rideshare writing by both parties prior to vendor travel. Offices

arrangements, etc.) when a Member receives are encouraged to utilize the federal government

written authorization from the Committee. “Living per diem rates established by the General Services

expenses” include meals, housing, and other personal ~ Administration for vendor travel costs as a benchmark.

expenses incurred at the Member’s or employeé’s For a listing of the per diem rates by state and locality,

residence or duty station. “Commuting expenses” are  see htp://www.gsa.gov/portal/category/21287.
transportation expenses incurred by the Member or
employee while commuting between their residence
and duty station.
Official travel includes travel to an official point from
Official travel, paid for with the MRA, may notbe for  a location visited on personal travel by Members and
personal, campaign-related political party, campaign,  staff, if the travel to the official point is necessitated
or committee purposes. by an unexpected official duty {e.g., previously
unscheduled House vote, natural disaster, or civil
Official travel cannot originate from or terminate ata  disorder). In such cases, return travel to the point
campaign event. Official travel may not be combined  of personal destination is considered official and
with or related to travel or travel-related expenses paid  reimbursable and is eligible for government rate,

for with campaign funds. i
Combined Travel

27
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Combined travel is travel by a Member or their
employees for the primary purpose of supporting the
official and representational duties of the Member, but
includes an intervening destination or an additional
time period that is included for personal purposes.

Combined travel requires that:

1. The primary purpose of the travel must be official
and representational. The personal segment
of the combined travel may not be purchased
at & government rate or be purchased with a
Government Travel Card.

2. The traveler seeks reimbursement for either the
government rate of the direct route and means
to the destination required for official and
representational business, or the actual traveled
fare, whichever is less.

3. The travel back from the personal destination to
Washington, DC, or the district may be reimbursed
at the government rate or the normal district to
Washington, DC, government rate, whichever is
less, so long as the return travel originates from
a point within the United States, its territories or
possessions

4. The traveler must attach a brief memo to
the voucher submitted for combined travel
reimbursement, stating that the official travel
and personal travel was combined for personal
convenience.

In the event of a segment of private travel, there is an
absolute prohibition on reimbursement from official
funds for the private travel segment.

Official Travel Expenses

Official travel expenses including transportation,
lodging, meals (excluding alcohol), fees (e.g., parking,
tolls, ticket change fees, etc.}, and other ordinary and
necessary incidental expenses while on official travel
status are reimbursable.

Shared Official Travel Expenses

Official travel expenses may be shared by more
than one Member or committee office. The division
of expenses must accurately reflect each traveler’s
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expenses, and offices may only pay for the expenses of
their respective Member, staff, and authorized vendors.

Chartered Aircraft

Ordinary and necessary expenses related to chartering
an aircraft for official travel are reimbursable when:

1. Passengers are restricted to Members, their
employees, and their immediate family members
(spouse, child, parent), the names of whom must
be stated on the voucher.

2. Ifan immediate family member uses a chartered
aireraft with the Member, the Member may seek
reimbursement for the full cost of the chartered
aircraft and the family member must submit a
check to the Office of Finance payable to the U.S.
Treasury equivalent to the cost of a comparable
commercial first class fare. A letter explaining the
reason for its submission must accompany the
check.

Other non-congressional individuals may travel on
the Member chartered aircraft when the following
criteria are met:

a. The chartered aircraft vendor has the ability to
charge based on individual seating in the same
manner as a commercial aircraft vendor; and

b. The other passengers are federal, state and local
officials, and are joining the Members and staff
in support of congressional issues related to the
district.

Corporate or Private Aircraft

Reimbursement for corporate or private aircraft is
subject to House Rules. Please contact the Committee
on Ethics for information regarding the permissible
use of corporate or private aircraft at x57103. The
Comimittee on Ethics may grant approval in writing
for the use of corporate or private aircraft. If the
Committee on Ethics approves the use of corporate
or private aircraft, a Member and/or their employees
who travel via corporate, business, or privately-
owned aircraft in support of the conduct of official
and representational duties must reimburse the entity
providing the flight, for the fair market value of the
flight. To determine the fair market value of such a
flight, apply the following:
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1. When the travel is via a previously or regularly
scheduled flight by the corporation, business, or
individual, the entity must be reimbursed based
on the cost of a commercial first class flight to the
nearest location served by a commercial passenger
airline. If only coach rates are provided at the
nearest location, the Member must reimburse the
cost of a commercial coach rate.

2. When the flight is scheduled specifically for
Member use, payment will be made based on the
cost of an equivalent commercial chartered flight
to that location.

Prior to scheduling travel provided by any corporation,
business, or individual, a Member or employee must
verify that the person has authority under its FAA
certification to accept payment for travel as set forth
above.

Government Rate Eligibility

Government rates are available to Members and
employees to support the conduct of official travel.

To be eligible for Government rates when purchasing
tickets for official travel, Members and employees may
present:

1. The Government Travel Card; or

2. An Official Travel Authorization (OTA) coupon
available from the Office of Finance. (Some
airlines only allow the government rate for tickets
purchased with the government travel card.)

Contact the General Services Administration (GSA)
to obtain a listing of schedules and fares of the federal
contract air, rail, bus carriers, car rental companies,
and hotels/motels. Government rates are not available
for privately-sponsored officially connected travel,

Officially L.eased Vehicles

Ordinary and necessary expenses related to the lease
of a vehicle in support of the conduct of official and
representational duties are reimbursable.

Non-governmental use of such a vehicle may be made
only when such use is:
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1. During the course of and generally along the route
of a day’s official itinerary.

2. Incidental to the day’s official and representational
business.

3. De minimis in nature, frequency, and time
consumed.
Does not otherwise constitute a significant activity
or event,

5. Not for any campaign/campaign-related political
party purpose.

Short-Term

Ordinary and necessary expenses related to short-
term vehicle rentals are reimbursable. Rentals may not
exceed 60 consecutive days if the rental is used by only
one person.

The government discount rates offered by some rental
car companies include:

1. Unlimited free mileage.

2. Collision damage waiver {CDW) at no additional
cost.

Cars rented at the government rate should include

the CDW. Not all rental car franchises offer the
government rate with CDW included. To ensure COW
coverage, offices can make their rental car reservations
through the Combined Airlines Ticket Office (CATO).
CATO is located at B-222 Longworth Building.

If an office does not use CATO, then the Committee
recommends the following:

1. Attime of the reservation, indicate that the rental
is for official government use at the government
rate with CDW included.

2. At the time of rental, use the Government Travel
Card (or present official travel authorizations
(OTA) to the rental company) and confirm that the
car is being rented at a government rate with CDW
included. The employee must verify that collision
damage waiver is included, as simply receiving the
government rate does not automatically ensure
inclusion of this insurance.
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Offices may obtain an Official Travel Authorization
coupon from the Office of Finance.

If the government rate is unavailable, the cost of COW
is reimbursable.

Personal accident insurance (PAI), personal effects
coverage (PEC), and equivalent insurance policies are
not reimbursable.

If an employee on official and representational
business is involved in an accident with a rental car,
notify the Office of General Counsel at x59700.

Long-Term

Ordinary and necessary expenses related to a long-
term rental or lease of a vehicle by a Member in the
Member’s District are reimbursable.

1. A Member has two leasing options:

A. Member may lease a vehicle for a period that
does not exceed the Member’s congressional
term.

. The Member may lease a vehicle for a period
that exceeds the current Congressional
term, but must submit a signed letter that
acknowledges personal responsibility to fulfill
any outstanding obligation stemming from such
a lease in the event the Member’s service to the
House ends prior to the lease agreement. Such
letters should be attached to the negotiated
lease and submitted to the CAO Office of
Administrative Counsel (217 Ford Building).
The Comumittee recommends that Members submit
leases to the CAO Office of Administrative Counsel
for review prior to being signed by the Member
and lessor, since the Member is personally liable
for payments under any lease not in compliance
with House Rules and Committee regulations.

Termination notices should be forwarded to the
CAOQ Ofice of Administrative Counsel.

4. Leases may not include a purchase option.

5. Lessor-required insurance may be reimbursed.
Security deposits are not reimbursable.

6. The Committee recommends that long-term

vehicle leases begin on the first day of the month.

7. Monthly payments for a long-term vehicle lease
may be made in advance.

The House will authorize disbursement of funds

under the terms of the lease agreement only if the
lease agreement complies with House Rules and
Comnmittee regulations. The House will not authorize
disbursement of funds to make payments under the
terms of the lease agreement until the CAO Office of
Administrative Counsel has reviewed the lease and has
signed the lease attachment.

In the event of an accident with an officially leased
vehicle, Members or staff may contact the Office of the
General Counsel (202-225-9700) for guidance related
to the Federal Tort Claims Act.

Expenses

Expenses related to leased vehicles (both short-term
and long-term) including but not limited to the
following are reimbursable:

1. The actual monthly cost of the lease (not applicable
to short-term);

2. The cost of insurance incurred pursuant to the
terms of the lease (not applicable to short-term);

3. Excess mileage charges incurred pursuant to the
terms of the lease;

4. Incidental operating expenses (gasoline, oil,
general maintenance, etc.);

5. Wear and tear (not applicable to short-term);

6. Registration fees (not applicable to short-term);
and

7. Property tax during the term of the lease (not

applicable to short-term).

Security deposits, termination fees, traffic violations,

parking tickets, depreciation loss based on premature
return, and similar fees, penalties or charges may not
be reimbursed.

Global Positioning Systems

Costs for Global Positioning Systems (GPS)/
Navigational Systems in support of official and
representational duties are reimbursable.
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Satellite Radio Service

Costs of satellite radio service in support of official and
representational are reimbursable.

Privately-Owned Vehicles

The costs of transportation by Member or employee
via a privately owned or privately leased vehicle
while on official and representational business is
reimbursable on a rate per mile basis. The maximum
rates per mile are:

Automobile: $0.555

Motorcycle: $0.525
Airplane: $1.31

.

.

.
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For the current applicable rates, contact the Committee
on House Administration at x58281. Each Member
office may set lower reimbursement rates.

Only mileage for use of an aircraft that is privately
owned by either a Member or the Member's employee
is reimbursable. Gasoline purchased for privately
owned vehicles is not reimbursable; reimbursement is
provided through mileage rate reimbursement.

Travel Promotional Awards

Free travel, mileage, discounts, upgrades, coupons,
etc., awarded at the sole discretion of a company as a
promotional award may be used at the discretion of the
Member or the Member’s employee. The Committee
encourages the official use of these travel promotional
awards wherever practicable.

VOUCHERS AND
PAYMENTS

Advance Payments

There are instances in which advance payments may be
required and may be paid from the MRA. All advance
payments must meet all of the following three criteria:

1. The vendor provides these billing options to other
customers {(documentation required).

2. The amount to be paid must be fixed at the time of
purchase (e.g., variable cost contracts or services
are ineligible).

3. All transactions for advance payments for the next

legislative year must be submitted for payment
before the beginning of that legislative year.

Unless specifically authorized by the Committee, only
the following advance payments are reimbursable
and only to the extent they last the current term of
Congress (except where noted):
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Public information booth rental

Educational expenses
Authorized insurance premiums
Subscriptions for print and electronic publications

LA A

Telecommunications devices or services (including
Blackberry services)

Post-office box rentals
Original Equipment Manufacturers’ warranties

Long-term automobile leases up to the end of 2
Member’s term, when a savings to the House may
be achieved as a result of the advance payment
(indluding GPS, and satellite radio services)

Web and information technology services
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(including software license and maintenance fees)
Advance payments are not allowable for custom
services to be performed such as but not limited to
designing or building websites.

. District office security services

. Correspondence management systems (one month
in advance)

. Cable television services, including digital video
recording services

. Bottled water/coffee services

. District office recycling and trash fees, janitorial
services

15. District office rent one month in advance

Any Member who is sworn into Congress midterm
is the assignee of all advance payments of his or her
predecessor.

Authorized Methods of Payment

Official travel-related expenses may be paid with cash,
check, personal credit card, etc., or the Government
Travel Card for Members and employees and
reimbursed through the Office of Finance.

Reimbursement and Direct Payment

Disbursements from the MRA are paidon a
reimbursment basis or by direct payment (to vendors)
and require:

1. The Member's signature, certifying that the
expense was incurred in support of the Members
official and representational duties to the district
from which he or she is elected.

2. Supporting documentation (receipt, lease, bill etc.).

Government Travel Card

The Government Travel Card is available for Member
and employee use for official travel and travel-related
expenses. Travel expenses incurred on this card are
directly reimbursable to Citibank with a copy of the
credit card statement, an accompanying voucher, and
applicable receipts.

Members and employees are reminded that the
Government Travel Card is for official travel purposes
only. Use of this card for any personal or non-official
purchases is prohibited. The Government Travel Card
may be used by the cardholder only. The cardholder
may use the card to purchase travel-related services
(e.g., airline tickets, hotel expenses, etc.) for other
authorized travelers.

The Office of Finance will monitor the monthly
delinquency report received from the vendor and
alert offices of delinquencies. The Office of Finance
will not intervene with the vendor in the event of a
delinquency.

Seeking Reimbursement: Vouchers

For information related to submitting vouchers
for reimbursement, please refer to the Voucher
Documentation Standards available on HouseNet.

Expired Appropriations

The Salaries and Expenses appropriation for the
House of Representatives, which includes MRA funds,
is withdrawn two years after the year for which the
funds were originally appropriated. This occurs on
September 30 of the year.

In the unlikely event an office requests reimbursement
for an official and representational expense incurred
during a year for which the appropriation has been
withdrawn, the Office of Finance will determine if an
amount sufficient to pay the expense would have been
available if the appropriation had not been withdrawn.
If no funds would have been available, then the
expense is the personal lability of the Member.

If the expense would have been payable had it been
timely submitted, notwithstanding the expired
appropriation, then the expense may be paid from a
currently available allowance, if available,

Tax Exempt Letters

To avoid paying unnecessary taxes, please contact the
Office of the General Counsel at x59700 for tax exempt
letters applicable to each state.
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CONGRESSIONAL
ORGANIZATIONS

Congressional Member Organizations P

General

Members of Congress may form a Congressional
Member Organization (“CMO”) in order to pursue
common legislative objectives.

Registration

Each Congress, CMOs must register with the
Committee on House Administration. Registration
should be done by letter request to the Chairman of
the Committee.

CMOs must provide the following information:

Name

Statement of Purpose

Officers of the CMO

Employee designated to work on issues related to
the CMO

el

To register a CMO electronically, please visit the
Committee on House Administration Website

Membership

Members of both the House and Senate may
participate in CMO, but at least one of the Officers
of the CMO must be a Member of the House. The
participation of Senators in a CMO does not impact
the scope of authorized CMO activities in any regard.

Funding and Resources
CMOs have no separate corporate or legal identity. A

CMO is not an employing authority. The MRA may
not directly support a CMO as an independent entity.

5
o

COMMITTEE ON HOUSE ADMINISTRATION

A CMO may not be assigned separate office space.
Neither CMOs nor individual Members may accept
goods, funds, or services from private organizations
or individuals to support the CMO. Members may use
personal funds to support the CMO.

A Member of a CMO, in support of the objectives of
that CMO, may utilize employees (including shared
employees) and official resources under the control
of the Member to assist the CMO in carrying out

its legislative objectives, but no employees may be
appointed in the name of a CMO. Business cards for
individuals who work on CMO issues must list the
employing authority before the name of the CMO.

CMOs may have independent web pages when no
official resources are used, outside of staff time, to
create and support the site.

Members may request a URL for a CMO, provided
that the request complies with the CMO domain
name regulations issued by the Committee on House
Administration. Web pages using such a URL need
not bave the same design or layout as the Web site of
the sponsoring Member.

Communications

CMOs may not use the Frank, nor may a Member lend
his or her Frank to a CMO.

A Member may use official resources for
communications related to the purpose of a CMO. Any
such communications must comply with the Franking
Regulations.

Members may devote a section of their official website
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to CMO issues.

A Member may use inside mail to communicate
information related to a CMO.

Members may prepare material related to CMO issues
for dissemination.

Official funds may not be used to print or pay for
stationery for the CMO.

Members may refer to their membership in a CMO on
their official stationery.

Congressional Staff Organizations

General

A Congressional Staff Organization ("CSO”) is an
organization, a majority of whose members are House
employees, that exists for the purpose of facilitating
interaction among congressional staff.

Each Congress, CSOs must register with the
Committee on House Administration.

At least one officer of a CSO must be an employee of
the House, and all officers must be employees of the
House or Senate.

A CSO should contact the Committee on Ethics at
%57103 before accepting anything of monetary value
from a private source.

Official Resources

Other than as specified in this section, House staff that
participates in a CSO may make only incidental use of
official resources for activities related to a CSO. A CSO
is not an employing authority of the House and may
not be assigned separate office space.

Each Congress, in order to use official resources of
the House (e.g., inside mail, House Intranet, etc.),

a CSO must register with the Committee on House
Administration. A sponsoring Member must submit a
letter, on official letterhead, to the Committee with the
following information:

1. Name of the staff organization;

2. Statement of purpose of the staff organization;

3. Officers of the staff organization, including contact
information;

4. Specify which of the following resources the CSO
requests use oft
a. Inside mail
b. House Intranet site
c. House Postbox; and

5. Individuals designated to maintain web and mail

services on behalf of the CSO (if applicable)

After the CSO is registered, the sponsoring Member
may submit, at any time, a letter requesting access to
Inside Mail, a House postbox, or a presence on the
House Intranet for CSO related activities.
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COMMITTEE ON HOUSE ADMINISTRATION

MODIFICATIONS

Additional Changes

The Chairman of the Committee is authorized to
make technical and conforming modifications to the
Members Handbook, and to make other modifications
with the concurrence of the Ranking Minority
Member of the Committee and notification to all
members of the Committee. In the event changes

are made pursuant to this clause, the Chairman shall
notify all congressional offices by suitable means.

COMMITTEE ON HOUSE
ADMINISTRATION
1309 LONGWORTH HOB
X58281
CHA.HOUSE.GOV
Revised 6/15/2012
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s rangeerwits SNSRI st

(,L(m% 24, 2oy
Kanny grabbed my handa to fook ai my nail polish
weiry 2ss man a:57AM

gotta keep a vid to capture the weird hugsfhair pullingftouthing hahahk

nizh they were wid, and then wouldnt isave
GET OUT
hanasaa
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/O0=U.S. HOUSE OF
REPRESENTATIVES/QU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP

From: iFYDIBOHFZBSPDLT)/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=
Sent: Tuesday, November 12, 2013 11:47 AM

Ta: —<-@mail.house,gov>
Subject: RE: J Crew Sample Sale

HAHAH now 'm laughing out Joud. That's wild. And no way! Sock buns must be masterfully executed and not
messed with,

From:

Sent: Tuesday, November 12, 2013 11:46 AM
Toj

Subject: RE: J Crew Sample Sale

t guess he has not informed you regarding the first, and the last time, K ever touched my hair.. | was sporting a
well-groomed sock bun.

It did not go over well...

Don’t F with this white girl’s sock bun..

el

Sent: Tuesday, November 12, 2013 11:42 AM
To:

Subject: RE: J Crew Sample Sale

Has he told you about K’s affinity for touching my hair? That's a good one. ;)

From:

Sent: Tuesday, November 12, 2013 11:42 AM
To: I
Su

bject: RE: ] Crew Sample Sale

Oh my heavens. | can ONLY imagine JJJllllllfilis me in from time-to-time, because he understand my
appreciation for fun stories..

My apology’s in advance.

From: I
Sen: vember 12, 2013 11:37 AM

To:
Subject: RE: ] Crew Sample Sale

I'Il have some good stories for our road trip to JCREW @

erom: IR

COE.MEADOWS .00125¢6
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Sent; Ti vember 12, 2013 11:37 AM
To:
Subject: RE: J Crew Sample Sale

| just laughed outfoud.....c.ceee

From:

Sent: ember 12, 2013 11:25 AM
To!

Subject: RE: J Crew Sample Sale

You got it! Too funny.

And no Kenny today! { was worried because | like to get into the office around 7:30 and he’s usually there sitting
inthe dark wanting to talk about obscure things.

From:

Sent: Tues November 12, 2013 11:23 AM
To:

Subject: RE: 1 Crew Sample Sale

And- Who talks forever..

And 1 sincerely apologize if Kenny is ever there, and Mark has been out for some time.. because the day will be
over before dismissal.

i)

rrom:J

Sent: T vember 12, 2013 11:21 AM
To;|

Subject: RE: ] Crew Sample Sale

We're out! That was so long. Mark being away for a week = lots of ideas spread around. Ha!

From:

Sent: Tuesday, November 12, 2013 11:14 AM
Toj|

Subject: RE: J Crew Sample Sale

AHH! Waiting on you all to get out of meeting so-can confirm, and | will send out final emaitt

EEEKK! Road trip, QT w/ the gals, and JCREW.. | may faint from excitement!}

From:

Sent: Tuesday, November 12, 2013 9:40 AM
Toi

Subject: RE: J Crew Sample Sale

can't wait!! ¥'ve been waiting for this. | want a skunk print skirt like-

COE.MEADOWS . 001257
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From:
Sent: Tuesday, November 12, 2013 9:19 AM

To:
Subject: RE: J Crew Sample Sale

Omg. Yes. 5o far: me, you,-, and-(i knowlwi!l gol)

rrom: [
Sent: Tuesday, November 17, 2013 9:13 AM

Subject: RE: } Crew Sample Saie

- minlt
From: I

Sent: Tuesday, November 12, 20,

Subject: RE: 3 Crew Sample Sale

t have a car, and | am more than willing to drive! Is anyone interested in going on Sunday?

From

Sent: Saturday, November 09, 2013 10:22 AM
To MR
s

Subject: ) Crew Sample Sale

A number of us have talked about shopping the J Crew sample sale. Well, ] Crew Lynchburg is doing
another one this month, next weekend Saturday, November 16 and Sunday, November 17

You can call-for more info. I know it's almost a four hour drive but it's SO worth it.

Happy shopping!

mgressman Mark Meadows (NC-11)

Sent from my iPhene

CCE.MEADOWS.(001258
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BF Meadows. HEC Production.011217 000001

Instances of Inappropriate conduct in the DC office betwoen Kenny West and female staff
Person 1:

-Poking my side (happened numerous times)

-Hovering over me very closely (For no reason)

-jooking down my blouse (actually the one I'm wearing today) while hovering

-Making comments, "You should wear heels more often” while looking me up and down

-Asking how much | weigh

~Constantly sitting in the chalr in my office and looking me up and down

-Looking up my skirt very clearly on 2 occasions, one in Mark's office. Once when sitting in chalr in my office
s story

-Comments "wow that's quite the dress” when | wore a red dress

~Constantly commenting on what 'm wearing while looking me up and down

Person 2:

1. Constantly checking me out. In meetings, | have to sit In the most awkward positions, If I'm wearing dresses
or skirts, to keep his eyes from going to Inappropriate places.

2. He will stand shoulder to shoulder with me (or will try to) and | can notice him looking down my shirt.

3. He asked me to meet with him one-on-one in Mark's office so that we could talk. He immediately asked me if
I've ever been hit on by Members of Congress. When | said yes, he appeared to get very exclted (happy kind of
excited) and then immediately asked what It felt like, who hit on me, how they hit on me, and what't did. That
was about the entirety of the meeting.

4. Has blatantly told me that the women in our office are about the most altractive bunch of girls he's ever seen,
Person 3:
The two most egreglous issues I've had with Kenny:

1. Touching my head with his fingers {not just & pat on the head), which | directly addressed by telling him notto
touch me, and to respect my personal boundarles (which he subsequently did).

2. Touching the head of a female intern in the same way he did mine. | walked back to the kitehen and caught
him doing this - he looked up and noticed me glaring at him and casually laughed. | regret nat confronting him
about this.

As the other girls have said, Kenny also frequently hovered uncomfortably close to me, or leaned over me at my
desk, when | first started In the office. After the confrontation about the touching incident he rarely repeated this
behavior with me.

Person 4:

-Waiting for me in the office early In the mornings

-Puilling on my pony tall

-Tickling my head

-Giving back massages

~Inappropriate comments, including but not limited to: "You're my girl", “You know | love you?", "How's my sweet
thing?", etc.

Person 5:
My concerns are shorler, as | haven't had as mani issues and a lot has already been covered:

-Scratching my and other female interns' heads specifically)
-Telling inappropriate stories to the interns, none that | can remember spectfically

COE.MEADOWS.003646
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From:

Sent: Tuesday, October 21, 2014 8:35 PM
To: Z113 Meadows, Mark

Subject: Fwd: Meeting w/ Kenny

Congressman Mark Meadows {NC-11}
200 M. Groye Street Suite 90 | Hendersonville, NC 28782
P: 828.693.5660 | F: 828,693 5603

maif house gov

Begin forwarded message:

Date: October le 2014 at 3:52:34 PMEDT

To: @mall.nouse.gov>
Subject: Meeting w/ Kenny

During today’s meeting with Kenny I felt very uncomfortable, Obviously, I have never felt
threated or uncomfortable around you for any reason. However, Kenny make me extremely ill at
ease. He stares inappropriately and is overly touchy. I have not had this problem with any other
colleagues.

It is a very unfortunate situation and I just wanted you to be aware.

When it can be avoided I prefer Kenny West to maintain his distance from me.

Office of Congressman Mark Meadows (NC-11)
200 North Grove St., Suite 90 | Hendersonville, NC 28792
898-693-5660

SP_0001
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From: <] mail.house.gov>
Sent: Wednesday, October 22, 2014 5:03 PM

To: West, Kenny <-a}mail.housegov>
Subject: RE: Request

Gotcha. Corrected.

vou have I o ccess Mark has all stoff access.

Senior Technical Support Representative
CAQ Technology Support

141 CHOB

Washington, DC 20515

(202) 226- 1R (cirect)

(202) 225-6002, opt. 2 (Help Desk)

{202} 226-4700 {fax)

How am | doing?

Need Help? submit a Service Request Online via SRM
or forimmediate assistance contact our CAO Technology Service Desk: 202-225-6002

or 1-800-HIR-USER

From: West, Kenny

Sent: , October 22, 2014 1:46 PM
To:

Subject: Ke: Request

Bob all { want is access to-and- Mark wants access to everyone. Thanks

From: Turney, Bob

Sent: Wednesday, October 22, 2014 12:35 PM
To: West, Kenny

Subject: Request

Kenny:

COE.MEADOWS.000510
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Per your request, | have provided you and Rep. Meadows with access to the following
mailboxes:

Additionally, Rep. Meadows has been granted access to your mailbox {(West, Kenny).

To view the mail in these mailboxes is a fitle more complicated. You will need a Windows
desktop or laptop, a SecurlD token, and ejther o local copy of MS Outlook installed on that
workstation or a US domain workstation fo remote into. That will get you access to the last 40
days’ worth of mail for each staffer.

To go further back than that, we'll have to synchronize the vault for each user for you. It's ecsy
enough to do, but it's tricky and will take some time. Call me tonight at 202-288-4795 and | can
help you set up access to these mailboxes.

!ensor ec!nicol Support Representative

CAOQ Technology Support

141 CHOB

Washington, DC 20515

(202) 226- il direct)

{202) 225-6002, opt. 2 {Help Desk)
(202) 226-4700 {fax)

How am | doing?

Need Help? submit a Service Request Online via SRM
or for immediate assistance contact our CAQ Technology Service Desk: 202-225-6002
or 1-800-HIR-USER

COE.MEADOWS.000511
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West, Kennv </0=U.8, HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES/OU=EXCHANGE

From: ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP
(FYDIBOHF23SPDLTYCN=RECIPIENTS/CN=KENNYW>

Sent: Monday, November 17, 2014 10:16 PM

To: Mark Meadows (RGN

Subject: Staff

Mark, | have been over the last few days taking a good look at our present staff. They have done a good job getting vou
where you are at this point. Your strength is so apparent, | see where their struggling at times keeping up with you. |
believe a couple may have reached their own persenal best. That being said, | believe we need to start looking at maving
the ball forward to better match what you can and need to do. it's like there are sales people and then there are Broker's.
1 think we have some great opportunity’s with some with our staff. My job | feel is to make sure your passion for our
nation is met with a staff that matches you step by step or at feast working toward that. Below is what | think we need to
talk sbout with each staff.

DC
MR struccies with Leadership decisions and can’t be trusted ?
-: Works well with you and all your needs are met!
Very capable of being the LD and help lead the group!

: Needs to concentrate more on her role as | NN
R a5 been here two years and have reached his peal, steadfast but has not moved forward?
N : has the drive but have made some commonsense mistakes.
B { betieve is growing and withfllf s heip can continue.

District
PN : Cao't trust to hold himself accountable. Very likeable and | believe he needs to be liked and that's one of bis

roblems?

: does her job well, | befieve she is struggling with personal issues which causes her to make bad decisions,
-: Has become the standard of what each staff should be measured!
: Does a great job but follows to much in area’s that take her away from her responsibilities,

|| Struggles to be consistent in his duties, but the people that he works with and constituents really fike him.
teadfast and continues to grow, candidate for full time.
L Works consistently without instruction.

Works with the knowledge of you more so than anyonel

These last couple of weeks have been tuff to say the teast. | know for you also. | am very sorry that you and -have
gone through this ordeal. [t has made me realize that | em going to handle people very differently if we are ta move you
forward. t know God is in the middle of all this, and we will make good decisions going forward, | have a few changes in
people in mind when you and { get together.

thave also told-that I will be in DC more this coming year and she agrees. This | believe is a must so you can be the

man you need to be for the 11 District and the Nation,

Kenneth D West

Chief of Staff

Rep. Mark Meadows, NC 11

1516 Longworth Building

Washington, DC 20515

{202} 225-6401 office {202} 226-6422 fax

COE.MEADOWS.000549
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From: Mark Meadows <

Sent: Sunday, February 22, 2015 2:26 PM

To: West, Kenny <—@mail.housc gov>
Subject: Re: Staffing

Good points all the way around

Sent from my iPhone

On Feb 22, 2015, at 2:06 PM, West, Kenny <-@maii.house,aov> wrote:

Mark, when | ook at our staff | have come to some conclusions. | know you said it was not
necessary for me to turn in my recommendations but | thought | needed to. i have looked long and
hard at the DC staff and our district coordination moving forward. | am putting these fourth in
bullet point version so | can be clear.

DC 1feel that we have a staff committed to legislation and moving your ideas forward, that being
said they seem to be split on their foyalty to you and leadership. With that said here are my
recommendations.

<i--[if Isupportlists]--> <!--(endif}-->— -is very good at legislation. |
believe one weakness is he needs to be iiked by office personnel, likes the since of being
their boss and friend { youth & Character). | believe he has already told several office staff
about their positions changing wanting to appear to be in charge of the office, not you or
me. | believe if he stays he there needs to be no change in his responsibilities. His toyalty
needs to be 100% believing in you not leadership and the people doing their bidding. i.e.
(

<I--[if tsupportiists}->s  <!-[endif]-- I < o< = fantastic job in reaching
out to different people on the hill to get info and moving legislation. One of her apparent
weaknesses is getting caught up in discussing what leadership wants and office gossip, and
not moving what your thoughts are forward. | don’t believe she needs to be movedintoc a
more leadership role in our office until you are comfortable with the trust factor. We do
not need her and -at LD positions. This move would only make-appearto be the
boss.

<{--[if IsupportLists]-->» <!u[end§f}-»>qcmd):b. Her only weakness is not
being as open to change to your schedule to both nd me.

<i-{if supportlists]->e  <t-[endifl--{ N T she i 2 cood (NN S+c needs
to work on her confidence and not get caught up in office politics.

<b-{if isupportlists}-->e <!-~[endif}~~:— -has not moved forward the
way you need for a LA to be. | believe he needs to be replaced. { your call }

<1--[if isupportlists]--> <!»[endif]-~>—: I o¢s a good job and has
gott er at LA responsibilities. She may be salvageable but her apparent relationship
witheﬁ may create a solution in itself.

<i--[if tsupportlists}-->s  <I--[endif}-->Staff Asst:-or ., they are both loyal to you and
can be trusted. s friend they will reach out to him if necessary.

<i--if Isupportlists]->e  <!--[endif]-->New Staffer {possible): This needs to be a staffer that
works with the different office staff and is mentored by you and me and accompanies you
to different hearings.

COE.MEADOWS. 000517
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District Office

<i--{if Isupportlists}-->e <!-'[endif)~— While he has done a commendable job,
his loyalty for you and your beliefs are not there. He does not get out to all counties unless
your with him. It wasn’t until F was in the district that | found that many of the leaders from
the Counties do not know him,{ i.e. County Mgrs.} meeting he was not engaging getting to
know them. He has never been to any political meetings even the District Mtgs, Moving
Forward we need a District Director that’s goes throughout the district and seeing leaders
from all County leaders both official and Political. -has a tendency to go to Lenior
and Hendersonville and stay in office. | think it’s because of where he lives and he is just
uncomfortable with people he does not know. He seems to know more all about the State
officials and is willing to go to different functions regarding them but does not put the
same importance on going to functions in our district. | think he needs to be replaced.
{ your decision }

<i--{if tsupportlists]-->e <!»-{endif]-->— Needs to go!

<t-[if tsupportlists]-->e  <!-{endifl-| || e reaty tikes vou, he needs to feel
important to much. Does not let different people get in touch with you as opposed to
directing them to- I don’t believe he is the best strength for you and the district. He
also is big influence on - i think he may have to go.

<t-{if tsupportlists]-->s  <!--[endifl-- ]I Does 2 good iob. Could achieve great
things with different people guiding.

<l--fif lsupportlists}-->« <!~[endiﬂ«- Does a good job. | don’t think we move her
in to a more leadership role.

<1-[if isupportlists]-->s  <i-[endifl->{{ [ | | N Do<s 2 sood job, with the right
leadership she could be a gem of an employee.

<l--{if Isupportlists]-->e <!-~[endif]u>_:-is probably the most loyal and
determined young man that | know. | believe he needs to be promoted to Asst District
Director, He is very well liked and can go to different political and official functions on your
behalf. A great face of Mark Meadows.

<I--{if lsupportLists]-->» <!-»Iendiﬂ~->— Doing a good job can't wait until
he is permanently in office.

<i--fif tsupportLists}-->s  <!--[endifl--> N NG B ey both doa
good job in casework and reaching out to the community at large, | believe it is very
important for our office to see different officials in each County. With this said | think this is
the primary responsibility for the COS, District Director and Asst District Director,

<i--[if Isupportlists]-->e  <!-{endif]-->COS: | believe the moves that have been made with
me are starting to bear fruit. | know that moving legislation is important, however the
perception of the people in the district are no less important. The COS has got to be loyal
and not afraid of questioning. Confidence friendship and loyalty are paramount in this
position. The face of the Congressmant is first order of the day. Watching your back and
sometimes taking the fall is necessary in this position. | believe that the COS has to believe
one hundred fifty percent in who you are and with that belief it moves forward the agenda

of the American people in the 11" District.

with these recommendations, | think this will put you on more solid footing and begin that
trust factor that you need. | know | have been critical of some. This is a necessary evil to move
forward. As always 1 will support and help implement whatever direction you need to go. Mark,
you trusted me in the beginning and | know you still do. Leadership right now is not your
friend because of your determination about you being the leader the you are, that's exactly
why the people in the district trust and believe in you. Your friend and your Chief of Staff
believe now more than ever in you. We are in the battle of our lives with our Nation, and it
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needs you at 100% and | believe some change is necessary. Don't ever forget that I'm in this
with you because that's where God wants me.

Kenneth D West

Chief of Staff

Rep. Mark Meadows, NC 11

1024 Longworth Building

Washington, DC 20515

{202) 225-6401 office {202) 226-6422 fax
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eeee0 Verizon = 1:58 PM < @ 87%

< Messages - Details

Nov 29, 2014, 10:52 AM

orresponden

DC staff, particularly
- females. His office in the -
“new office will become

- our conference area.

According to mark, for
now, he will remain chief
of staff as the broader

guestion on his
emnlon j
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eeseo Verizon ¥ 1:59 PM < 9 87% )

{ Messages || R

Details

" The boss did want to

~ make clear however that
this is not temporary for

~Kenny. He won't be -
coming back up hereina -
few monthsor .
something. He willno
longer have a role in DC,
ever. |
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seee0 Verizon ¥ 1:59 PM < @ 87% W

{ Messages - Details

Wtf?! Then what is his
purpose in staff if he isn't
talking to anyone?

That aspect of it, | really
don't know. My best

guess is that the boss is
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esseC Verizon T 1:59 PM < @ 87% W)

{ Messages - Details

Wtf?! Then what is his
purpose in staff if he isn't
talking to anyone?

That aspect of it, | really
don't know. My best
guess is that the boss is

- trying to give him time to
find a new role.

y 0018
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eseee0 Verizon ¥ 1:56 PM ¥ @ 88%

{ Messages | Details

Nov 29, 2014, 12:40 PM

Yeah | hope so. | heard
through the grapevine
mark has been trying to
find Kenny a job for a bit.
Nobody is biting - not
surprised. Question is
what happens if Kenny
doesn't find something

he's def not going to find
something that pays as
well for doing nothing.

Yeah, lots of things to
sort out and | think the
boss is just taking it one
thing at a time

But overall, when it
comes to the most
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eeee0 Verizon 1:56 PM ¥ @ 88% W)

< Messages - Details

mark has been trying to
find Kenny a job for a bit.
Nobody is biting - not
surprised. Question is
what happens if Kenny
doesn't find something

he's def not going to find
something that pays as
well for doing nothing.

| lots of thmgs to
- sort out and | think the
boss is just taking it one
-thing at a time -

But overall, when it
comes to the most
blatant offense of Kenny,
the sexual harassment, |
mean, mission
accomplished
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< Messages - Details

Is tomorrow's 10am staff
mtg about Kenny?

coming back. figured
we should justhavea
_group meetingto have a
~discussion on what it all -
_means going forward.

if I'm not in, you could
just call and put me in
speaker. Jet lag is not
good and | may have to
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</0=U.8. HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES/QU=EXCHANGE
From: ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP

(FyD1BOHF235PDLTYCN=RECIPIENTS/CN-] N
Sent: Monday, April 27, 2015 11:48 AM
To: mail house.gov>
Subject: RE: Advice?

That would be very much appreciated. Just let me know when you have availability.
Thanks,

rom NN
Sent: Thursday, April 16, 2015 11:43 AM

To:
Subject: Re: Advice?

Any new developments? | would be happy to chat when | return to DC. | will be there around the end of the month,

Representative Trey Gowdy {SC-04}
104 South Main Street
Greenville, South Carolina 29601

{864) 241-0175

hitpi//gowdy.house gov/Forms/EmailSignup/

EMAIL UPDATES:
&

rrom: [ S - - . house 20>

Date: Fri, 6 Feb 2015 13:47:58 -0500

Subject: RE: Advice?

This message has been archived. View the original item
Hil

I cannot thank you enough for your efforts. At this point, he is still on staff and while he isn't up
here at the moment, I cannot say it isn't’ an issue and there are still talks of him coming back up.
He is also still in control of the budget/salaries, which has many concerned. Mr. Meadows was
adamant that it has been addressed, though,

COE.MEADOWS.000283
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1 have decided that I will likely have to consider looking for other options, and I actually have been
wanting to get in touch with you to see if you have time to meet the next time you're in DC.

Thanks again,

From:

Sent: Friday, February 06, 2015 1:28 PM
To:ﬂ

Subject: Re: Advice?

1 did address this. Did anything change?

Representative Trey Gowdy (5C-04)
104 South Main Street
Greenville, South Carolina 29601

(864) 241-0175

EMAIL UPDATES: http://gowdy.house.qov/Forms/EmallSianup/

<http://www.youtube.com/tgowdysc> <http://www.facebook.com/pages/Trey-
Gowdy/143059759084016> <http://twitter.com/tgowdysc> <http: wdy. house.gov/>
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From: [N B - - . house ooy >

Date; Wed, 7 Jan 2015 10:22:46 -0500
To: <N 2. house.qov >
Subject: Advice?

H IR

We met when you came into our office to speak with me and the other ladies in the office about
concerns we raised with our Chief, Kenny. First, everyone really appreciates what you did to help
and the honest advice you gave our boss, However, Kenny is still on staff and was temporarily out
of the picture, but things are going back to “normal” and he will be back up in DC, despite previous
assurances to the contrary. Needless to say, the other ladies and I aren’t comfortable with this and
we aren't sure how o address the issue privately.

Do you have any advice?

Thank you!

Representative Mark Meadows (NC-11)
1024 Longworth H.O.B.

(202) 225-6401
meadows.house.gov <https://meadows.house.qov/>

Attachments:
image00l.ong (2 k8)
image002.png (2 k8)
image003.png (2 K8}
image004.png (3K8)
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From: ]

Ce:

Subject: FW: Organizational changes

Date: Tuesday, June 27, 2017 10:50:10 AM

Please find the specific email you requested below. In converting it to a PDF, it Jost it's date and time stamp so [ am
torwarding it to you in native format. Please have it marked as BF Meadows HEC Production.062717. Thanks

Eltiot S, Berke

Managing Partner

Berke Farah LLP

1200 New Hampshire Ave. NW
Suite 800

Washington, DC 20036

202.517.0585 iTel.

This e-mail may contain confidential or privileged information. If vou are not the intendad recipient, please advise
by return e-mail and delete immediately without reading or forwarding to others. The following statement is
provided pursuant to U.S. Treasury Department Regulations: This communication is not intended or written to be
used, and cannot be used, by & taxpaver for the purpose of avoiding penalties that the Internal Revenue Service may
impose on the taxpaver.

~----Original Message----

From: Z113 Meadows, Mark [maitio JIlZmailhouse gov’

i se.gov]
Sent; Wednesday, March 25, 2013 7:57 AM

T -

Subject: Organizational changes

1 know that Kenny West has had Iimited supervision of staft other than the two of vou for some time, however as
part of the reorganization that { have been working on, I have made a decision to find a replacement for the Chief of
staff position. Effectively immediately, both of vou will report directly to me and will be responsible for your
respective employees in DC and the district. I ask the vou discuss this with no one (including other staff members),
as this is part of an on going process that has yet to be clearly defined. The only clear decision is that Kenny will no
tonger be COS. If'you have any issues that personnel related, [ would ask that you direct them to me. Thanks Mark

Sent from my iPhone

COE .MEADOWS . 003664 BF.Meadows.HEC.Production.062717
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/0=U.S. HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES/OU=EXCHANGE
ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP
#ypBorr23spoLTYCN-RECPENTS/CN-] R -
From: behalf of
Z113 Meadows, Mark </O=U.S. HOUSE OF

REPRESENTATIVES/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP
(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=MARK MEADOWS>

Sent: Wednesday, April 1, 2015 12:49 PM

To: N1t Al Staff <\ - house oov>
Ce: Z113 Meadows, Mark JJJJlf@mai! house.gov>
Subject: Re-Organization and a Goodbye

All,

Over the last few months, | have asked for input from several of you regarding the best ways we can
serve the people of Western North Carolina, As with any organization, there are constant demands
which cause us to re-evaluate and find ways to better serve the needs that confront us daily. While
some of the changes put forth have not been fully vetted or decided, circumstances have developed
that made this interim t more appropriate,

On Friday, April 17th, who has served as and been with me since the very

beginning, will be leaving to take a new position with| Bl e serving as a
_ working on transportation and aviation issues for NN 1¢'s = great

career move for our friend and will allow him to re-establish his Colorado ties. | know that | speak for
all of us when | say that alent and energy will be missed.

At the same time, as part of the re-organization, | have made a decision to have a full time Chief of
Staff in Washington, DC. This decision doesn't come easily and will require adjustments in a number of
areas, but | thought it was important to let everyone know that | will be interviewing possible
candidates to replace Kenny as our Chief of Staff. Kenny has been working with me on the re-
organizational plan and possible impacts for both the DC and the District offices, with our sole focus
being how to best serve the people of this great state.

I want to thank all of you for your dedication and willingness to adapt during this transitional time.
Thanks,

Mark
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U.S. House of Representatives

Travel Record
Privately Owned Vehicle

State: NC

Diatrict: 11

Traveler:

Kenny West

Rate: 0.560

Staff EIN:

Date

Points of Travel

Miles Travelod

116/118

From: Hayesville NC
To:  Handarsonviis NC to Hayasville

333.0

1716

From: Hayesvilo NC
Toy  Murphy NC 1o Andrews o Hayoesvila

68.0

118116

From: Haysavillo NC
To1  Ashesville NC o Hayesvife NC

258.0

114218

From: Hayesviile NC
Tor Marshailto

to Ashevida to Hay

3420

113115

Froms Hayesvlila NC
Te:  Frankiin NCto Hayesvite NC

81.0

116148

From: Hayesvilla NC

Tot

ville NC to Hayaswiie to

NCto

276.0

116145

From: Hayasviie NG
Tor  Novdand NC to Hayesvile

380.0

Froms
Tot

From:
Tot

Total Mileage:
Total Reimk

1,7370

£ $ 87272

I, the undersigned, state that the above expenses were approved and inourred

as a result of the p

Do Jo5F

f¢ of my dutles for the C

ional Office.

Signed - Staffer:

COE.MEADOWS. (000590
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1.S. House of Representatives

Travel Record
Privately Owned Vehicle

Honorable: Mark Meadows Rate: 0.560
State: NC District: 11
Traveler;  Kenny West Staff BIN:
Date Points of Travel Miles Traveled
12015 From: Hayeavile NC
To:  Bravard NC to Hendarsonvile to Mayesvilia NG 320.0
112118 Froms Heyssvide NC
To:  Feanklin NG to Syiva to Hayasvills NC 123.0
1722115 From: Haysaville NC
To:  Ashevilla NC la Charokes o Hayesvile NC 2380
12THE From: Hayasvila NC
Tor  Bumosvie to Marshati 10 Hayesviie 262.0
1128115 Frons Hayesvila NG
ro:  Murphy NC & Robblesvitia NG o Hayesvills 118.0
1120116 From: Hayesvila NG
1or  Franidin NC1o Byson Clly lo Hayesviia 147.0
1431115 Frons; Hayosvila NG
Do:  Frankin NCto Hayesviio 74.0
212145 From; Hayesvlle NG
par  Waynesviza NC 1o Hnyesvitla 176.0
2041158 Frov: Hayssville NC
7o, Hondesanvile NC to Ashavite 165.0
218118 Front Astieviie NG
Ty Nawland NC lo Mosgenton 1o Syia NG to Hapesvits 240.0
From:
Tol
From
Tor
From:
Tor
Fromt
1o
Total Milenge: 1,866.0
Total Reimbursement: $ 1.030.38
1, the undersigned, state that the above exp were app d and incurred
as o tesult of the performa of my duties for the Congressional Office.
) 14 .
) /’4'{'7"\‘ ne AM-'—“‘" Q*q.) /é" //§
) /Dntej/

/ /" Bigned - Staffer;
N
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Travel Record
Privately Owned Vehicle

Honorable: Mark Moadows
Btate: NC Distriot: 11
Travelers Kenny West

U.S. House of Representatives

Rate:; 0.580

Btaff BIN:

Date Points of Travel Miles Traveled
20815 From: Hayesvila NG
To:  Ashaviie NG 410.0
21915 From: Ashovilla NC
To;  Hendersonviie to Hayesvitia NG 147.0
VIR YAI Fromy; Hayesuiile NC
Toy  Franklinto Wayesvillo 1o Hayasvile NC 2140
2113145 Froo: Hayesvilte NC )
Tar  Murphy NC o Robtinevile to Hayasville 131.0
217148 From: Hayesvlile NC
yot  Syba NCio Hayssvite 115.0
2118/45 From: Hayesville NC
Tor  Ashasvills NG to Hayssviila 235.0
22015 Frowm: Hayeavils
'Pos  Bryson City 1o Hayesuile 148.0
2123148 Fromy Hayesvills
ror  Ashavile io Hayesvite 27.0
22815 From: Hayasville NG
tor  Motgantan NG to Hayesvila 387.0
,?af From: Hayasvite NG
2/, ﬁ 1§ oy Weavenile NG 1o Hagessife 238.0
’ From:
Ty
From:
Tat
From:
Tot
Fromi
Tor
Total Mileage; 1.850.0
Total Reimbursement: $ 1,082.00

3, the undersigned, state that the above exponses were nppraved and incurved
as a vesult of the performance of my dnties fox the Congressional Office,

e
7%)%,\/%:\7/

s y Signed - Staffer:

COE.MEADOWS.000592
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U.S. House of Representatives
Travel Record
Privately Owned Vehicle

Honorable: Mark Meadows

State: NC

Traveler: Kenny Wast

Distriot: 11

Rate: 0.560

Staff EIN:

Dato

Points of Travel

Miles Traveled

34115 From: Hayasville NC

To:

Neb ta Hayasvija NC

385.0

3518 Fram Hayesville NC
Tor  Ashaviie NC to Hayesvila NC

225.0

16 From: Hayssvila NC
Tor  Robbinsvile to Hayesvite NC

135.0

1ins Fram: Hayssvite NG
Tor  Mumdy RC to Bryson Cly to Sylva to Hoyesvits

180.0

205 Fronu Hayesdlia NG
Tor  Swananos NO 1o Murphy fo Ashaville NG

357.0

313/15 From: Asheville NC
vo;  Mars Hift NC, 10 Havesvilla NC

168.0

fatitats From; Haysavlle NG
To;  Waynosville NC, to Ashvite, to Franiam to Brevard fo Hayesvile NG

3200

/1815 Froo Hayosvitie NC
for  Asheviita NC to Hayesville

226.0

¥19M5 ¥rowms Hayesvilte NC
ro;  Hendesorilie NC to Hayesvills

205.0

Fromt

Total Mileage:

2,302.0

Total Reimbuxgement: $ 1,288.12

I, the vndersigned, state that the above expenses were approved and fncursed
as a result of the performance of my duties for the Congressional Office,

;f§;h%//;¥%/,,wﬂw,m

Sz23 5

7/ Signed - Staffer;

/)

COE .MEADOWS. 000593
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U.S. House of Representatives

Travel Record
Privately Owned Vehicle

8tate: NC
Traveler

District: 11
Kenny Wast

Rate; 0.560

Stoff EIN:

Date

Polnts of Travel

Miles Traveled

3124118

Yrom: Hayesvilla NC
bror  Franklin NC 1o Ashaviie to Hayasvilie

220.0

3126445

From: Hoyeaville NC
Pa;  Fortana Dam, 10 Bryson Clty o Hayesvite

182.0

313015

From: Hayssvile NG
Tor  Bumosvile NC 1 Ashavih to Hayesvile

257.0

4118

From: Hayesvids NC
To:  Hickory NC 1o Hayesvills

398.0

4R35

From; Hayasvila NC
To:  Biovard NCio Hayesvilie

298.0

A5

Trom: Hayssvilla NG

NC to Madon NC NC

Tar b

320.0

4nis

From: Hayasvila NC
Yo Asheviio NT o Hayssviie NG

00.0

4/9/18

Proms Hayesvile NC
7o Canton NO 1o HayasviBa NC

170.0

Frams
ot

Fromy

Total Mileage:
Total Reim}

2,026.0

t $ 1,434.00

I, the undersigned, state that the above expensos wore approved and jncurred
25 a result of the performance of my dutles for the Congressional Office,

,-"_nl‘
Dty

/

sxé}bd - Btoffer:

COE.MEADOWS . 000594
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Honorable: Mark Meadows

U.S. House of Representatives

Travel Record

Privately Owned Vehicle

Rato:

State: NC Distriot: 11
Teaveler:  Kenny West

Staff BIN:

0.560

Date

Points of Travel

Miles Traveled

412015 From: Hayesvilta NC

To:  Ashavils NC ta Brevard NC to home

330.0

3215 From: Hayesvits NG

tar  Frankin NC to Syiva ta Rebbinsvilia NG to Mayasvite

172.0

32318 Frou Hayasvile NC

Par  Brasstown NC to Hlawassae Dam 1o Hayssvilg

98.0

312718 Fromt Hayeaviiie NC

Tor  Waynasvile NC to Hayesvile

160.0

28Hs Fromt Hayesvilie NC

Tor  Murphy NC 1o Andrews to HayeavBia

8240

3/30/18 From: Hayasville NC

Tg:  Ashevile NC s Marshallto Hayssvile NG

264.0

Total Mileagoe:
Total Reimbursement;

K .

1,087.0
608.72

1, the undersigned, atate that the ahove expenses wore approved and lncurred

a3 a result of the performance of my duti

P

Y el

for the Congressi

) / Bigned - Staffer:

COE.MEADOWS. 000595
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U.S. House of Representatives

Travel Record
Privately Owned Vehicle

Honorable: Mark Meadows Rate: 0.560
State: NC Distriet: 11
Traveler:  Kenny West Staff EIN:
Date Polnts of Travel Miles Traveled
&/7148 From: Hayasville NC
To:  Franklia NC to Hayssvize RC 730
B8 Fyam: Hayesvilla NC .
Ta:  Ashevile NC lo Hayesviie 202:0
B4 Fromy Hayesville N
Toy  Brevoed NClo Syiva NG 303.0
/815 Froms Hayssvile NC :
7o:  Bryson Cllyto Ashaville fo Hayeavlle NG 261.0
BI0NME Fromi Hayssvilla NC
To;  Murphy NC to Robbinsvite N¢ to Hayesville 121.0
Bi2ins {Froms Hayasvile NC
To:  Hendamomnvile o Asheulie NC to Haysauitly 231.0
62118 Frams Hayesvilie NG
ror  Franidin NCto Weavervills to Ashevills to Hayesvida NC 245.0
8fors From; Hayasviie NC
Tos NC o Robb NC to Hayesv 2400
From:
Tt
From:
Tos
Fromt
Tox
Froma:
Tor
From
Tot
From:
Tot
Total Mileage: 16780
Total Reimburzement; & 438,56
1, the underaigned, state that the ahove wese app A and i d

as a

it of the p

COE .MEADOWS . 000596
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---------- Forwarded message -
From: Kenny West
Date: Thu, May 21, 2015 at 11:41 AM

Subject: My Resighation

Kenneth D. West
Chief of Staff

Rei Mark Meadois ii I |

COE.MEADOWS. 001328
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Mark Meadows US Houss of Representatives

T Mark Meadows

Mark, | have come to the most difficult decision that | ever have had 1o make. | believe things happen

for reasons. | think with the situation that has happencd to me, | truly believe that this has affected the

you are copabile of doing for the peaple of the 117 District. 1t has truly been an honar

kind of iob that
working side by side with a good man and getting to kaow vour fam

{ think God lad me to be by your side at this time and journey in vour ife and it has beer a pleasure. You
o means 3 tof to ma also. After several

are exactly what the people in the Nation needs. My repu
meetings ovar the Jast fow weeks with people that know me, and they ask about if ¥m stli working with

an e | have always tried 1o live

you because they had

1t you had fired me, Well it ook
and act Christ like and failed many imes, with that sa:d God has ahways been there and guided mea.

~altous

: don't know why thi ituation and lie was ailowed to manifest into this desteuctive manor

what | do koow is that God has and ahways will controf and guide my hife \With this said Hwill be

tasigning my position with vour office and will move ahead with ey &

like to be paid through August if possible or juhy minimum. Lhnow that is thr
have to get insuranca for mysel through -ano give me
h whatever insurance company | dedide to go with. |

twould rea

out, nut with this happenng lam geing to

time o start getting business back on track

wauld prefer nohady in staif knows of my decision, like they would really care. You are the only one that

& a great fatter of recormmendation?
Your Lasting Friend
Kenny West

05/21/2015

COE.MEADOWS .001329
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January 3, 2013 -

October 17, 2014

October 21, 2014 -

October 22, 2014 -

Early November 2014 -

Novernber 18, 2014

Late November 2014

January 7, 2015

fanuary 2015 -

February 22, 2015

March 16, 2015

Late March 2015

April1, 2015 ~<

May 21, 2015 -

June 15, 2015 -

August 15, 2015 -

273

TIMELINE

+Representative Meadows is sworn into the House.
«Xenny West becomes Representative Meadows’ Chief of Staff.

«Representative Meadows learns of complaints about Kenny West’s behavior from female staff in D.C.
office.

*Representative Meadows then informs Mr. Wast of allegations against him and that there will be an
investigation. He instructs Mr. West not to contact female D.C. staff other than the scheduler.

«Representative Meadows learns of complaint about Kenny West's behavior from female staffer in
District Office.

»Female staffer in District Office bars Kenny West from entering the office,
*Representative Meadows prohibits Mr. West from communicating divectly with female staff and from
entering congressional offices when female staff are present.

«Representative Meadows consults Representative Gowdy about how to properly investigate
allegations against Kerny West.

«Representative Meadows asks one of Representative Gowdy’s senior staffers {Gowdy Staffer) to talk to
the female employees in his D.C. office.

«Gowdy Staffer interviews five female employees in D.C. office.

«Gowdy Staffer tells Representative Meadows that the female staff’s claims are serlous and potentially
sexual harassment; recommends Representative Meadows fire Kenny West.

«Female staffer from D.C. office informs Gowdy Staffer that Kenny West was still on staff and was saying
he would come back to D.C.
«Mr. West contacts female staff despite prohibition against contacting female staff,

*Representative Gowdy approaches Representative Meadows on the House floor, tells him that actions
he took regarding Kenny West have not worked, and advises against keeping Mr. West on staff.

«Kenny West provides Representative Meadows with written evaluations of all staff, including critical
evaluations of Deputies and some female staff,

»Kenny West contacts one female staffer over the weekend and another at the office despite
prohibition against contacting female staff.

«General Counsel for the Speaker tells Representative Meadows that because Kenny West has hiring,
firing and financial responsibilities, the female staff could make hostile work environment claims.

«Kenny West becomes Senior Advisor.

*Kenny West submits resignation letter.

s Kenny West completes official work.

»Kenny West removed from House payroll,

O
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